

Sea Continue copy

HOLBROOK COVE SURVEY

A 1972 Student Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory Research Project



Massachusetts Institute of Technology

Cambridge, Massachusetts 02139

Report No. MITSG 72-19 Date: December 31, 1972

CIRCULATION COPY Sea Grant Depository

HOLBROOK COVE SURVEY

ي الم

ġ.

٢.,

A 1972 Student Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory

Research Project

Report No. MITSG 72-19 Date: December 31, 1972

Index No. 72-119-Nkw

Administrative Statement

A fundamental educational experience for undergraduate students of Ocean Engineering is the opportunity to design, construct and operate equipment in the marine environment in a coordinated attack upon some real-world problem. This is the primary objective of the Holbrook Cove Survey. The research objective is to gain a better understanding of the hydraulics and ecology of this small cove and to determine what effect the effluent that a mining operation discharges into this relatively confined estuary may have upon its ecological community. This is one of the projects of the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory.

A companion report, "The Search for DEFENCE and Other Projects of Students During the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory," (MITSG 72-20), describes the other Ocean Engineering projects undertaken by the students.

Funding for the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory was provided by:

The National Sea Grant Program, Grant No. 2-35150 The Henry L. and Grace Doherty Charitable Foundation, Inc. The St. Anthony Foundation The M.I.T. Undergraduate Research Opportunities Program The M.I.T. Information Processing Board The M.I.T. Freshman Advisory Council The Maine Maritime Academy The Massachusetts Institute of Technology

> Alfred A. H. Keil Director

December 1972

_

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Funding for the 1972 Summe was provided by:	er Ocean Engineering Laboratory			
The National Sea Grant Program, Grant No. 2-35150 The Henry L. and Grace Doherty Charitable Foundation, Inc. The St. Anthony Foundation The M.I.T. Undergraduate Research Opportunities Program The M.I.T. Information Processing Board The M.I.T. Freshman Advisory Council The Maine Maritime Academy The Massachusetts Institute of Technology				
Equipment that was made ava cost included:	ailable to the project at no			
Equipment	Donor			
Instruments for heavy metal analysis Polagraphic	Dr. Frank Aldrich and Mr. George Boylen, M.I.T. Environmental Medical Service			
-oragraphic oxygen electrode	Dr. Frank Carey, Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution			
Mechanical bathythermograph and Nansen bottle	Dr. Sloat Hodgson, Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution			
Laboratory space and instrumentation for chlorophyll and heavy metal analysis	Professor Stephen Moore, M.I.T. Department of Civil Engineering			
Research Vessel LOBSTER	Professor Damon E. Cummings, M.I.T. Department of Ocean Engineering			
Various electronic components	SIGNETICS, Inc.			
The individuals who donated without compensation include:	their time to the projects			
Individual	Organization			
Professor A. D. Carmichael Professor Damon E. Cummings Professor Ira Dyer Mr. Herman Kunz Professor Dean Mayhew CAPT Willard F. Searle, USN (Ret)	M.I.T. M.I.T. Searle Consultants Maine Maritime Academy Searle Consultants			

ii

.

5 · · · ·

Miss Anita Harris permitted the use of her properties and facilities on Holbrook Island without which the Holbrook Cove Survey would have been impossible.

The list of faculty and staff at both the Maine Maritime Academy and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology who contributed to the success of the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory would be lengthy and nearly impossible to compile without inadvertent omissions, so to these individuals the participants express their sincere appreciation. 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory

PARTICIPANTS

Massachusetts Institute	Maine Maritime
of Technology	Academy

FACULTY:

÷

Damon E. Cummings

David B. Wyman Donald A. Small

ACADEMIC STAFF:

Keatinge Keays

GRADUATE STUDENT STAFF:

Walter B. Lincoln Roger K. Wells

STUDENTS :

John S. Allen Stephen E. Barnes Peter W. Cebelius Richard Chertow Robert L. Dwyer Glenn J. Keller Michael B. Kennedy Valery E. Lee Robert J. Lukens Edward Murphy Gerald L. Roylance John F. Schenck Karen S. Seo Alexander T. A. Siapkaras

Raymond Barriault Garry Bartlett George Benson William Blackwood David Bradford Douglas Cameron Bruce Campbell Malcolm Cianchette Vincent Devlin Daniel Labreque Mark Libby Stephen Lobley Robert McCarty George Miller William Parker John Sautter Gregory Sawyer

iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
	Administrative Statement	i
	Acknowledgments	ii
	Participants	iv
1.0	Introduction	l
2.0	Summary	3
	<pre>2.1 Objective 2.2 Background 2.3 Results 2.4 Conclusions 2.5 Recommendations</pre>	3 3 4 5 6
3.0	Determination of the Current Patterns in Holbrook Cove	8
	<pre>3.1 Objective 3.2 Procedure 3.3 Limitations of Accuracy 3.4 Data Reduction 3.5 Results 3.6 Conclusions 3.7 Recommendations</pre>	8 9 10 12 14 18
4.0	Determination of Current Velocities versus Real Time in the Southern and Northwestern Entrances of Holbrook Cove	23
	<pre>4.1 Objective</pre>	23 23 23 23 23 28
5.0	Temperature, Salinity and Chlorophyll	29
	5.1 Temperature and Salinity Patterns	29
	<pre>5.1.1 Objective</pre>	29 29 29 34 34 34

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

	5.	2 Chlo	rophyll Patterns in Holbrook Cove	. 36
		5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2.	<pre>1 Objective</pre>	. 36 . 37 . 37 . 37 . 37 . 41 . 41
6.0	Bio	logica	l Effects of Heavy Pollutants	. 43
	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6	Objec Backo Resu Concl Recon Detai	ctive ground Its usions mendations led Procedures	. 43 . 43 . 49 . 51 . 51 . 51
		6.6.1 6.6.2 6.6.3	Sampling Place	51 52 52
7.0	Inst	trument	ation	52
	7.1	Karma	n Vortex Trail Current Meter	55
	7.2	7.1.1 7.1.2 7.1.3 7.1.4 7.1.5 7.1.6 7.1.7 7.1.8 7.1.9 Impel]	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations Detailed Procedures Fabrications Calibrations Meter Implacements er-Driven Current Meter	55 55 55 56 56 56 59 61 61
	7.3	7.2.1 7.2.2 7.2.3 7.2.4 7.2.5 7.2.6 Curren	Objective Background Calibration of the Impeller Current Meters Mooring Conclusions Recommendations	63 63 65 65 65 68 68
		7.3.1 7.3.2 7.3.3 7.3.4	Objective Background Results Conclusions	68 68 68 69
				70

. . . .

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

			Page
7.4	Oxygen	Meter	71
	7.4.1 7.4.2 7.4.3 7.4.4 7.4.5	Objective Background Results Conclusions Detailed Description of the Oxygen Meter and Probe	71 71 71 72
7.5	Automa	ted Data Recorder	74
	7.5.1 7.5.2 7.5.3 7.5.4 7.5.5	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations	74 75 75 78 78
7.6	Tide G	auge	78
	7.6.1 7.6.2 7.6.3 7.6.4 7.6.5	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations	78 78 79 79 79
7.7	Detaile	ed Bottom Topography of Holbrook Cove	82
	7.7.1 7.7.2 7.7.3 7.7.4 7.7.5	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations	82 82 82 82 85
7.8	Bottom	Sample Corer	85
	7.8.1 7.8.2 7.8.3 7.8.4 7.8.5 7.8.6	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations Detailed Procedure	85 85 85 85 86 86
Appendix	A Drogu	ne Buoy Computer Programs	
Appendix	B Tides	; at Castine, Maine	

Appendix C An Example of the Use of Figure 7.11

LIST OF FIGURES

		Page
3.1	Drogue Buoys	. 8
3.2	Holbrook Cove	13
3.3	Pre-High, High and Post-High Streamlines and Current Velocities	16
3.4	Pre-Low, Low and Post-Low Streamlines and Current Velocities	20
4.1	Impeller Current Meter Results in Northwest Entry to Holbrook Cove	24
4.2	Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Results in South Entry to Holbrook Cove	25
4.3	Comparison of Buoy Velocities and Current Meter Results in Northwest Entry to Holbook Cove	26
4.4	Comparison of Buoy Velocities and Current Meter Results in Southwest Entry to Holbrook Cove	27
5.1	Sampling Bottles	30
5.2	Sampling Grid	
5.3	Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples Taken at Stations IA through 8A	30
5.4	Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples Taken at Stations 1B through 8B	9C
5.5	Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples Taken at Stations IC through 8C	JJ 40
6.1	Callahan Mine Location	. 40
6.2	Callahan Mine Complex	44
7.1	Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Results at Card	45
7.2	Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Lawout	57
7.3	Karman Vortex Trail Current Motor Call	60
7.4	Impeller Current Meter (1977 March)	62
7.5	Impeller Current Mater v	64
7.6	Impeller Current Meter Mooring	66
		67

LIST OF FIGURES (continued)

Page

77		
1.1	Oxygen Meter Circuit Diagram	73
7.8	Astable Multivibrator Circuit Diagram	77
7.9	Tide Gauge Construction	81
7.10	Tide Gauge Critical Conditions	83
7.11	Nomogram	84
7.12	Corer Body	87
7.13	Corer Tripping Mechanism	88
7.14	Corer Head and Nipple Insert	89

.

LIST OF TABLES

3.1	Comparison of Length of Baselines as Determined by Triangulation and Measurement (CGS Charts)	10
3.2	Names and Approximate Time Boundaries of Tidal Phases	14
3.3	Tide Phase: Pre-High	15
3.4	Tide Phase: High	18
3.5	Tide Phase: Post-High	19
3.6	Tide Phase: Pre-Low	20
3.7	Tide Phase: Low Tide	21
3.8	Tide Phase: Post-Low	2 2
5.1	Temperature, Salinity, Density and Chlorophyll 'A' at Depth = 0 Meters	31
5.2	Temperature, Salinity, Density and Chlorophyll 'A' at Depth = 3 Meters	32
5.3	Temperature, Salinity, Density and Chlorophyll 'A' at Depth = 6 Meters	33

.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This report is the first of two volumes concerning the accomplishments of the 1972 M.I.T./Maine Maritime Academy Sea Grant Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory. It describes the investigations students conducted in an oceanographic and biological survey of Holbrook Cove in July 1972. The second report deals with their successful search for the remains of a Revolutionary War privateer, the design and construction of equipment for use in future Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratories, and other activities.

The Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory provides undergraduate ocean engineering students an opportunity to combine theory and practice when they design simple equipment and test and operate this equipment in the real environment for which the students must prepare themselves.

We selected two major projects in which all the students' equipment could be utilized in coordinated efforts; thus each student had an opportunity to contribute useful results to a real-world ocean engineering project. These two major projects are a comprehensive survey of Holbrook Cove and a systematic search for the remains of American Revolutionary War ship hulks.

For the students, the Summer Laboratory demonstrated that there is more to ocean engineering than just conceptual design and theoretical analysis. They dealt first-hand with Murphy's Law. They experienced the rigors of the marine environment, including the limitations of weather, the swift devastation of corrosion, and the exacting demands of hydrostatics.

Their benefits, judging from the students' post-Summer Lab interests and activities, include: a better perspective of their academic experiences; an enhanced appreciation for the relevance of the various elements that comprise an ocean engineering curriculum; an intensified curiosity directed toward unfamiliar facets of ocean engineering; and, in some cases, an inspiration for a special project or thesis.

In the report of the 1971 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory we stated: The opinion of all who were involved with this project, students and faculty of both M.I.T. and Maine Maritime Academy, visiting faculty, and consultants, was that this program served an educational purpose that is essential early in the students' Ocean Engineering education. All hands were exposed to the myriad of problems encountered in attempting to apply theory and classroom experience to equipment and procedures that must work at sea without the enormous expense and pressure of full-scale industrial or government projects. The usual mistakes were made in an environment where they could be dealt with without cost or loss of essential data and the lessons were learned.

Our experience during this second Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory reinforces our faith in the value of this educational experience.

2.0 SUMMARY

2.1 Objective

The objective of the Holbrook Cove Survey is to gain an understanding of its hydraulics and ecology in order to ascertain the effect which the effluent from the Callahan mine outfall has upon the Cove.

Holbrook Cove is located approximately one-half mile southwest of Castine, Maine, and appears on U.S. Coast & Geodetic Survey Chart number 311, as well as the Department of Interior/ Department of the Army topographical map of Castine, Maine. 2.2 <u>Background</u>

This project permitted the M.I.T. and Maine Maritime Academy students to design, construct and utilize individual equipment and employ them in the marine environment in a coordinated attack upon a real problem. It had come to the attention of those participating in the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory that heavy metal pollution is a problem in the coastal areas of Maine and that a relatively new mining operation had opened in Holbrook Cove. It is deemed possible that the effluent from the outfall of this mining operation has a profound effect upon the ecology. The following research projects were planned and coordinated to study this problem.

PROJECT	STUDENT PARTICIPANTS
Tidal Current Streamlines and Velocity	Cebelius, Kennedy and Lukens
Temperature and Salinity	Murphy
Chlorophyll 'A' Content	Chertow
Benthic Infauna Distribution	Dwyer, Lee, Seo
Tidal Height Fluctuations	Barnes
Detailed Bottom Topography	Cameron, Cianchette and Sautter
Bottom Soil Structure	Barriault
Water Oxygen Content	Murphy

2.3 <u>Results</u>

The results of the individual projects are as follows:

Project

Results

- Tidal Currents Streamlines at various tidal phases have been established. Current velocities have been calculated. Current velocities have been measured on a realtime basis at the northwestern and southern entrances to the Cove. Fluctuations indicate a seiche in the Cove has a profound effect upon the velocity at any given time.
- Temperature and Salinity These measurements were made. The results are contained in Tables 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3.
- Chlorophyll 'A' content These measurements were made. The results are contained in Figures 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5 and Tables 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3.
- Benthic Infauna Distribution Still being analyzed. Initial trends indicate that the biomass and numbers of individuals are at a minimum at the sampling station nearest the outfall. This may indicate that the effluent has an adverse effect on the biota.
- Tidal Height Fluctuations A tide gauge has been built and tested, but the scribe mechanism and the magnitude of frictional forces did not permit the gauge to give useful results.
- Detailed Bottom Topography A nomogram was prepared to permit the soundings to be related to the MLLW datum. In testing the nomogram against observed tidal heights at Castine, it was noted that the scope of tide appears to be about one foot greater than indicated in the tide tables. Time precluded the detailed sounding program execution.

Project

Results

Bottom Soil Structure A corer and release mechanism were designed and built. During the first in situ test the messenger line used for retrieval was severed and the unit could not be relocated for recovery.

Oxygen Content of Cove Water An oxygen meter was designed and constructed for use with an oxygen probe borrowed from the Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution. Time precluded calibration. No measurements of oxygen content of Cove water were made.

2.4 Conclusions

It is apparent that the educational objectives of this project were met. All of the rigors of the marine environment were apparent from the restrictions of weather to the effects of corrosion. The constraints of time demonstrated that careful planning is necessary if this priceless commodity is to be conserved and that, if it is not conserved, the entire effort up to the deadline may end in frustration. The loss of the corer dramatically demonstrated the need for failure analysis and provision of safeguards to handle those failures which may occur if an entire project is not to be jeopardized by some malfunction. Finally, the students received practical training in boat handling, safety at sea, navigation and the discipline these activities imply.

The research objectives were partially met. The results of the investigations into the hydraulics of the Cove indicate that there may be a seiche that significantly affects the current velocity magnitudes. Sampling of data at thirty-minute intervals does not give a meaningful result in this instance since the sampling intervals must be less than half the period of the seiche to obtain a meaningful real-time result. The gross flow patterns in the Cove have been defined particularly in the vicinity of the three entrances. Finally, the results suggest that the variation of current velocity with respect to depth is significant and should be investigated. The results of the temperature and salinity survey reveal no anomalies in the absence of flow from the mine outfall.

The chlorophyll 'A' measurements do not suggest any effect upon chlorophyll 'A' distributions in the vicinity of mine outfall. In the absence of a constant effluent flow, none would be expected.

The preliminary results in the study of the benthic infauna distribution suggest that there is a detectable adverse effect upon the ecology in the vicinity of the mine outfall.

2.5 Recommendations

The Holbrook Cove Survey is incomplete as of this writing. From the research point of view, there is still a great deal to be learned in this relatively small geographical area. A better and more complete survey could and should be conducted, taking advantage of the lessons and mistakes of the 1972 effort. Certainly, the equipment not used in the 1972 survey should be employed to complete those research objectives not carried out in this effort because of the limitations of time.

A determination of the period and magnitude of the seiche in Holbrook Cove and its effect upon the flow patterns is a very intriguing project and the most effective means appears to be through the use of current meters. A second study which suggests itself is the determination of the variation of current with respect to depth. Both of these projects would be enhanced by the design and construction of a device that will establish current direction for use with the current magnitudes as measured by the current meters.

If the Callahan mine outfall is discharging effluent, a repetition of the study of the chlorophyll 'A' distribution seems indicated. Perfection of a method to measure the concentration of heavy metal ions to correlate with the clorophyll 'A' patterns is highly desirable.

From the educational viewpoint, the efforts in surveying the Cove are ideal. The project is of necessity interdisciplinary and careful coordination is required if the results are to be meaningful. This coordination imposes the discipline of

-6-

scheduling, which is one of the very real constraints not adequately imposed by any other form of educational experience. It is therefore recommended that the survey effort be considered for future Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory projects.

3.0 DETERMINATION OF THE CURRENT PATTERNS IN HOLBROOK COVE

3.1 Objective

This project has as its objective the determination of the current velocities and streamlines in the Holbrook Cove estuary as a function of time and tide. Data were obtained by the use of drogue buoys (see Figure 3.1). By recording the geographical position of each buoy and the associated time, velocities and positions have been calculated.



Figure 3.1 Droque Buoys

Procedure 3.2

Measurement of buoy positions and the related times were made at various locations in the Cove over the complete spectrum of tide states. Although it was originally planned to cover the entire area of the Cove, limitations of time forced the proj ect to select those areas which appeared to be most crucial to the inderstanding of the Cove's current patterns, and concentrate the data-gathering efforts only in those areas.

Geographical measurements of buoy positions were made by establishing a baseline between two transits and recording both its length and line of bearing. Using the transits at the ends

of the baseline, simultaneous measurements of the relative angle between the baseline and the line of sight from each transit to a buoy were made and recorded. The units of measure employed were:

> Directions and angles--degrees and minutes Baseline length--meters Time--hours, minutes and seconds

3.3 Limitations of Accuracy

Factors affecting data accuracy were both natural and mechanical. The natural factor that was of concern was the effect of the wind upon the paths and velocities of the buoys. Wind velocities in excess of two knots were considered to measurably affect data accuracy, and wind velocities in excess of five knots were considered unacceptable. In reducing the data, all measurements taken in conditions involving wind velocities in excess of two knots were discarded. In reducing the data, it appears that there may be some measurable wind effect at velocities of one to two knots. This fact led the team to concentrate the datagathering effort into the very early morning hours in which there is generally no measurable wind.

Mechanical factors affecting the accuracy of the data were the limitations equipment imposed upon the measurements of the baseline lengths, line-of-sight angles with respect to the baseline and the times of each measurement. The end positions of the baselines were established by locating them on a chart of the estuary with respect to landmarks depicted thereon. Lengths of the baselines were determined by first calculating the length by means of triangulation and then measuring the distance between the two end positions as located on the Coast and Geodetic Survey Charts. Table 3.1 contains a comparison of the length of the baselines as determined by triangulation and by measurement from the Coast and Geodetic Survey Charts.

It is estimated that the line-of-sight angles with respect to baseline were measured with limits of accuracy of about <u>tone-half</u> degree of arc. Time was measured to the nearest tenth of a minute (six seconds).

BY TRIANGULATION AND	MEASUREMEN	T (CGS CHARIS)	
	LENGTH		
	MEASURED	MEASURED	
	FROM	BY	
BASELINE	CHART	TRIANGULATION	
015/195	823	950	
026/206	311	321	
108/288	347	368	
122/302	293	246	
146/326	329	333	
174/354	466	397	
108/288 122/302 146/326 174/354	347 293 329 466	368 246 333 397	

Table 3.1

COMPARISON OF LENGTH OF BASELINES AS DETERMINED

3.4 Data Reduction

...

The large volume of data collected made the use of a computer highly desirable. The quality of the data was carefully examined and several series of observations were disregarded because they appeared to have been severely affected by wind. The remainder of the data was then sorted first by utilizing a computer program to calculate buoy velocities and then discarding all inconsistent observations. For example, if a buoy's velocity changed drastically between observations and then appeared to return on succeeding observations to values consistent with earlier observations and the buoy's position was inconsistent with those established by preceding and succeeding observations, the data corresponding to the nonconforming observation was discarded. This procedure was adopted after it was noted that the paths of the buoys were linear or involved only slight degrees of curvature, except for a very few instances in which buoys came under the influence of a vortex. In those instances, only the most erratic cases were disregarded.

The data reduction required solutions of two equations of the form:

$$P_n = f(x, y)$$

$$V_n = g(P_n, P_{(n-1)}, \Delta T)$$

where

- x and y are orthogonal coordinates in a twodimensional grid system with the x coordinate measured parallel to the observation baseline;
- ΔT is the time interval between the observations establishing the positions P_n and $P_{(n-1)}$.

In order to define the positions of the buoys in terms of the coordinate system, x and y, using the baseline as the base of a triangle and the lines of sight from the ends of the baseline to the buoy as its other two legs, the computer was uti-The known quantities are the length of the baseline and lized. the two included angles between the lines of sight and the baseline. Establishing one end of the baseline as the origin of the coordinate system, the calculation of the orthogonal projection of the leg formed by the line of sight from that end of the baseline to the buoy defines the x coordinate. The calculation of the altitude of the vertex, formed by the intersection of the two lines of sight, with respect to the baseline defines the y coordinate. The computer was programmed to calculate the x and y coordinates using the law of sines. No attempt was made to utilize a single coordinate system for the entire estuary, but rather a different one was used for each baseline. If desired, a set of transformation equations could have been derived, but it would have unnecessarily complicated the problem. Streamlines were represented graphically on a chart of the Cove. As a matter of expediency two Fortran IV programs were written. The first calculated the x and y coordinates and the velocities punching the calculated data onto cards which served as data

for the second program. The latter program plotted the streamlines on a mechanical plotter. These streamlines were then positioned on a chart of the Cove and a reproduction made from the result.

A listing of each of the two programs is found in Appendix Α. A description of the first program is also included in the appendix, but, since the second program merely reads Cartesian coordinates and calls an IBM-supplied plotting subroutine, no description seems to be required.

3.5 Results

1

- 1 - 1

Figure 3.2 is a reproduction of the chart of Holbrook Cove showing its major physical features and the surrounding landmarks. The features which appear to have the greatest effect upon the flow patterns of the Cove are three entrances: the sandbar (northern entrance), the Nautilus Rock Channel (northwestern entrance) and the Goose Falls Channel (southern entrance) The sandbar is submerged from zero to eight feet, varying from three hours before high tide to three hours after high tide. Since the drogue buoys used in this project required at least five feet of water depth, little data was obtained in the vicinity of the sandbar. It should be noted that all times in the figures which follow are recorded in hours and minutes from the High or Low tide. The times of High and Low tide were calculated based upon the U.S. Department of Commerce Tide Tables using the correction factors for Castine, Maine (see Appendix B)

The data have been grouped into six time periods, each $\mathtt{cor-}$ responding to approximately a two-hour phase in the Tidal Cycle. The names and approximate time limits of each phase are contained in Table 3.2.

Figures 3.3 and 3.4 contain the streamlines and flow velocities. Tables 3.3 through 3.8 list the dates of the observations, initial and final observation times (recorded with respec to the hours and minutes before or after the high/low tide) and the baseline from which the observations were made. The baselines are identified in Figure 3.2.



Figure 3.2 Holbrook Cove

Table 3.2

NAME AND APPROXIMATE TIME BOUNDARIES OF TIDAL PHASES

NAME	BEGINNING	END	
Pre-High Phase	3 hours before high tide	l hour before high tid $oldsymbol{e}$	
High Phase	l hour before high tide	l hour after high tide	
Post-High Phase	l hour after high tide	3 hours after high tide	
Pre-Low Phase	3 hours before low tide	l hour before low tide	
Low Phase	l hour before low tide	l hour after low tide	
Post-Low Phase	l hour after low tide	3 hours after low tide	

3.6 Conclusions

The streamline and velocity charts for the pre-high phase (Figures 3.3 and 3.4) reveal that buoy direction reversals begin with those buoys located closest to the southern entrance. The tidal flows appear to initiate approximately 45 minutes earlier at the southern end than at the northern end of the Cove. There appears to be a tidal phase gradient in the area of the Cove bounded by the southern entrance and by Ram Island. The streamline chart (Figure 3.3) for the pre-low phase indicates slack water about one hour before the predicted low tide at Castine, Maine. The velocity chart (Figure 3.4) for the low phase indicates rather high velocities at the times of predicted slack water at Castine, Maine. It is noted that buoy velocities appear to decrease as they approach Ram Island.

The basin north of Ram Island can be pictured as a large tank with four inlets/outlets (one of which is open for about three hours before and after high tide). The currents through the northwestern and southern entrances to the Cove in post-low and pre-high phases are in opposition in the shallow channel west of Ram Island. The current from the southern entrance is predominant and forces water back toward the northwestern entrance.

As the current in the southern entrance begins to shift from flood to ebb, water continues to fill the basin. By the time the current at the northern entrance (the sandbar) begins

-15-

Table 3.3

TIDE PHASE: PRE-HIGH

DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME END	OBSERVATION BASELINE
7/25	F3R	-3:00	-2:29	026/206
7/25	F4R	-2:10	-1:07	026/206
7/25	F3O	-3:56	+0:36	026/206
7/19	КЗВ	-5:05	-3:36	108/288
7/19	K2RB	-5:00	-3:04	108/288
7/19	K3RB	-2:41	-1:48	108/288
7/19	K3R	-2:43	-1:55	108/288
7/19	K3W	-2:42	-1:48	108/288
7/19	K3WG	-2:39	-1:50	108/288
7/25	E3W	-1:53	+0:08	146/326
7/26	C2R	-2:22	-1:54	108/288
7/26	C3W	-3:03	-2:25	108/288
7/26	C2B	-4:10	-2:55	108/288
7/26	СЗВ	-2:30	-2:20	108/288
7/26	D20	-2:08	-1:21	174/354
7/26	D2R	-3:19	-2:58	174/354
7/25	E3Y	-2:40	-2:12	146/326
7/25	E4Y	-1:54	-0:50	146/326
7/25	E3RB	+2:35 [°]	-2:09	146/326
7/25	E2W	-2:41	-2:14	146/326
7/25	F3B	-3:35	-3:00	026/206

ġ.

.

Figure 3.3 Pre-High, High and Post-High Streamlines and Current Velocities

C

ŝ

T SCO



Ć

IDAL PHASE - POST LOW

ï

ුස



02

Page 16











Figure 3.4 Pre-Low, Low and Post-Low Streamlines and Current Velocities

Page 17

-18-

Table 3.4

		TIDE PHASE: 1	HIGH	
DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME END	OBSERVATION BASELINE
7/26	Dly	-2:06	+2:03	174/354
7/26	D30	-0:59	+1:57	174/354
7/26	D2RB	-1:00	+0:41	174/354
7/26	C3R	-1:31	+1:40	108/288
7/26	C4B	-1:56	+1:50	108/288
7/24	G10	-0:04	+1:45	015/195
7/24	GlR	-0:06	+1:42	015/195
7/25	F5B	-1:03	+0:35	026/206
7/25	F5R	-0:59	+0:37	026/206
7/24	GlB	-0:04	+1:38	015/195
7/24	HlW	-0:42	+0:22	146/326
7/24	HIRB	-0:45	+0:25	146/326
7/11	LIR	-1:03	+0:25	122/302
7/11	LlW	-1:04	+0:27	122/302
7/11	LIWG	-1:06	+0:30	122/302
7/11	LIRB	-1:05	+0:31	122/302

to ebb, the basin has begun to empty. The current through the northern entrance (the sandbar) begins to flow into the basin and the currents through the outlets formed by the northwestern entrance and the channels east and west of Ram Island flow out of the basin. When the water level falls below the sandbar in the northern entrance, blocking flow, the currents through the remaining three outlets continue to flow out of the basin until the next current reversal at low tide.

3.7 <u>Recommendations</u>

The use of buoys and transits is subject to many limitations. First and foremost is the restriction on their use to periods of

Table 3.5

TIDE PHASE: POST HIGH

DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME END	OBSERVATION BASELINE
7/23	IlRB	+0:51	+2:32	015/195
7/23	IlW	+0:52	+2:32	015/195
7/23	IlB	+1:00	+2:34	015/195
7/23	110	+0:57	+2:31	015/195
7/24	G20	+2:54	+3:22	015/195
7/24	G2R	+2:53	+3:21	015/195
7/24	G2B	+2:56	+3:20	015/ 195
7/24	H2RB	+1:17	+3:12	146/326
7/24	H2Y	+1:16	+3:13	146/326
7/24	H2W	+1:20	+3:09	146/326
7/8	MIRB	+2:07	+2:42	122/302
7/8	M2RB	+3:12	+3:44	122/302
7/11	L2R	+1:26	+3:17	174/354
7/11	L2WG	+1:20	+2:20	174/354
7/11	L2W	+1:21	+2:21	174/354
7/22	JlW	+1:45	+2:51	108/288
7/11	L2RB	+1:20	+2:20	174/354
7/22	J2R	+1:43	+2:49	108/288
7/22	J1B	+1:44	+2:50	108/288
7/22	JIY	+1:44	+2:36	108/288
7/22	J10	+1:57	+5:26	108/288
7/26	D3RB	+1:08	+1:55	174/354
7/23	IlY	+0:53	+3:20	015/195

1.1.1.1

10

	Table	3.6
TIDE	PHASE:	PRE-LOW

DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME END	OBSERVATION BASELINE
7/22	J2Y	-2:27	-0:15	108/288
7/22	J2R	-2:30	-0:52	108/288
7/22	J2B	-2:32	-0:27	108/288
7/22	J2RB	-2:33	-0:42	108/288
7/24	H3Y	-2:09	-1:25	146/326
7/24	НЗW	-2:14	-1:26	146/326
7/23	12Y	-1:43	-1:23	015/195
7/23	120	-1:41	-1:22	015/195
7/19	KlWG	-1:19	-0:31	108/288

little or no wind. This severely limits the time available for gathering data. In addition, the buoys proved to be difficult to place in position, transport and store.

The transits require rather large crews since two transits are required per baseline and two or three men are needed at each station to communicate, man the transit, and record data.

The communications and recording duties can often be combined but, since at one of the transit stations a person must coordinate the sighting by the two stations, it is difficult to operate with less than four persons manning the two transits, while five persons appear to be optimum. There is also the added problem that, since buoys often run aground and in order to understand the currents, buoys must be frequently repositioned, an additional person is required to man a boat. Fatigue will also begin to take its toll, if a station is to be run over four or five hours and a replacement crew will be required. In short, buoy and transit stations require too many people to be an optimum solution.

-21-Table 3.7

		TIDE PHASE: LOW	TIDE	
DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME End	OBSERVATIC BASELINE
7/27	A10	-3:03	+1:30	026/306
7/27	Aly	+0:09	+1:29	026/306
7/26	Clb	-0:18	0:00	108/288
7/27	B3W	+0:33	+1:21	108/288
7/22	J 3RB	+0:03	+1:08	108/288
7/22	J2 0	+0:05	+1:07	108/288
7/22	J3R	-0:01	+0:47	108/288
7/22	J 3B	+0:02	+1:08	108/288
7/22	J3Y	0:00	+1:15	108/288
7/22	J3W	-0:02	+0:38	108/288
7/19	Klw	-1:16	-0:02	108/288
7/19	KIRB	-1:17	+0:04	108/288
7/19	KIR	-1:18	+0:03	108/288
7/25	FlR	+0:14	+0:59	026/206
7/25	FlB	+0:12	+1:02	026/206
7/26	Clr	-0:22	+1:52	108/288
7/26	ClW	+0:06	+1:37	108/288

Before buoys are employed in future projects, they should be redesigned to permit operation under unfavorable wind conditions. The visible part of the buoy should be made more easily identifiable and less dependent on lighting conditions, so increased distance and bad weather will not hamper tracking. The operational maximum was six buoys with a sighting period of approximately six minutes. The optimum was four buoys with a three-minute tracking period. Acoustical tracking by means of sonar might be an alternative.

The use of stationary current meters would eliminate many of the problems of buoy tracking, but would raise new ones. As

-22-

Table 3.8

		TIDE PHASE: P	OST-LOW	
I . DATE	BUOY	TIME	TIME	OBSERVATION
	2001	START	END	BASELINE
7/26	Dlrb	+0:14	+3:05	174/354
7/26	D 10	+0:15	+3:00	174/354
7/26	K2W	+1:13	+3:12	108/288
7/26	K2R	+1:15	+3:15	108/288
7/26	K2WGS	+2:01	+2:28	108/288
7 /25	F20	+1:09	+1:55	026/206
7 /25	F2R	+1:18	+3:14	026/206
7/25	F2B	+1:16	+2:19	026/206
7/25	ElW	+1:10	+2:43	146/326
7/25	E2RB	+2:22	+2:47	146/326
7/25	E2Y	+2:02	+2:45	146/326
7/26	C10	-0:19	+2:43	108/288
7/26	C2W	+1:53	+2:44	108/288
7/25	Ely	+1:13	+1:44	146/326
·				/

it stands now, most current meters provide a current magnitude, but a current direction would also have to be obtained. Another limitation of current meters is the fact that they are difficult to moor and reposition.

An optimum approach might be the use of a combination of buoys and current meters. The buoys, of course, utilize a Lagrangian type of coordinate system, while the current meters use a Eulerian type of system, but with the information from both, an exceptional picture of the hydrodynamics of the Cove could be obtained. 4.0 DETERMINATION OF CURRENT VELOCITIES VERSUS REAL TIME IN THE SOUTHERN AND NORTHWESTERN ENTRANCES OF HOLBROOK COVE

4.1 Objective

The objective of this project is to measure current velocities in the center of the channel at the southern and northwestern entrances of Holbrook Cove over a complete tidal cycle. 4.2 Procedure

The current meters were moored in approximately the center of the southern and northwestern channels at a depth of approximately 10 feet at low tide. A clock-timing device was used to record the current meter pulses on magnetic tape for a period of four minutes at half-hour intervals, on the hour and halfhour. The magnetic recorders were later retrieved. An operator rewound the tape, placed the tape recorder in the "play" mode and counted the number of pulses over a 10-second interval. Current velocities were then determined using the pulses per second to enter the calibration curves.

4.3 <u>Results</u>

Figures 4.1 and 4.2 are plots of current velocities at 30minute intervals. The tidal phase noted at the bottom of the figures relate the time to the tidal phase at Castine. Figures 4.3 and 4.4 compare buoy velocities calculated from observations taken in the vicinity of the current meter positions with the results of the current meters. It should be noted that the buoy observations were not made on the same day that the current meters were implanted and that the buoy positions are in the same general area, but not identical to the positions of the current meter. It should also be noted that the current meters were placed a fixed distance from the bottom of the Cove and their depths therefore vary with the height of the tides. It is estimated that the depth of the current meters varied from approximately 10 feet to approximately 20 feet over the complete tidal cycle.

4.4 <u>Conclusions</u>

In comparing the results of the current meters and the buoys, it appears that there may be a periodic velocity fluctuation that significantly affects the magnitudes of the currents





-24-


Figure 4.2

Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Results in South Entry to Holbrook Cove

ċ

-25-





Comparison of Buoy Velocities and Current Meter Results Northwestern Entrance to Holbrook Cove





Comparison of Current Meter and Body Velocity Results in South Entry to Holbrook Cove in the Cove. The results suggest that the period of this oscillation is about 8 to 12 minutes and the velocity variations may be as much as plus or minus 30 percent around some mean value.

Based upon the results of both the current meters and the buoy velocities, it is concluded that the tidal currents in Holbrook Cove are significantly affected by a seiche. In planning the project, this result was not anticipated and the time intervals selected for recording currents was arbitrarily set at 30 minutes. In addition, it appears that there is a significant reduction in the current velocities recorded by the current meter when the depths are greatest, i.e., near high tide. 4.5 Recommendations

While it appears that the current meter and recording system functioned properly, the reduction of data by counting the number of "beeps" over a time interval as a means of establishing velocity is far too time-consuming. It is therefore recommended that a means of recording velocity that will permit a more automated reduction of data be devised.

It is also recommended that any future projects consider the possibilities of a seiche and velocity measurements be made continuously over longer time spans or, if intermittent current velocity measurements are made, the interval between measurements be shortened to a period that is less than half the period of the estimated seiche.

Finally, it is recommended that a vertical array of current meters be deployed to establish the velocity profile as a function of depth.

5.0 TEMPERATURE, SALINITY AND CHLOROPHYLL

5.1 Temperature and Salinity Patterns

5.1.1 Objective

The purpose in studying temperature and salinity in Holbrook Cove is to obtain baseline data usable in density analysis. This data will be useful in establishing the prevailing conditions in Holbrook Cove, and how these conditions may affect biology and water movement. The design of inexpensive water sampling bottles and their construction was required to achieve the primary objective (see Figure 5.1).

5.1.2 Background

Salinity and temperature analysis is a standard practice in physical oceanography. Salinity gives a good idea of the horizontal and vertical extent of dilution in the Holbrook micro estuary. Presumably, fresh water from both the Bagaduce and Penobscot Rivers dilute sea water in the area of the Cove. Rain water also has a day-to-day effect, although sampling was not extensive enough to draw any conclusions about this effect.

Temperature is of equal value to the oceanographer. Within any geographical basin, one generally finds more than one water type. Temperature tends to be the prime indication of a transition from one water type to another; and the word thermocline denotes just such a boundary. Temperature is seasonal, and has a controlling effect on the biological community.

Finally, temperature and salinity, coupled with the depth at which the sample was taken, can be combined to calculate the density of the water sample. Density, also a characteristic of the particular water, determines the physics of that water body to some extent. Statically, more dense water will lie at the bottom of basins. Dynamically, the forces on waters of different density are the cause of water movement.

5.1.3 Results

The results of this investigation are tabulated in Table 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3. The column headed "Chlorophyll 'A'" is discussed in Section 5.2.



Figure 5.1 Sampling Bottles

TABLE 5.1

TEMPERATURE, SALINITY, DENSITY AND CHLOROPHYLL 'A'

AT DEPTH = C METERS

STATION	TEMPERATURE (DEGREES CENTIGRADE)	SALINITY	SIGMA "T"	CHLOROPHYLL *A* (MICROGRAMS PER LITEP)
1 A	17.5	26.18	19.22	2.071
18	17.5	25.44	13.12	1.526
LC	17.5	25.30	18.02	1.417
2 A S	17.0	25.60	18.40	1.417
28	15.0	25.22	13.49	1.417
2 C	17.0	24.34	17.78	1.744
3A	17.0	25.30	12.13	1.417
38	17.0	25.30	18.13	1.090
3 C	18.0	25.02	17.96	0.731
4Δ	17.5	24.65	17.79	1.417
48	17.5	24.38	17.70	1.090
40	18.0	25+44	18.01	1+417
5 A	17.0	25.37	18.56	1,199
58	14-0	26.20	19.44	0.231
50	17.2	27.13	19.45	1+417
6Δ	17.0	25.66	18.40	1,339
óß	13.0	21.05	16-20	1.744
60	14.0	26.92	19.99	2.130
7 A	17.0	26.13	18.80	3,4391
76	17.5	25.93	18.50	1 172
70	17+0	25.33	13.15) .931
3 A	17.5	20.17	18.61) (77
3B	18.0	76.40	19.74	V • FD0
9 C		- • ••	A	2. 131

TABLE 5.2

TEMPERATURE, SALINITY, DENSITY AND CHECROPHYLL 'A'

AT DEPTH = 3 METERS

STATION	TE₩PERATURE (DEGREES CENTIGRADE)	S AL IN I TY	SIGMA 'T'	CHLCROPHYLL 'A' (MICROGRAMS PER LITER)
١٨	15.0	28.72	20.02	1.526
18	16.0	26.20	19.03	1.309
10	14.0	26.29	19.51	1.635
7 8	17.0	25.82	18.52	1.744
20	11.5	26.11	19.32	1.962
20	15.0	26.38	19.38	2.239
7.6	12 0	27-46	20.78	1.635
)A 20	10.0	27.28	20.97	1.526
30	10.0	29.07	22.30	1.199
4. 8	10.5	27.39	20.97	1.744
4414	10+2	27.08	21.03	1.353
40 40.	10.5	26.18	20.03	1.199
C A	13 5	28 51	21.50	2.071
28	15.0	20.18	21.74	1.962
58 50	11.0	73.87	22.04	2.398
<i>(</i>)	11.0	29. 2C	21,59	1.744
04	11+0	20+27	21.79	2.507
6C	9.9 10.0	23.91	22.23	2.371
7.6	12.0	27 10	20-50	1.635
	12.0	20.03	20,00	1.962
73	12.0	29.05	21070	1.744
ΤC	12.0	28+24	21.74	2 .
8 A	12.0	20.96	20.39	1.172
513	11.5	23.42	21.61	1.526
ьC				

TABLE 5.3

TEMPERATURE, SALINITY, DENSITY AND CHLOROPHYLE *A*

Ş

AT DEPTH = 6 METERS

STATION	TEMPERATURE (CEGREES CENTIGRADE)	SALINITY	SIGMA "T*	CHLGROPHYLL •A• (MICROGRAMS PER LITER)
1 A	3.5	29.54	22.92	0.763
1 B	9 . 5	29.34	22.64	0.763
10	19.0	28.55	21.96	2.616
2 A	11.0	29.90	22.84	1.199
28	9.0	29.72	23.02	0.545
20	11.0	29.32	22.39	0.218 .
3 4	9.0	29.90	23.16	0.931
38 30	8.5	29.90	23.23	0.654
4 A	8.5	29.61	23.00	0.436
4 B	8.5	29.61	22.78	0.327
4 C	° 9 . 5	29.63	22.87	0.763
5 A 1	3 . 3	31.07	24.17	0.218
58 50	8.4	29.84	23.20	0.436
) (-	
6 A		.		
08	3.2	29.30	22.80	0.436
0L	3.5	30.44	23.65	0.436
7 A	9.0	29.65	22.96	0.327
78	9.5	28.54	22.02	0.436
7 C				
ВA	S.5	29.65	22.89	0.763
3B	9.0	29.86	23.13	0.218
36				

5.1.4 <u>Conclusions</u>

There is nothing dramatic revealed by the temperature, salinity, and density data.

The more dense water fills the deeper depths of the Cove. This would be consistent with the existence of a current through the Cove.

There is no indication of an effect by the Callahan Mine outfall on the temperature, salinity or density patterns in Holbrook Cove during the period of this study.

5.1.5 <u>Recommendations</u>

More electronic analyzing equipment is needed. Titrating is an especially long, tedious operation which leads to error.

A greater quantity of data is required to build a better picture of Holbrook Cove temperature, salinity and density patterns. Priority should be given to a number of samplings of the same area at different times of day. Then the variance of the data with respect to time could be related to water motion.

5.1.6 Detailed Procedure

5.1.6.1 Sampling Plan

To facilitate relating the temperature and salinity data to the biological accuracy results, an identical sampling grid was used for both projects (see Figure 5.2).

5.1.6.2 Sampling Technique

The sampling was accomplished using the water sampling bottles built in conjunction with this project. Once at the sampling position, determined by sighting angles on shore landmarks, the depth was determined using the fathometer on R.V. LOBSTER, the boat from which the samples were collected. It was then decided how many bottles spaced at depth intervals of three meters could be lowered.

Once this had been ascertained, the bottles were readied on the rear deck of the boat along with labeled, plastic-capped storage containers. The sampling bottles were attached to the heavy line at intervals of three meters as the line was lowered.

The bottles were triggered at the desired depths. They were then hauled up and the water in each bottle was emptied into a labeled container.



At the same station, the bathythermograph was lowered and retrieved. Its data slide was then removed and stored for later analysis.

5.1.6.3 <u>Sampling Analysis</u>

Once back at the laboratory, the water samples were titrated to determine chlorine content, using the silver nitrate method. The data were then converted to total salinity using the general formula:

The salinity was then tabulated according to station and depth.

The temperature data were drawn from the bathythermograph slides. For each station, the correct slide was read for the water sampling depths. The resulting temperature corresponded to the depths of each sample, and was tabulated next to salinity.

Using this temperature and salinity data, the U.S. Navy Hydrographic Tables were used to compute σ_t . σ_t is a parameter relating the density (ρ) of a water sample to the density of pure water (pure water has a density, ρ , of 1.0000).* The density of the water sample is related to pure water by using the equation

 $\sigma_{+} = (\rho - 1)1000$

If ρ equals 1.02575, then σ_t equals 25.75. It should be noted that the effect of pressure on density was not included because it is minimal for the depths in the Cove.

5.2 Chlorophyll Patterns in Holbrook Cove

5.2.1 Objective

This portion of the ecological survey is designed to quantitatively measure the distribution pattern of chlorophyll in the Holbrook Cove sampling area. A marked increase in chorophyll concentration with increased distance from the Callahan mine

^{*}For a detailed description, see Sverdrup, H. U., M. W. Johnson, and R. H. Fleming, 1942, The Oceans, Prentice-Hall, Inc., N.J.

outfall would suggest that the effluent from the outfall is harmful to the diatom population and therefore has an unbalancing effect on the entire ecosystem, since diatoms are a major source of food for the Cove inhabitants.

5.2.2 Background

Gentile and Erickson (1971)¹ in their study of the Goose Pond area were able to make a direct correlation between the effluent, rich in heavy metals (notably copper), and the growth inhibition of a particular diatom, <u>Cyclotella nana</u>. The ability of the water to support <u>Cyclotella</u> decreased as the mine outfall was approached. When a chelator was added to the samples, rendering the copper inert, the diatom population increased. Although this was not conclusive evidence, it does suggest that heavy metal pollution from the outfall is upsetting the plankton community.

The method used by this experimenter was to collect samples at various depths from stations upstream and downstream of the outfall, giving a fairly accurate cross section of the entire sampling area. Tests were made for a specific chlorophyll concentration, referred to as Chlorophyll 'A,' which is the major green component of the particular diatom in question.

brook

5.2.3 Results

Using water bottles, 106 samples were taken. 105 were analyzed, one being lost. The results are found in Figures 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5 as well as in Tables 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3. The data in the tables are the Chlorophyll 'A' concentrations in micrograms per liter ($\mu g/\ell$) for each sample. The station numbers 1A, 1B, 1C, etc., refer to the stations in Figure 5.2.

5.2.4 Conclusions

One of the major assumptions about which this research project was planned was that the flow from the Callahan mine outfall would be continuous throughout the sampling period. Based upon observations made by the sampling team, it appears that no flow occurred during the entire month of July. This circumstance casts doubt upon the hypothesis that the heavy metal ion concentration would be the greatest near the mouth of the outfall, since the waters of the Cove are either ebbing or







Chlorophyll 'A' (µa/l)

Holbrook Cove

Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples

Taken at Stations 1B Through 8B



(1/ρμ) Α. ΙΙγαρία (μα/1)

FIGURE 5.4



۲

t



Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples



FIGURE 5.5

Stations

flooding most of the time. It seems more logical that, if heavy metals are concentrated in the area, the effects would be most noticeable in the deep water pockets north and south of the outfall.

In examining Figures 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5, it appears that Chlorophyll 'A' concentrations are greatest at a depth of about three meters and least at depths of six meters or more. There does not appear to be a significant variation related to distance from the Callahan mine outfall.

It should be noted that the samples were all collected during a flood tide. The samples for stations 1A, 1B, 1C, 2A, 2B, 2C, 3A, and 3B were collected during the morning of July 26. The samples for stations 3C, 4A, 4B and 4C were collected during the evening of July 26. The samples for the remainder of the stations were collected during the morning of July 27.

Due to the violation of the basic assumption relating to continuous flow from the Callahan mine outfall, it is impossible to draw any conclusions with respect to the effect of the outfall upon the Chlorophyll 'A' patterns in Holbrook Cove.

5.2.5 Recommendations

In future attempts to determine the effects of a source of heavy metal concentrations (as the Callahan mine outfall may be), the water samples should be analyzed for the concentration of heavy metal ions present. This will be difficult since the concentration will be extremely low, but it would appear to be essential if the effect of heavy metals on Chlorophyll 'A' is to be determined with confidence.

Sampling plans should be expanded to permit collection of at least three water samples at three different times at each depth and location. The size of the sampling team should be expanded to permit collection of water samples over the entire grid in a period of not more than six hours (the approximate extent of either a flooding or ebbing tide). This implies that at least three students will be required to analyze the samples. 5.2.6 Procedure (see references 2 and 3)

As soon as possible 25 milliliters of each sample were filtered through a one-inch Gelman Glass Fiber filter and frozen.

The filters carrying the chlorophyll were then homogenized and extracted with 90% acetone solution and fluorated, giving a reading "f_o." Each sample was then acidified and another reading taken, "f_a." The amount of chlorophyll "a" per sample in micrograms per liter ($\mu g/\ell$) was derived from the equation "chl_a = 0.109(f_o-f_a)."

REFERENCES

- 1. Dow and Hurst, Jr., <u>Rehabilitation Problems of the Cape</u> <u>Rosier Open Pit Mine</u>, Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, <u>Augusta</u>, Maine, Nov. 1971.
- Duxbury and Yentsch, Plankton Pigment Nomographs, J. Marine Res. 15, 1956, pp. 92-101.
- 3. Richards and Thompson, <u>A Spectrophotometric Method for the</u> Estimation of Plankton Pigments, J. Marine Res. <u>11</u>, 1952, pp. 156-172.

6.0 BIOLOGICAL EFFECT OF HEAVY METAL POLLUTANTS

6.1 Objective

At Cape Rosier, Maine, a copper-zinc open pit mine has been discharging effluent rich in heavy metals into Holbrook Cove. Recent studies have shown that this type of metal pollutant is harmful to marine organisms, and probably to human health. In planning this study, it was felt that actual measurements of metal ion concentration in water and sediment at various stations might lead to a better understanding of the effects of these pollutants when correlated with benthic faunal population distributions and photosynthetic primary production in the area. The purpose of this facet of the overall study was to gather data concerning the distribution of the heavy metals (Cu, Pb, Zn, and Cd) in the sediments near the outfall, and to correlate these data with the distribution of benthic infauna (in terms of species diversity, abundance of individuals in each species, and biomass) in the sediments.

6.2 Background

In 1968, operations were undertaken by the Callahan Mining Corporation in the area near Goose Pond on Cape Rosier, Maine, to exploit local deposits of copper and zinc ore. The mouth of Goose Pond (Figure 6.1) was dammed, the pond pumped dry, and a large open pit excavation was begun. Sea water is used in the aqueous flotation and ore separation process. This water is pumped from Holbrook Cove from a site adjacent to the outfall (Figure 6.2), and used to the mill processing. It is then dumped into a settling pond, where theoretically all suspended matter is removed. The effluent is pumped into Holbrook Cove through a subsurface outfall pipe. Sump pumps which keep the open pit free of ground seepage also empty into Holbrook Cove. During the four years of operation of the mine, fine sediment suspended in the effluent has entered the Cove and large portions have probably settled there.

It must be noted, however, that the mining operation is not the only source of heavy metal ions. Surface runoff and seasonal

-43-



Figure 6.1 Callahan Mine Location



APPENDIX C

AN EXAMPLE OF THE USE OF

FIGURE 7.11

Example:

```
Find Height of Tide at 1125 Hours, July 5, 1972.
 Date: July 5, 1972
 Time: 1125 EDT
                  1025 EST
 Barometer: 30.30"
 From Tide Table (See Appendix B)
 Previous Tide Level = +9.2 ft (High) @ 0605 Hours
 Next Subsequent Tide Level = +0.2 ft (Low) @ 1212 Hours
Hours Between High and Low = (1212 - 0605) = 6^{h}07^{m}
 Feet Diff Between High and Low = (9.2 - 0.3) = 9.5 ft
 Hours After High Tide = (1025 - 0605) = 4^{h}20^{m}
 From Nomogram:
                                       +2.1 ft
      Uncorrected Ht
      Correction for 30.80" = -0.95 ft -0.95 ft
                           = +0.55 ft +1.15 ft
      Corrected Ht
```



drainage fluctuations will alter the erosion of nearby natural ore deposits, and also the resultant metal ion concentrations in the waters of Holbrook Cove. The exact pattern of effluent distributions as driven by currents and tides has not yet been determined, although sampling stations (Figure 5.2) were selected to encompass all possible effluent paths.

Of all the animals in the immediate area, only the benthic infauna have been continually subjected to the heavy metals present in the mine effluent. These animals cannot move appreciably, and thus have had to adapt to the environment of Holbrook Cove. In general, the animals that have evolved to survive in a particular environment (the boreal waters of the Gulf of Maine in this case) have the ability to successfully adapt to the range of environmental variations which occur naturally. However, even these "historical stresses" are occasionally exceeded and individual species succumb. After this stress has passed, the species may either recolonize the area, or another species may nove in and take over the first species ecological niche. The fewer of these overturns there are, the more stable is the biological community. In areas where the "predictability" of the environment is high (few abnormal stresses beyond the tolerance of all the species present), there are many species, each with a small number of individuals, and each adapted to deal with its own narrow range of ideal conditions. Where predictability is relatively low, each species must adapt to a wide range of possible environmental conditions. Since the range of ideal conditions (the niche) of each species cannot overlap with the niche of the species next to it on the spectrum of environmental factors, it is evident that there will be more niches, and thus more species, present in a high predictability environment.

In Holbrook Cove, the influx of heavy metal pollutants can be viewed as an "unpredictable" environmental stress from the point of view of the benthic community. If the community is capable of adapting to this stress, there should be no obvious change in the species composition of this community. This is the "null hypothesis" of this investigation. In order to test this hypothesis, some quantitative measure of the species diver-

-46-

sity must be employed. Several are in use at present. The rarefaction analysis method of Sanders² shows the diversity graphically, although computation and data presentation are cumbersome and tedious. The information function of Shannon³ is simpler. The number of individuals of each species in the community is calculated as a fraction of the total number of individuals in the community. This fraction, p_i , is then iterated over all species, and then the value of $\sum p_i \log_2 p_i$ is calculated for the community. This gives a value which is sample size-independent. The application of this function to biological systems has recently been questioned by Hurlburt,⁴ who proposes several alternate diversity indices. Once all data are assembled in this investigation, both Shannon's and Hurlburt' indices will be employed.

All organisms present in each sample must be identified and counted. For practical purposes, this is impossible. The sediment must be sieved to remove very small sediment (some small animals are obviously lost in the process). Reish⁵ calculated the optimum screen mesh size to maximize animal retention and minimize the extensive labor necessary to sort the samples. In practice, there is also an optimum number of grab samples to be taken at each station to assure that all species is the community are represented in each station sample. This must be determined <u>in situ</u>, after a few samples have been sorted.

In Holbrook Cove, a grid of sampling stations was laid out (Figure 5.2) in the waters near the outfall based on the sediment metal concentrations determined by the Federal Water Quality Administration⁶ in the immediate area. One objective is to duplicate the FWQA study in more detail for a small area. Hopefully, contour charts for the levels of copper, zinc, lead and cadmium, as well as charts of the species diversity indices may be drawn from the data resulting from sampling the stations on the grid. Correlation tests on these data may yield interesting results.

Since species diversity in this case may be influenced by other factors, these must be investigated and their influence on the community assessed, the 1971 Summer Laboratory report

•

(MITSG 72-3) investigated temperature, salinity, nutrients, dissolved oxygen and currents. No abnormalities were evident. Other phases of this investigation (Sections 5.1 and 5.2) duplicated portions of those studies, again revealing no abnormalities. Sediment particle size distribution does play a significant role in determining benthic community structure.⁷ Most samples in the area were composed of 60% silt, 20% clay and 20% fine sand. However, several stations were located on bare rock, or on the shallow sill of glacial sand and gravel that forms the western end of Holbrook Cove. This is a biological community very different from that found in the mud of deeper water, and therefore will not be included in the forthcoming discussion of the biological data with reference to heavy metals.

Cadmium, lead, copper, and zinc were chosen to be sampled because they exist in large enough concentrations to be measured with available Atomic Absorption Spectrophotometry equipment and are thought to be major pollutants in the area.⁸ Chromium falls below AAS detection limits. However, once data has been collected, it is difficult to draw any conclusions as to significant patterns in flow or toxicity or even the relation to the mine effluent. Robert Dow, Director of Research, Maine Department of Sea and Shore Fisheries, reports "Since exploratory drilling, stockpiling of ore-bearing rock, de-watering of the old mine shaft, and pumping out of the rain-filled pit behind the newly constructed dam at Goose Falls, heavy metal levels in clams, sediments, and rock weeds cannot be interpreted as background only. This significant and dramatic increase in all three media after ore separation can be wholly attributed to the plant operation and the discharge of effluents into Goose Cove."9 The Federal Water Quality Administration, now the Environmental Protection Agency, is more conservative in its correlation between toxic metal concentration and the mine effluent, but recommends that public water supplies in the area be monitored due to high lead concentration at two of their sample stations.⁶ It should be noted here that this report has been criticized by Dow and other Maine state officials. 10 Tidal stage,

-48-

climate and geological makeup affect concentrations of trace metals, but it is not yet fully understood how and to what degree. In addition, agreement as to whether sediments adsorb toxic ions, rendering them inert or whether they are a continuing source of contamination has not been reached.

It has been found that heavy metals do not concentrate along trophic levels.¹¹ In that particular survey of the Illinois River, the order of concentration magnitudes of Cu, Ni, Fe, Pb, Cr, Li, Co, Cd was as follows: sediments > worms > clams > fish > water. Zinc was found in greater concentration in clams than in worms. According to a report by Dow on "Estuarine Communities and Pollution,"¹² "Evidence does not support the assumption that heavy metals in estuarine sediments, marine algae, and shellfish are directly related to the level of these metals in the overlying waters." It is important, therefore, to measure metal concentrations in mud and organic samples as well as in the water. The sand worm, second only to the blood worm in economic value per unit weight to the Maine fishing industry, has a reported toxicity threshold of about 0.1 parts per million copper (Raymont and Shields, cited by Dow).⁸

A previous study of the waters around Cape Rosier showed copper concentrations ranging from 0.1 to 0.4 PPM.⁸ Dow believes that lead is probably the most hazardous metal pollutant at the mine site for both humans and commercial shellfish.¹² A study of the effect of cadmium upon humans is being conducted intermittently by M.I.T. Human intake of toxic metals comes through drinking water sources and consumption of shellfish. In particular, bivalves have the ability to concentrate heavy metals to levels greater than those found in their environment.

6.3 <u>Results</u>

The analysis of the 25 Holbrook Cove sediment and water samples for heavy metal concentrations and benthic fauna has not been completed at this writing. Shortages of equipment availability (mostly an inability to gain access to AAS equipment) and difficulties with impurity interference (Section 6.6) have hindered the determination of heavy metal concentrations. It is expected that these difficulties will have been overcome to

-49-

allow completion of AAS analysis by March 1973.

Benthic faunal sorting and species identification is also proceeding slowly. The 0.25 mm screen mesh size, as determined from Reish's⁵ analysis, used in sieving the grab samples causes the retention of a large volume of materials, which must be picked through under a dissecting microscope. Average sorting times have been in excess of 20 hours for each of the three samples sorted thus far.

A basic difficulty in the faunal analysis concerns species identification. Of the 52 positively identified polychaete worm species taken in Holbrook Cove in the FWQA study,⁶ only 24 are named in Knowlton's¹³ checklist. Knowlton acknowledged that his checklist is not "all-inclusive," even though he, his coworkers and his students have sampled along the whole Maine coast for a number of years. Significantly, the two dominant polychaete species, <u>Aricidea jeffreysii</u> and <u>Nephthys incisa</u>, representing 38% and 17% respectively of all individuals taken in Holbrook Cove, have never been found by TRIGOM researchers and are thus not included in Knowlton's checklist.

The most abundant polychaete species in the samples sorted thus far has not been identified as yet. There is some internal disagreement about whether two species are being considered as one in this case. Until this is resolved, no species diversities can be calculated.

Some trends are apparent, however. Biomass and number of individuals appear to be at a minimum at the station closest to the mine outfall; i.e., there are fewer individuals and the individuals appear to be smaller near the outfall. This could indicate an adverse influence of the effluent on the biota, but it is obviously too early to draw any correlations.

Other data would be valuable in addition to sediment faunal data. An attempt will be made to analyze locally collected bloodworms¹⁴ (<u>Glycera dibranchiata</u>), sand worms¹⁴ (<u>Nereis virens</u>), and clams (<u>Mya arenaria</u>) for heavy metals in their tissues. Several attempts were made to raise <u>Nereis virens</u> in aquariums in the laboratory, with the ultimate intention of studying the effects of various concentrations of heavy metal ions introduced into the

-50-

sea water. However, each time, high natural worm mortality was observed due to high ambient temperatures, and it was finally concluded that the necessary refrigeration was not available, so the project was abandoned.

6.4 <u>Conclusions</u>

an Sungador and a second

As stated before, sample analysis is not yet complete, so no conclusions are possible at present.

6.5 Recommendations

During July 1972, the Callahan Mining Corporation was beginning to raise salmon in a fish trap floating in Holbrook Cove. They planned to monitor the metal concentration in the salmon flesh, with the ultimate intention of marketing the salmor on a large scale. In their proposal, the deep open pit would be filled with sea water and used for fish culture. Considering the remarks made by Dr. Ruth Patrick,¹⁵ this would be highly undesirable.

As of July 1972, the mining operation had apparently been closed down. Weir Ditch, which had poured effluents into Weir Cove on the southern side of Cape Rosier, had been another major source of heavy metal contamination. As of July 28, its seaward end had been filled in. Although monitoring of the site should be continued, it is probably not within the capabilities of the Student Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory to continue the systematic sediment monitoring on a large scale, recognizing the dif ficulties which were encountered attempting to use analytical techniques and equipment and the great amount of time necessary: sort benthic sediment samples. However, monitoring of metals in worms and clams in the Cove is relatively simpler, and should be continued if AAS equipment is available.

6.6 Detailed Procedure

6.6.1 Sampling Plan

A grid pattern consisting of 24 stations was selected on the basis of previous sampling and analysis done by the FWQA.⁶ Basically, a 3 x 8 pattern was laid out in the channel separatine Holbrook Island and Cape Rosier. If time allowed, multiple sediment samples would be taken at each station, assuring adequate sampling of the benthos. Samples were taken with a modified Petersen grab sampler at most stations. Some stations were coarse gravel or bare rock, preventing adequate grab sampling. The grab was handoperated from the deck of the lobster boat.

All samples were sieved as soon as possible after return (usually within 6 hours) through 0.25 mm sieves, preserved with 10% formalin, and buffered to saturation with sodium borate (preventing calcareous shell decomposition). Subsamples for AAS analysis were placed in acid-rinsed containers and preserved with 2-3 ml concentrated HNO₃.

6.6.3 Sample Analysis

Sorting of benthic samples was accomplished under low magnification microscopy. All animals retained by the sieve were transferred to a methyl alcohol preservative. Identification was accomplished using standard available keys.

Analysis of sediment and water samples will be done by atomic absorption spectrometry using Jarrell Ash instrumentation. The method followed will be the standard methods used by the Environment Protection Agency,¹⁶ with minor alteration by the M.I.T. lab. Although metal ion concentrations of some of the Goose Falls Stations probably fall quite low, previous surveys of the area (FWOA)⁶ have not found it necessary to use special low detection limit methods of analysis, especially since interferences are more common with these methods.

Interferences known as matrix interferences occur when there are high concentrations of acids or dissolved salts, as would be the case with the samples considered here. These are controlled by dilution or by matching the concentrations of major constituents in samples and standards. When there is no way of matching concentrations, the method of additions¹⁷ is used. For analysis of the samples taken from Holbrook Cove, a rinse to remove sodium interference will be adequate. Several runs will be made to determine statistical confidence intervals.

REFERENCES

- 1. Zwick, David and Marcy Benstock, "The Danger. Water Wasteland." Bantam Books, Grossman Publ., N.Y., 1971.
- Sanders, Howard T., "Marine Benthic Diversity: A Comparative Study." Amer. Natur., <u>102</u>: 243, 1968.
- Shannon, Claude E., "A Mathematical Theory of Communication." <u>Bell System Tech. Journal</u>, <u>27</u>, 1948, pp. 379-423, 623-656.
- Hurlburt, Eric, "The Nonconcept of Species Diversity: A Critique and Alternative Parameters." <u>Ecology</u>, <u>52</u> (4), 1970, pp. 577-586.
- Reish, D. J., "A Discussion of the Importance of Screen Size in Washing Quantitative Bottom Samples." <u>Ecology</u>, <u>40</u>, 1959, pp. 307-309.
- 6. Federal Water Quality Administration, 1970. Effects of Strip-Mine Discharges on the Marine Environment near Cape Rosier, Maine. FWQA, Needham Heights, Mass.
- Sanders, Howard T., "Benthic Studies in Buzzards Bay. Animal-Sediment Relations." Limnol. and Oceanogr., 3, 1958, pp. 245-258.
- 8. Dow, Robert L., <u>Toxic Metals in the Marine Environment</u>, First Maine Environmental Congress. Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1969.
- Dow, Robert L., <u>Influence of Effluents at Cape Rosier</u>, Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1971b. Unpublished report.
- 10. Dow, Robert L. and John W. Hurst, Statement given at the Environmental Improvement Commission Public Hearing, Blue Hill, Maine, concerning waste discharge license application of Kerramerican, Inc. (revised), Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1971a.
- 11. Dow, Robert L., <u>Estuarine Communities and Pollution</u>, Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1971a. Unpublished report.

÷đ.

12. Mathis, B. J. and T. F. Cummings, "Distribution of Selected Metals in Bottom Sediments, Water, Clams, Tubificid Annelids, and Fishes of the Middle Illinois River." Research Report #41, Water Resources Center, University of Illinois, Urbana, Illinois, 1971.

- 13. Knowlton, Robert E., "Preliminary Checklist of Maine Marine Invertebrates." Publ. No. 1, The Research Institute of the Gulf of Maine, Portland, Maine, 1971.
- 14. Dow, Robert L. and J. Creaser, "Marine Bait Worms." Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission Leaflet, Tallahassee, Florida.
- 15. Dow, Robert L. and John W. Hurst, "Rehabilitation Problems of the Cape Rosier Open Pit Mine." Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1971b. Unpublished report.
- 16. Environmental Protection Agency, "Methods for Chemical Analysis of Water and Wastes." EPA, Cincinnati, Ohio, 1971.
- 17. Perkin Elmer Corp., "Analytical Methods for AAS." Norwalk, Conn., 1971.

-54-

7.0 INSTRUMENTATION

7.1 Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter

7.1.1 Objective

The basic goal of this project is the evolution of a compact and reliable current velocity measuring device utilizing the regular velocity-dependent oscillation of vortices behind a blunt object in a moving fluid. Several general design criteria were established: (1) The instrument must be capable of being set and monitored without diver assistance; (2) the output of the instrument must be recordable on magnetic tape; (3) data reduction should be convenient.

7.1.2 Background

Work was carried out during the 1971 M.I.T. Sea Grant Summer Laboratory based on similar objectives (see M.I.T. Sea Grant Report Number 72-3). These attempts were unsuccessful. The experience gained at that time allowed the successful redesign of the instrument during the 1972 Summer Lab. The basis of operation of the instrument is the velocity-dependent vortex shedding of a blunt object moving with respect to a fluid. The wake pattern generated by this object is known as a Karman Vortex This wake pattern is characterized by periodic shedding Trail. of vortices from alternate sides of the blunt object. Each shed vortex moves downstream causing lateral movement of the fluid in the wake of the object. The instrument is based on the detection of this movement. Here the magnitude of movement is not important, but rather the frequency of the change in direction of the fluid behind the blunt object is desired and, thus, the frequency of vortex shedding. This frequency is then empirically related to the velocity of fluid flow, through the calibration of the meter.

7.1.3 Results

The final results, based on a rather short testing period of one day off the dock at Castine and three days at varying locations in Holbrook Cover, were in general successful. The instrument, coupled with a simple oscillator, recorder and timer on the surface, provided data at half-hour intervals over most of the test period. The circuit interfacing the instrument with the recorder, however, was unreliable and created a large amount

of unreadable data. Data reduction, while intended to be accomplished electronically, was easily handled aurally, each twentyfour hours worth of collected data requiring approximately fortyfive minutes to put into tabular or graphic form. Graphical results of several periods of monitoring are shown in Figures 4.2 and 7.1. The validity of the data is difficult to determine. At present, there is no other tabulated data concerning current flow in the test areas. The results do show fair correlation with times of high and low tide. For example, in Figure 7.1 no current was evident shortly before high tide at 2324 hours and low tide at 0554 hours, the times being appropriate for dockside at Castine. The irregularity of the current profile presented for Holbrook Cove may well represent the apparent current surges which were noted on several occasions by the observers of the current drogues used in this area, as described in Section 3.0 of this report.

7.1.4 Conclusions

Although the test period was too short to allow conclusive evaluation of the instruments reliability, sensitivity and range in open water, the results would indicate that the meter offers a valid substitute for impeller-type current meters, when measuring low velocity currents. The instrument holds up well under rough treatment and requires no diver assistance in mooring. 7.1.5 Recommendations

The success achieved, though limited, would recommend further work on the development of this instrument as a component of a complete system for current monitoring. Most seriously needed would be the perfection of the interfacing electronics. Completion of the digital recording system which was undertaken during the lab would offer considerable advantages and possibilities in the area of data reduction. Concerning the meter itself, one could use pressure transducers as the means of converting the fluid motion to a modulated electric signal, replacing the present arrangement of fin and photocell.

7.1.6 Detailed Procedure

Preliminary design of the instrument took place in the months after the 1971 Summer Lab, and was based on experience


gained during the lab. An attempt was made to build a current meter using the vortex shedding phenomenon. The attempt involved trying to sense the frequency of vibration of a wire placed in a fluid flow. The presence of the wire caused the development of a Karman Vortex Trail. In simplified terms, the periodic lateral displacement of the fluid caused the wire to vibrate at the frequency of the vortex shedding. The attempt was then made to sense this vibration using electromechanical means. Due to the very small displacements and energy transfers involved, little success was achieved. It was decided to increase the dimensions to afford greater ease in detection of the movement of the fluid. A one-inch cylinder was used to generate the vortex trail. Sensing of the frequency of vortex shedding was done by a fin mounted on needle bearings in the flow behind the cylinder. Electrical pickup was accomplished by placing a magnet on the fin and positioning a reed switch close enough to be activated by the magnet. This version provided linear response from three-tenths of a knot to just below two knots with sensitivity to one-tenth of a knot. The instruments' dimensions were approximately two inches by three and one-half inches by six inches.

The primary shortcoming of the instrument was that its range of operation was too high to be considered for use in tidal current surveys. Several things were done in an attempt to lower the range of response. First, the effective Reynolds number of the instrument was increased by providing a venturi at the intake of the meter, thus increasing the current velocity seen by the instrument over that of the ambient flow. Little improvement was noted. It is believed that the force imparted to the sensing fin by the fluid movement was of the same order as the force exerted by the magnet on the reed switch, so the sensing of the movement of the fin was relegated to a photo cell rather than the proximity switch and magnet. Tests demonstrated an extension in the effective range of instrument down to about three inches per second. It was still apparent that more energy must be imparted to the wake to obtain greater sensitivity. To achieve this end, an ellipse replaced the cylinder. It was oriented with

the major axis perpendicular to the flow. It had been observed that the ellipse generates a wake that is wider than its greatest dimension whereas the wake of a cylinder is roughly the same width as its diameter. The meter now showed a response down to one inch per second (1/20 of a knot) under test tank conditions. 7.1.7 Fabrication

The physical layout of the meter is shown in Figure 7.2. The fin in the wake of the cylinder responds to the movement of the fluid. This lateral movement becomes a rotational movement of the wires used to support the fin. The interposer, rigidly attached to the upper supporting wire moves back and forth between the photocell and light source, which modulates the output of the oscillator. The prototype instrument had dimensions of two inches by six inches by twenty inches. The large length was provided in an attempt to reduce turbulence encountered by the ellipse caused by the leading edges of the duct. All electronics, except the photocell and light source, are designed to be on the surface, thus limiting the amount of waterproofing that must be accomplished. The light source and photocell were cast in plexiglass with their individual leads connected to a four-wire hydrophone cable to the surface. These connections were sealed by simply dipping the soldered joints in fiberglass resin. No trouble was encountered in this method of waterproofing. The original system design called for the meter to be connected to an analog-to-digital converter which would feed digital data to a recorder. This equipment was not ready for use, however, so a simpler method of providing recordable signals was used. The photocell, having a change in resistance which was dependent on the change in light to which it was exposed, was used as part of an astable multivibrator. As the resistance changed, the output frequency of the multivibrator changed. All frequencies were in the audio range and were easily recorded. As was mentioned earlier, the data was readily reduced aurally. This configuration results in a signal which is frequency-modulated at the rate with which the ellipse sheds vortices.



Figure 7.2 Karman Vortex Trail Meter Layout

7.1.8 Calibration

Calibration was carried out, using the instrument towing carriage of the wave tank in the Hydrodynamics Lab at M.I.T. This was used in preference to the ship model towing tank, due to the very low control speeds which could be achieved. Response of the meter from one inch per second to twelve inches per second was obtained. Calibration data is shown in Figure 7.3 along with a curve showing theoretical response. The theoretical curve is based on the following empirical formula relating frequency of vortex shedding to fluid velocity:

$$n = \frac{SV}{d}$$

where n is frequency, S is the Strouhal number, V is the velocity and d is the characteristic diameter (the major axis of the ellipse, 1-7/16"). The Strouhal number is constant in this regime of Reynolds number (greater than 1000). After the conclusion of operations in Castine, the ship model towing tank was used to determine the angular response of the unit to test the feasibility of using the instrument as a current direction indicator. It was hoped that the response would be such as to allow two of the instruments to be mounted in a fixed position at right angles to each other to give vectoral information as well as data about the magnitude of the current. Tests showed that the response of the instrument intercepting the current flow at angles of greater than thirty degrees was too poor to allow such a configuration.

7.1.9 Meter Implacement

The mooring of the current meter is designed to be as simple as possible. To maintain a stationary position a fifty-pound weight is used at the bottom. A line runs directly up to the meter at the desired height above the bottom and is fastened rigidly to the housing about eight inches from the leading edge, on the underside of the instrument. Leading upward from the same position on the top of the housing is a line to a submerged float. This float maintains the vertical position of the meter. A short line is attached on the float line and leads to the tail of the instrument to keep it horizontal. The electrical cable





Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Calibration Curve

(for power and data transmission) is attached at various points to the instrument support cable and is supported at the surface by its own float and a five-quart pressure cooker which provides the watertight housing for the electronics and recorder. A retrieving line is attached to the submerged float and again supported by a surface buoy. No trouble was experienced with this mooring for this instrument. It appeared to allow adequate freedom for the instrument to orient itself with the current flow and showed no sign of drifting off station. 7.2 Impeller-Driver a

7.2 Impeller-Driven Current Meter

7.2.1 Objective

The objective of this project is the development of a compact and reliable current velocity measuring device utilizing an impeller. Several general design criteria were established: (1) The instrument must be capable of being set and monitored without diver assistance; (2) the output of the instrument must be recordable on magnetic tape; and (3) data reduction must be convenient.

7.2.2 Background

An impeller current velocity measuring device was designe for the 1971 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory (see Figure 7.4). This device consisted of a seven-inch-diameter cylindrics housing made of plexiglas tubing, a 24-inch-diameter impeller fashioned from fiberglas, a plexiglas shaft which was driven by the impeller and turned a 5-inch-diameter disc (also fabricated of plexiglas) in which 60 small holes had been drilled at equal intervals on a circumference of four and one-half inches. The disc was used to alternately shadow and expose a photocell to a light source. The unit proved to be cumbersome and unreliable; hence a redesign was undertaken.

The design of the 1972 impeller current velocity meter incorporates many improvements. These include: reduction in size and bulk, an improved impeller, and a better harness (used in securing the meter to the mooring). In the redesign a light source and sensing device (photocell) are sealed in the flanges fore and aft of the impeller hub. The impeller hub has several holes drilled parallel to its axis through which light passes



Figure 7.4 Impeller Current Meter (1971 Version)

Page 64

.

when one of the holes is lined up with the light source and the sensing device. In this way several pulses are received from the meter for each revolution of the impeller, permitting accurate readings at low current velocities. The leads from the light source and the sensing device are led into a hydrophone cable, and through the cable to the surface instrument package. The instrumentation package was placed in a pressure cooker which also served as a float. The pressure cooker contained a motorcycle battery, a small amplifier for the signal from the meter, a clock, and a cassette recorder.

7.2.3 Calibration of the Impeller Current Meters

The current meters were calibrated in the M.I.T. towing tank. The major problem which had to be overcome was that the fluorescent lighting in the towing tank interfered with the photocells in the transparent current meters. This was rectified by shutting off the lights in the towing tank during calibration runs. The current meters were painted black before they were shipped to Castine, Maine, to prevent the ambient light from interfering with the operation of the meters when they were moored at the test sites.

The calibration procedure for the three meters constructed in preparation for the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory consisted of towing the meter at speeds of from 0.2 knots to 1.5 knots and employing a frequency counter to ascertain the pulses per second received from the photocells for each speed. It should be noted that the calibration results from all three meters are identical. The empirical correlation between the pulses per second and the speed is:

speed (knots) = 0.25 + 0.53 (pulses/second)
7.2.4 Mooring

The mooring of the current meter is fairly simple (see Figures 7.5 and 7.6). A 50-pound block is used as an anchor. A line is passed up from the anchor to the meter and then to a float with 25 pounds of buoyancy moored just beneath the surface. Thus there is a 25-pound tension in the line at all times. A slack line attached to the hydrophone cable is led to the instrument package floating on the surface. A buoy is attached to the





subsurface float to mark the meter. This arrangement permits the cassette to be changed without disturbing the current meter. 7.2.5 Conclusions

The meters performed as designed. The problem with ambient light interfering with the photocells was overcome by making the flanges and impeller hub opaque. A problem developed with mooring harness in that the meter was attached at its center of gravity and when it was raised or lowered it tended to try to rotate until its axis lined up with the mooring line. In one such case the impeller of one meter was broken.

7.2.6 Recommendations

The mooring arrangement should be redesigned to correct the deficiency exhibited when the meter is raised or lowered during implantation or retrieval. A device that will measure current direction should be devised to act as a companion instrument so that both current direction and velocity can be measured at any given instant and recorded.

7.3 Current Direction Indicator

7.3.1 Objective

The major inadequacy of the current metering equipment became apparent during the initial weeks of the project. This inadequacy lay in the inability of the meters to distinguish current direction. It was decided that a companion instrument capable of yielding data on current direction was required. Two basic criteria were established: (1) The instrument should not require diver assistance; and (2) the output should be compatible with the digital recorder which was under development for use with the current meters.

7.3.2 Background

During the 1971 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory, construction of a current direction indicator was attempted using a variable capacitor which tuned an oscillator circuit whose output was recorded in analog form (see Sea Grant Report No. MITSG 72-3). The instrument housing and capacitor were moored in a fixed position and a vane (which was allowed to swing with the current) varied the capacitor position. This proved very cumbersome, since it required a three-point moor, a buoying system to maintain the indicator's position vertical, pressurization of the instrument, and considerable diver assistance. The large frictional resistance between the capacitor's shaft and the watertight seals caused problems.

The requirement that the direction indicator be a companion to the current velocity metering devices caused a drastic departure from the concept of the current direction indicator attempted in 1971. The primary changes in design criteria were as follows:

- 1) Since the housings of current velocity meters rotate to maintain their alignment with the current, then the housing of the current direction indicator must also rotate and the sensing device must maintain a constant orientation (as the sensing device in a gyro or magnetic compass). In the 1971 design the housing maintained a constant orientation and the sensing device oriented itself to align with current.
- 2) Since the data transmitted from the current velocity metering devices are in digital format, the data transmitted from the current direction indicator must also be in digital format to permit the use of the same recording and data reduction equipment. In the 1971 design the data were transmitted in an analog format.
- 3) Since the designs of the current velocity meters were based upon a criterion of minimal diver involvement, this criterion must also be invoked in the design of the current direction indicator. As has been previously stated, the 1971 design required extensive diver services.

7.3.3 <u>Results</u>

To meet the design criterion that the housing of the cur rent direction indicator must rotate and the sensing element must maintain a constant orientation, the principle of the magnetic compass card was utilized. It was recognized that four binary bits will permit the transmission of sixteen digital

-69-

information bits. This characteristic can be utilized to identify digitally sixteen 22-1/2° sectors. It is believed that, for this application, further refinement of current direction would not be sufficiently useful to justify the additional complexity of additional binary bits.

A magnetic compass card was fabricated. Four concentric circles were drawn on the card and interrupted slots were cut on the concentric circles such that rotation of the compass card with respect to the housing would alternately interrupt or pass light from one side of the card to one or more of the four photocells located in a radial line on the opposite side of the card and spaced to coincide with the four concentric circles. The sixteen sectors are identified digitally by determining which of the four photocells are exposed to the light source.

The instrument did not reach the test stage due to the late starting date. The housing is a four-inch i.d. plexiglas tube with end caps three-quarters of an inch thick fitted with O-ring seals. The final version of the compass card uses two permanent alnico magnets and is mounted on needle bearings. The sensing unit's functional resistance to rotation was very small, but it was sufficient to affect the reliability of the orientation of the card with respect to the earth's magnetic field. The lightsensing unit was put together and tested in the housing. No problems were found in sensing the card position using this method. However, it was discovered that a small amount of iron in one of the photocells affected the magnets on the card. 7.3.4 Conclusion and Recommendations

The success of the sensing method makes further attempts at development of this instrument attractive. A compass card with stronger magnetic units and less rotational friction is required. If fabrication proves too difficult, a commercial compass card can be adapted. If photocells which do not affect the compass card cannot be obtained, then perhaps light pipes can be used in the proximity of the card. Completion and testing of the digital recorder and the interfacing circuitry is yet to be accomplished.

7.4 Oxygen and pH Meters

7.4.1 Objective

The ambitious sampling project encompassed by the Holbron Cove Survey made the automation of the measurement of the environmental factors extremely attractive. The objective of this project is to provide instrumentation that will make the measure ment of the oxygen content and pH of water samples a simple, accurate procedure.

7.4.2 Background

During the 1971 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory, preliminary measurement of dissolved oxygen concentrations were made using the Winkler iodometric titration method. This prove to be time-consuming and laborious. In planning the biological investigation related to determining the effect of the Callahar mine outfall upon the ecology of Holbrook Cove, it became apparent that it would be necessary to monitor all environmental conditions including the concentrations of dissolved oxygen in and the pH of each water sample. It was therefore decided to obtain a polarographic oxygen electrode and to construct an oxygen meter for use with this electrode. In addition, a simple design for a pH meter was noted in the November 1968 edition of <u>Popular Electronics</u> and it was decided to construct this device for use in the survey.

7.4.3 <u>Results</u>

Both the oxygen and pH meters were constructed. Due to: limitations of time, the oxygen meter was not used. The pH me: was constructed, but the proper microammeter was not available and the project's volt-ohm meter was substituted. This substit tion proved unsatisfactory due to the high impedance of the vol: ohm meter rendering the meter deflections too small to permit determination of the pH of the water samples to the desired limits of accuracy. The meter was tested in buffer solutions whose pH values were 4.0, 7.0 and 10.0 and the readings appears to be correct within the limits of accuracy permitted by the volt-ohm meter.

1

7.4.4 Conclusions

Both meters appear to be operational and require only minor modification (in the case of the pH meter) for increased accuracy, and calibration (in the case of the oxygen meter). They will greatly simplify the measurements of oxygen content and pH.

7.4.5 Detailed Description of the Oxygen Meter and Probe

The polarographic oxygen probe consists of a silver tube whose diameter is one centimeter which acts as an anode and contains a gold cathode at its center. This cathode is maintained at a constant voltage of -0.8 volts with respect to the anode. Both the anode and cathode are coated with either teflon or polyethylene which permits only the gaseous oxygen to diffuse through the coating to the electrodes. This coating prevents the other ions present in sea water from coming in contact with the electrodes. The space between the teflon (or polyethylene) film and the cathode is filled with a fifty percent normal solution of potassium hydroxide.

Conductance between the anode and cathode is produced by the following chemical reaction:

At the gold cathode

```
4 electons + 0<sub>2</sub> -- 4 OH
  (Thus, one mole of oxygen produces the flow
   of four electrons)
```

At the silver anode

4 Ag + 4 OH -- 2 Ag_2O + 2 H_2O + 4 electrons

(Thus, the conductivity between the anode and cathode is proportional to the oxygen concentration)

The purpose of the oxygen meter is to translate the conductance at the oxygen meter probe to a voltage which can then be read on a standard voltmeter. The operation of the oxygen meter is a follows (see Figure 7.7).

 A reference voltage is obtained by adding in series a silicon diode and a germanium diode forming a voltage drop of 1.0 volts, which is nearly independent of current flow.



. .

- 2) The reference voltage (1.0 volts) is maintained at the inverting input of the first stage of the operational amplifier by virtue of its high gain (200,000) and using negative feedback.
- 3) An output voltage is developed when the conductance of the probe permits current to flow through the thermistor. The output voltage is directly proportional to the current flow and hence to the oxygen concentration at the probe.

In order to calibrate the oxygen meter, the following procedure is used:

- 1) Disconnect the oxygen probe from the oxygen meter and check to be sure the voltmeter readout indicates zero voltage. If the voltmeter does not indicate zero voltage, place the oxygen meter switch in the "null" position and adjust the first stage offsetnull variable resistance pot until the voltmeter indicates zero volts.
- 2) Place the oxygen meter switch in the "on" position and adjust the second stage offset-null variable resistance pot until the voltmeter again indicates zero volts.
- 3) Plug the oxygen probe into the oxygen meter. Check to be sure that the oxygen meter switch is in the "on" position. Place the probe in a solution of known oxygen concentration and adjust the calibration variable resistance pot until the voltmeter indicates a voltage that corresponds to the oxygen concentration of the solution being used for calibration.
- 7.5 Automated Data Recorder

7.5.1 Objective

The objective of this project is the design and construction of an automated system to: a) convert analog data to digital format; b) record the converted data on magnetic tape; and c) automatically transcribe the recorded data onto IBM cards for data processing. The system is to have the capability of receiving, converting and recording from several sensors during any given time span. 7.5.2 Background

Plans for the Holbrook Cove Survey called for the deployment of current velocity meters at several locations and to lear these instruments in place to measure current data over considerable time spans. It did not appear practicable to expect an operator to man these instruments and record the data manually. In addition, it was anticipated that a great many observations were to be recorded and the time and effort involved in transcribing this information from analog format into machinereadable digital format seemed prohibitive.

7.5.3 Results

The automated data recorder is designed and various of the elements have been constructed and tested. The concept appears attractive and feasible although there are still technical difficulties to be overcome.

The automated system consists of several units. These inch

- 1) Encoder (one for each sensor)
- Decoder (one for each automated system)
- 3) Recorder (one for each automated system)
- 4) Power Supply (one for each automated system)

The encoder circuit has two major states: analog to digita conversion and data recording. The encoder is designed as a "bus" instrument to allow for general multiplexing of any number of sensors. During the first major state, the time (in seconds) since the initializing pulse which cleared all counters and flip-flops is displayed on the "bus" lines. Each sensor's output has its own counter which keeps a running count of the sensor's impulses until the end of an interval determined by the time signals on the "bus" and a gate. Near the end of MS1 (majc state 1), a tape recorder is turned on to allow the tape to come up to speed. By the beginning of MS2 all analog to digital conversions are complete and the recording on the cassette tape recorder can begin. The method chosen is based on the standard technique involved in low-speed remote computer terminals. data from each sensor's counter is sampled in turn and converted to the serial form: start bit, 8 data bits (msb first), 2 stop bits. The bits are recorded on the tape by the method of

i.

Frequency Shift Keying (FSK) in which one tone indicates a zero, a second tone indicates a one. This transmission is terminated by a data word of 377octal which serves as an end-of-record mark.

The decoder is in two sections. The first is a standard teletype line receiver similar to the one used by Digital Equipment Corporation in their Logic Handbook. The second part converts the eight bits derived from the first part to two hexidecimal characters in Hollerith format. These characters are sent to the relay drivers which cause the relays to simulate a person punching the keys of an IBM 029 keypunch.

No special requirements are imposed on the magnetic tape recorder by the encoder and decoder. The application of the automated data recording system, however, makes it mandatory that it be compact, reliable, and conserve electrical energy. The speed of the capstan drives should be independent of the power supply voltage.

The power supply is any 12-volt dc electrical source. A motorcycle battery was utilized during the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory.

Since the automated system was not completed, a substitute circuit was designed and utilized (see Figure 7.8). This circuit is a standard astable multivibrator, except that one of the timing resistors is replaced by a photoresistor. In addition, a resistor has been added in series with the photoresistor to prevent the resistance in this path from becoming such a small value that oscillation ceases. Astable multivibrators will not commence oscillation if both transistors are saturated. To prevent this condition from occurring, the timing components were selected to insure that they were extremely asymmetrical. The purpose of this circuit is to convert the electrical pulse (generated when the current velocity meter photocell is exposed to its light source) into a voltage which oscillates in the audio range. This oscillating voltage was then used by the magnetic tape recorder to record the pulse as an audible tone on the magnetic tape.



7.5.4 Conclusions

The automated data recorder system is technically feasible. The primary problems encountered are fairly mundane. The power consumption must be decreased if the system is to be operated over the time spans envisioned. The timing and recording components must be reduced in physical size.

The FSK transcriber requires additional design work. Its major problem is that a scheme to generate signals to activate the "skip" and "card release" functions on the IBM 029 keypunch must be worked out.

The substitute astable multivibrator circuit worked, but was not problem-free. The primary problems centered about the photoresistor, which was affected by ambient light conditions. This sometimes caused a frequency change in the audible tone and on other conditions it prevented oscillations.

7.5.5 Recommendations

It is believed that perfection of the automated data recording system will make a significant contribution to the oceanographic data-gathering effort. For this reason, it is recommended that this project be continued.

It is recommended that a redesign substituting MOS logic for the existing TTL logic be undertaken to reduce power consumption. This redesign will also make the recorder less sensitive to the power supply voltage.

A review of the frequency and time length of data samples should be made since both affect the power consumption of the data recorder system.

7.6 Tide Gauge

7.6.1 Objective

The objective of this project is to design and construct an instrument which will accurately measure and record the fluctuations in the water height during the tidal cycle. This instrument is to be capable of continuous operation for at least 24 hours and is to be able to operate in all weather conditions. 7.6.2 <u>Background</u>

In conjunction with the measurements of current flows in Holbrook Cove, it was desirable to obtain a measurement of the water height at both the southern and northwestern entrances to the Cove simultaneously. These measurements, which would require the construction of two instruments, would then be used to determine the relative importance of each entrance during the ebbing and flooding tides. After this was determined, it was planned to move one instrument to various sites within the Cove in an effort to further establish the tidal flood and ebb patterns of the Cove.

7.6.3 Results

Due to time limitations, only one instrument was machined in time for field testing. These tests, which occurred during the final days at Maine Maritime Academy, were disappointing because they yielded no accurate data and demonstrated that the machine, as designed and constructed, did not meet the design criteria.

The data obtained from these tests more closely approximated a step function than the expected sine function. A possible explanation for this behavior is that the internal friction of the machine could not be overcome by the small forces generated by the minute tidal changes. Thus, only when the summation of these forces became greater than some critical value, determined by the frictional forces of the apparatus, would the machine begin to scribe, rapidly dissipating the accumulated tidal force. 7.6.4 Conclusions

While the initial results obtained from this machine were unacceptable, the prototype did indicate many specific areas of the design which, if modified, would allow an instrument capable of performing the desired function to be produced. Fundamental to these changes is the consideration of internal friction and the selection of best methods to minimize this force.

7.6.5 Recommendations

The design of this apparatus is best considered as comprised of two components: The first component utilizes a Westclox clock mechanism to power a rotating drum upon which a continuous graph may be scribed; and the second component which reduces (scales) the vertical displacement of the tide and uses the tidal energy to drive a scribe which marks upon the rotating drum. To shield this entire component from the weather, it is entirely encased in a plexiglas case.

-79-

The details of the first component, which are found in Figure 7.9, show the rotating drum mounted on a combination thrust and radial bearing and driven by a pulley/belt arrangement by the clock mechanism. A better design would be to utilize a horizontal drum mounted by radial bearings on both ends of the drum. This double mounting will prevent any radial displacement of the drum when subjected to the pressure of the scribe and the consequent binding which occurs when only one bearing is used. Another improvement which suggests itself is the utilization of microchain and sprockets to rotate the drum. This will overcome the slippage inherent in a pulley/belt arrangement at very small angular velocities. A further time check could be provided by a clock-activated scribe, activated at regular time intervals.

The second component, as shown by Figure 7.9, is comprised of a weight and a float suspended from a large sprocket by a chain. The weight and float are designed to travel vertically with the tide, rotating the sprocket wheel, which subsequently drives a small pinion gear against a movable rack which is displaced vertically one-fifteenth the amount of the displacement caused by the tide. Affixed to this rack is a scribe which stays in contact with the drum continuously. If the vertical rotating drum is replaced by a horizontal rotating drum, the rack and pinion assembly can be replaced by an assembly utilizing a screw-activated scribe, which should be an improvement.

As was previously indicated, the primary obstacle to the machine functioning properly is that insufficient energy is generated by small tidal displacements to cause the machine to scribe continuously. As shown in Figure 7.9, the weight and float are both suspended within tubes for the purpose of damping out any local surface disturbances on the water surface. As shown, a float is placed in a tube open to the sea, while a counterweight is placed in a tube sealed to the sea. This arrangement allows the float to rise and fall with the water admitted to its tube. It is apparent that the top and bottom positions of the float during slack tide define the conditions critical to the proper functioning of the tide gauge. These



critical conditions are summarized in Figure 7.10. The results of the tests during the Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory and careful examination of Figure 7.10 lead to the conclusion that both the float and the weight must be increased in size if the gauge is to function as designed. An obvious method of accomplishing this is to utilize a large doughnut-shaped float circumscribing a large sealed tube in which a counterweight is suspended. This improvement would tend to minimize the nonlinearity of the system indicated by the equations in Figure 7.12. The nonlinearity can also be eliminated by properly calibrating the tide gauge.

7.7 Detailed Bottom Topography of Holbrook Cove

7.7.1 Objective

The objective of this project is to obtain the data required to build a detailed topographical model of the bottom configuration in Holbrook Cove. As a first step it is necessary to define the water height above mean lower low water as a function of time.

7.7.2 Background

It has been noted that some of the prominent bottom features such as rocks and shoals are not indicated on the charts of Holbrook Cove. In order to rectify this deficiency, a careful and systematic program of taking and recording soundings, using a small boat and lead line, is planned.

7.7.3 Results

During the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory there was time to complete only the first step, i.e., prepare a nomogram (see Figure 7.11) that will permit the prediction of water height above mean lower low water as a function of time. During the process of checking this nomogram against observed tide heights at the dock of the Maine Maritime Academy, it was discovered that the scope of the tide was about 12 inches greater than would be predicted using the Coast and Geodetic Survey Tide Tables. An example of the use of Figure 7.11 is in Appendix C. 7.7.4 <u>Conclusions</u>

The tide height observations at the dock at the Maine Maritime Academy agreed with the predictions calculated using





L.

the nomogram. Based upon the observations, it appears that the corrections to tide height for Castine, Maine (as indicated in the Coast and Geodetic Survey Tide Tables), are in error. The correction for High water should read +1.7 vice +0.7.

7.7.5 Recommendations

1

(a) A second s second sec second s second s second se

The first step in the process of building the topographical model of the bottom configuration of Holbrook Cove is completed with the preparation of the nomogram. It is recommended that the nomogram be used to correct soundings taken in the subsequent phases of the project to obtain water heights corresponding to mean lower low water depths.

7.8 Bottom Sample Corer

7.8.1 Objective

The purpose of this project is to design, build, and test a corer to obtain bottom mud samples. The corer should be inexpensive and easy to operate.

7.8.2 Background

There were two reasons for choosing this project. One was to obtain experience in designing and building a piece of oceanographic equipment; the second was to produce a corer that would be available for use in the ocean engineering program at Maine Maritime Academy.

7.8.3 Results

In the actual test in Holbrook Cove, the unit was lowered into the water to check the balance. It was then lowered until the messenger hit bottom, allowing the corer to fall. When the corer was released, it was observed that the line holding the tripping device, corer and messenger became taut and then went slack. When the unit was retrieved, it was discovered that the line attaching the corer to the tripping device had been severed. The boat used for this test had not been moored and the test site was not buoyed. All attempts to locate the corer failed. 7.8.4 Conclusions

Judging from the observations of the line holding the tripping device, corer and messenger, the corer penetrated the bottom and would have permitted the retrieval of a core if it had not been lost. The design of the corer should be modified to provide for a steel wire leader for attachment of the corer to the tripping device.

7.8.5 Recommendations

Future tests of this device should be conducted only after the boat has been moored and the site suitably marked so that, in the case of severed lines, the lost units may be located and retrieved. The basic design appears sound, although it is not possible to state whether or not the samples retrieved using the corer would be sufficiently undisturbed to permit an accurate reconstruction of the boundaries and depths of the sedimentary layers.

7.8.6 Detailed Procedure

N 1

The corer consists of a body composed of an internal pipe and an external pipe. On the ends of these pipes are two fittings called the head and tail. These fittings are threaded to fit on the ends of both pipes. They are designed in such a manner that the outer pipe will take the stress and the internal pipe will retrieve the sample. Once obtained, the sample is removed by pushing the sediment out with a push rod which consists of a wooden tip the same diameter as the internal pipe and a rod longer than the pipe.

On one end of the tripping device is a messenger and on the other side, the corer. The tripping mechanism and arm are all designed so that the whole device, with corer and messenger, will balance in the water. When the device is lowered, the messenger, which has 35 feet of line extended ahead of the corer, touches the bottom and allows the tripping arm to rotate and the corer to fall to the bottom a distance equal to the messenger line length plus four feet (the length of the corer). Once the corer hits the bottom, the whole unit is raised and the sample removed.







-89-

APPENDIX A

DROGUE BODY COMPUTER PROGRAMS

APPENDIX A

The first computer program is modified solely by input data. There is no need for a modification of the source program.

One of the first data cards is a parameter decision card specifying which options the user of the program wishes to utilize. This is stated in the program listing. The flow chart points out the various combinations of options possible. Comment cards are permitted at certain points to keep track of special data.

One possible option is the use of data-smoothing subroutines. The preferred smoothing subroutine is spline fit. Spline fit approximates an idealized drafting spline curve through the data positions. If the number of equations (positions) is too small to permit the use of a spline, a least-squares fit subroutine is used.

Another important option is the IAXIS parameter which rotates the axis such that the X coordinates can be plotted and calculated as a function of the Y coordinates.

The spline and least-squares subroutines compute the Y coordinates as a function of the X coordinates. A reversal in buoy velocity will cause infinite looping in the spline and leastsquares subroutines since they will yield two or more values of Y for one value of X. If a buoy reverses direction, the program will terminate the buoy path and restart it in the opposite In cases of vorticity (in the Holbrook Cove Survey), direction. many restarted paths resulted. In those cases, it was specified on the decision card that no interpolated values were desired and that all broken segments should be connected. Because the spline fit subroutine allows the user to specify the placement of the constraints on the equations, the user sometimes supplied cards listing the position of constraints and/or position of output points desired. If the user wished to place the constraint or position of output points, he specified a positive number of constraints and output points, with the positions given in X coordinates. If the user wished the program to pick the positions, a negative number was specified. If a buoy backtracked, the program itself decided on a number of constraints and output points, and the placement of each.

In order to graphically represent velocities in addition to pathlines, two subroutines placed either a tickmark for times or a line through two or more buoy paths, depending on user specification (e.g., if the distance between ten-minute tickmarks decreased, the buoy was traveling slower. If the distance increased, the buoy was traveling faster).

In the numerical printout part of the program, two types of velocities were computed: a backwards difference velocity and a centered difference velocity. The backwards difference velocity is computed by dividing the distance between the position under consideration and the position at the previous observation by the difference between the time of the observation of the position under consideration and the time of the previous observation. The centered difference velocity is computed by dividing the sum of the distances between the position under consideration and the positions of the previous observation and the next subsequent observation by the sum of the differences between the times of observation of the position under consideration and the times of the previous and next subsequent observations. The subroutine STOREC could be further modified to allow a least-squares or other velocity approximation if the user wished to modify the source.

All sorts, with the exception of TSORT, are interchange sorts, as the number of sorted items cannot exceed 99. The limit on the number of buoys' segments is explained by the fact that the program considers each buoy segment caused by backtracking to be a separate and equal segment (e.g., in the case of vorticity, a buoy input with 99 points may be composed of 20 or more segments, etc.). TSORT takes an already sorted list and puts them in ascending order, in the event that they were originally in descending order.

There are a few limits and constraints that are intrinsic in the source program, and to be changed require the source to be modified. Numerical limits are listed. Other major limits not listed follow. The IWARN array is a controlling factor in the dumping of input constraints and output positions for the interpolation routines and timelines. If a buoy backtracks, IWARN for that particular buoy is activated. This means that all input constraints are dumped and replaced and that timelines are not allowed on any of the segments (tickmarks are).

Spline is used in all cases except where the number of points is too close to the number of equations. Then, and only then, is least squares used.
DROGUE BODY COORDINATE AND VELOCITY CALCULATION COMPUTER PROGRAM

.RT, IFIN, YIN(40,95), ITIME(40,99), NDKA, NDUT, XDK(20), XING(99), 199), XAUT(500), YELT(500), NIN, ITMAPK, ICANET, ISTPLN, IACICH, XINT,	MA1N0003
INCRCT, JUSIN, IMLINE V / ARFAI/ IHFLP	MAIN0004 Main0005
NI / AREAZ/ XMAX, XMIN, YMAX, YMIN	MAIN0006
N ZAPFAINTCHAP, MASTAR 3 CHAR1.CHAR2.CHAP3.CHAR4.CHAR5.TCHAP.CHAR21.CHAR22.CHAR23.	ROCONIAM BOCONIAM
4 • CHAR25	MAIN0009
AL*1 MIWSAR(9),IFLT(9)	MAIN0010
CTER VARIARLES	MAIN00112 MAIN0012
	MA [NU013
NZARFAJZ EMERGENCY ESCAPE CLAUSE Mizariaj mavini k dihenetan sijes	MA N0014 MATMOD15
N/AREA7/ HIGH CF LOW TIDE CHARACTERS AND TIME	MAINOO16
	4AIN0017
UTINES AND FUNCTION LIST	MAINOOL8
S CALGULATES CURVES THAT INTERSENT POSITIONS AT GIVEN TIMES K calchiates tickmarks on the positions for given times	MAIN0019 Main0020
A SPLINE FIT CURVE	MAIN0021
SOLVES EQUATIONS GIVEN TO IT BY DUCK IN A LEAST SQUARES WAY	MA I N 0022
PLACES THE PARITION OF THE CONSTRAINTS FOR CURVES BY DUCK	44 IN0023
EXAMINES THE POSITIONS OF THE CONSTRAINTS WILL VOID THEM	MAIN0024
K WILL PRINT DUT THE POSITIONS OF THE CONSTRAINTS	MAIN0025
P PREPARES EQUATIONS AND SOLVES FOR A LEAST SQUARES FIT	MAIN0026
Z M.I.T. (OMPUTER MATHLIB LEASI SQUARES FIL	
L [34] SAM FUK THE SULUTIONS IN SIMULIANCOUS ENGATIONS Detate of the colation coefficients used in Seline And LEAST	920001 AF
	MAIN0030
F CALCULATES AT REGULAR INTERVALS THE DUTPUT POSITICNS	MAINDOBI
. SPECIAL SORT PLACES INPUT POINTS IN ASCENDING ORDER IF THEY	MAIN0032
NPUTTED IN DESCENDING ORDER	MA [N 00 33
A STANDARD INTEPCHANGE SORT	MA 1N0034
INTERCHANGE SCHEIWITH A LAG-A-LUNG AKKAY Andres and so soints indui doints	MA [N0035

ŧ OUTPUT STOREC CALCULATES CENTERED VELOCITIES AND FUTHER IMPROVEMENTS CUTER PUNCHES OR PRINTS OUTPUT POINTS Degree outputs a degree.Minute number from input degrees

4

1

MAIN0038

MAIN0037

MAIN 0040 9500N 1AM MA IN 0043 MAIN0045 MAIN0041 MAIN 3042 441N0044 MA IN0046 MAIN0047 MAIN 0048 MAIN0049 MAIN0050 MAIN0053 MA [NU054 MAIN0051 MA1N0052 MAIN0055 4A IN 00 56 MAIN0058 MA IN0057 ORIGIN IS STATION OF FIRST ANGLES +X IS IN DIRECTION OF NEXT STAT. +CONSTRAINTS INPUT FOR IF JUTPUT DR CONSTRAINTS NEGATIVE PROGRAM CALCULATES ABS () NG. IF TRANSITS USED 0-9C+0 SCALES THEN INPUT 2 DEGREES.MINUTES POSITION OF CUTPUT MUST RE INPUT IF FOUTPUT POINTS INPUTTED POSITIONS MUST BE INPUTTED IN TERMS OF X AND Y COURDINATES MUST BE <= INPUT POINTS -4 ANGLES GREATER THAN SC BUT READING LESS THAN 90 MAX. ND. DUTPUT POINTS 500 POSITIONS OF CONSTRAINTS MUST BE INPUTTED IF HOURHPURMINUTE SECOND SECOND FINAL NO. OF BUOY SECMENTS <= 40 o o DECREES.MINUTES 202 METERS.METER MAX. NJ. INPUT POINTS CONSTRAINTS CN SPLINE MAX. OF CONSTRAINTS LIMITATIONS UNITS ARE:

INITIALIZATION DF VALLES F= .0C01 XMAX=0.0 YMAX=0.0 YMAX=0.0 YMIN=0.0 IHELP=0 KIN=5 K0T=6 KDT=7 IFIRST=1 N3RMAL=2

MA1N0070

MAIN0071 Main0072 2

PAGE

MA I N0069

441N0067 M41N0069

MAIN0059 MAIN0060 MAINJ062 MAIN0063 MAIN0064 MAIND065 MAIND065

MAIN0061

	11. AST1 = 3 124.014=0	MAIN0073
	1.00P=0	7200N1VN
	X51GN1=1.0	
	CC 7777 IME SS=1.40	TTOONIAN MAINOOTO
		MA [N00 78
	IMARN IS 10 SAVE THE REMORY OF WHICH JOBS HAD BROKEN BUNNY PATHS	MAIN0079
	THIS INFUT IS USED FOR DESTROYING CONSTRAINT AND OUTPUT CATA AND	MAIN008C
	THE FAR TO ALLARS LIMELINES ON THE REASON THAT IT WILL BACKTRACK	MAIN0081
	TH FAR THE ALLOW A FUNCTIONIXI TO FXIST PREVENTS A BLOW-UP Throwstreetien	MAIN0082
525		MAINOOB3
-		MA [N0084
	FIRST CARD IS A CHAPACTER COMMENT CARD ANY COMMENT CALLT WILL	ALNOUS MAINORS
	PRINTED AND/CR PUNCHED IN THE DUTPUT	MAINON8
	PEAD (K IN, 1795) CHAR 1, CHAR 2, CHAR 3, CHAR 4, CHAR 5, CHAR 21, CHAR 22, CHAR 23,	MAIN008
	1 CHAF 24, CHAR 25	MAIN0089
		MAIN009(
	PARAMETER INPUT CHILLES	MAIN0091
	PUNET PUNET PUNET PUNET	MA I N0092
		100NIVH
	JUSINET PONOT CALCULATE INTERPOLATION OUTPUT POINTS	MAIN0094
	ICUMETEI CONNECT PROKEN SEGMENTS CAUSED BY BUCY BACKTRACKING	MAIN009
	IAXIS=I X AXIS=-Y AXIS Y AXIS= X AXIS	MAIN0096
	ITMARK=1 CALCULATE TIME TICKMARKS	LOONIAN
	IMLIN™ =I CALGULATE A SMOOTH TIMELINE BY USING SPLINE OR LEAST SOU. Istolmed from the time of the or the or the original from the text	MAIN009
	INTERNAT OF GATENETS THEFT AND OF THE OF EAST CALCULATIONS	MAIN0095
	DEAD (M 14 1404) to the state the state state state with the state sta	MAINOLO(
	NEW INTERTOOR IN MATURES FOR STORES TO ALS FINARY INCLASSING AND ALS FINARY INCLASSING AND AND AND AND AND AND A	MATNOIO
	WRITE(K")T,1022)	EQ LON T MAT NOT OF
	WRITE(KOT, 1101)	NAINOIO
	WRITE(KOT,1796)CHAR1, CHAR2, CHAR3, CHAR4, CHAR5, CHAR21, CHAR22, CHAR23,	MAINOLOG
	CHAKZ4 PCHARZS	MAINDIO6
	IF (IPUN.NE. UTWAIFE(NFL!, LUL] [F (IPUN.NF. O)WRITF(KPTT.1796)FHAR].FHAR2.FHAR2.FHARE.FHARE	MAINOLOT
		MAINDIO8
		PAGE 3

1

÷

MAINOLO9 MA INOLLO MAINOLLI **MAIN0112** MAIN0113 MAIN0114 MAINO115 MAIN0116 MAINOL17 **MAINO118** 91 IONI AM **MA INO1 20 MAIN0122** MAIN0123 **MAIN0124** MAIN0128 MAIN0129 **MAIN0130 MAIND135** MAIN0140 MA 100143 **MAIN0121 MAIN0125 MAIN0126** MAIN0127 MAINO132 MAIN0133 **MAIN0134 MAIN0136** MAIN0138 MAIN0139 MAINO144 MAINOI31 MA I NO1 37 MAINO141 MA I NO1 42 READ (KIN, 1200) DEGTN, BASLN, TCHAR, MMHDUR, MMHIN, MMSEC, MSECA, ANGA, NS EC z IF((XTEMP+YTEMP).GE.3.14159)WRITE(KOT,1301)JOBNJM.ILCOP,ANGA,ANGE DEGREES.MINUTES THAT THE BASELINE FROM DRIGIN IS OFF TRUE WRITE(KOT , 1050) IPUN, INDROT, JUSIN, ICONET, JAXIS, ITMARK, IMLINE, 1 WRITE(KPCT, 1050) IPUN, INDROT, JUSIN, ICONET, LAXIS, ITMARK, IMLINE, Y DIRECTION CONVERSION OF TRUE NORTH DEGREES.MINUTES TO RADIANS YMAX={BASLN+SIN(XTEMP)+SIN(YTEMP))/SIN(XTEMP+YTEMP) F(IAXIS.EQ.1)YMAX=(Y*AX*COS(XTEMP))/SIN(XTEMP) OPTIONAL INPUT OF ANGLES FOR MAX DIMENSION IN OPTIONAL IS NON-CONSTFAINING ON REST OF INPUT XTF MP=(langa+ (anga-I/NGa)*1.666661*.0174533 YTE MP=(I ANGB+ [ANGR-I#NGB]#1.66666)#.0174533 CHECK DN CORRECT INPUT FOR MAX DIMENSIONS INPUT LENGHT OF BASELINE IN METERS.METER IF((XTEMP+YTEMP).6E.3.14159)GOT0 1911 "HIGHTIDE" OR " LOWTIDE" [F((ANGA+ANGB).LT.1.0) GOTD 19]] INPUT TIME OF HIGH OR LOW TIDE [F (N SE CA . EQ . 2) ANG A = 1 8 C. 00-ANG A [F (NSFCB.EQ.2) ANGB=18C.00-ANGB ,CHAR22,CHAR23,CHAR24,CHAR25 NUMBER OF BUOY GROUPS NMI NT= { DEGTN-NDEGTN+E }*1 00. [F(IAXIS.EQ.1)XSIGN!=-1.0 READ(KIN, 1100) NOJOBS NDEGTN=DEGTN+E VA 000= NM [NT / 60 IF (IPUN.NE.0) ANGA=ANGA **ANGR=ANGR 11STRLN 2 I S T R L N P** ANGR INPUT INPUT [NPU] 1911

4

PAGE

00000000000

1

ပပ

C ت

	NOT GITN = NOTGS IA + NADRO	MATNOTAE
	NDE 6TW=NDE6TN-(NDF6TN/360)*360	MAIN0146
		MAIN0147
Ĺ	structure (NUCH INFAMINI/EC.) #.0] [4633	MAIN0148
-•	ARTISKOT, PADIANOSCIA AMENT DISTA TOURNAL TOURNAL TOURNAL TOURNAL	MAIN0149
	MARTING A REPAIR OF A DEPARTICLY ORDER A LEAK, MARTUR, MARIN, 44 SEC, YAAX Multirati arciano interi	MAIN0150
		MAIN0151
2014		MAIN0152
,	WRITSKOT, TERRIGER	MAIN0153
		MAIN0154
Ĺ		MAINOL55
c e	TVPUT NJ. OF SIGHTINGS FOR RUPY AND A MESSAGE	MAINO156
	PTAOLKIM.1300)NIN.0HEEL, CHAR2, CHAR3, CHAR4, CHAR5, CHAR21, CHAR22.	MATNO15R
ı	1CH4k23	MAIN0159
_		MAIN0160
ر	MKI TELKEL & DAMI CHARL + CHARZ + CHAR3 + CHAR4 + CHAR5 + CHAR21, CHAR22, CHAR23	MAINO161
j		MAIN0162
	MTINETROPECULTITAT MTINETROPENTER	MAIN0163
		MAINO164
	1(HTLF = 0 te ± t et	MAINOL65
00.5		MAINO166
		MAIN0167
		MAINO168
	JUD DGUO ILUUFEIBANINAL TAFICU-A	MAIN0169
		MAI10170
ر		MAINOI 71
	SECTOR FOR TRANGIT AND E ONE	MAIN0172
ې ر	TOANCT ANGLE THE ANGLE JNC Toanct angle the	MAINO173
, ر	SEPTOV POD TOARETT ANDIE THO	44 I N 01 74
> ر	TRANCIT ANGE TWO	MAINOL75
: •	TIME OF FIGURED AND FIGURED	MAINO176
د	TIME OF STOHTING MINITES	MAIN0177
: ر	TIME DE SIGHTING SEFENDS	BLIONIVH
: Ļ	SECTOR IS REAMED FLOOR FOR FULL 24A PERFEC	97 ION J AM
2		0810N1VW
		PAGE 5

i.

MAIN0182 MAINOL83 MAIN0184 MAIN0185 MA [NO1 86 MAIN0187 MAINO198 **MAIN0189** MAIN0190 MAINO181 **MAINO194 MAIN0195** MAIN0198 **99 ION I AM MAIN0192** MA I NO1 93 **MAINO196** EAIN0200 **MAIN0191 MAIN0197 MAIN0203** MA [N0205 MA IN0206 MA 110208 MAIN0209 MAIN0214 MA1N0215 **MAIN0216** MAIN0201 MA I N0202 MAIN0204 MAIN0207 MA 1 NO2 10 MAIN0212 MAIN0213 MAIN0211 CALL STOREC(ILAST1, J. ANG1, ANG2, XINT, YINF, THOUR, MINUT, NSEC, MIWSAR, WR I TE (KOT, 16CL) J, ANG 1, ANG2, X ENT, YINT, I HOUR, MINUT, NSEC, (MIWSAR(L), ÷ IF(((ABS(XTEMP+YTEMP)).LT.3.14155).AND.(XTEMP.NE.0.0).ANC.(YTEMP ASUBT=(IHOUP+3600 + MINUT+60 + NSFC) - (MWHOUR+360C + MWMEN+60 READ (KIN+1400) NSEC1 , ANG1 , NSEC2 , ANG2 , [HOUR, MI NUT, NSEC YINT=(BA SLN*SIN(XTEMP)*SIN(YTEMP))/SIN(XTEMP+YTEMP) XTEMP=(IANGI+ (ANGI-I/NGI)*1.66666)*.0174533 YTEMP=(IANG2+ (ANG2-IANG2)*1.66666)*.0174533 lL=1,9),(IELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VELDIRCT CHECK FOR BLANK CARDS ANGLES =0 OR > 190 WRITE(KOT,1301) JOBNLP,ILCOP,ANG1,ANG2 IF (ILPOP . NE . NINAD) WR I IE (KOT , 1201) TCHAR XINT={YINT+COS(XTEMP))/SIN(XTEMP) 1 ILAP, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELCC, DIRCT) IF (NSEC1 * FQ * 2) ANG1 = 1 8C + 00-ANG1 IF (NSEC2.E0.2) ANG 7=1 8C.00-ANG2 [FT TM= THCUR #3600+M INL T*60+N SEC IF(ILCOP.NE.NINAD)GOTC 5679 CALL TIMEPH(NSURT, MINSAR) **CEGREES--> RADIANS** .NE.0.0) GOTC 5500 ILPK I= ILCCP - KOUNT ILOK I= LLOOP - KOUNT CLEAN JUT STORFC CHANGE OF AXIS KOUNT=KOUNT+1 IANG 1= ANG1 IANG2=ANGZ GOTO 5000 1 - d Gu 7 i =f I MWSEC) 5679 500 $\mathbf{\phi}$ ပပ ပမ ပပ \odot

100 A i

ł

ļ

ŧ

ں

¢

	[F(!AX!S.NE.!)GCT0 1512 ST3RAG=YINT YINT=XIMT	MAIN0217 MAIN0218 MAIN0219
с 1912	1F[1LQK1.LE.1]GOT7 55C5	MAIN0221 MAIN0221 MAIN0222
ບບ	CHECK FOR IDENTICAL PCINTS	MAIN0223 Main0224
1	IF(XINT.NE.XIN(JORNUP,(ILOKI-1)))CATA 5505	MAIN0225
	KSUNTEKUUNT + I ILDKT≊TEG0P+KOUNT	MAINUZ27 MAIN0227
	If (ILO)P。NE。NINAD)GOTC 5976 J≢TI SIP-I	MAIN0228 MAIN0229
L .		MAIN0230
<u>ر.</u>	CLEAN JUT STOREC Call Storec (il asti, J. Angi, Angi, Xini, Yini, Ihour, Minui, NSEC, MiwsAR,	MAIN0231 MAIN0232
	ITLAP, ICLT, DIST, VEL, VELC, DIRCT)	MAIN0233
	WRITE(KUT+1601)J+ANG1+ANG2+XINT+YIYI+IHUUK+MINUF+N>EC+EMIMSAKEL+ Di=1.7).fiftij.i=1.4).dist.vet.vet.vet.oc.dipct	MAIN0235
5 G 74	WRITE(KOT+4344) ANGL, ANG2, XINT, YINT, JOBNUM, ILOOP	MA I NO2 36
	IF(ILTOP.NF.NINAD)WPITE(KOT,1201)TCHAR	MAINO237
Ĺ	GUIG 2000	MAIN0239
5505	IF(ILAKI.LT.3)60T0 56C0	MAIN0240
υı		MAIN0241
ب ر	CHECK IN POSSIBLE CHANGE DE DIRECTION BACKWARDS	MAIN0243
، ں	IF TRUE THEN CUT DEF CLD SEGMENT AND BEGIN NEW	MAIN0244
	<pre>If(((XINT.GF.XING([LCK[-1])].AND.(XING([LCK]-1].GE.XING([LCK]+2))))</pre>	MA IN0245
	' "JK"IKINI"LE*AIN"ILLEKITIY.#NU#KAINUALL'NITI'LEATNUKILEATNUKILUKITZ'' Zigité skid	MAIN0247
		MAIN0248
	TLAP=IET[M-IFT[MO	MAIN0249
	D1 S1=SQP1 { (X1w(JUBNUF, (ICUKIT1) + X1W) + + 21+ ((1 1 W(JUDNUF,)) + 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	UCZUNIAM MAINO251
	XNUMER=[YIN(JOBNUM,[ILOKI-I]) - YINT)*(-1.)	MAIN0252
		PAGE 7

.

MAIN0253 MAIN0254 MAIN0255 MAIN0256 MAIN0260 MA [N 02 57 MAIN0258 **MAIN0259 MAI N0261 MAIN0262** MAIN0263 **MAIN0264 MA IN 02 65 MAIN0266 MAIN0267 MAIN0268** MAIN0269 MA I N 02 70 **MA IN 0271** MA [N0273 **MAIN0274** MAIN0275 MAIN0276 MAIN0278 MAIN0279 **MAIN0272** MAIN0280 **MA I NO2 83** MAIN0284 MAIN0285 MA I NO286 MAIN0277 MAIN0281 **MAIN0282** WRITE(KÜT,1601)J,ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,1HOUR,MINUT,NSEC,(MIWSAR(L),L =1.9),(IELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VEL0C,DIRCT WRITE(KUT,1601)J,ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MINUT,NSEC,{MIWSAR(L),L =1,9),(IELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VELOC,DIRCT CALL STOREC (NORMAL, J, ANG1, ANG2, X INT, YINT, HOUR, MINUT, NSEC, MIWSAR, CALL STOREC FILAST1, J.ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MINUT,NSEC,MIWSAR DEGTN1/ .0174533 DEGTN1/ .0174533 AD I S T= SQ R T ((X I N (JOB N L # + LE N (JOB N UM)) - X I N (JOB N U # + L) + + Z) + [F(!AXIS.EQ.0)DIRCT=(-ATAN2(XNUMER, XDENOM) + IF(!AXIS.EQ.1)DIRCT={-ATAN2[XDENCM,XNUMEP] + XDENOM=- (XIN(JUBNUH, (ILOKI-I))-XINT)*XSIGNI IF(ILAP.NE.0)VEL=DIS1/FLOAT(ILAP) *100.0 ., ILAP, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELOC, DIRCT) IILAP, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELCC, DIRCT) POINTS AVERAGE DIRECTION AND VELOUTY IF(JUSIN.EQ.1) WRITE(KCT.1201) WRITE(KOT,1401)JOBNUM, ILOOP TMINN= (DIRCT-NDIRC) #.6 CHECK ON INTERPOLATION CALL TIMEPH(ILAP,IELT) IF(JUS IN.EQ.1) GOTO 5600 CIRCT≈DIRCT + TMJNN CIRCT=DEGREE(DIRCT) LEN(JOBNUM) = ILOKI-I CLEAN OUT STCREC IMARN(JOBNUM)=1 WRITE(KOT,1518) NDIRC=DIRCT DI RCT=NDIRC VE LOC=0.00 VEL=0.00

ပပ

ပပ

 $\circ \circ$

I

. :

ပပ

1 ([YIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBALM])-YIN(JOBNUM,1)) ++2) }

MAIN0288

œ

PAGE

MAIN0287

MAIN0289 MAIN0290 MAIN0291	MAIN0294	MAIN0295 Main0296	MAIN0297 MAIN0298	MAIN0299	MAIN0300 MAIN0301	MAIN0302	MAINO303 MAINDADA	MAIN0305	MAIN0306	MAIN0307	MAIN0303	AD LOUG LO	MAIN0311	AAINO312	MAINUJIS MAINUJIS	MAIN0315	MAIN0316	MAIN0317	SI FONI MA	MAIN0321	MAIN0322	HAIN0323	MAIN0324	PAGE 9
[ATIME=[TIME(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))-ITIME(JCBNUM,l) [F(IATIME.EQ.0)AVEL=C.00 [F(IATIME.NE.0)AVEL=D[IST/FLCAT(IATIME) *100.0 ADIRCT=0.00	<pre>[F(AEIST_NE.C.0)ADIRCT=(-ATAN2((YIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))-YIN(JOBNUM))]+1)].(XIN(JCBNUM,LEN(_CBNUM))-XIN(JOBNUM,1)))+CEGTN)/_0174533 FF(IXIS)COLTC_7333</pre>	IF (A [I ST . A E	1+111+(YIN(JUBNUM+LEN(LEBNUM))-YIN(JUBNUM+1}))+CEGTN)/+O174533 7372 Call Timeph(Iatime,ie(t)	NOIRCEADIRCT THINNELEDIRCT HOTOCLE	PAINN= (ADIRCI-NUIRCI++0 POIRCT=NDIRC		AUIRCI=DEGREE(AUIRCT) WRITE(KUT,1517)ADIST,(IELT(IZ),12=1,9),AVEL,ADIRCT	NDK={[L_jK]+1]/3	IF (NEK .GT .6)NDK=6		NJU = (1 L UKI + 1) * 3 1 F { 1 C N F T ; FO . 1) L A D 1 C L - 1	IF((IPUN.NE.C).AND.(INCKCT.EQ.0)) CALL PRAPN	<pre>IF([IPUN.E0.c).OR.[INCROT.NE.O))CALL PRINTO</pre>	IF (JUSIN+NE+C) GOTO 5C50	IF(LEN(JCHNUM).GT.1)GCTD 5501		WKITELKUT, I 333) JOBNUP, LEN(JOBNUM)	IFILYUN•NE+UJWKITEIKFLI•1333JJUUNUM,EEN(JCUNUM) Goto forc	SEDI CALL XOUTER	CECISION ON MHICH INTERPOLATION TO USE	IFILEN(JCBNUM).GI.4)G(TO 5502 TABITY-1	LAKTITEL Cali futerolieniinii.taditv.nnhti		

é- ...

GOTO 5503

t

I

Ę

MAIN0325 MAIN0326 MAIN0327 MAIN0328 **MAIN0329** MAINO330 MAI NO332 **JEEONIAH** MAIN0333 **MAIN0334 MA I N0335 MAIN0336** MAIN0337 **MAI N0338 MAIN0339** MAIN0340 **MAIN0344** MA [N0342 MAIN0346 HAIN0341 MA I N0343 MAIN0345 44IN0347 94EUNIAM MAIN0350 MAIN0356 MAIN0348 MAIN0352 MAIN0353 MAIN0355 MAIN0351 **MAIN0354** MAIN0357 **MAIN0358** HRITE(KOT,1601)J,ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MINUT,NSEC, (MIMSAR(L),L CALL STOREC(IFIRST,J.&NG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MIALT,NSEC,MI,SAR, ESCAPE CLAUSE CAUSED IN CALCULATING THE FOSITIONS CF CONSTRAINTS IF(IFELP.EQ.1)GOTO 9567 CALL DUCK(LEN(JOBNUM]+XINO+YINO,NDK+XDK+NOUT,XCUT,YOUT,IARITY) IF HORE POINTS IN THAS GROUP RESTART BROKEN SEGMENT [F[ICHECK.LT.IABS(NIA))GCTD 7000 11LAP,1ELT,01ST,VEL,VELC,DIRCT] [FIIPUN.NE.OJCALL OUTER PRC1 CALL TIMEPH(ILAP,IELT) WRITE(KOT, 1888)JOBNUF ITIME(JOBNÚM,1)=[ET]# WRITE(KOT, 12C1) TCHAR IF (I PUN. EQ. 0) CALL XIN(TOBNUM* I)= XINI YIN (JOBNUM, 1)=YINT NINA =NINAD-ILOOP+1 100NUM=J00NUM+1 NOJOBA=NCJOBA+1 IMARN(JOBNUM)=1 LEN(JOBNUM)=1 IETIMO=IETIM XINC(I)=XINI 1 NIA = (1) CNIAAUTOD VELDC= 0.00 CIRCT=0.00 CIST=0.00 VEL=0.00 ARI TY=1 ILAP=0 CALL 181=2 1 = 5 502 5503 5050 ں S O

MAIN0360

2

PACE

HALNO359

"=1,9],([ELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VELOC,DIRCT

	6010 5423	MATMO241
ى ب	PREVIDUS BLOCK FCR BACKTHACKING BUDYS AND ALL MEASURES FGR	MAIN0362 MAIN0362
J Q Q	REVERTING THE NEXT SEGMENT	MAIN0364 MAIN0364
ں ر	STORAGE CF TIMES FER ISE IN TIMETINES OF THE MANYS	MAI NO366
5 60(ITIME(JOBNUM+ILOKI)=16TIX XINCTICKIS-VINT	MAIN0367 Maino368
	YINC(ILOKI) = YINT	MA I N0369
	XIN(JOHNUM, ILOKI)=XIN]	MAIN0370 MAIN0371
	TINTUORNUMPILEKTJ#YINT TETTOKI.GT.IIGOTO BEEC	MAIN0372
		MAIN0373
	EI ST=0.00	MATA0376 MATA0376
	VEL=0.00	MAIN0376
	VELUCEU.4UU ISTCRF=1	LLEONI W
	clrcr=0.00	MAIN0378
	COTC 5900	MAIN0379
5 600	It=IL0KI-I	MAIN0380
	IL AP= [ET IM-] ET IMO	LBEUNIAM Coconiam
	DI ST#SQRT(ABS({XINT+XIAG({L}))**2+(YINT+YING(L))**2))	20CONTAM MAINO383
	VEL = 0,00	MAIN0384
	IFILLAM●NE●UIVEL≖DISI/FLCAFIILAP)●100●0 PIACT=0.cc	MAIN0385
	IF (DIST.NE.O)DFRCT= (-ATAN2([YINT-VING(TL])). / YINT-VING(TL)). / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /	MAIN0386
	1/.0174533	MAIN0387
	IF(IAXIS.EQ.C)GOTO 83E5	DD CONTAL
	IF(CIST*NE=0)DIRC=(-A1AN2((-XINT+XINC(IL)),(YINT-YINC(IL)))+DEGTA)	PAIN0390
		MAIN0391
8389	NDIRC=DIRCT	MAIN0392
	TMINA= (DIRCT-NDIRC) * • €	MAIN0393
	C 1 R C T = ND I R C	4000364
	CIRCT=DIRCT+TMINN	MAIN0395
		PAGE 11

. ∎

MAIN0399 MAIN0400 MAIN0420 NALNO430 7960NIAM MA [N0398 MAIN0401 **MAIN0402** E040N1AM 4040NIAM MA I N0405 MAIN0406 MA [N0407 MAIN0408 **MA IN0409** MAIN0410 MAIN0413 **MAIN0414** MAIN0415 **MAIN0416** MAIN0417 **MAIN0418** 9140N1AM MA I N0422 MAIN0423 MAIN0424 MA I N 0425 MA I N04 27 **MAIN0428** NA 1 N04 29 FAIN0432 MAIN0412 MA I N0426 **MAIN0411** MA [N0421 MAIN0431 21 PAGE WRITELKOT, 1601) ILUUP, ANG1, ANG2, XINT, YINT, IHOUR, MINUT, NSEC, (MIWSAR(IF(ACIST.NE.Q.O)ADIRC1=(-ATAN2((YIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))-YIN(JOBNUM IF (ACIST.NE..O) ADIRCT=(-ATAN2((-XIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))+XIN(JOBNLM 1#RITE(KOT+16C1)1LUUP,AAG1,AAG2,X{AT,YIAT,IHOUR,MIAUT,ASEC,{MIWSAR(1L),L=1,9),{IELT(L),L=1,9},DIST,VEL,VELOC,DIRCT IF(ILGOP.EQ.NINAD)CALL STOREC(N, ILUUP, ANGI, ANG2, XINT, YINI, IHOUR, CALL STOREC(ISTORE,ILLUP,ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MINUT,NSEC, [.1])],{YIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JCBNUM)}-YIN(JOBNUM,I))}+DEGTN)/_0174533 AND AVERAGED VELOCITY AND TIME 1,1)),{XIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))-XIN(JOBNUM,1)))+CEGTN)/.0174533 ADIST=SQRT({ (XIN{ JOBNLM, LEN{ JOBNLM) } -XIN (JOBNUP, I))++2)+ MINUT, NS EC, MIWSAR, ILAF, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELC, DIRCT IATIME=ITIME (JOBNUM, LEN (JOBNUM)) -ITIME (JCBNUM, 1) L) ,L=1,9),(IELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VELC,DIRCT F(IATIME.NE.O)AVEL=ACIST/FLOAT(IATIME) *100.0 I ([YINLJOBAUM,LEN(JOBALP))-YIN(JOBNUM,1))**2)) IMIWSAR, ILAP, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELOC, DIRCT) BY USING FIRST AND LAST PCINTS CALCULATION OF TOTAL CISTANCE IF (IAT IME.EQ.0) AVEL=0.00 9369 CALL TIMEPH(IATIME, IELT) F(IAXIS.EQ.C)G0T0 9365 CALL TIMEPH(ILAP, IELT) CIRCT=DEGREE(DIRCT) IF (I LOOP . EQ. NINAD) LEN(JOBNUM) = ILCKI CLEAN OUT STCREC hRITE(KOT,1518) IF (ILOKI .GT.1) IETIMO=IETIM AD [RCT = 0 . 00 ILUUP=JLCCP CONTINUE ISTCRE=2 ΕΕ< 5000 5500 ပပ S ں ں

ŧ

		MAIN0433
	IMINAFIALIK(F=NCIRCF#_6 #DIRCT=NDIRC	MAIN0434
	#DIRCT=ADIRCT+TMINN	MAIN0435
	ADIPCT=DEGREE(ADIRCT)	MA I N0436
J.	WR[TE(K0],15]7)ADIST,(IELT([2],[2=1,9},AVEL,ACIRCT	ALNU457 MAINO438
5423	JF((IPUN_AE_C)_AND_(IAART,F0.01) CALL DOADW	MAIN0439
	IF([IPUN.EQ.C).OR.(INCRTINE_O))CALL FRAFN	MA I N0440
	IF(JUSIN.NE.C)GOTO 4CCO	MAIN0441
υ		MAIN0442 MAIN0442
5	IF ANY BUOY CROUP HAD TO BE DIVIDED BECALSE CF BACKTRACKING PURVE	
ل ر	THEN THE PRECRAM WILL DESTROY ALL INPUT FOR CONSTRAINTS AND CUTPUT	MAIN0445
ر		MAIND446
	IT (IMAK4 (JUBAUM).EQ.C)6010 5950 KFAD1XIN.1300.Nev	MAIN0447
	NJKA=TAR SINDKI	MA I N0448
	TE (NTKA, FF, ATENT TORNIAL, 2) IN DVA, AF A FAR TORNIAL, AT	MAIN0449
	ND1={NDK+7}/P	MAIN0450
J		MAIN0451
<u>ں</u>	CUMP [NPUT PCINTS	MAIN0452
	IF (NDK . G 7.0) FE AD (K I N . 1700) (DUMP . I= I . ND1)	MAIN0453
	IF((-NDK).GE.(LEN(JCBALM)-3))NDK=-LEN(JOBANUM)/3	4640N16M
	IF((NDK.LE.O).AND.(IAES(NDK).GT.6))NDK=-6	
	IF (NCK A GT 6) NDK A = 5	
	$NDK \mathbf{A} = I A B S (NDK)$	16408184 99308184
	READ (KIN, 130C) NDUT	
	NJUTA=IABS(NCUT)	9240N145
	NOUT1={NCUT+7}/8	MA 1 N0460
L L		MAINU461
J	CUMP INPUT PCINTS	MAINU462
	<pre>If (ACUT* GT* 0)READ(K i N , 1700) (DUMP , [= 1 , NOU T 1)</pre>	
	IF (NCUT.EQ.O)NOUT=+LEP(JCBNUM)*3	MAIN0464 MAIN0445
1		
ں ن	TEALENIA FORMULAR OF A POINT FOR	MAIN0467
		MAINOGH
		PAGE 13
۱		

(

MAIN0469 MAIN0470 MAIN0480 MAIN0485 **MAIN0472** MAIN0473 MAIN0474 MAIN0476 **MAIN0478 MAIN0484** MAIN0486 MA 1N0488 MAIN0489 MAIN0471 44 I N 04 75 7740NIAM MAIN0479 MAIN0481 MA I N0482 **MAIN0483** MAIN0487 0640 NI AM MAIN0491 441N0493 44 I N 0 4 9 6 MA I N 0498 6670NIVH MAIN0500 MA [N0502 MAIN0503 MAIN0504 MAIN0492 MAIN0495 **MAIN0497** NALN0501 MA [N0494 CALL DUCKILENIJOBNUM],XINO,YING,NDKA,XDK,NOUTA,XCUT,YOUT,IARITY) IF(IPUN*NE*0)WRITE(KFCT.1333)JOBNUM,LEN(JCBNUM) IF(NDK.GT.0)READ(KIN,1500)(XDK(I),I=1,NDK) IF((NDK.LE.0).AND.(!AES(NDK).GT.6))NDK=-6 116010 5701 IF({-NDK).LT.(LEN(JOEAUM)-3))G0TC 6969 CALL INTERP(LEN(JOBNUP), JARITY, NCUTA) #RITE(KOT,1333)JOBNUP,LEN(JOBNUM) [f { NCUT . EQ. 0 }NOUT = -L E { (J CBNUM) #3 [F(LEN(JCBNUP).GT.4)6CTD 5602 IF (NDK .EQ.0) NDK=LEN(JCBNUM)/3 [F(LEN(JOBNUP).LT.5)&(TO 5957 F (NCKA. LT. (LEN[JOBNLP]-3 IF(IPUN.NE.O)CALL CUTER IF(IHELP.EQ.1)GOTO 9587 F(IHELP.EQ.1)GOTO 9967 IF(I+ELP.EQ.1)GUT0 9587 PR C 1 FINDK-LT.0)CALL AUTCE IF (NDK . GT . O) CALL DUCKT NDK=+LEN(JOBNUM)/3 NDK= LEN(JOBNUM)/3 READ (KIN, 130C) NOUT IF (IPUN.EQ. 0)CALL READIKIN, 13001 NDK IF { NCK + GT + 6 } NDK=6 NOUTA#IABS(NOUT) NDK #= [AB S (NDK] CALL XOUTER AUTOD CALL AUTOD GOTC 4000 COTO 4000 5603 [ARIJY=1 IARITY=1 NDKA=NDK 6010 CALL 6 6 6 9 9 5602 5 6 0 3 5550 5701 5 60 1 5957

1

PAGE

S

ł

1

ľ

MA IN0505 MA IN0506 MA IN0506 MA IN0506	MAIN0509 MAIN0500 MAIN0510 MAIN0511 MAIN0513 MAIN0513 MAIN0515	MAIN0516 Main0517 Main0513 Main0519 Main0520 Main0521 Main0522 Main0522	MAIN0524 MAIN0525 MAIN0525 MAIN0528 MAIN0528 MAIN0528	MAIN0530 Main0531 Main0532 Main0534 Main0534	MAIN0536 Main0537 Main0538 Main0539 Main0539 Page 15
<pre>IF(NCUT.LT.0)CALL XCLTER NDUTA=IABS(NCUT) IF(NCUT.GT.0}READ(KIN.ISCO)(XGUT(I).I=1,NGUT) IF(LEW(JENNUM).GT.1)GCTC 5702</pre>	<pre>kriterkot.ls33)JGBNU+,LENtJGBNUM] rf([PUN.NE.0)Write(kpC1,1333)JJBNUM,LEN(JCBNUM) GUTC 4000 GUTC 4000 rf(ncut.gt.o)call siri(xcut.ncut) rf(Lev(JCHNUM).GT.4)GCTO 5703 farity=1</pre>	CALL INTERP(LEN(JGBALM), TARITY,NCUTA) COTO 5704 C3 IARITY=1 CALL DUCK(LEN(JGBAUM),XIN0,YIN0,NDKA,XDK,NDUTA,XCUT,YGUT,IARITY) 04 IF(TPUN.EC.0)CALL PHCT 1F(TPUN.EC.0)CALL PHCT 1F(TPUN.NE.0)CALL PHCT 03 JCBNUM=JCRNUM+1	IF NG. JF BUCY SEGMENTS LESS THAN INPUT EC MCRE IF(JC3NUM.LE.NCJ0BA)ECT9 6000 IF(fimline.ec.o).and.(Itmark.ew.o))GOT0 9998	ISTART MUST RE LESS THAN IFIN. THEREFCRE IF THE EGUYS ARE TIMED FOR A PERIDD OVER 24 FOURS OR IF THEY ARE TIMED THROUGH A NEW DAY IC. START AT 230000 TO 000100 THEN TIME MUST RE ADJUSTED	TIME DE STARTING HOURS TIME DE STARTING MINLIES TIME DE STARTING SECCNDS TIME DE FINISH HQURS
U	ہے۔ بنانی	5 4 00 5 4 00 0		0000000	0000

٦,

												¢	יר		Ë,	(C) c	n د											
						503		1	201							203											802							66
	WRITE(XPCT, 860)(XOUT(L), L=1,)00)	WR ITE(KPDT. 870)	LD TTHEKDOT BLANKADITELE ELE EXAMPLE	WAY TELEDIT READ INTERESTING AND A CAREST AND A CHAR, (MILME(L), L=1, 9), J.MBAK	AD TICKDOT DEDITATION TO AN A LA DA ANNA ANA ANA ANA ANA ANA ANA ANA AN	TE (I DHN, EC, D)COTO 202		LARITY=0	TONTINUE	(DK(K)=XDK(K=1)+DYNOB	D) BOI MEDIIACA		THE DECODEL SPEINE					CALE INTERPINUEGX, TARITY, NPTS)				IYPE DE CURVE LEAST (CUARES		IF(INCC.GT.4)GOTO 808	WRITE(KOT,95C)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J_WAAK	HRITE(KOT,888)	CONTINUE		C3 802 M=2,95	XOUT (1) = X ING (1)	NPTS=100	J=100	CXNCR=[DXNCR+(F) DAT/TACD1+1 IV/160	- CXNCR=(XIND(INCC)+VINCCINNYCE) OATTINCOV, A
PAGE																																		
11ML0144 22	TIML0143	TIML 0142	FIML0141	TIML0140	TIML0139	TIML0138	TIMLO137	TIML0136	TIML0135	TIML 01 34	TIML0133	TIML0132	TI ML 0131	TIML0130	TIML0129	TIML0128	T IML 01 27	TIML 0126	TIML0125	TIML 0124	TIML0123	TIML0122	TIML0121			I MLOIIC	TIMLOII6	LINLOITS	FIMLOI14	11MLUII3		TIMLOLII	TIMLOIIO	TIML0109

									C	:	റ	ጉ		Ċ	0													
(n) ()1 ()3	777	 											04	C / J								- - -	306					
WRITE(KOT,865) YIND(L),XIND(L) CONTINUE	4RITE(KUI,855) CD 555 L=1,1NCC	WRITE(KPOT, 860) ()INO(L),L=1,INCO)	HRITE(KPCT, 970)	$WR[TE(RPOT_{r} 854) \qquad (VINO(t), t=1, INC^{2})$	<pre>kRITE(KPOT, 850) (NTIME(L),L=1,9), TCHAR, (MTIME(L),L=1,9), J,MBAK</pre>	IF(IPUN_EQ.0)G0T0 777	WRITE(KOT,85C)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J,MCAK	J=1NC0		IF(((ISTRLN_E0.0).CR.(IMLINE.E0.1)).AND.(INCC.CT.2))GOTO 666	SEGMENTED TIMELINE OF NOT		TALL BOODTIN THOLYTHOL THOCT MDAA-MDAATT			GOTC 300	WRITE(KPCT, 860)(XOUT(L),L=1,J)	WRITE(KPCT, 870)	ARITE(KPCT, 860) (YOUT(L), L=1, J)	WRITE(KPDT+854)	WRITE(KPDI.850)(NTIME(L).1=1.9).TCHAR.[MIIME(L].L=1.9).J.MBAK	TERTENNER, MARTE BAR	ANY ICTION FOR A TOUR FRANCE FRANCE	LRITE(KOT_865) VONT(I)_XCUT(I)	WRITE(KUT + 377)	WRITE(KUT,850)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J,MBAK	WRITE(KOT, 877)	VBAK=MBAK + 1
TIMLO107 TIML0108 PAGE 21	TIML0105	TIML0104	TIMLOIOS	TIML0101	TIMLOLOU	TIML0099	11ML0098	T I ML 0096	TIML0095	TI ML 0094	T 1ML 00 93	TIML 0092			TIMLOOBS	TIML0087	TIML0086	T 1 ML 00 85	TIML0084	TIML0083	TIML0082	TIMLOOBL	TIMODAO	TIML 0079	11 ML 00 76	TIML0075	T I ML 0074	TI ML0073

MAIN0577 Main0577 Main0578 Main0578 Main0582	MAIN0583 Main0584 Main0584 Main0585 Main0585 Main0583 Main0588	MAIN0589 MAIN0590 MAIN0591 MAIN0592 MAIN0592 MAIN0594	MAIN0595 Main0596 Main0597 Main0598 Main0598	MAIN0599 Main0600 Main0601 Main0602	MAIN0603 Main0604 Main0605 Main0605 Main0607 Main0607 Main0607	MAIN0609 MAIN0610 MAIN0611 MAIN0611 MAIN0612 PAGE 17
<pre>1633 FUPMAT('1', ***********************************</pre>	<pre>1200 FORMET(2F10.C,A8,2X,312,4X,I1,F9.0,I1,F9.0) 1C01 FORMAT(//* DFGREES TFAT THE BASELINE IS CFF TRUE NCRTH ',14,' MIN 1UTES',13//* THE LENGFT OF THE BASELINE IS ',F10.2,' METERS'// 2' ',A8,' TIME = ',1),13,':',12,':',12,' HH:MM:SS'//* Y MAXIMUM 1300 FORMAT(110.8AH)</pre>	1598 FURMAT(/EAB/) 1518 FORMAT(// AVERAGES FUR GROUP: TOTAL DISTANCE TOTAL TIME 1 AVEG. VEL. AVERG. DIRCT.'/ 3 METERS HH:NM:SS CM/SEC DEG.MIN!) 1517 FORMAT(23X,FI0.2+6X,5/1,5X,FI0.2+8X,FIG.2) 1500 FORMAT(0F10.C)	1101 FORMAT(* ***********************************	1301 FOR4AT(*-*,* ANGLE > F! CR ≈0.0 JCBNUMBER*,[5,* [LCJP POSITI ICN *,15.* ANGLE 1 IS *,F6.2,* ANGLE 2 IS *,F6.2//) 1601 FURVAT(1X,110,2F10.2,2F10.1,14,*:*,12,*:*,12,5X,9A1,2X,9A1,1F11.2, 12F11.1,F11.2)	1201 FURMAT('-', PUSIT.AC', ANGLE 1', ANGLE 2', X CCORC', 1 Y COCRD', START TM',6X,A8 , TIM ELPT', DI STANCE 2', AACK.VEL.', CENT.VEL', DIRCT(A).'/ 3 IXMISS HH:MM:SS HH:MM:SS METERS WETERS HI', 4., DEG.MIN')	I784 FURMAT(* ***********************************

MA[N0613 Maln0614	MAIN0615 MAIN0616 MAIN0617 MAIN0618 MAIN0618 MAIN0619	MAIN0620 Main0621 Main0622 Main0623 Main0623 Main0623
2 IT* 1400 FJRMAT(II,F9.0,II,F9.C,312) 1700 FORMAT(FI0.0)	<pre>101 FURMAT(" '///' ********************************</pre>	1501 FCRMAT(" REMCVE THIS CARD. PUT THE NEXT CARD RIGHT AFTER X AND Y M 1101 And Max Card '/" TCTAL NUMBER UF JOBS DONE = ",13/" #******* 2#**############# MAIN JCB END ###################################

ł

TIMELINES SUBRUTIAE AA*##################################	TIMI DOOL
CALCULATES A SMCOTH OR SEGMENTEC TIMELINE Subponitions time is	TIML0002
COMMENT FILES [OMMENT]PIN. POPULM TLADMIZAT FILES:	TIML0003
IISTART. [FIN.YIN(40).IIINE(40).LEN(40).KPO1.KOI.KIN.XIN(40.99).ICT.	T I ML 0004
ZYINJ(99), XUUT500), YEIT4500, MIN. TT4484, YOUT, XOK120), XINU(95),	TIML0005
3 Y INT . INC KOT . JUSIN. IMI INF.	FIML 0006
COMMCN / AREA2/ XMAX, XHIN, YMAX, YMIN	TIML0007
CUMMON / AREA7/ TCHAR . MASTAR	TIML 0008
LCGICAL*1 MIIME(9).MIIME(9).MICTARCOLMIETARON MIETARON MICTARON	TIML0009
KEAL#3 TCHAR	TIML0010
RANGE = (Y MAX - YMIN)/4C .	TIML 0011
XRANGE = RANGE / 4.	TIML0012
MBAK=0	11 PL0013
WRITE(KUI,83E)	TIML 00 14
krite(kut.89C)	TIPLU015
IF [I PUN . NE. 0) WR [TE (K F C T . 890)	TIML0016
CALL TIMEPH(ISTART, MISTAR)	11ML0017
CALL TIMEPH(IFIN.MIFIN)	11ML0018
CALL TIMEPH(IDT,MICT)	TI 4L 00 19
CALL TIMEPH(MWSTAR.WWWSTA)	TIML0020
WRITE(K0T,895)(MISTaP(I),(≤],9),(MTEIN()),(=),C), (b)CTJ), (=) ~.	TIML0021
I, (MMHSTA(L), L=1,9]	TIML 00 22
IF (IPUN, NE, O) WRITE (KECT, 895) (MISTARTIN, I - 1, O), (WIE FARTIN, I - 1, C)	TIML0023
1(MTDT(L),L=1,5),(YMWS7A(L),(=1,0))	IIML 0024
NIDTS=(IFIN-ISTART)/ICT +)	TIML 0025
CJ ECO N=1. NIDTS	TIML0026
I = I S T A R T + I D T * (N + 1)	TIML 00 27
CALL TIMEPH(I.NTIME)	T1ML0028
12 = 1 STAK T-M & STAK + ID 1 = (N-1)	TI ML 0029
CALL TIMEPH(IZ,MTIME)	TIML 00 30
NDE G X≠ O	1 ML 0031
INCO=0	TEML 0032
JCHNNN=JCPNUP-I	11ML0033
	11MC0034
CALCULATES PCSITION OF A TIMEMARK BY SEARCHING ALL ARRAYS FOR	11ML0035 T1ML0035
PA	465 10 465 10
ε	70C T.4

ப்ப

 $_{\rm O}$ $_{\rm O}$

FINL0039 **FIML 0037 FIML0038 LINL 0040** TIML 0045 TIML0046 TIML0047 T [ML0048 71 ML0049 TIML0050 **TIML0053 TIML0055 TIML0056** TIML 0058 TIML0059 **LIML0041 TIML 0042** FIML 0043 TIML0044 TIML0051 T1ML0052 **TIML0054** TIML0057 TI ML 0060 T1ML0061 TIML0062 TIML0063 T IML 0064 **FINL0065** TIML 0066 TI ML 0068 TIML0069 TIML0070 T IML 0072 TIML0067 TI ML 00 71 20 PAGE INSUFFICIENT POINTS LINEAR INTERPOLATION IF TIME IN THE MIDDLE IF(((I.GT.ITIME(JOB,K)).AND.(I.LT.ITIME(JCB,K+1))).OF.((I.LT (JCB,K))*RATIC (JCB,K))*RATIC LITIME(JOB,K)).AND.(I.(T.ITIME(JOB,K+1))))GDTC 640 81C CHECK ON WHETHER A TIMEMARK IS TO BE DONE IF IF(([WARN(JOE).NE.0).AND.(ISTRLN.NE.1))GCT0 YING(INCG)=XIN(JOB,K) + (XIN (JOB,K+1)+XIN XINO(INCC)=YIN(JOB,K) + (YIN (JOE,K+1)-YINIF((INCC.LT.1).CR.(ITPARK.NE.1))GOTD 80C [DENCM=[TIME(JO8,K+I)-ITIME(JO8,K) RATIC=FLOAT(NUMER)/FLCAT(IDENCM) IF(I.EQ.ITIME(JOB,K))(CTO 830 x0UT(19) = X0U1(19-1) + XRANGE IF(LENJL.LT.1)GUTD 810 x0UT(1)=XINC(1)-RANGE xING(INCC)=YIN(JOB,K) [F(INCO.GT.1)GOTO 847 Y IND (INC 0)= X IN (JOB, K) NUMER=I-ITIME(JOB+K) a BIO JCB=I, JCBNNN CALCULATIONS BELOW DUES TIMES DO 820 K=1, LENJI LENJ1=LEN(JOB)-1 YOUT ([9)=YINC(]) (1) CNIX = (1) 100A CO 10 19=2,5CF INPUTTED INCC=INCC+I INCO=INCO+1 TIME S G010 810 CONTINUE COTC 810 CONT INUE CONTINUE ALL ц Ц 2 £20 830 540 810 10 $\circ \circ$ O Ó

ပပ

ł

TIML0073 TIML0074 TIML0075 TIML0075 TIML0077 TIML0078 TIML0080 TIML0081 TIML0083 TIML0083 TIML0083	1 ML 0095 1 ML 0098 1 ML 0098 1 ML 0090 1 ML 0092 1 ML 0093 1 ML 0095	TIMLOLOL 00101M11 10101095 111ML0095 11ML0095 11ML0095 11ML0095 11ML0095 11ML0095	TIML0102 TIML0103 TIML0104 TIML0105 TIML0105 TIML0105 TIML0107 TIML0108 PAGE 21
<pre>PBAK=WBAK + 1 WRITE(KUT.850)(NTIMF(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,WBAK WRITE(KUT.855)(NTIMF(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,WBAK WRITE(KUT.865) YOUT(L).XCUT(L) KRITE(KUT.865) YOUT(L).XCUT(L) KRITE(KUT.865) YOUT(L).XCUT(L) KRITE(KDT.865) YOUT(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPUT.850)(NTIME(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPUT.850)(NTIME(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPUT.850)(NTIME(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPUT.850)(NTIME(L).L=1.1.) KRITE(KPUT.870) KRITE(KPUT.87</pre>	E47 MBAK=MHAK+1 Call Rsort(xind,yind,incg) segmented timeline (r nct if(((istrun.eq.d).cr.(imline.eq.1)).and.(incc.et.2))gdtd 666	J=INCO WRITE(KUT,877) WRITE(KUT,85C)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J,MBAK F (IPUN.EQ.0)60T0 777 KRITE(KPOT,350)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPOT,850)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPOT,850) WRITE(KPCT,860) (YINJ(L),L=1,INCE)	<pre>bRITE(KPCT,970) WRITE(KPOT,860) (>INU(L),L=1,INCG) WRITE(KOT,855) CO 555 L=1,INCC ARITE(KJT,865) YIN(L),XINO(L) 555 CONTENUE</pre>
		;	

GOTO 800 CXNCR=(XINJ(INCC)-XINC(1))/(FLUAT(INCO)+1.) CXNCR=(DXNCR+(FLOAT(INCO)+1.))/1C0. J=100 NPTS=100 NPTS=100 NPTS=100 XOUT(1)=XINO(1) CO 802 M=2,95 XOUT(1)=XINO(1) CO 802 M=2,95 XOUT(1)=XINO(1) CO 802 M=2,95 KINE CONTINUE KRITE(KOT,888) MRITE(KOT,888) MRITE(KOT,85C)(NTIME(1),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J, F(INCC.GT.4)GOTO 806 RTIE(KOT,85C)(NTIME(1),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J, F(INCC.GT.4)GOTO 806 RTIE(KOT,85C)(NTIME(1),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J, F(INCC.GT.4)GOTO 806

TIML0149 TIML0150 TIML 01 52 TIML0153 **TIML0154** TIML0155 TIML0156 TIML0158 TIML0159 TIML0160 TIML0163 TIML0164 TIML0146 TIML0147 TIML0148 **TIMLO157** TIML0161 TIML0162 **TIML0165 TIML0166 TIMLO145** TIMLOISI T[ML0167 TIMLOI68 T [ML0169 TIMUDI 70 TIME AFTER ", A8," =',9A1 PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMELI FCRNAT(。 米式学校学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会 TIMEL INES RND 学校学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会 ΟĮ -FGRMAT(* STARTING TIME= * ,9A1, * FINISHING TIME= * ,9A1/ 1/' GUTPLT PCINTS= ',14,' TIMELINES NC.= ',14) 1941) 950 FORMAT(* TIMELINES NCRMAL TIME= *,941,* WATER UR MOONTIME = FURMAT(* IBM XOUTS', 53, * IBM YCUTS') OF TIMELINES ", 13, " IF(IPUN.NE.0)WRITE(KPLT.885)MBAK kBITE(KJT,865) YOUT(L),XCUT(L) IF(IPUN.NE.O)WRITE(KFCT, 880) FORMAT (F10.3,5X,F10.3) FRITE(KUT, SB5) MBAK ICF TIME= ', SAL,' WRITE(KUT, SED) CO 804 L=1,100 **WRITE(KOT,855)** FCRMAT (8 F10.3) FURMAT(* NO. EBB FCPMATFILI NES START") FORMAT (--) CONT INUE CONTINUE RETURN ENO NO £90 -803 804 500 695 670 089 660 803 80 £ 5 5 885 E77

TIMK0001 TIMK0002	TIMK0003	101. TIMK0004	XINT, TIMK0006	LIMK0007	11MK0008	(6) TIMKDOID	TI WK 0011	TIMK0012	FIMK0013	LIMK0015 TIMK0015			TIMK0016	TIMK 0020	TI MK0021	T1 MK 00 22	T 1 MK0023	TI MK 00 24	19) TIMK 00 25	TIMK0026		TIMK J029	T I MK 00 30	EN FIMK0031	TI MK 0032	T I MK 00 33	T I MK 0034	TI MK 0035	TIMX 0036	
[MEMARK SUBRJUTINE ************************************	JBROUTINE TIMEMK Mandan trim, coaming transfort from contact of contact	JATIAN - FEMILY - MANAGER - MARINA - M	INC (99) + XOU 1(500) + YCLT (500) + NIN + ITMARK + 1CONET + ISTRLN + IACICH +	INT # FROKET # UUSIN # IME JAC THEIN / ADDAD/ KEAK, KEIN, VAAK, VIIN	IMPON / AREA7/ TCHAR . PLSTAR	161CAL*1 MTIME(9),NTIME(9),MISTAR(9),MIFIN(5),MIDT(5),MWKSTA	AL*8 TCHAR	JBNNN=JCBNUM-1 LTC=1		NGE={YMAX-YMIN]/40.	ange=range /5.	ITE(KUT,666)	ITE(KOT+89C)	([PUN.NE.0]WR]TE(KFCT,890)	LL IMPORTOLOGY MALANDAR	LL TINGTOTICIANTITY TIMFDWIDT_MIDTI	L TIMEDHEWCTAD.WWLCTAI	TEKAT.AQAN(MATADI) -))) tuttivit i ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ;	······································	(1PUN.NE.0)WRTTE(KPTT.895)(MISTAPILL.1=1.0) ////ETURL////////////////////////////////////	IOT(L), L=1,9), (MMWS1A(L), L=1,9)	JTS={IFIN-ISTART}/ICT +I		-VULALIENS UP LIMEMARKS DUES A LINEAR APPRCX. IF INRETWEE Dog N-1 witte	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	LE LAKITIU LALN-L] L TIMEDULI NTIULI	-L / LYEFAA LFAA LFAA LFAC Z	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

ပပ

ပပ

	CO 810 JCB≢1,JCBNNN Smiltriggi	ΙΙΝΚΟΟ3
	IFII-EQ.ITIME(JOB,K))(QTO 830	TIMK0040
	If(((1.6T.)TIME(JOB,K)), AND.(1.)T.TT.ME()OB V	T I WK 004 I
	<pre>lltime(J3B,K)).AND.[[.61.]Timef_APPL_KAININISATE 200</pre>	TIMK0042
() (2)) CONTINUE	T I MK 0043
	6.)TC 810	TI MK0044
Ē) XINC(IMCU)=YIN(JOB.K)	TI MK 0045
	YIAC (INCC) = XIN[JOB, K]	T I MK 0046
	GUTC 815	TIMK0047
84(• IOENC4=ITIME(JO8,K+1)-ITIME(JO8.K)	FIMK 0048
	NUMER# [- [7] # E[JCB + K]	T [MK 0049
	FATIC=FLCAT(NUMER)/FL[AT([DENCM]	TI MK 0050
	XIND(INCC)=YIN(JO3,K) + [YIN (JO3,K+1)-VIN (JOB V))+	TIWK0051
	YINO(IACC) = X[N(JCH, k)] + (XIN(JCH, k+1) - XIN(JCC)] = X[N(JCH, k)] + (XIN(JCH, k+1) - XIN(JCC)]	TIMK0052
Е1 5	XOUT(1)=XINC(1)-RANGE	T1MK 0053
	YOUT(1)=YINC(1)	T I MK 0054
	D() 816 I 5=2,J	TIMK0055
	XGUT([9)=XGUT([9-1] + XRANGE+[]9+]]	TIMK0056
	YOLT(19) = YINC(1)	TIMK0057
61 6	C JN T IN UE	T I MK 0058
	PEAK#MEAK ← 1	T IMK0059
	WRITE(KOT ₇ 888)	TIMK0060
	WRITE(KDI,85C)(NTIME(L),L=].9).TCHAR.fMTIME(), 1 - 3 - 1 - 2000	TIMK0061
		T 1 MK 0062
	HKITE(KCT,855)	TI MK0063
	CO 804 L=1,J	TI MK 0064
	WRITE(KCT,865) YOUT(L),XCUT(L)	TIMK0065
F 0 4	CONTINUE	- T MK 0066
	IF(IPUN.EQ.0)GDTU AIC	
	WRITE(KPCT+850)(NTIFE(L), L=1,9), TCHAR, [MTIME(L), I = 1,0),	I 1 MK 00 6 B
	ARITE(KPCT, PF4)	TIMK0069
	kRITE(KPCT,860)(YOUT(L),L=1,J)	T I MK 0070
	kk[TE(KPCT, 870)	TIMK0071
		TIMK0072
		PAGE 25

TI MK 00 74 T 1 MK 00 75 TI MK0076 TI MK 0078 T1 MK 00 79 T I MK 00 80 T I MK 00 82 TI MKDU83 **TIMK0084** T1MK0085 TI MK 00 86 T I MK 0088 TI MK 0089 1 [MK 00 90 **TIMK 0095** T1 MK 0097 FI MK 0073 **TIMK0077 T1 MK 00 87 TIMK 0092** T 1 4K 00 53 11 MK 0094 **T 1 MK 00 58 TIMKOUBL** T1MK0091 T 1MK 0096 FORMAT(* TIMEMARKS NCFMAL TIME= *,9Al,* TIME AFTER *,A8,*=*,9Al 1/* Output Pcints= *,i4,* Timemarks NC.+= *,i4) PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMEMA 5 • 1146, FINI SHING TIME= " (1 46. WATER OR MOONTIME = FORMAT (* IBM XOUTS", 5%, * IBM YGUTS") -FORMAT(' NO. OF TIMENIRKS ', 13,' [F{ IPUN.NE. 0]WRITE(KF(T,885)MBAK FOPMAT(" STARTING TIME= " ,9AL. krITE(KPCT,860)(XOUT(L),L=1.J) IF(IPUN.NE.0)WRITE(KFUT.880) FORMAT(F10.3,5X,F10.3) hRITE(KOT,885) MBAK • 5Al. WRITE(KOT, 860) FORMAT(8F10.3) E88 FORMAT('-') IRKS START') FOPMAT('1') 1CF TIME= FORWAT(/) CONTINUE CONT INUE RETURN END £10 680 890 650 860 573 666 695 870 £65 685 855

C

CUCK0009 DUCK 0010 DUCK 00 13 CUCK 0016 DUCK 0018 DUCK0004 DUCK 0005 DUCK 0007 CUCK 0008 CUCK 00 11 0UC K 00 1 2 CUCK0014 0UCK 0015 CUCK 0019 DUCK0020 DUCX0023 DUCK 00 03 CUCK0006 CUCK0017 DUCK0022 CUCK 00 24 DUCK0025 CUCK 0026 000×0002 DUCK 0021 DUCK0028 DUCK 0029 DUCK0030 DUCK0001 CCK0027 DUCKDO31 **DUCK 0032** CUCK0033 DUCK 0034 DUCK 0035 0UCK0036 27 PAGE CIMENSION XIN(1), YIN(1), XOUT(1), YOUT(1), XDK(1), XN(105), XC(25) ER[XX+SS]=(1.-XX)+{(1.-SS++2}-{1.-XX}++2}/{2.+SS+(1.-SS}+2) SPLINE CLAVE SUBROUTINE SUBROUTINE EUCK(NIN, X1N, YIN, NDK, XDK, NOUT, XOUT, YOUT, I ARITY) CL (XX+ SS)=XX+{ SS+{ S+{ S} - {S} - XX++2} / {S++2+{ } - SS } } CALL GLSQIH, C, EXTRA, NIN, NEQ, BUG, C, 00001, C, 00001 COMMEN / AREAS/ XMAX, MAIN, YMAX, YMIN YOUT(M)=YCUT(M)+C(N)+CL(X0,XC(N)) r0UT(M)=YCUT(M)+C(N)+CR(XQ,XD(N)) FIT 1 +H(105,251,C(27),EXTFA(105) PRINT CUEFFICIENTS OF SPLINE YOUT (M) = C (NDK+1)+C (NC++2) *XQ N XN(V)=(XIV(V)-XIN(I))/CEN XD (N)= (XCK {N)-XIN(1) /0E IF(XN(M).GT.XD(N)) GC TD +NCK, IT JFE) [F(XC.GT.XD(N)) Gn TC 5 XQ= (XOUT (M) - XIN(1))/CEL H(M, N) = 0 L(XN(M), XD(N))H(M,N)=DR(XN(M),XD(N)) CEL = XI N(NIN) - XIN(I)F(N, NDK+3) = YIN(M)F(M,NDK+2)=XA(M) F[M+NDK+1]=1.0 TUCA.1=M 4 CO 3 N≡l,NIN NIN. I=M I CO DO 7 N=1,NDK CO 1 N=1,NDK CALL CCEF(C 30 4 N=1,NDK NEC=NDK+2 CUNTINUE [1]PE=1 60 TC 4 CO TC CUCK 3 m ~ 03 - $\circ \circ$ ŝ

U

4	CONT INUE							DUCK0037	1~ C
ں ر	CD DIMENSION SCAN LAFITY CHECKS	ON FROM	WHERE	THE	DIME	VSIONS	CAME	DUCKOD35	> or
ر	TINELINES INVOLVES A FOTATION OF	AXIS						DUCK0040	0
,	rg 17 W#1 NCLT							DUCK0041	-4
	IF(10010)00000000000000000000000000000000							DUCK 0042	N
	IF (XCUT(M), GT, XMAX)XPAX=XOUT(M)							DUCK0043	ē.
	TE(XCUT(E)_L1_XMIN)XFIN=XOUT(M)							DUCK 0044	÷
	IF (YCUT(M) GT YMAX) YF #X= YOUT (M)							CUCK 0045	n.
	TE (YCUT(M), IT, YMIN)YMIN=YOUT(M)							DUCK0046	Ś
	6012 17							DUCK 0047	~
Ĩ	0 TF(YCUT(M).GT.XMAX)XWAX=YUUT(M)							DUCK0048	œ
1	IF(YCUT(M).LT.XMIN)XFIN=YOUT(M)							DUCK0049	đ۰,
٦	7 CONTINUÉ							CUCK 00 50	0
	RETURN							CUCKGO51	
	END							DUCK 00 52	2

,

1

(i) is a second manufacture for the second manufacture for the second manufacture for the second second

ļ

....

1 --

ţ

•

COMPANY IN ANY ANY ANY

i

I

GL 500018 GE S 90003 GL SQ0005 GLSQ0006 GL SQ0007 GL 540008 GL SQ0009 GL 590010 GL SQ0012 GL 540013 GLSQ0014 GL 590015 GL \$Q0016 GL 59 00 02 GL 500004 GLSQ0011 GL 540017 GLSQ0019 GL 540020 GL 500021 GL SQ00 22 GL \$00023 GL SQ0024 GL 500025 GL 500026 GL 500028 GL 500029 GL SC0001 GL 5 0 0 0 2 7 61.540030 GL 5Q0032 GL 500033 GL SQ 0034 GL 540031 GLS40035 GL 540036 \$ PAGE AUGMENTED MAIRIX TC SCLVE SIMULTANEDUS EQUATIONS SUBRCUTIAE GLSU(A, X, IL,N,M,ALPHA,E1,E2) CIMENSIUN A(105,25),X11),1L(1) TI=SG4T({A(J,K)]**2+{F[J]**2} ∧(J+L)=-S*A(I,L)+C*A(_,L) IF(ARS(A(J,K))-E1)4,4,6 IF(AHS(A(1,K))+E2)3,3,8 T2=(*A(1,L)+S*A(J,L) IF(IL([I])30,30,31 CJ FC J=1,MK CO 32 K=LL, MN SU P K=1, MM Cr 4 J≡ll,N CC 5 L=K • MM S=4(J,K)/T1 $C = \Delta (I + K) / I$ C.3 30 J=1 M M.1=1 36 0 - 1 - = (~ ~) X ^(1, L) = T2 0°0=(1)x $I \vdash () = 0$ CUNTINUE CUNTINUE [=] [{ []] [+]=[[+] I = (X) = I [+] =]] T+N=MN L+1 [+1] S=0.0 [=]] = **] +]** V = 1 I **]**=] 22 с С un m **1** 5 ŝ u٦ οo 3 đC, ۴

111

S=S+&(I,K)*X(K) X(II)=-S/A(I,II) 11=11-1 IF(IL(MM))50,51,50 32

.

1

I.

ŧ

- 30
- 5
 - ALPHA= 0. C CU TC 52

GL SQ0037 GL SQ0038 GL SQ0039 GL SQ0039 GL SQ0039 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0046 GL SQ0046

- С С
- - 25
- I=IL(MM) Alpha=a(I,MM) Feturn End

.

AUDK0008 AU DK 0009 AUDK0010 AUDK0012 AUDK0013 A UDK 0014 AUDK0015 AUDK0016 AUDK 0017 AUDK 0018 AUDK 0002 AUDK 0003 AUDK0005 AUDK0006 AU 0 K 0 0 0 7 AUDK 0011 AUDK 0020 AUDX0004 AUDK 0019 AUUK 0022 4U DK 0001 AUDK 0025 AU 0K 00 28 AUDK0021 AUDK0023 AUDK0024 AUDK 0026 AUUK 0027 AUDK0029 AUDK 00 30 **4 UDK 0032** A UDK 0035 4UDK 0033 AUDK0034 AUDK0036 41/DK0031 E PAGE 2 YI NC (99) , XOUT(500), YCLT(500), NIN, ITMARK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IAEICH, XINT, IE 2ND DERIVAT CCMMEN IPUN, JCBNUM, IMJRN(40),LEN(40),KPGT,KJT,KIN,XIN(40,99),IDT, ACURS(I)=(((YIN (JEBNUM,I)-YIN (JOBNUM,I+I)) / (XIN (JOBNUM,I)-2(JCHNJM, I+I)-XIN (JRBNUM, [+2)))} / ([XIN (JJBNUM, I)-XIN (JUBNUM, 1 ISTART, IF IN, YIN (40, 95), ITIME (40, 59), NDKA, NOUT, XDK (20), XI NC (95), IXIN (JUPNUM.I+I))) -((YIN (JCBNUM.I+I)-YIN (JCBNUM.I+2)) / (XIN -CONSTRAINTS PLACES CUNSTRAINTS AT AREAS OF GREATEST CURVATURE SUBROUTINE TO PLACE FOSITIONS OF CONSTRAINTS IF AllTCC SUBFUENE 本分分与其分子分子的有分子的有分子的有效的有效的非常非常非常有多的。 1)GCT0 298 XNDK=ABS([ABS[ACUKS[K]]+TEMP] / CURPD] DERIVATIVE EIF=(XNDK-FLCAT(NNDK))+.002 IF [NXNDK .GE . (LEN(JURALM)-3 SUMAC = SUMAC + ABS(ACLR S(1)) 2YINT+INGROT+JUSIN, IMLINE CURPC=SUMAC/FLCAT (NXNEK) CALCULATION OF SECOND CCMMCN / AREAL/ IHELP IF(NNDK.LT.1)60T0 220 CO 210 K=INDEX1,NIN2 CIMENSION ACURS(97) NIN2=LEN(JCBNUM)-2 SUPACUTINE ALTOC NXNDK= IABS (NCKA) C7 200 I=1, NIN2 ESCAPE CLAUSE NNDK = XNDK + • 5C1 31+2))/ 2.)) INPLITED. SUMAC=C. CONTINUE INDEX1=1 TEMP=0. NGLD=0 JKL=K 200 225 $\circ \circ \circ \circ$ υQ $\sim \phi$

AUDK 0037 AU DK 00 38 AUDK0039 AUDK 0040 AUDK0042 AUDK 0043 A UDK 0045 AUDK0041 AU DK 0046 AUDK0044 AUDK0047 AUDK 0048 AUDK0049 AUDK0050 AUDK 00 51 AUDK0052 AUDK 00 53 AUDK 0054 **AUDK0055** AUDK 0056 AUDK 00 58 AUDK 0059 AUDK0060 **AUDK0057** AUDK0064 AU 0K 0062 AUDK0063 AUDK0065 AUDK0066 AU DK 0067 AUDK0068 AUDK 0061 +XDX (PNP) -XIN (JOBNUM,K))/(XNDK+1.) XDK (WNW) = [X I N[JOBNUM + (LEN(JOBNUM))] - XCK (PNM)] /3.0 [F(AES[XCK[MAK]-XDK[MAM]].GE.[XNCR*.66]]GDT0 238 [Ff { JKL+1).L 1.NIN2) I NEEX 1= JKL+1 XDK(NOLD)=XIA (JOBNUP,K)+TXINC CALLING A TEST OF ITS VALUES IF((JKL+1).GE.NIN2)IACEX1=1 IF (NCLD. GT.NXNDK) GOTC 240 IF (NCLD. GE.NXNDK)GOTC 240 XNCR={XIN (JCBNUM,K+2) IF(MNK.EQ.MNM)GUTO 236 TEMP=TEMP+DIF+CURPD CO 235 MNK=1 NNNDK CO 238 MNM=1 NXNDK TX INC= TX INC + XNCR CO 230 [=1,NNDK CURPD=CURPD/2.0 remp=DIF +CURFD NOLD=NCLD+1 CALL DUCKT X ONN= X ONX CONT INUE GOTC 210 IXINC=0.CONT INUE COTO 225 GUTC 240 GUTC 299 CONTINUE CONT INUE IHELP=1 RETURN 220 210 230 240 235 235 298 299

ပပ

I

3

DUKT0003 **DUKT0004 DUK T0005** DUKT0008 DUKT0010 **DUKT0002 DUKT 0006** 0UKT 0009 DUK T0014 DUKT0007 DUK T 00 1 1 DUKT0012 **DUKT0013** DUKT0015 DUKT0016 DUKT0018 DUKT0019 DUKTOGOI DUKT0017 DUKT0020 0 UKT 0023 DUK T0024 DUKT 0021 **DUKT 00 22** 0UK 7 00 25 **UUKT0026** DUKT 0028 DUKT0027 DUK T0029 CUK T 00 30 DUK T0032 DUKT0031 **DUKT0033** DUKT0034 0UKT 0035 DUK 10036 ZYIND(99), XDUT(500), YCUT(500), NIN, ITMAKK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IACICH, XINT, CJMMCN [PUN, JCBNUM, [h/KN(40),LEN(40),KPGT,KJT,KIN,XIN(40,99),IDT, 1 ISTART,IFIN, YIN(40,95),LTIME(40,59),NDKA,NOUT,XDK(20),XINC(99), HAS NOW '.13, PRESENT VALUE ",FIC.3,* SUB= (XINQ(NINA)-XINC(NINA+I))/Z+ +XINQ(NINA-I) CHECKS Ch. POSITIONS OF CONSTRAINTS WILL VOID THEM IF POSITIONED TO CLOSE TO END IF({XLUW.GT.3.}.0P.(FIGH.LT.3.))GDT0 990 ADD={XINC(2)-XIND(1))/2. +XING(1) TEST TO PREVENT INFINITE LOOP XDK [] = [X [NE {N INA } - X [AE {] }] Z . TEST TO PREVENT INFINITE LOOP WRITE(KUJT, 991)I, XOK(I), ACD WRITE(KUT,981)1,XDK(1),SUB SYINT, INORCT, JUSIN, IMLINE IF(XLJW.GT.3.)GUTU 551 FIGH=XINC(NINA)-XDK(I) FORMET('-', LUCK NUMBER CALL STRT (XCK, NCKA) XL CW=XDK (I) - XINO(1) [F(J1.6T.2)6CTC 95 IF(J1.GT.2)GCT0 95 SUBPJUTINE CLCKT A INA=LEN (JUBAUM) CD 990 I=I, ACKA CALL PRITCK $XD \times (1) = A C C$ xDK([]=SLB J1=J1 + 1 COTC 989 COTC 989 CUNTINUE RE TURN **J1** = 0 СР5 59 **1** 590 с С 185 000ပပ ပပ

ŝ


T

AND A REAL PROPERTY.

:

ŧ

lbgen substitled with the value ',flo.3///}
end

0UKT 0037 0UKT 0038

PR0K0001 PR0K0002	PRDK0003 PRDK0004	PRDK0005	PRDK0006 PPDK0003	PKDK0008	PRDK0009	PRDK0010	PRDK0011	PRDK0012	PRDKJUI3	PRDK0014	PRDK0015	PRDK0016	PR0K0017
PRITCK SUHROLTINE ************************************	CCMMCN IPUN, JCBNUM, IM KRN (40), LEN (40), KPJT, KJT, KIN, XIN (40,95), IDT, PRD IISTART, IFIN, YIN (40,95), ITIMF140, 991, ADVA, ADVA, ADV, 200, 200, 101, PRO	2YINU(99), XOUT(500), YC(T(500), NIN, TYNARK, ICONFT.ISTRIA, TAFTER, YINT, 23, PRO	MRITE(KUT.256) NDKALIZLANE DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN D	NXNDK=IAES(NEKA)	CU 245 1=1, NXNDK PRO	PRD: WRITE(KUT, 2 oc) XDK(1)	245 CONTINUE PRD	PRDI	200 FUPMAT (* -*, 14, * 15 TFE NUMBER OF DUCKS USED FOR TE TURDED	1// XDK CEORCINATES) CONCINATES (14/ PRO)	260 FJRMAT(FIC.3) PRDI	PRD/	PROM
00													

「「「ないない」

[NTP 0001 INTP0002 INTPOD03 N FP 0004 NTP0005 INTP0006 INTP0008 IN TP 0009 INTP0007 INTP0010 INTPO012 NTP0013 NTP0014 **INTPOOL5 INTPOO16** [NTP0011 NTP0018 NTP0019 INTP 00 20 NTP 00 17 NTP0022 INTP0024 INTP0025 INTP0029 NTP0021 **INTP0023** INTP0026 NTP 00 28 NTP 0030 NTP0032 NTP 00 33 **UTP0035** INTP 0036 INTP0027 NTP0034 NTP0031 2YIND(99), XDUT(500), YCLT(500), NIN, ITMARK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IAEICH, XINT, TIMELINES RCT.AXS COMMEN IPUN, JOBNUM, IMARN(40), LEN(40), KPOT, KOT, KIN, XIN(40,99), IDT, LISTART, IFIN, YIN(40,95), ITIME(40,99), NCKA, NOUT, XDK(20), XINO(95), ALSC OUTPUTS PCINTS LEING GLSQX2*S COEFFICIENTS SUBROUTINE INTERPINDEGX, IARITY, NFTS) ON FROM WHERE VALUES CAME FROM SUBRCUTINE THAT PREPARES ARGUEMENTS FOR GLSQXZ YOUT (K)= YOUT (K) + PARAM(])*XOUT (K) + *NPOMER WRITE CUEFFICIENTS FCF LEAST SQUARES FIT COMMEN / ARE A2/ XMAX, XMIN, YMAX, YMIN [F (XCUT (K) . LT.XMIN)XM]N=XOUT (K) [F(XOUT(K).GT.XMAX)X##X=XOUT(K) IF (YCUT(K).61.YMAX)YP/X=YBUT(K) [F(YOUT(K).LT.YMIN)YP]A=YOUT(K) IF { YOUT(K) . G1. XMAX) XMAX=YOUT [K] IF(YCUT(K).LT.XMIN)XPIA=YOUT(K) CALL GLSQXZ(NDCX,PARAP,NDEGX) CALL CCEF(PARAM,NCCX, ITTPE) 3YINT, INDRCT, JUSIN, IMLINE F(IARITY.EQ.0)GOTO 100 IF (NCEGX.GE.3)NCDX=3 IFINCEGX.EQ.2)NDDX=2 CIMENSION PARAM(4) CIMENSION CHECK CO 111 I=1,NCDX CO 99 K=1,NP15 WRITE(KOT,25C) 0*0=(X)10CA NPOWER=1-1 CONTINUE CONTINUE GOTC 99 11 I PE=0 RE TURN 111 100 66 ပပပ ပပ O

36

► m		
μ μ		
88		
<u>d</u> d		
55		2
4		
		99
		4
		G
~		
\ \		
IJ		
Ŧ		
F Ⅲ		
2		
Ś		
ů.		
а Т		
3		
0		
E .		
50 5		
บ		
_		
ul.		
0		
SA		
5		
Ω.		
H		
Ĩ		
<u>н</u>		
ш Ш		
0		
0		
<u>u</u>		
(1		
0		
z		
F		
5		
•		
~		
-		
4		
Σ.		
S S		
u u		
9		
5(
5N		

<pre>BRDUTINE ************************************</pre>	GLX2000 GLX2000	GLXZ000	CCX200	4 EU GL XZ 0001 61 X 7 0002	6LX2000	[N(+0+99), IDT, GLX2000	0002X1V0(95) + CT 0002	N+IACICH+XINT, GLX20010	GLXZ0011	6L XZ 3012	21 22 20 13	61 X2 UD14	GL X 2 00 16	GLX20017	CL X2 0018	GLX20019	GL XZ 0020	GL XZ 0021	GLX20022	GLX20023	GLX20024	GLX20025	GL XZ 0026	7K GLX20027	GLX20028	GL XZ 0029	GLX20030	CLX20031	GLX20032	ENT MATRIX GLX20033	GL X2 00 34	GLX20035	GI X7 0036	
C CLEAST SQUE SUBROUTIN C LEAST SQUE SUBROUTIN PARAM IS C PARAM IS C COMMON IP IISTART, IF ISTART, IF 271N01099, 30 ZERC ARRAYS IISTART, IF 271N01099, 30 ZERC ARRAYS IISTART, IF 20 PARAM IS C MPUTE SUMS C SO K = 1 XK = XIN0(K) VK = YIN0(K) VK = YIN0(K) D C 40 I IF C 50 K = 1 XK = XIN0(K) VK = YIN0(K) D C 40 I IF C 50 K = 1 XK = XIN0(K) C 1 F	C GLSGXZ SLERDUTINE ************************************	DODROOTINE GEORAGESTATATATATATATATATATATATA	C NDARAM IS THE NUMBER OF FOREEFLFIENTS VEH HANT ATTUS	C PARAM IS A VECTOR CONTAINING THE COEFFICIENTS		CUMMEN I PUN, JUBNUM, I MARN (40), LEN (40), KPCT, KOT, KIN, X	I [START,] FIN, YIN(40,95], ITIME (40,59), NDKA, NDUT, XDK [2	ZINUL994 #AUU (SUU) #YLLI (SUU) #NIN FIMARK #ICONET STR Zytni thopit - Pictn - Pithe	EIMENSTON AUTORIATING INC.	TERE ARRAYS REFERES SUMMIAS	LO EO 20 I = 1, NPARAM	20 PARAM(1) = 0.0E0		IXPMBX=2 + (NPARAH-1)	UU JU I = 14 IXPMAX 30 VDUGEDIII - A ARA		THANDITE SUMPORE DE AMPA A LA SACARA DE ALIGNES.	· VARTONE SOMA UN PUNERS LE A ANU UN PUMERS UN X TIMES Y. En som min andre		XX - 140 CC XX=XINN/K1			IF (] _IF_ NDARAWIDA AAATI - DADAWIT - VA		XPCWER(I) = XPCNER(I) + XP	40 CCNTINUE	50 CDNTINUE		CONDUTE CDEELFTENTS OF NORTH POINTS 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200	MACA PANDED CIGHTO UN PURMAL EQUATIONS. THE COEFFICE	ATT A BRADED VITUCIUKT. Aft 1 - Aldre		IT UNTARAM . EQ. [] GC [0 90	

.

ŧ.

GL X 20040 GL X 20041 6LX20048 6LX20049 GLX20038 GL XZ 0039 GLX20037 GLX20042 GLX20043 GL XZ 0044 GL XZ 0045 GLX20046 GL X20047 GL X 2 00 50 GL X2 0052 GLX20051 GL X 200 53 GL X2 0054 GL XZ 00 55 GLX20056 GLX20057 GL X 2 00 5 8 GLX20059 GL XZ 0060 NCRMAL EQUATIONS ARE SINGULAR.) ď X ч ХР SPLVE ACRWAL EGLATIONS. 90 Call SIMEG(A,PARAM,NFIRAM,IERK) 15 (IFRR .NE. 0) WRITE (6, 1002) п ц Ч - () $\overline{\sim}$ A(I + (NPARAM - 1) * K) ł к) = хр Ŷ ---= XPCWFR(NPARA# + A(K + NPARAM * (I A(APAKAM + I - K, DC 70 K = I, NPARAA = XPJWER(I = 1) = 2 + NPARAM A(K, I + I -1002 FORMAT(39F LSFIT: $60 \text{ K} \approx 1, 1$ CCNTINUE **CONTINUE** -**30 CUNTINUE** α× Ω С С Å 0 L END 6 6 7.0 с, $\odot \odot$ Q ں ں ی ن Q

J IN North -

and the design of the second s

しいがい ストロール しょうしん デモ・アライ しりくしいてき かくてんちょう あまま 大学学 御子 大学学会 アイト・アイト しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう しょうしょう

SIM00002 SI NGOODS 51 MQ 0004 SI MQ0001 S I MQ 0005 SIM00006 SIM0007 50000W1S S I MQ0008 SIMQOOLO SING0012 SIMQOOIS SI NOODI I SIMQ0013 SIM00014 S 1 MQ 00 16 SI MQ 0017 SIMQ0018 S I M00019 SIM00020 SIM00023 SIM40022 SIMQ0024 SI M00025 S I M000 26 SIMQ0027 S1MQ0028 S IM00029 SI N00033 S 1 NG0034 S INQ0021 SIMQ0030 S 1 MQ 00 32 SIM00031 THE SIZE CF MATRIX A IS N - NUPBER DF EQUATIONS AND VARIABLES. N MUST BE .GT. CNE. THE SE ARE SSP SUBROUTINE TO SOLVE SIMULTANEOUS EQUATIONS FOR LSFIT VECTCR OF CFIGINAL CONSTANTS (LENGTH N). THESE ARE REPLACED BY FINAL SOLUTION VALUES, VECTOR X. - MATRIX OF CEEFFICIENTS STORED COLUMNWISE. I FOR A SINGULAR SET CF EQUATIONS SEARCH FUR MAXIMUP COEFFICIENT IN COLLMN DESTRCYED IN THE COMPUTATION. O FOR A NCFFAL SOLUTION IF(AES(BIGA)-AES(A(IJ)) 20,30,30 DESCRIPTION OF PARAMETERS SUBROUTINE SIMEO(A, B, A, KS) CLTPUT DIGIT FCRWARD SCLUTION CIMENSION A(1), B(1) N BY N. t DO 65 J=1,N U0 30 I≃1,N ł TOL = C. 00 1 81 GA=A(1J) ¥S < 1 + 4 + 7 7 = 7 7 8 17=JJ-J []=[]+[EI GA=0 1+1=71 NB **√**-=[) I=XAMI KS=0 20 •••••••••••• S Q

 $\mathbf{O} \mathbf{O} \mathbf{O}$

SI MQ0035 SI MQ 0036

CONTINUE

30

ပပပ

40

PAGE

51 MQ 0049 51 MQ 0050 SI MQ0051 SI MQ0052 SI MQ 0056 SI MQ 0057 SI MQ 0058 SI MQ 0058 SI MQ 0054 SI MQ 0055 SIMQOOBE SIM00039 SIM40043 SIM0045 SIMQ0060 SIMQ0061 S140037 04000MIS SIMQ0042 51MQ0044 S1 MQ 0046 5 I MQ 0047 SIM40048 SIM40041 SIMQUOSE SIM40062 S 1 M00063 SI M00064 **SIMQ0065** S I MQ0066 51 MQ0067 SIMQOULE S1 MQ0069 SIMQ 00 70 SIMG0071 SIMQ0072 4 PAGE TEST FCR FIVOT LESS THAN TOLEPANCE (SINGULAR MATRIX) DIVIDE EQLATION BY LEADING CREFFICIENT INTERCHAMGE ROWS IF NECESSARY ([X [] X]= A [[X] X] - [A [] M] * A [] X] X 35,25,40 ELIMINATE NEXT VAFIABLE P(IX)=B(IX)-(B(J)*A(I)) IF (A BS (H I GA) - TOL) A(11)=A(11) / EIGA IF(J-N) 55,7C,55 X]+([-XC)+N=XCX] E([MAX)=E(J) E(J)=SAVE/B1GA CO 65 IX=JY,N CO 6C JX=JY,N 11 = J + N + (J - 2)SAVE=B(IMAX) CO 50 K=J,N A([])=A([2) T1+XLXI=XLL (1-f)*V=SpI $SAV[=\Delta (I])$ A(12)=SAVE IX1 + ShI = CXI I T = I MAX - J[2=]]+[T II = II + NI T = J - I XRETURN K S = 1 ۍ ۳ ---С У 6 S С С 6 0 ပပပ ပပပ ပပပ ں ں

ФŦ

-



्रि

.

50	CDEF SURREUTINE ************************************	CUEF0001 CUEF0002
U	ELMENSTON ZIN(1)	COEF 0003
പ	THIS INSTALLATION ACTION ACTIO	COEF0004
ç	THE ANALYSING RELIRES LOGICAL UNIT & AS THE PRINTED	COEF0005
		COEF0006
U.		COEF0007
ا ب		CJEF0008
)	TEATTOR SO AND S	CDEF0009
		CJEFOOIO
ł		CUEFNOIL
יר') EG 766 1=1.NFK	
		CCELO012
71.12		C UEF 0013
		COEF0014
		COEF0015
5.00		CUEF0016
	ELEMENT // LISTING (F COEFFICIENTS USED IN SUBDOUTING SUBJECT	CJEF0017
2 C C B	FURPHICE [3, 3]	CCEFJ018
		COEF0019
		CJEF0020
		CJEF0021

.

ŝ

くりつきとかたてもない

Į.

1.1

こうしょう アイ・システレント アイ・システム かんしょう たいかい かんしょう しょうしょう

X0UT0003 X0UT0004 X0UT0005 X0UT0006 X0UT0008 X0UT0009 X0UT0001 X0UT 0002 7000TUCX XPUT 0010 X0UT0015 X0UT0011 X0UT0012 X0UT0013 X0010014 X3UT0316 XOUT0018 XCUT0019 XJUT0017 1 [START, [F IN, YIN(40, 55), ITIME(40, 59), NDKA, NUUT, XDK(20), XI ND(95), 2 YINC(59), XOUT(500), YELT(500), NIN, ITMARK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IAEICH, XINT, CCMMCN [PUN, JOBNUM, [M/PA (40) .LEN (40) .KPC1,KO1,KIN,XIN(40,99),ID1, XNCR=[XIA [JCBNUP,LEA(JCBNUM]) -XIN (JCBNUM, 1)]/FLCAT(NOLTA) KOUTINE TO PLACE OUTFUT POINTS IF NOUT INPUTTED AS <=0 XOUTER SUBRULTINE ******************** XCUT(NOUTA)=XIN (JCENLM,LEN(JCBNLM)) PLACES THEM AT REGULAR INTERVAL BY INT, INDRET, JUSIN, IPLINE x2UT(I)=XCUT(I+1) +XNCR (['WUNGOC] NIX=(])INCX SUBRCUTINE XOUTER CO 3CO I=2,NCUTAI NOUTA= IABS (NCUT) NOUTA1=NCLTA-1 CONTINUE RETURN END 005

ပပ

ပပ

OUTRU001 0UTR 0002 CUTR0003 **9UTR 0004 OUTROOOS** JUTR J006 **JUTR 0007** 0UTR0008 00CH100 **JUTR 00 10** OUTRO012 OUTRO013 CUTR0014 0UTR0016 CUTR0011 **UUTR 0015** JUTR C018 **DUTROOL7 UTR0019** 0UTR 0020 **JUTR0021** 0UTR 0022 UUTR 0023 0UTR0024 0UTR0025 **JUTR 0026 CUTR0027** GUTA0028 0UTR 0029 0UTR0030 OUTR CO31 **OUTR0032** 0UTR 0033 0UTR 0034 OUTR0035 **JUTR 0036** ი 4 PAGE 2YIN0(99), X0011500), YCUT(500), NIN, ITMARK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IACICH, XINT, If((IaUIC+.Eq.1).and.(Ians.ne.1))write(kfet,460)(xcut(1).i=1.hduta COMMEN IPUN, JCHNUM, IMKRN (40), LEN (40), KPOT, KUT, KIN, XIN (40,99), [DT, I ISTART, IFIN, YIN (40, 35), I TIME (40, 54), NDKA, NOUT, XDK (20), XING (95), IF([IaDICH_FG.1).AND.(IANS.EG.1)]WRITE(KFCT.460)XINT.{XOLT(I).I=1. IF(([Arich.fc.1].arg.fiars.ne.1])WR[TF(KPCT.460)(YCUT(1),[=1.NOUTA IF((1ADICH. & G.1).AND.(1ANS.EQ.1))WRITE(KPCT.46C)VINT.(YOLT(1).I=1. CUTER SUERDUTINE WITH CPTIUNAL FNTRY PRGT ########### FUNCHEU AND/CR PRINTEE CLIPUT PCINTS SUBRGUTINE CLTER ERGISION ON FOSTILUN OF ICONET POINT ₩AITE(KPCT,460)(XJUT(]);I#1,NGUTA) 1 MR ITÉ(KPCT,460) (YPUT (1),1=1,NDUTA) JCRAUM ICUNET ACCITICNAL PCINTS ICONET ADDITIONAL PCIAT WRITE(KOT,45C)LX,JCHNLM WRITELKPCT, 4501LX fx=NCUT + 1AflcH AUUTA= IABS(NCUT) COMMON/GNE/ I ANS WRITE(KPCT, 455) IF(IADIC+.VE.1) LX=NCUT + 1ACICH [[[AJICH.NE.]] WRITE(KPC1,47C) PRINTED CNLY ENTRY PLOT 1), XINT INDUTA) I.J. YINT (ATUCA) $\odot \phi$ υü $\circ \circ$

 $c \circ c \circ c$

.

i.

ちょういい ちょうよう シー・シー・シー

1

0UTR0038 CUTR0039 GUTR C040 0UTR 0044 0UTK 0046 0UTR0037 GUTR0042 UUTK 0043 GUTR0045 0UTR 0047 CUTR0048 0UTR 0049 0UTP 0050 **JUTR C041 OUTR 00 52** CUTR0053 UUTR 0051 QUTR 0054 0UTP 0055 F①R411(。 XGUTS FGLLCK 采米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米 IF(([ADICH.EC.1).AND.(IANS.NE.1))WRITE(KCT.465)XINT.YINT krite(x97,480)JC8NUP IF((IADICH*EC*1).AND.(IANS*EC.1))WRITE(KCT,465)XINT,YINT 12) **JUTPUT PLINTS FCP JCB NUMBEP** YOUTS COCRD') wRITE(K0T,465) XOUT(I),YCUT(I) FURMAT(3X,F1C.3,5X,F1C.3) FORMAT(*-*, * XOUTS CCCRD CO 400 1=1.NCUTA NJUT #= IABS (NCUT) **WRITE(KCT,475)** FORMAT (8 F10.3) WRITE(KUT,49C) FORMAT(14,1 FUPPAT('I') CONTINUE RETUAN EZ D 400 490 450 460 653 470 430 465

ł

PRAP 0016 PRAP0018 PRAP0019 PRAP0013 PRAP0014 PRAPOU15 PRAP0020 PR AP 00 22 PRAP0023 PRAPCU24 PRAP0005 PRAP COOB PRAP0009 PRAP0010 PRAP0011 PRAPJO12 PRAP0017 PRAP0021 PR AP 0025 PRAPJ026 PRAP 0027 PRAP0028 PRAP0029 PRAP0003 PR AP0304 PR AP 0006 PRAP0007 PRAP 00.30 PRAP0002 PRAP0031 PRAP 0032 PRAP0033 PRAPODOL 2YIN7(99), X001(500), YC(1(500), N(N,1TMAPK,ICCNET,ISTALN,IACICH,XINT, [F({IADICH.FC.I).AND.(IANS.NE.1))WRITE(KPCT.IAC)(XIN(JOBNUM,I).I=I If([latich-fc.l).and.(lans-fq.l))write(kPCT, icc)xint.(xin(jdenum, i lwRite(kPct,160)(YIN_{.CBNUM,f),I=L,LENT) IF((IACIC+.EC.1).AND.(IANS.NE.1))WRITE(KPCT,160)(YIN(JGBAUM,I),I=L 1,LENT),YINT IF((IADICH-EC.1) + AND. (IAMS.EQ.1))WRITE(KPCT, 16C) YINT, (YIN(JUBNUM, I CCMMEN IPUN, JCBNUM, IMIRW[40],LEN[40],KP31,KJ1,KIN,XIN[40,95],IDT, I [START+I FIN, YIN(40,35]+ITIME(4J,59), NDKA, NUUT, XDK(20), XINJ(95), A TSCRT HAS BEEN DONE SUBRGUTINE WITH CPTICNAL ENTRY PRINTC +++++++++ lwrite(KPCT,160)(XIN (.CENUM,1),1=L.LENT) WHERE CONFECTION POINT GOES FOR ICONET POSITION IF FUNCHEE AND/CR PRINTEL INPUT POINTS COMPON /AREAZ/ XMAK, XHIN, YMAX, YMIN SORT INPUT PCINTS IN SPECIAL SORT WRITE(KPOT, 150) LX, JCENUM 3YINT, INUROF, JUSIN, IMLINE LX=LEN(JCBNUP) + IACI(F ICONET ACCITIONAL POINT SUBRCUTINE PRAPN LENT=LEN(JCPNJM) COMMON/ONE/INNS IF (LAC ICH .NE .I) WRITE(KPCT, 155) WRITE(KPCT, 17C) TFUIDICH.NE.I) CECISION OF COMMON/CNE/ L.LENT, XINT 1), I=1, LENT) 1),1=1,LENT) TSURT PK APN CALL ပပ $\circ \circ \circ \circ$ C $\circ \circ$

O

ENTRY PRINTC

PRAP0035

PRAP0036 47

PAGË

PRAP0034

7

PRAP0039 PRAP0038 PRAP0040 PRAP0037 PRAP 0042 PRAP0043 PRAP0044 PRAP0045 PRAPJ041 PRAP0046 PRAP 0048 PRAPOU49 PKAP0050 PRAP0353 PRAP0047 PHAP0052 PRAPCO55 PRAPC058 PRAP0054 PRAPJ056 PRAP 0059 PRAP3062 PRAP0051 PKAPC057 PRAPUDED PRAP0061 PRAP0063 PR AP U064 FURMATI" XIN POINTS FELLOW \$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$ IF((IADICH+EC+1)+AND+(IANS+EC+1))HRITE(KCT+165)XINT+YINT IF4(IADICH.EQ.1).AND.(IANS.NE.1))WRITE(KCT,165)XINT,YINT krite(kOT,165)XIN (JCENUM,E),YIN (JUBNUM,I) IF (YMAX.LT.YIN(JOBNUP,I))YMAX=YIN(JOBNUM,I) [F(XMAX.LT.XIN(JUBAUP,[))XMAX=XIN(JUBNUM,[) IF (XMIN.GT.XIN(JOBAUP,I))XMIN=XIN(JOBAUM,I) IF { YMIN. GT. YIN (JOANUP , I)) YMIN=YIN (JCBNUP , I) YINS COORC .) ff([PUN.NE.1].0R.(]NCR0T.EQ.1))CALL TSOFT FORMAT(13," FCIATS IN FCR JOB NUMBER ',12) LENLJOBNUM) (F(LEN(JCBNUP).EQ.1)CCTO 600 IF(LENLJCRNUM).EQ.1)CUTC 700 FORMAT('+', XINS COCED ', C_3,5X,F1C.3,5X,F1C.3) IF(LEN(JCBNUP).EQ.1)LX= WRITE(KUT.15C)LX,JOBALM LX=LEN(JCBNUP) + IACICH WAX CIMEASION CHECK LENT=LEN(JOBNUM) CC 100 I=1,LENT **ARITE(KOT, 175)** FGRWAT (8F10.2) PRINTED CNLY CONT INUE **FETURN** END 600 100 150 160 700 155 165 170 175 ں οu

	TSC/NT_SUBRUNTTENE_ ###################################	TSRTJOOL
	SPECIAL SCRT PUTS THE LEAST MEMBER FIRST IN CASE PCINTS	T SR T 0002
	INVESTIGATION AND A CONTRACTION OF A CON	T 5RT 0003
	SUBFUCTINE TSORT	TSRT004
	CUMMCN IPLN, JCBNUM, [WIRN(40), LEN(40), KPDI, KDI, KIN, XIN(40, 99), 1DI.	T SR TOODS
	115TART, 1FIN, YIN(40,55), 1TIME(40,59), ACKA, NOUT, XDK(201, XIACI39).	
	ZYINQ(99) + X0U1(5001 + YCU1(500) + NIN + ITMAEK + ICON FT + I STRLN - LA FICH - XINT -	TCOTOTOT
	PYINT, INURCT, JUSIN, IMEINE	
	CCMMCN/UNE/1 MIS	
	I AN S=0	
	IF(XIN (JEBMEM.1). F.>IN (JABNIM. FAN JEANANANANACATE 220	ISKIU010
		TSRT0011
	MEND=FEN (JCHNIN) /2	TSRT0012
		TSRTCO13
		TSRTJOI4
	TEREATOR AUGNUTy1) Tempy-vir augusta	TSRTU015
		TSRT0016
		FSRT0017
		TSRTOULE
	XIN (JOBNUM,I)=XIN (JCBALM,NUM)	TSRT0019
	YIN (JCBNUM+[)=YIN (JCBNUM,NUM]	TSRT0020
	IIIME(JEBNUM,I) = ITIME(JCBNUM,NUM)	TSRT0021
	XIN (JUBAUM NUM) = TEMP)	TSRT 3022
		TSRT0023
0	I I I ME(JCHAUM, NUM) = I TEAP	T5RT0024
		TSRT 0025
5		TSRT0026
		TSRT0027

400

March Color

49 PAGÉ SUBROUTINE SCRT(ARKAN, NUM) INTERCHANGE SURT

ပပ

S0RT 0002

SORTOOOL

SURT 0003 S0R10004

SORT0005

SORT JOO6

SOR T 0007 SORT 0008

S0RT0009 SOR T 00 10 SGRT0012 SORT 0013 SCRT0014 SOR 7 00 1 5

SORT 0011

SORT0019

SURT0016 SORTOUL7

a an ann an Anna an Ann Anna an Anna an

I

1.1.1

I

I

IF (HCLD.GT.AFRAY(J)) CTC 710 ARRAY (IHCLD) = ARRAY (NL P2) CIMENSICN APRAY(1) C3 710 J=1, NLM2 CO 7CO I±1,NLM NUM2=NUM-I + 1 HOL C=AKRAY(J) HOLD=-2. **32 1HOLD=-2**32 (HCLC=J

ARRAY (NUM2) = FOLD CUNTINUE

510

CONTINUE 700

RETURN END

ue	RSURT SUBROUTINE ++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	
	SUBRGUTINE REDRICTER STRUCTURE ARRAY	RSRI0002
	CIMENSION XISO(1), YISC(1)	KSRT U003
	CG 9C0 I=1,IAC	RSH10004
		K SR T 0005
		RSRT0006
	NUP Z = INC - I + I	KSRT0007
	L. 510 J=1, ALM2	R SR T 0008
	IF(FCLU.6T.XISC(J))6C1C 910	R5R10009
		RSRT0010
		RSRT0011
	r:)LD=YISC(J)	RSRT0012
7 1 0		RSRT0013
	XISC([HDLC) = XISC(NUM 2]	RSRT0014
	YISC(IHOLD) = YISC(NUM2)	RSRTOOIS
	X 15 C (NI)M2) = FCL C	ƙ SR TOU 16
1	YISC (NUM2) = YELD	RSRT0017
005		K SR TOOLB
	RETURN	R5RT0019
	END	R5RT0020
		R 5 R T 00 2 1

ſ		林林会长来这些小学校会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会	STOR DOD 1
ں ر		CALCULATES VALUES FOR CENTERED VELOCITY AND FOR FUTHER IMPROVEMENT	STCR0002
1		SUBRCUTINE STORECTICT(, ICOUNT, ANGL, ANG2, XCORC, YCORC, IHOUR, MINUT,	STOR 0003
		INSEC.HIWSAR, ILAP,IELT,DIST,VEL,VELOC.DIRCT)	STUR0004
		LOGICAL*1 IIELT(9),ICELT(9),IELT(9),NI#SAR(9),MIWSAR(9),KIWSAR(9)	ST0R0005
		GJ TC (900,100,200), ICEC	S T OR 0 0 06
	100	0 CXEMP=FLCAT(ILAP) + FLCAT(IJLAP)	ST0R0007
	•	CVELCC=DVEL+FLCAT(IOL/P)/DXEMP + VEL*FLJAT(ILAP)/DXEMP	5T3R0308
		IF (ICUUNT.EQ.2) CVELCC=C.00	STUR0009
		COTO 800	STCR0010
ں ا			ST0k0011
J		TRANSFER STATION	ST0R0012
	200		STCP0013
	600	D IXCCUN=ICCOUN	ST0R0014
		XANG I=CANGI	STGR0015
		XANG2= CANG2	STUROU16
			ST0R0017
		XY C C R() = () Y C J R C	5TJR0018
		IXHCLA=I HOUP	STURDU19
		IXMIA=14 INUT	STUROU20
		IXNSFC=INSFC	STCR0021
		IXLAF=I0LAP	ST0R0022
		CO 305 JB=1,5	STUR0025
		II ELT(JB)=[CELT(JB)	51 JR 0024
č	ç05	NIWSAR(JR)=KIWSAR(J9)	ST <u>0</u> R0025
		X015T= 001ST	STCR0026
		XVEL=JVEL	510R0J27
			STUR0028
		XIJIRCT=DCIRCT	ST040029
.	200	F3CCLN≠FCCUNT	STUR0330
		CANG I = ANG I	STURDOB1
		CANG2=ANG2	STJR0032
		$C X C \subseteq F D = X C C R D$	ST/JR 00 33
		CYC C RD=Y COR C	ST0R0034
		II HCLR=I FCUR	STCR0035
		IM I NLT=M I RUT	STUR0036
			PAGE 52

ပပ

ı.

STOROO37

KIWSAR(JB)=MIWSAR(JB) NSEC=IXNSEC DT 520 JB=1,5 MIWSAR(JB)=NIWSAR(JB) IF (ICEC.EQ. 1)RETURN IUELT(JB)=IELT(JB) IFLT(JB)=IIELT(JB) []LAP=ILAP CJ 910 JA=1,5 ICCUNT = I XCOUN CVEL=VEL CVEL=VELDC COIRCT=DIRCT XCCRC=XXCCRC YCCRC=XYCCRU IHCUR= IXHOUR VELCC=XVELCC DIRCT=XDIRCT VIVII=IXVIN INSEC=NSEC COIST=OISTANG 2=XANG2 IL AP = I XL AP ANG 1=XANG1 CI 57=X01 ST VEL = XVEL 015 520

RE TURN END

ں

ı

1 対応できる

2

(1) A second state of the second state of t

1

DEGR 0002 DE GR 0003 DEGR0004 **DEGR0005** DEGR0006 **DEGROUO7** DEGR0008 UEGR0001 FUNCTION TO CHANGE DECREES TO POSITIVE DEGREES.MINUTES FOR OUTPUT MANGLE=IFIX(ANGLEZ-FLC/F(NANGLE)) NANGLE = NANGLE - (NANGLE / 360) +360 FUNCTION DEGREE(ANGLE2) WANGLE=MANGLE-MAC*60 NANGLE = I F I X (ANGLE 2) NANGLE=NANGLE+MAD VAD=MANGLE/6C

ں

C NEGATIVE ANGLE FIX IF(NANGLE-GE-0)GDTC IC ISUB=0 IF(MANGLE-NE-0)ISUB=-1 IF(MANGLE-NE-0)MANGLE=6C + M

DEGR0010

DEGROO11

DEGR0009

DEGR 0013

DEGR0014 DEGR0015 DEGR0016 DEGR 0018

0EGR JU 19

DEGP0017

DEGRUO12

IF (MANGLE-NE-0) MANGLE=60 + MANGLE NANGLE=360 + ISUB +NANGLE Necoes-eleatinances) asecatinances

U

100 CEGREF=FLCAT(NANGLE) +FLCAT(MANGLE)/10C
RETURN
END

4

TIME0019 TIME0020 TI ME 0003 **TIME0002 TIME0004 TI ME 0005 TIME U006 TIME 0008** T 1 ME 0009 TIME 0010 TIMEJO14 TIME0007 TIMEOOIL TIME0012 **TIME 0013 TIME0015 TIME0016** TIMEDOOL TIME0017 **TIME 0018 TIME0022 TIME0021** TI#E0023 TIME 0024 TIME0025 T1 ME 0026 **TIME 0027** T 1 ME 0028 CATA DIGITS/*0*,'1,'2','2','3','4','5',''6','7','E','5',''-',''','' CUTPUTS & HH: WM:SS CFERACTER(ARRAV) FPGM INPUT TIME IN SECONDS LOGICAL*I FIELD(1),DICITS(13) = IA 8 5(IMINUT - (IMINUT/10) +10) COMPARISON OF BYTES JF (NSECS.LT.C)FIELD(1)=DIGITS(11) JF (NSECS.GE.C)FIELD(1)=DIGITS(13) = IABS(IHOUR-(IHCUR/10)*10) [SEC=NSECS+1+00K*3600+1MUT #60 =14BS(1SEC-(1SEC/10)*10) SUBPOUTINE TIMEPHONSECS, FIELD) IMINUT={NSECS-IH0UR*34C0}/60 = IAB SELHOUR / ICI =IAHS(ISEC/IC) FIFLC(2)=CIGITS(I+1) FIELD(3)=01GITS(1+1) FIELC(5)=DIGITS(1+1) FIELC(6)=CIGITS(I+1) FIELC(8)=CICITS(I+1) fletu(a) = 01611S(1+1) FIELD(4)=01611S(12) FIELE(7)=DIGITS(12) I=IABS{INUT/10} THC UR=NSECS/3600 RE TURN ENC

Ċ

ပပ

ŝ PAGE

Ċ

SAMPLE OUTPUT FOR DROGUE BODY COORDINATE AND VELOCITY CALCULATION COMPUTER PROGRAM

-

ALA ALLER TO ALL TATATA AND A AND JA SIARI ALLATATATA SUA ALLATION 7725772 AANADGGK WING GD PAARAS IPULADIN 9014-0JUSIN-DIGONTAJIAXISHIITMARKALIMLINE-DISTRLN=0

÷

LEGREES THAT THE BASELING IS BEF TRUE NORTH -71 MINUTES-39

THE LENGHT OF THE BASELINE IS 365.20 METERS

LUWTICE IIMS = 5:54: 0 HH:MM:SS

Y HAXIMUM INPUTTED AS 0.0 METERS

.

٠

*****	· JOPAUXBES	1 21 S1	【五代】 米市に水田	医生产的机能在一场							·
CIB LUNTIC	ΣΕ						·				·
	ANGLE 1 DEG.#IN 53.50 52.00 51.30 51.00	ANGLO Z DSGC MTW 99,45 90,60 90,15 91,15	X 0-0.80 MTTERS - 1000+7 - 1000+7 - 1001+3 - 1001+3 - 1001+3 - 1001+3 - 1001+3 - 1001+3 - 1001+3 - 1001+3 - 1001-3 - 1002-3 - 100-3 - 1002-3 - 100-	Y RTCCR 966640 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 946640000000000	51487 31 FH:P2:55 51362 5143160 5143160 514210 51142 51162	LCWT1 DE HH: MM: SS -00:110:20 -00:10:20 -00:10:20 -00:05:20	11 ELPT 11	DISTANCE Meters 0 0 29,51 6.17 9.37	BACK « VEL CM/SFC CM/SFC CM/SFC 2.4 2.4 2.4	CENT. VEL. C*/SEC 0.C 2.3 2.3	018CT(N). 016.#TN 0.0 14.00 14.00
***** BACKT	RACKING BU	Γ αλφον ÅΩ	1. BUILLE R	VÜLLISJa I	4						
WekaGés Fuk	GRCUP:	TOTAL DI:	STANCE STANCE Stricks	MIT JATUT MIT JATUT MM: MM: V	A VEG.	AVEL. VEL. AVE	RG. DIRCT.				
4 PUINTS IN	FCª JOB NI	1 45040	35+52	1:21:00))		11.00				
X1NS CUUAU -500.707 -520.707 -471.274 -471.274 -465.442	11NS C 365. 368. 373. 373.	6400 6400 6400 6400 6400 6400 6400 6400									
ISTING UF CC	THE LOIGNES	s te Least	SOUARES MA	1 P/D							
1462,440 13449 134490 104											
lu cutPUT P	POINTS FOR	ловица вог									
0715 LULK0 -200.707	YCUIS C	(111) (111)									
801 -05+-	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1										
п4со.432 1165.033 1401.114	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9										
-413.277	ር ሆነ ፍርጉ የነዋኑ፣	• 152									
517"29+-	μ. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	642									

【书册》字:"你小部堂女皇帝是此 ASTATIONAL CAD JE JURANY PE

.

-

		ANGLT 2 Dig Min	CIRCENT X		START TM	1011NJ	TIP FLPT	DISTANCE	BACK .VEL .	CENT.VEL.	DIRCTIN).
-	00 1			370 6				SHILLSW		CM/ SEC	DEG.MIN
	47.30	51.00	9.90.4 - 20.4	175.1	1				0 °	0.0	C*0
. 1	4ċ.30	91.15		370.0	b:1-:0	04:22:40			0 4 * P	N • •	21.00
٠	45+00	91°04	-355.8	375 . 8	6:22:20	00:28:20	00:02:02	28.21	- -	 	
ſ	44.15	90.00	-359.7	366.2	6:24:20	00:30:20	00:02:00	11 25		0.01	96.30
3	54451	17.45	-236.5	356.5	6:33:45	57:06:00	00:00:25	E 2 . E 3	11.2	2 - 1 - 1 1	20.20
~	14.15	97 . CO	-278.7	353.6	6:34:46	00:×1:55	00:02:10	18.03	0.1		
33	34,15	13.00	-231.4	339.8	0:17:9	00:41:00	00:05:05	9 F D 7	16.2	15.7	
.	30,00	50° 61	-192.5	373.4	6:40:45	00:50:45	00:03:45	30.10	17.5	1 7 1	
IJ	27.15	78.15	-171.3	332.6	6:44:55	00:52:55	CC:02:10	21 21	1 4.2	15.0	
11	20.00	73,00	-120,5	531.3	6:52:45	00:10:45	C2:02:20	50.71	1 4 1 4 1 4	16.0	
77	12.00	51°22	- 74, 2	321.4	6:57:1C	01:03:10	00:01:25	1 1 1 7	6-11	0	
41	2.30	14,00	-14.0	319.5	7: 3:25	91:30:25	CC:04:15	10 27	, , ,	· · ·	
1	-6.45	CF.4E-	37.2	314.1	7: 9: 0	01:15:00	00:05:35	51.47			
3	-13.30	-49.00	73.1	304.6	7:13:50	05:01:10	00:04:50	51 LE			
10	-17.30	-54.45	6 , 50	301.1	7:14:55	01:22:55	30.00.00				
17	-22.05	-58,00	119.2		7 : 20 : 20	00.00.00		5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5		2.21	
10	-26.15	~60.15	141.7	287.2	7:24:10						00.00
÷1	-27.15	- 40. 00	146.7	1 C A C	7.73.16			5 T 7 T 7 T 7 T			00*#9
	I I								1•0	1.6	00.44
AVERAGES FUR	GROUP:	1014F D1	STANCS VETERS	TOTAL TIN HH:MM:S	ь А Ч 56. 5	WISEC AVI	E4G, DIRCT. CCG.MIN				
		~	£20 . 70	01:34:1	ın.	10.98	27.00				
is Puints In		C 853-40				1 • •	5 5 - -				
AIAS CUINU	VINS C	6600									
-447.279	379.	355									
-405.622	570	. 3 4 9									
-351.132	376.	2.51									
218.502-	349	- 312									
1 330.004	36.96	.159									
504.312-	3.5	. 546									
- < / a . / + -	ά. Έ	155.									
746.165-	339.	.793									
+ 192+405	223,	.353									
-171-205	332.	5 72									
-120-34	321.	0.0									
- 74 . 147	321.	502.									
561-	310.	. 544									
37.4.75	314.	.104									
71.11+	304.	.628									
540.040	301.	104									
141.071 141.171	- 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69	PC9									

 $\{ ^{n}$

IS THE NUMBER OF CUCKS USED FOR JOB NUMBER

N

XLK CJURDINATES -385.717 -203.448

- 18.510 306.725

No. A construction

i

LISTING UP CTERFICIENTS USED IN SUBPOUTINE DUCK

-150.3429 -150.341 -26.712 +101.205

~ -20 ULTPUT POINTS FOR JCG NUMBER

YCUTS CCCRD 379+201	375.950 375.950	356+ 233 356+ 233 359+ 232	351+525 345-303 3765-503		323+110 323+110 323+573 123-557	316,469 304,569 303,553 295,393 293
XUUTS CULAD -407-275	-436-407 -405-440	107.076 980.776- 914.512-	-283.244 -222.571 -221.445	-111-226 -121-226 -124-001	903-921 103-1035 103-1035 103-1035 103-1035	171 171 171 170 170 170 170 170 170 170

.

1. 李明林书书名称 2. 李子子子子子

.

DE UF UF TIAL OUTOWNAND STAND STAN

fimeMarks NORMAL TIME# CRIMESEC TIME AFTER LOWTIDE*+00:09:00 Cutfut Puints= 5 timeMarks NO.= 1

IPW YTUTS 350.341	361.232	378.260
158 XuCTS 7405-140		010,501 1010

TIM_MARKS_NURMAL_TIME= 05:55:00 TIME_AFTER_LOWTIDE= 00:01:00 uulful Puints= -5 timesarks_ND.** -2

TPM YCUTS	369.732	370.674	374 .458	380,133	397 . 7 C1
Iom Xutis	-464.384	-464.364	-404.384		-404.3t r

TIMEMAANS NUPWAL TIME= 05105100 TIME AFTER LOWTIDE= 00:11:00 CUTPUI PUINTS= 5 TINGMARKS NO.= 3

I P* Y JUTS	367.252	741 - 040	372,926	378,5C°	296.172	
LUM X-LIG	ינניייניי		-43:44	-435.430	Ci2 + + 3 E + +	

TIMEMAAKS NURMAL TIME= 0.:15:00 TIME AFTER LENTIDF= 00:21:00 uufput Puints= 5 timemarks NU.= 4

いたつしん あ出し ひょうきゅうり	358-376 372-162 377-837 395-405	
10M XULTS -464-701	-464.701 -464.701 -404.701 -404.701	

TIMEMARKS ...URMAL TIME= 04:25:00 TIME AFTER LOWIDE= 00:31:00

UUTPUT PUINTS* 5 TINEMARKS NO.= 5

.

IEV YOUTS	357.914	359 . 8C6	3€3+550	369.266	376, 533
IBM XULTS	-354.284	*354.28*	-324.284	-354.264	-354,284

TIMEMARKS NURMAL TIME= 05:35:00 TIME AFTER LEWTIDE= 00:41:00 uutfut Puints= 5 timemarks n°.= 6

18× YCUTS	345.322	347.274	391,058	356.734	364.302
IBM XULTS	-28c.275	-280.275	-286.275	-206.275	-28¢.275

TIMLMARKS NJRMAL TIME= 06:45:00 TIME AFTER LOWTIDE= 00:51:00 UUTFUT PJINTS= 5 TIMEMARKS NO+= 7

STUCY MBI	323.335	225 73C	329.514	335,19C	342 . 75 <u>e</u>
ILA XOUTS	-150.035	-19C 053	-194.632	-150.039	-190.033

IBM YOUTS	315.903	319,455	5144255	322-155	335+723	
LEN XULTS	-50,554	- 40 - 10 U	- 56.354	nc4.*05-	- 56. 35d	

TIMEMARKS NURMAL TIME= 07:05:00 TIME AFTER LCWTIDE* 01:11:00 cutput puints= 5 timemarks No.= 9

SINGY YOURS	308,542	110.424	314.218	234*226
XLUTS	6.514	0.040	747-0	5.42
H A I			:	

,

812-416 012-0 0.743

.

327.452

CT:15:CO TI4E AFTER LCWTIDE= 01:21:00 TI4EWARKS NF.= 10 ILM.MARKU NUEMAL TIME= UUTEUE PUINTS= 5

188 YOUTS 293 803 293 775 299 505 205 105 312 752 11.4 X.UTS 21.544 21.544 21.344 21.544 21.544 21.544

•

07:25:00 TIME AFTER LCWTIDE= 01:31:00 TIM=MAPKS MA.= 11 TAMEMARKS NURME TINGS UNIFUT PUINTSS 5

1P* YOUTS 278+003 ofe-041 L40-sTo

0.0 =NINY 378,395 × μ.ά χ= XM1N= -500,707 146.171 XMAX=

N TOTAL NUMBER OF JURS SQUALS

.

uutput Puints= 5 IIHEMARKS NJ.=

ŧ٩

-

IEV YOUTS	357.914	359 . 806	363.550	349 . 266	376, 533
IBM AULTS	-354.284	-354,284	-354.284	-354.284	-354.284

TINEMAHKS NURWAL TIME= 04:33:00 TIME AFTER LEWTIDE= 00:41:00 UUTFUT PUINTS= 5 TIMEMARKS NO.= 6

IBM YIUTS	345-342	347.274	351.05E	356.734	344.302
IBM XÜLTS	-28c.275	-280.275	-266.275	-246.275	-286.275

TIMLMARKS NJRMAL TIMG= 06:45:00 TIME AFTER LEWTIDE= 00:51:00 .ulfeut puints= 5 timeMarks M0.** 7

STUCY MAI	323,335	355,736	329.514	335,14C	342.750
ILN XCUTS	-150.059	-196.059	-190.637	-140,039	-140.633

TIMEMARKS NURWAL TIME= 05:55:00 TIME AFTER LOWITCE= 01:01:00 Lutpui puints= e timemarks nig= r

21014 VHI	315,902	319 . 40F	722.479	222.155	335.723	
IBN XULTS	- 4c.5d	カスショウプー	- >6.354	201-08-	- 56. 150	

TIMEMAMKS NURMAL TIME= 07:00:00 TIME AFTER LCWTIDE= 01:11:00 CUTPUT PUINTS= 5 TIMEMARKS NO.= 9

SINUY WAI	30% 542	310.424	314.218	
IBM XGUTS	G. 543	05000	0.543	

327 462

0.543

нымыжы мығмын тіме= с7±15:СС тіме Артея LCWTIDE= 01:21:00 uutfur Puints= 5 тімемаккs №1,= 10

SEV YOUTS	293.633	295.725	240.505	305.1.5	212.752
LIN XUUTS	,364	81.JK+	41.104	81. 384	+ J - J - +

.

Т.М.МАНКА МОРМАL TIME= 07:25:00 ТІМЕ АЕТЕЯ LCWTIDE= 01:31:00 00fbut Puints= 5 тічерарку №1= 11

Inm X-UUS IPM YOUTS 140.070 279.855 140.070 279.855 140.070 233.675 140.070 289.355 140.070 26.923 No. 0.1 FINUMARKS 11 PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMEMARKS START No. 0.1 FINUMARKS 11 PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMEMARKS START No. 0.1 FINUMARKS 11 PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMEMARKS START

0.0 0 ×N¦M≻ 378,395 =X 4 × Y 500.707 =N i MX 146.171 HAXE

TOTAL NUMBER DE JERS EQUALS 2

.

如此的是是是是是是是是是是是的。""你们,你们是我们,你们是我们的。""你?""你们是我们是我

DROGUE BUOY PLOTTING

COMPUTER PROGRAM LISTING

- aborany tarke rivel pata product drok and then plots it.	PL 310001 PL 310002
THE DEPARTMENT OF THE PART THE TASTAULTIONS. ANTHING NURWALLY	PLOT TO J9
r Her TT BE THATCED BY THE PROGRAM USED .	PL010004
	PL0T0005
PIWE 12 PER X ([)) * X (]) * X S C [4] * X [V B (5)] * T E M P I (5)	PL010006
	PL010307
- X - Υ ΓΟΟΥΡΙΑΤΕς JE PINTS.	PL01038
C XSCI SCALING FOR MAX AND MIN PUINTS	PL010009
T XLAR MESSAGE FOR INFNITELIATION OF POINTS.	
r tempi uriating storage for information (alpha form) on input .	PL917013
	PL01013
C IV INSTAN DEVICE NUMBERS, PRINTER=5, PLOTTER=7, CARD=8	PL01014
CDNSCH E DUT=1, CONSTE IN=6.	PL JT 0015
	PL010)16
	PL 010017
kr Y] = 6	PL 01018
	PL0T0019
C PAUSE FOR TURNING PATE SWITCHES AND HAPD COPY ON SCOPE.	PLAT0020
DAHTS IK	PL0T3321
	PI 01022
Jana Sheka asking Studi Cub⊀	PI 010023
L'IL CAASE	PL0T0324
	PLJT0025
C - LE CATA SWITCH O DOWE PLOTS ON SCOPE ONLY.	PL 01 0026
	PL 01 0027
TETMODE.FO.ZJÇALLIDƏK	PL01028
	PL01 3329
C TE MATA SWITCH 15 UP MUTPUT COMES CUT ON PRINTER. ELSE UN CUNSUL	PL010030
$CM = 0.01 SW = 1.5 + K^{-1}$	PL010031
KOT = KOT - ((KUT/2) = 2)	PL01032
	PL () 10035 DI AT 10346
PEADIKIN.5701WASTE	PLJT0035
	PL 01036
	PAGE 1

t

1

1

•

PAPAMETERS ERIN MATA PROCRAM. PEAN (KTN.SZ))[DUK, ENDRJ, USEIN, [CORF,[AXIS	, I TMAR , IML IN, I STPL	PL010037 PL010038 PL010039 PL010039
JETE(K+)1+525)[9004, IN 2014, JUSIN, ICOME, AXIS	, J TMAR , I WL I 4, I STKL	PL0T0341
×*************************************	3}	PL010045 PL010045 PL010045 PL010045
TJPAS=NUKPES ME JJPS IN THIS CALLUP OF PRC > > >>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>	פא א א.	PL010047 PL010048 PL010048
С ылтте(кот,7.0) ротте(кдт,540)(темр](к),к=1,7),1.908S		PL010051
C INTIALIZATION NE SECON AND PLOTTEP SCALES SVERUS PUT AT (0,0) (XME4.0) (XMAX.0)	ANG CAARDINATES. (0,YMIN) (0,YMAX)	PL010053 PL010055 PL010055
CALL SCALF(11).'.'.'.') CALL EPLOT (1,12.)11.0) CALL FOLCT (1,0.0)-10.0)		ы 11.0356 рг 01.0357 рт 01.0058
сд) жейм(-3,5,-2,5) С сд) жейм(-3,5,-2,5) С соло маттро то сол сол (145)	1 1 1 1:7422 CHART.	PL 010059
r		PL910961 PL0162
ריין יחו חד(-2,".")) ראון היוואיל-5)		PL010055 PL010064 PL010064
ראון רמומד(-2,0.0,×501(3)) ראון מתואנ(-5) ביני במינים אננע(11.0.0)		ец 319366 РЦ 019366 213265
CALL FOLME(-1) CALL FOLME(-1) CALL POLME(-2) CALL POLME(-2) CALL POLME(-2)		PL010069 PL010069 PL010071 PL010071
CALL FOLMET		PAGE 2

.

<pre>ex 11.1 1-1.1.1.**************************</pre>			PL: 11 JU 75
<pre>PLIT007 P</pre>	_		PL 010074
<pre>Particle function for the function</pre>			PL0175
<pre>PLOTODT PLOTOT PLO</pre>		TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT	Ρ L ΠT 00 76
<pre>PICTOD: P</pre>	ι		PL010)77
<pre>PLOT007 PLOT007 PLOT008 APTEF(#F.F.) PLOT008 APTEF(#F.F.) PLOT008 APTEF(#F.F.) PLOT008 APTEF(#F.F.) PLOT008 PLOT08 PLOT0</pre>			PL 0170078
<pre>Not Control (Control) (Contro) (Control) (Control) (Control) (Control) (Control)</pre>	J		PL 010079
<pre>charactery.scolurs;(Trive(k),*=1,0) charactery.scolurs;(Trive(k),*=1,0) charactery.scolurs;(Trive</pre>	J		PL 0T 0080
<pre>PLOTO38 PLOTO38 PLOTO48 PLOT048 P</pre>	Ĺ		PL010381
<pre> prif(kr1,7.0) prif(kr1,7.0) prove the solution prime at the base of the solution prime at the set of the solution of the solution prime at the set of the solution at the s</pre>			PL0T0382
<pre>kultures. fiston is numbur cowes juit on parkter. fist my consol approxa-</pre>	ſ		PL0T0083
<pre> Fe nain Swirch 15 the multiplic chains out inverting of chains witch 15 the multiplic chains (15,401) chain naisw (14,401) chain naisw (1100) chain naisw (11000) chain nain naisw (11000) chain naisw (11000) chain naisw (11000</pre>			PL nT 0084
<pre>PL01008 Find AntSk (15,47) Find AntSk (15,41,41) Find AntSk (15,41,41) Find AntSk (14,57)(4(4),44=1,4045) Find AntSk (14,57)(4(4),44=1,4045) Find AntSk (14,57)(4(4),44=1,4045) Find AntSk (14,57)(4(4),44=1,4045) Find AntSk (14,57)(4(4),44=1,405) Find AntSk (14,14) Find AntSk (15,710,12) Fin</pre>	Ĺ	LE CONTRACT DE LE DEPUTENTE COMES OUT ON PREMERE, ELSE OM CONSOL	PL0T0385
<pre>cont = wer = (Kriv) *2) cort = wer = (Kriv) *2) cort = (wored) + 1 point(Py 500) Area pean(kry 500) Ar</pre>	ı		PL910086
<pre>PLGT008 PLGT008 PLGT009 PLGT019 P</pre>			PL010787
<pre>PL07038 PL07038 PL07038 PL07039 PL0703 PL07039 PL07039 PL07039 PL07039 PL0703 PL07039 PL0703 PL07</pre>			PL0T0088
<pre>PL0103 P</pre>			PLUT0389
PL01005 PL01005 PL01015 PL01005 PL01015 PL01005 PL01015 PL01005 PL01015 PL01005 PL01015 PL01005 PL01015 PL01005 PL01016 PL01005 PL01017 PL01016 PL01017 PL01016 PL01017 PL01016 PL01017 PL01016 PL01017 PL01017	ŗ.	()*[=]*()[[]]*()[]]*()[]*()[]*()[]*()[]*()[]*	99(CTCJ9
<pre>PLOT095 PLOT05 PL</pre>			PL010091
 			°L010092
<pre>PL01005 PL01005 PL01005 PL01000 PL01000 PL01000 PL01000 PL01000 PL01000 PL01010 PL0100 PL00</pre>			εδίοιο
<pre> PL0709 If DATA Setter 1 Date: Stips thent Publics. PL0709 PL07000 PL07000 PL07000 PL07000 PL07010 PL07010 PL07010 PL07010 PL07010 PL07010 PL07010 PL07010 PL07010 PL0701 PL070 PL0701 PL0701 PL070 PL0701 PL070 PL0701 PL070 PL070 PL0701 PL070 PL</pre>			PLOT 0094
<pre> find the set of the set</pre>			56CC101d
<pre> PLOTO00 Fr([14,F0.2)FGAT0 1233 Fr([14,F0.2)FGAT0 1233 Fr([14,F0.2)FGAT0 1233 Fr([14,F0.2)FGAT0 1233 Fr([14,F0.2)FGAT0 1133 Fr([1515.40,0)53170 1133 Fr([1515.40,0)5317 Fr([1515.40,0)5317 Fr([1515.40,0)531 Fr([1515.40,0)531 Fr([1515.40,0)531 Fr([1515.40,0)531 Fr([1515.40,0)53 Fr([1515.40,0)531 Fr([1515.40,0)531 Fr([1515.40,0)53 Fr([1515.40,0)53 Fr([1515.40,0)53 Fr([1515.40,0)53 Fr([1515.40,0)5 Fr([1515.40,0)53 Fr([1515.40,0)5 Fr([</pre>	Ĺ	·· SAIA SUITCH E BUWE SKIPS FRONT PULAT.	PI 01006
<pre>F[0]000 F[14.F0.2).covf0 1200 F[0]000 F[0]000 F[0]00 F[0]00 F[0]01 F[14.F0.2).covf0 1200 F[0]01 F[0]010 F[0]0 F</pre>	c		PL01009
<pre> PL0100 PL0101 PL010 PL</pre>			
<pre></pre>			PL01009
<pre> [010]</pre>	<i>د_</i>	<pre>CALL FCPAF(X,Y,VPTS,+L,-L)</pre>	PL 97919
<pre> Justy Cutrix FERM PARA LIST Justy Cutrix FERM Para Lin PLOTUL PLOTUL Protect (FT + -0) Giro 1100 Actrr(K(T, -70) Actrr(K(T, -70) Actrr(K(T, -70) Actrr(K(T, -70) Actrr(K(T, -70) Actrr(K, -100 PLOTUL PLOTUL</pre>			
<pre> [p10][p10][p10][p10][p10][p10][p10][p10]</pre>	τ. י	TSI "A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	
<pre>PLOTOIL PLOTOIL</pre>	L,		b[010]0
<pre>f start(k!N.590)(sts,(rfMr)(k),K=1.0) Actr(k[T,770) Actr(k[T,770) Actr(k[T,770] PL0T0] PL0T0] PL0T0] PL0T0] PL0T0] PL0T0] PL0T0] PL0T0] PL0T0]</pre>			PLOTOLO
>FR(KT,TC) >FLJT01 >FTT(KT,TC) >FLJT01 >FTT(KT,FC) >FLJT01 >PLDT01 >FLJT01 PLDT01 >FLJT01 PLDT01 >FLJT01 PLDT01 >FLJT01 PLDT01 >FLJT01	<u>_</u>		PL01010
APTTE(KLT, 5PD)APTS, (TEMP1(K), K=1, 9) VPTTE(KTT, 5PD)APTS, (TEMP1(K), K=1, 9) PLOTOL PLOTOL PLOTOL PAGE 3			PL JT010
r (nors, Fr, night) 1100 PAGE 3 PAGE 3		АСТТСКИ Г.С. И. ТСКИТ "500]МОТС, (ТЕМО](Х) "К=1 "Э)	PLOT019
			PACE 3
	NOT CELAR S (NOT S)		
------------	--	---	
	DEAD/WTM , GAOTE ACTE		
	96AN(KI ^N ,573)(X(K),K=1,NPTS)	010101010101	
	PEAQ(KTN + 500)WASTF	PLUT0112	
. `		PLOT0113	
Ļ	NDTS=MMMTED OF ONLITS.	PL0T0114	
	0{ AD (K[N,570] [Y[K],K=],NPTS]	PL0T0115	
٤,		PI 01016	
÷		6101013	
Ĺ	TE PATA SUITE 2. DOUN SKEPS OUTDUT PUINTS.	PLUT0118	
	tyl nyfsyla.17)	PL 01 01 19	
	IF(17_FC_7)CPT0_1100	PL0T0120	
ι.		PL9T0121	
	CALL TGPAF(X,Y,NPTS,+L,+L)	PL910122	
11 33		PL0T J123	
Ĺ		PL 010124	
۴	CHECK IT SUITE A TIME DECCEMM MAY HAVE REFA USED.	PL0T0125	
	TE((['4.] N. PO.)),A'43.([TNAR,FQ.)).AND.([STPL.EQ.))6JF7 9999	PL0T0126	
Ļ		PLNT0127	
	o (20 (≤ 1 m + 20) 0) M 42 £0	PL010128	
Ļ		PL/0129	
Ĺ	TERPARTORIES OF TIME MARKS SYN LIGES FOR EATCH.	PL nT 01 30	
	a¤As(K1',590)[Tr≫p](K),K≤1,4),TTNUM	PL77131	
Ļ		PL010132	
	٥٢ الم	PL910133	
	₩₽!TF(⊀^TT+5<1)(TF401(K)+K=1,4},1+T43M	PL 0134	
	if [i [v ß • c) c i t) و i t) و عدو	σ [σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ	
	WP [] F[KOT, 74.0]	PLTT136	
	0190(x1x*2]0)(118mu)(X)*X=1*30)	PL910137	
	1511tt[Kul*2[0]([t+xn][K]*K=1*30]	9 6 1010198	
	PEAR(X1, 451))(TEMP1(K1,K±1,20)	91010 July 29	
	Asiii(koli'sio)(leasi(k)'k≐1'50)	01010140	
	Photo 2000 Tellinea	PL7T7141	
	45]][(K0T,710)	P1+1T0142	
	95Ar{{ Y ₊ 5 n}(Trwal(K),K=1,20)	PL110143	
	<pre>>>TTTT(KCT,S10) (TFTP1 (K),K=1,20)</pre>	PL9T0144	
		PACE 4	

06/16/2002 110/2016 110/	0€0 →E DDPDTS. 1N.5O51(FEVD1(K).K=1.4).NPT.TEMP1(5).TEMP1(5).TEMP1(7).	Pt.017146
PEAD (() 215401(14) 215401(14) 215401(14) 215401(14) 215401(14)	<pre>iw.bobl(fewpl(k).k=1.4).NPT.tEMPl(5).fEmpl(6).tEMpl(7).</pre>	
115001(9) 215001(14 0 115001(14 115001(14 115001(14 15001(14) 115001(14) 115001(14) 115001(14) 115001(14)		PL010147
215401(14 WP[T5(K: 176401(3) 215401(3)),TEPP[0],TEMP[(1)],TEVD[(11),TEMP[(12],TEMP[(13],	PL010148
с Мр I те (Ко 2 теме I (Д) 2 теме I (Д)	<pre>t),Trimit[[5],TFMP[[15],TEMP][17],TEMP][18]</pre>	PL010149
WP [TE (K) TEMP [[4 2 TEMP [[4		PL 71 01 50
115451(3) 215401(14	1T.\$5^\$} [TÇ⊻P1(K].k=1,4].VPT.TÉMP1[5].TEMP1(6].TEMP1(7).	PL010151
51Ero1(14),Trwp](q),TfWp]([d),TfWp]([]),TEMp]([2),TFMP[[]3),	PL910152
	6),T[#P](]5),TFMP][[6),TEMP[[]7],TEMP[[]8]	PL'170153
	V + 5) >] & A 7 F F	PLOT0154
AT >} oA 19	¢,57∩){X{K},k=1,NPT }	PL 7T 01 55
	V, 500)WASTE	oL710156
. V (K. 14)		
		PL010158
	VALUET A TOUR AN TOUR IN THE LAND AND THE APPROX SA	9101014
	2 2 6 1 4 1 0 1 2 3 1 6 1 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
		PL J J D L 62
	[A]] ECEAE(X,Y,VOT ,+1,-1)	PLOTO163
SOUT CONTRACT		PLOT 0164
∿ໄ≯)ແຂະບດີ ຮຽວທີ	1, 510}WAST©	PL0T0165
41>]JV14 6660	r ₅sontweste	PLNT0166
Ļ		PL0T0157
uovuou× u	SPTTING PART.	PL0T0168
אנינייקרים (ה	VING AN MESSAGE TO APPEAR ON CHART.	PL0T3169
XF v P = X S C	L.(8-{1})	PL010170
لا د ۱۰ ت ≍ ۲ ک ز	7[[]]-[53.)	PL:010171
	с VГ(ЕСНАР(ХЕЧР,ҮЕМР ,.1),.1),.))))	PL0T3172
L		PL0T0173
	₩₽ТТЕ(",\$99)(XLAR[],[=1,20)	52 T01014
ί		PL 01 01 75
J		PL NT 0176
CvFf ⊆Xi		PLOT 77
į		PL0T0178
Ļ		PL JT 01 79
ι		PL 010180
		PAGE 5

PLOT0185 PLOT0186 PLOTOIAL PL:010182 PLOT0183 PLUTJ184 PL nT 0188 PLOT0193 PLOT0193 PL0T0187 PLOT0189 PLOTO190 PLOTO191 PL 1T 01 92 FOPWAT (12%, 11, 7%, 11, 6%, 11, 7%, 11, 6%, 11, 7%, 11, 7%, 11, 7%, 11) FOPWAT (12%, 11, 7%, 11, 6%, 11, 7%, 11, 6%, 11, 7%, 11, 7%, 11) FOFWAT (10%, FIG. 0, 10%, FIG. 0, 10%, FIG. 0, 10%, FIG. 0) FORMAT (414, 3X, 15, 1444) ([]*X(******]]]]/Wduj FURMAT (14,974,39X,11) Friquat (744, 3X, 12) FUPMAT(4A4,2X,[3) Enowal(RELT.O) Fripwat (2444) FLOWAT (10/4) FrewAT (101) Frpuidt (A4) C Li 51.5 525 500 540 540 563 570 59.0 590 200 500

Ŧ

t

1

 \mathbf{S}

APPENDIX B

TIDES AT CASTINE, MAINE

JULY 4, 1972 THROUGH JULY 28, 1972

NOTE ; Castine 24' N 48' W L.44 68 H.W. -4 Min on Portland -1 Min on Portland L.W. H.W. +0.7 FT L.W. +0.0 FT Ranges MEAN 9.7 FT SPRING 11.1 FT

٦

-1-

.

MEAN TIDE LEVEL 4.8 FT

ALL HOURS FASTERN DAYLIGHT SAVINGS TIME

	TI	DES
	TIME	HT
July 4, 1972	0503 1115 1732 2356	9.4 0.1 10.2 0.1
July 5	0605 1212 1834	9.2 0.3 10.4
July 6	0103 0710 1314 1932	-0.1 9.1 0.4 10.6
July 7	0210 0820 1417 2035	-0.4 9.1 0.4 10.9
July 8	0312 0922 1518 2137	-0.7 9.3 0.2 11.2
July 9	0413 1019 1616 2232	1.0 9.5 0.1 11.4

TIDES

	TIME	НT
July 10	0510 1116 1714 2328	-1.3 9.0 -0.1 10.8
July 11	0601 1209 1808	1.4 9.8 -0.2
July 12	0019 0651 1258 1759	11.4 -1.3 9.9 -0.1
Julų 13	0110 0738 1346 1950	11.1 -1.1 9.9 0.0
July 14	0159 0823 1434 2039	10.7 -0.7 9.8 0.2
July 15	0247 0910 1520 2130	10.1 -0.2 9.3 0.5
July 16	0335 0953 1606 2223	9.5 0.3 9.4 0.8
July 17	0427 1041 1655 2315	8.3 0.8 9.2 1.0
July 18	0520 1130 1746	8.4 1.2 9.1
July 19	0013 0619 1221 1839	1.2 8.1 1.6 9.0

TIDES

	TIME	HT
July 20	0109 0718 1316 1935	1.2 7.9 1.7 9.0
July 21	0210 0814 1411 2027	1.1 7.8 1.8 9.1
July 22	0305 0909 1502 2118	0.9 8.0 1.7 9.3
July 23	0354 0958 1550 2204	0.7 8.2 1.5 9.3
July 24	0437 1041 1635 2245	0.4 8.4 1.2 9.9
July 25	0517 1122 1716 2324	0.1 8.7 0.9 10.7
July 26	0554 1158 1752	-0.2 9.0 0.6
July 27	0003 0630 1236 1835	10.4 -0.4 9.4 0.3
July 28	0041 0707 1313 1916	10.5 ~0.6 9.7 0.0

ţ?

CIRCULATED COPY Sea Grant Depository

HOLBROOK COVE SURVEY

A 1972 Student Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory Research Project

Report No. MITSG 72-19 Date: December 31, 1972

Index No. 72-119-Nkw

Administrative Statement

A fundamental educational experience for undergraduate students of Ocean Engineering is the opportunity to design, construct and operate equipment in the marine environment in a coordinated attack upon some real-world problem. This is the primary objective of the Holbrook Cove Survey. The research objective is to gain a better understanding of the hydraulics and ecology of this small cove and to determine what effect the effluent that a mining operation discharges into this relatively confined estuary may have upon its ecological community. This is one of the projects of the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory.

A companion report, "The Search for DEFENCE and Other Projects of Students During the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory," (MITSG 72-20), describes the other Ocean Engineering projects undertaken by the students.

Funding for the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory was provided by:

The National Sea Grant Program, Grant No. 2-35150 The Henry L. and Grace Doherty Charitable Foundation, Inc. The St. Anthony Foundation The M.I.T. Undergraduate Research Opportunities Program The M.I.T. Information Processing Board The M.I.T. Freshman Advisory Council The Maine Maritime Academy The Massachusetts Institute of Technology

> Alfred A. H. Keil Director

December 1972

_

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Funding for the 1972 Summe was provided by:	er Ocean Engineering Laboratory
The National Sea Grant Pro The Henry L. and Grace Doh The St. Anthony Foundation The M.I.T. Undergraduate R The M.I.T. Information Pro The M.I.T. Freshman Adviso The Maine Maritime Academy The Massachusetts Institute	ogram, Grant No. 2-35150 Merty Charitable Foundation, Inc. Sesearch Opportunities Program Cessing Board ry Council e of Technology
Equipment that was made ava cost included:	ailable to the project at no
Equipment	Donor
Instruments for heavy metal analysis Polagraphic	Dr. Frank Aldrich and Mr. George Boylen, M.I.T. Environmental Medical Service
-oragraphic oxygen electrode	Dr. Frank Carey, Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution
Mechanical bathythermograph and Nansen bottle	Dr. Sloat Hodgson, Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution
Laboratory space and instrumentation for chlorophyll and heavy metal analysis	Professor Stephen Moore, M.I.T. Department of Civil Engineering
Research Vessel LOBSTER	Professor Damon E. Cummings, M.I.T. Department of Ocean Engineering
Various electronic components	SIGNETICS, Inc.
The individuals who donated without compensation include:	their time to the projects
Individual	Organization
Professor A. D. Carmichael Professor Damon E. Cummings Professor Ira Dyer Mr. Herman Kunz Professor Dean Mayhew CAPT Willard F. Searle, USN (Ret)	M.I.T. M.I.T. Searle Consultants Maine Maritime Academy Searle Consultants

ii

.

5 · · · ·

Miss Anita Harris permitted the use of her properties and facilities on Holbrook Island without which the Holbrook Cove Survey would have been impossible.

The list of faculty and staff at both the Maine Maritime Academy and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology who contributed to the success of the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory would be lengthy and nearly impossible to compile without inadvertent omissions, so to these individuals the participants express their sincere appreciation. 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory

PARTICIPANTS

Massachusetts Institute	Maine Maritime
of Technology	Academy

FACULTY:

÷

Damon E. Cummings

David B. Wyman Donald A. Small

ACADEMIC STAFF:

Keatinge Keays

GRADUATE STUDENT STAFF:

Walter B. Lincoln Roger K. Wells

STUDENTS :

John S. Allen Stephen E. Barnes Peter W. Cebelius Richard Chertow Robert L. Dwyer Glenn J. Keller Michael B. Kennedy Valery E. Lee Robert J. Lukens Edward Murphy Gerald L. Roylance John F. Schenck Karen S. Seo Alexander T. A. Siapkaras

Raymond Barriault Garry Bartlett George Benson William Blackwood David Bradford Douglas Cameron Bruce Campbell Malcolm Cianchette Vincent Devlin Daniel Labreque Mark Libby Stephen Lobley Robert McCarty George Miller William Parker John Sautter Gregory Sawyer

iv

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
	Administrative Statement	i
	Acknowledgments	ii
	Participants	iv
1.0	Introduction	l
2.0	Summary	3
	<pre>2.1 Objective 2.2 Background 2.3 Results 2.4 Conclusions 2.5 Recommendations</pre>	3 3 4 5 6
3.0	Determination of the Current Patterns in Holbrook Cove	8
	<pre>3.1 Objective 3.2 Procedure 3.3 Limitations of Accuracy 3.4 Data Reduction 3.5 Results 3.6 Conclusions 3.7 Recommendations</pre>	8 9 10 12 14 18
4.0	Determination of Current Velocities versus Real Time in the Southern and Northwestern Entrances of Holbrook Cove	23
	<pre>4.1 Objective</pre>	23 23 23 23 23 28
5.0	Temperature, Salinity and Chlorophyll	29
	5.1 Temperature and Salinity Patterns	29
	<pre>5.1.1 Objective</pre>	29 29 29 34 34 34

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

	5.	2 Chlo	rophyll Patterns in Holbrook Cove	. 36
		5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2. 5.2.	<pre>1 Objective</pre>	. 36 . 37 . 37 . 37 . 37 . 41 . 41
6.0	Bio	logica	l Effects of Heavy Pollutants	. 43
	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6	Objec Backo Resu Concl Recon Detai	ctive ground Its usions mendations led Procedures	. 43 . 43 . 49 . 51 . 51 . 51
		6.6.1 6.6.2 6.6.3	Sampling Place	51 52 52
7.0	Inst	trument	ation	52
	7.1	Karma	n Vortex Trail Current Meter	55
	7.2	7.1.1 7.1.2 7.1.3 7.1.4 7.1.5 7.1.6 7.1.7 7.1.8 7.1.9 Impel]	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations Detailed Procedures Fabrications Calibrations Meter Implacements er-Driven Current Meter	55 55 55 56 56 56 59 61 61
	7.3	7.2.1 7.2.2 7.2.3 7.2.4 7.2.5 7.2.6 Curren	Objective Background Calibration of the Impeller Current Meters Mooring Conclusions Recommendations	63 63 65 65 65 68 68
		7.3.1 7.3.2 7.3.3 7.3.4	Objective Background Results Conclusions	68 68 68 69
				70

. . . .

TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued)

			Page
7.4	Oxygen	Meter	71
	7.4.1 7.4.2 7.4.3 7.4.4 7.4.5	Objective Background Results Conclusions Detailed Description of the Oxygen Meter and Probe	71 71 71 72
7.5	Automa	ted Data Recorder	74
	7.5.1 7.5.2 7.5.3 7.5.4 7.5.5	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations	74 75 75 78 78
7.6	Tide G	auge	78
	7.6.1 7.6.2 7.6.3 7.6.4 7.6.5	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations	78 78 79 79 79
7.7	Detaile	ed Bottom Topography of Holbrook Cove	82
	7.7.1 7.7.2 7.7.3 7.7.4 7.7.5	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations	82 82 82 82 85
7.8	Bottom	Sample Corer	85
	7.8.1 7.8.2 7.8.3 7.8.4 7.8.5 7.8.6	Objective Background Results Conclusions Recommendations Detailed Procedure	85 85 85 85 86 86
Appendix	A Drogu	ne Buoy Computer Programs	
Appendix	B Tides	; at Castine, Maine	

Appendix C An Example of the Use of Figure 7.11

LIST OF FIGURES

		Page
3.1	Drogue Buoys	. 8
3.2	Holbrook Cove	13
3.3	Pre-High, High and Post-High Streamlines and Current Velocities	16
3.4	Pre-Low, Low and Post-Low Streamlines and Current Velocities	20
4.1	Impeller Current Meter Results in Northwest Entry to Holbrook Cove	24
4.2	Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Results in South Entry to Holbrook Cove	25
4.3	Comparison of Buoy Velocities and Current Meter Results in Northwest Entry to Holbook Cove	26
4.4	Comparison of Buoy Velocities and Current Meter Results in Southwest Entry to Holbrook Cove	27
5.1	Sampling Bottles	30
5.2	Sampling Grid	20
5.3	Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples Taken at Stations IA through 8A	30
5.4	Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples Taken at Stations 1B through 8B	9C
5.5	Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples Taken at Stations IC through 8C	JJ 40
6.1	Callahan Mine Location	. 40
6.2	Callahan Mine Complex	44
7.1	Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Results at Card	45
7.2	Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Lawout	57
7.3	Karman Vortex Trail Current Motor Calib	60
7.4	Impeller Current Meter (1977 March)	62
7.5	Impeller Current Mater v	64
7.6	Impeller Current Meter Mooring	66
		67

LIST OF FIGURES (continued)

Page

77		
1.1	Oxygen Meter Circuit Diagram	73
7.8	Astable Multivibrator Circuit Diagram	77
7.9	Tide Gauge Construction	81
7.10	Tide Gauge Critical Conditions	83
7.11	Nomogram	84
7.12	Corer Body	87
7.13	Corer Tripping Mechanism	88
7.14	Corer Head and Nipple Insert	89

.

LIST OF TABLES

3.1	Comparison of Length of Baselines as Determined by Triangulation and Measurement (CGS Charts)	10
3.2	Names and Approximate Time Boundaries of Tidal Phases	14
3.3	Tide Phase: Pre-High	15
3.4	Tide Phase: High	18
3.5	Tide Phase: Post-High	19
3.6	Tide Phase: Pre-Low	20
3.7	Tide Phase: Low Tide	21
3.8	Tide Phase: Post-Low	2 2
5.1	Temperature, Salinity, Density and Chlorophyll 'A' at Depth = 0 Meters	31
5.2	Temperature, Salinity, Density and Chlorophyll 'A' at Depth = 3 Meters	32
5.3	Temperature, Salinity, Density and Chlorophyll 'A' at Depth = 6 Meters	33

.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This report is the first of two volumes concerning the accomplishments of the 1972 M.I.T./Maine Maritime Academy Sea Grant Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory. It describes the investigations students conducted in an oceanographic and biological survey of Holbrook Cove in July 1972. The second report deals with their successful search for the remains of a Revolutionary War privateer, the design and construction of equipment for use in future Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratories, and other activities.

The Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory provides undergraduate ocean engineering students an opportunity to combine theory and practice when they design simple equipment and test and operate this equipment in the real environment for which the students must prepare themselves.

We selected two major projects in which all the students' equipment could be utilized in coordinated efforts; thus each student had an opportunity to contribute useful results to a real-world ocean engineering project. These two major projects are a comprehensive survey of Holbrook Cove and a systematic search for the remains of American Revolutionary War ship hulks.

For the students, the Summer Laboratory demonstrated that there is more to ocean engineering than just conceptual design and theoretical analysis. They dealt first-hand with Murphy's Law. They experienced the rigors of the marine environment, including the limitations of weather, the swift devastation of corrosion, and the exacting demands of hydrostatics.

Their benefits, judging from the students' post-Summer Lab interests and activities, include: a better perspective of their academic experiences; an enhanced appreciation for the relevance of the various elements that comprise an ocean engineering curriculum; an intensified curiosity directed toward unfamiliar facets of ocean engineering; and, in some cases, an inspiration for a special project or thesis.

In the report of the 1971 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory we stated: The opinion of all who were involved with this project, students and faculty of both M.I.T. and Maine Maritime Academy, visiting faculty, and consultants, was that this program served an educational purpose that is essential early in the students' Ocean Engineering education. All hands were exposed to the myriad of problems encountered in attempting to apply theory and classroom experience to equipment and procedures that must work at sea without the enormous expense and pressure of full-scale industrial or government projects. The usual mistakes were made in an environment where they could be dealt with without cost or loss of essential data and the lessons were learned.

Our experience during this second Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory reinforces our faith in the value of this educational experience.

2.0 SUMMARY

2.1 Objective

The objective of the Holbrook Cove Survey is to gain an understanding of its hydraulics and ecology in order to ascertain the effect which the effluent from the Callahan mine outfall has upon the Cove.

Holbrook Cove is located approximately one-half mile southwest of Castine, Maine, and appears on U.S. Coast & Geodetic Survey Chart number 311, as well as the Department of Interior/ Department of the Army topographical map of Castine, Maine. 2.2 <u>Background</u>

This project permitted the M.I.T. and Maine Maritime Academy students to design, construct and utilize individual equipment and employ them in the marine environment in a coordinated attack upon a real problem. It had come to the attention of those participating in the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory that heavy metal pollution is a problem in the coastal areas of Maine and that a relatively new mining operation had opened in Holbrook Cove. It is deemed possible that the effluent from the outfall of this mining operation has a profound effect upon the ecology. The following research projects were planned and coordinated to study this problem.

PROJECT	STUDENT PARTICIPANTS
Tidal Current Streamlines and Velocity	Cebelius, Kennedy and Lukens
Temperature and Salinity	Murphy
Chlorophyll 'A' Content	Chertow
Benthic Infauna Distribution	Dwyer, Lee, Seo
Tidal Height Fluctuations	Barnes
Detailed Bottom Topography	Cameron, Cianchette and Sautter
Bottom Soil Structure	Barriault
Water Oxygen Content	Murphy

2.3 <u>Results</u>

The results of the individual projects are as follows:

Project

Results

- Tidal Currents Streamlines at various tidal phases have been established. Current velocities have been calculated. Current velocities have been measured on a realtime basis at the northwestern and southern entrances to the Cove. Fluctuations indicate a seiche in the Cove has a profound effect upon the velocity at any given time.
- Temperature and Salinity These measurements were made. The results are contained in Tables 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3.
- Chlorophyll 'A' content These measurements were made. The results are contained in Figures 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5 and Tables 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3.
- Benthic Infauna Distribution Still being analyzed. Initial trends indicate that the biomass and numbers of individuals are at a minimum at the sampling station nearest the outfall. This may indicate that the effluent has an adverse effect on the biota.
- Tidal Height Fluctuations A tide gauge has been built and tested, but the scribe mechanism and the magnitude of frictional forces did not permit the gauge to give useful results.
- Detailed Bottom Topography A nomogram was prepared to permit the soundings to be related to the MLLW datum. In testing the nomogram against observed tidal heights at Castine, it was noted that the scope of tide appears to be about one foot greater than indicated in the tide tables. Time precluded the detailed sounding program execution.

Project

Results

Bottom Soil Structure A corer and release mechanism were designed and built. During the first in situ test the messenger line used for retrieval was severed and the unit could not be relocated for recovery.

Oxygen Content of Cove Water An oxygen meter was designed and constructed for use with an oxygen probe borrowed from the Woods Hole Oceanographic Institution. Time precluded calibration. No measurements of oxygen content of Cove water were made.

2.4 Conclusions

It is apparent that the educational objectives of this project were met. All of the rigors of the marine environment were apparent from the restrictions of weather to the effects of corrosion. The constraints of time demonstrated that careful planning is necessary if this priceless commodity is to be conserved and that, if it is not conserved, the entire effort up to the deadline may end in frustration. The loss of the corer dramatically demonstrated the need for failure analysis and provision of safeguards to handle those failures which may occur if an entire project is not to be jeopardized by some malfunction. Finally, the students received practical training in boat handling, safety at sea, navigation and the discipline these activities imply.

The research objectives were partially met. The results of the investigations into the hydraulics of the Cove indicate that there may be a seiche that significantly affects the current velocity magnitudes. Sampling of data at thirty-minute intervals does not give a meaningful result in this instance since the sampling intervals must be less than half the period of the seiche to obtain a meaningful real-time result. The gross flow patterns in the Cove have been defined particularly in the vicinity of the three entrances. Finally, the results suggest that the variation of current velocity with respect to depth is significant and should be investigated. The results of the temperature and salinity survey reveal no anomalies in the absence of flow from the mine outfall.

The chlorophyll 'A' measurements do not suggest any effect upon chlorophyll 'A' distributions in the vicinity of mine outfall. In the absence of a constant effluent flow, none would be expected.

The preliminary results in the study of the benthic infauna distribution suggest that there is a detectable adverse effect upon the ecology in the vicinity of the mine outfall.

2.5 Recommendations

The Holbrook Cove Survey is incomplete as of this writing. From the research point of view, there is still a great deal to be learned in this relatively small geographical area. A better and more complete survey could and should be conducted, taking advantage of the lessons and mistakes of the 1972 effort. Certainly, the equipment not used in the 1972 survey should be employed to complete those research objectives not carried out in this effort because of the limitations of time.

A determination of the period and magnitude of the seiche in Holbrook Cove and its effect upon the flow patterns is a very intriguing project and the most effective means appears to be through the use of current meters. A second study which suggests itself is the determination of the variation of current with respect to depth. Both of these projects would be enhanced by the design and construction of a device that will establish current direction for use with the current magnitudes as measured by the current meters.

If the Callahan mine outfall is discharging effluent, a rep tition of the study of the chlorophyll 'A' distribution seems indicated. Perfection of a method to measure the concentration of heavy metal ions to correlate with the clorophyll 'A' pattern is highly desirable.

From the educational viewpoint, the efforts in surveying the Cove are ideal. The project is of necessity interdisciplinary and careful coordination is required if the results are to be meaningful. This coordination imposes the discipline of scheduling, which is one of the very real constraints not adequately imposed by any other form of educational experience. It is therefore recommended that the survey effort be considered for future Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory projects.

3.0 DETERMINATION OF THE CURRENT PATTERNS IN HOLBROOK COVE

3.1 Objective

This project has as its objective the determination of the current velocities and streamlines in the Holbrook Cove estuary as a function of time and tide. Data were obtained by the use of drogue buoys (see Figure 3.1). By recording the geographical position of each buoy and the associated time, velocities and positions have been calculated.



Figure 3.1 Droque Buoys

Procedure 3.2

Measurement of buoy positions and the related times were made at various locations in the Cove over the complete spectrum of tide states. Although it was originally planned to cover the entire area of the Cove, limitations of time forced the proj ect to select those areas which appeared to be most crucial to the inderstanding of the Cove's current patterns, and concentrate the data-gathering efforts only in those areas.

Geographical measurements of buoy positions were made by establishing a baseline between two transits and recording both its length and line of bearing. Using the transits at the ends

of the baseline, simultaneous measurements of the relative angle between the baseline and the line of sight from each transit to a buoy were made and recorded. The units of measure employed were:

> Directions and angles--degrees and minutes Baseline length--meters Time--hours, minutes and seconds

3.3 Limitations of Accuracy

Factors affecting data accuracy were both natural and mechanical. The natural factor that was of concern was the effect of the wind upon the paths and velocities of the buoys. Wind velocities in excess of two knots were considered to measurably affect data accuracy, and wind velocities in excess of five knots were considered unacceptable. In reducing the data, all measurements taken in conditions involving wind velocities in excess of two knots were discarded. In reducing the data, it appears that there may be some measurable wind effect at velocities of one to two knots. This fact led the team to concentrate the datagathering effort into the very early morning hours in which there is generally no measurable wind.

Mechanical factors affecting the accuracy of the data were the limitations equipment imposed upon the measurements of the baseline lengths, line-of-sight angles with respect to the baseline and the times of each measurement. The end positions of the baselines were established by locating them on a chart of the estuary with respect to landmarks depicted thereon. Lengths of the baselines were determined by first calculating the length by means of triangulation and then measuring the distance between the two end positions as located on the Coast and Geodetic Survey Charts. Table 3.1 contains a comparison of the length of the baselines as determined by triangulation and by measurement from the Coast and Geodetic Survey Charts.

It is estimated that the line-of-sight angles with respect to baseline were measured with limits of accuracy of about <u>tone-half</u> degree of arc. Time was measured to the nearest tenth of a minute (six seconds).

BY TRIANGULATION AND	MEASUREMEN	T (CGS CHARIS)
	LENGTH	
	MEASURED MEASURED	
	FROM	BY
BASELINE	CHART	TRIANGULATION
015/195	823	950
026/206	311	321
108/288	347	368
122/302	293	246
146/326	329	333
174/354	466	397
108/288 122/302 146/326 174/354	347 293 329 466	368 246 333 397

Table 3.1

COMPARISON OF LENGTH OF BASELINES AS DETERMINED

3.4 Data Reduction

••

The large volume of data collected made the use of a computer highly desirable. The quality of the data was carefully examined and several series of observations were disregarded because they appeared to have been severely affected by wind. The remainder of the data was then sorted first by utilizing a computer program to calculate buoy velocities and then discarding all inconsistent observations. For example, if a buoy's velocity changed drastically between observations and then appeared to return on succeeding observations to values consistent with earlier observations and the buoy's position was inconsistent with those established by preceding and succeeding observations, the data corresponding to the nonconforming observation was discarded. This procedure was adopted after it was noted that the paths of the buoys were linear or involved only slight degrees of curvature, except for a very few instances in which buoys came under the influence of a vortex. In those instances, only the most erratic cases were disregarded.

The data reduction required solutions of two equations of the form:

$$P_n = f(x, y)$$

$$V_n = g(P_n, P_{(n-1)}, \Delta T)$$

where

- x and y are orthogonal coordinates in a twodimensional grid system with the x coordinate measured parallel to the observation baseline;
- ΔT is the time interval between the observations establishing the positions P_n and $P_{(n-1)}$.

In order to define the positions of the buoys in terms of the coordinate system, x and y, using the baseline as the base of a triangle and the lines of sight from the ends of the baseline to the buoy as its other two legs, the computer was uti-The known quantities are the length of the baseline and lized. the two included angles between the lines of sight and the baseline. Establishing one end of the baseline as the origin of the coordinate system, the calculation of the orthogonal projection of the leg formed by the line of sight from that end of the baseline to the buoy defines the x coordinate. The calculation of the altitude of the vertex, formed by the intersection of the two lines of sight, with respect to the baseline defines the y coordinate. The computer was programmed to calculate the x and y coordinates using the law of sines. No attempt was made to utilize a single coordinate system for the entire estuary, but rather a different one was used for each baseline. If desired, a set of transformation equations could have been derived, but it would have unnecessarily complicated the problem. Streamlines were represented graphically on a chart of the Cove. As a matter of expediency two Fortran IV programs were written. The first calculated the x and y coordinates and the velocities punching the calculated data onto cards which served as data

for the second program. The latter program plotted the streamlines on a mechanical plotter. These streamlines were then positioned on a chart of the Cove and a reproduction made from the result.

A listing of each of the two programs is found in Appendix Α. A description of the first program is also included in the appendix, but, since the second program merely reads Cartesian coordinates and calls an IBM-supplied plotting subroutine, no description seems to be required.

3.5 Results

1

. .

Figure 3.2 is a reproduction of the chart of Holbrook Cove showing its major physical features and the surrounding landmarks. The features which appear to have the greatest effect upon the flow patterns of the Cove are three entrances: the sandbar (northern entrance), the Nautilus Rock Channel (northwestern entrance) and the Goose Falls Channel (southern entrance) The sandbar is submerged from zero to eight feet, varying from three hours before high tide to three hours after high tide. Since the drogue buoys used in this project required at least five feet of water depth, little data was obtained in the vicinity of the sandbar. It should be noted that all times in the figures which follow are recorded in hours and minutes from the High or Low tide. The times of High and Low tide were calculated based upon the U.S. Department of Commerce Tide Tables using the correction factors for Castine, Maine (see Appendix B)

The data have been grouped into six time periods, each $\mathtt{cor-}$ responding to approximately a two-hour phase in the Tidal Cycle. The names and approximate time limits of each phase are contained in Table 3.2.

Figures 3.3 and 3.4 contain the streamlines and flow velocities. Tables 3.3 through 3.8 list the dates of the observations, initial and final observation times (recorded with respec to the hours and minutes before or after the high/low tide) and the baseline from which the observations were made. The baselines are identified in Figure 3.2.



Figure 3.2 Holbrook Cove

Table 3.2

NAME AND APPROXIMATE TIME BOUNDARIES OF TIDAL PHASES

NAME	BEGINNING	END
Pre-High Phase	3 hours before high tide	l hour before high tid $oldsymbol{e}$
High Phase	l hour before high tide	l hour after high tide
Post-High Phase	l hour after high tide	3 hours after high tide
Pre-Low Phase	3 hours before low tide	l hour before low tide
Low Phase	l hour before low tide	l hour after low tide
Post-Low Phase	l hour after low tide	3 hours after low tide

3.6 Conclusions

The streamline and velocity charts for the pre-high phase (Figures 3.3 and 3.4) reveal that buoy direction reversals begin with those buoys located closest to the southern entrance. The tidal flows appear to initiate approximately 45 minutes earlier at the southern end than at the northern end of the Cove. There appears to be a tidal phase gradient in the area of the Cove bounded by the southern entrance and by Ram Island. The streamline chart (Figure 3.3) for the pre-low phase indicates slack water about one hour before the predicted low tide at Castine, Maine. The velocity chart (Figure 3.4) for the low phase indicates rather high velocities at the times of predicted slack water at Castine, Maine. It is noted that buoy velocities appear to decrease as they approach Ram Island.

The basin north of Ram Island can be pictured as a large tank with four inlets/outlets (one of which is open for about three hours before and after high tide). The currents through the northwestern and southern entrances to the Cove in post-low and pre-high phases are in opposition in the shallow channel west of Ram Island. The current from the southern entrance is predominant and forces water back toward the northwestern entrance.

As the current in the southern entrance begins to shift from flood to ebb, water continues to fill the basin. By the time the current at the northern entrance (the sandbar) begins

-15-

Table 3.3

TIDE PHASE: PRE-HIGH

DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME END	OBSERVATION BASELINE
7/25	F3R	-3:00	-2:29	026/206
7/25	F4R	-2:10	-1:07	026/206
7/25	F3O	-3:56	+0:36	026/206
7/19	КЗВ	-5:05	-3:36	108/288
7/19	K2RB	-5:00	-3:04	108/288
7/19	K3RB	-2:41	-1:48	108/288
7/19	K3R	-2:43	-1:55	108/288
7/19	K3W	-2:42	-1:48	108/288
7/19	K3WG	-2:39	-1:50	108/288
7/25	E3W	-1:53	+0:08	146/326
7/26	C2R	-2:22	-1:54	108/288
7/26	C3W	-3:03	-2:25	108/288
7/26	C2B	-4:10	-2:55	108/288
7/26	СЗВ	-2:30	-2:20	108/288
7/26	D20	-2:08	-1:21	174/354
7/26	D2R	-3:19	-2:58	174/354
7/25	E3Y	-2:40	-2:12	146/326
7/25	E4Y	-1:54	-0:50	146/326
7/25	E3RB	→2:35 [°]	-2:09	146/326
7/25	E2W	-2:41	-2:14	146/326
7/25	F3B	-3:35	-3:00	026/206

ġ.

.



Figure 3.3 Pre-High, High and Post-High Streamlines and Current velocities

Pape 17



Pigure 3.4 Pre-Low, Low and Post-Low Streamlines and Current Velocities

-18-

Table 3.4

		TIDE PHASE: 1	HIGH	
DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME END	OBSERVATION BASELINE
7/26	Dly	-2:06	+2:03	174/354
7/26	D30	-0:59	+1:57	174/354
7/26	D2RB	-1:00	+0:41	174/354
7/26	C3R	-1:31	+1:40	108/288
7/26	C4B	-1:56	+1:50	108/288
7/24	G10	-0:04	+1:45	015/195
7/24	GlR	-0:06	+1:42	015/195
7/25	F5B	-1:03	+0:35	026/206
7/25	F5R	-0:59	+0:37	026/206
7/24	GlB	-0:04	+1:38	015/195
7/24	HlW	-0:42	+0:22	146/326
7/24	HIRB	-0:45	+0:25	146/326
7/11	LIR	-1:03	+0:25	122/302
7/11	LlW	-1:04	+0:27	122/302
7/11	LIWG	-1:06	+0:30	122/302
7/11	LIRB	-1:05	+0:31	122/302

to ebb, the basin has begun to empty. The current through the northern entrance (the sandbar) begins to flow into the basin and the currents through the outlets formed by the northwestern entrance and the channels east and west of Ram Island flow out of the basin. When the water level falls below the sandbar in the northern entrance, blocking flow, the currents through the remaining three outlets continue to flow out of the basin until the next current reversal at low tide.

3.7 <u>Recommendations</u>

The use of buoys and transits is subject to many limitations. First and foremost is the restriction on their use to periods of
Table 3.5

TIDE PHASE: POST HIGH

DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME END	OBSERVATION BASELINE
7/23	IlRB	+0:51	+2:32	015/195
7/23	IlW	+0:52	+2:32	015/195
7/23	IlB	+1:00	+2:34	015/195
7/23	110	+0:57	+2:31	015/195
7/24	G20	+2:54	+3:22	015/195
7/24	G2R	+2:53	+3:21	015/195
7/24	G2B	+2:56	+3:20	015/ 195
7/24	H2RB	+1:17	+3:12	146/326
7/24	H2Y	+1:16	+3:13	146/326
7/24	H2W	+1:20	+3:09	146/326
7/8	MIRB	+2:07	+2:42	122/302
7/8	M2RB	+3:12	+3:44	122/302
7/11	L2R	+1:26	+3:17	174/354
7/11	L2WG	+1:20	+2:20	174/354
7/11	L2W	+1:21	+2:21	174/354
7/22	JlW	+1:45	+2:51	108/288
7/11	L2RB	+1:20	+2:20	174/354
7/22	J2R	+1:43	+2:49	108/288
7/22	J1B	+1:44	+2:50	108/288
7/22	JIY	+1:44	+2:36	108/288
7/22	J10	+1:57	+5:26	108/288
7/26	D3RB	+1:08	+1:55	174/354
7/23	IlY	+0:53	+3:20	015/195

1.1.1.1

10

	Table	3.6
TIDE	PHASE:	PRE-LOW

DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME END	OBSERVATION BASELINE
7/22	J2Y	-2:27	-0:15	108/288
7/22	J2R	-2:30	-0:52	108/288
7/22	J2B	-2:32	-0:27	108/288
7/22	J2RB	-2:33	-0:42	108/288
7/24	H3Y	-2:09	-1:25	146/326
7/24	НЗW	-2:14	-1:26	146/326
7/23	12Y	-1:43	-1:23	015/195
7/23	120	-1:41	-1:22	015/195
7/19	KlWG	-1:19	-0:31	108/288

little or no wind. This severely limits the time available for gathering data. In addition, the buoys proved to be difficult to place in position, transport and store.

The transits require rather large crews since two transits are required per baseline and two or three men are needed at each station to communicate, man the transit, and record data.

The communications and recording duties can often be combined but, since at one of the transit stations a person must coordinate the sighting by the two stations, it is difficult to operate with less than four persons manning the two transits, while five persons appear to be optimum. There is also the added problem that, since buoys often run aground and in order to understand the currents, buoys must be frequently repositioned, an additional person is required to man a boat. Fatigue will also begin to take its toll, if a station is to be run over four or five hours and a replacement crew will be required. In short, buoy and transit stations require too many people to be an optimum solution.

-21-Table 3.7

		TIDE PHASE: LOW	TIDE	
DATE	BUOY	TIME START	TIME End	OBSERVATIC BASELINE
7/27	A10	-3:03	+1:30	026/306
7/27	Aly	+0:09	+1:29	026/306
7/26	Clb	-0:18	0:00	108/288
7/27	B3W	+0:33	+1:21	108/288
7/22	J 3RB	+0:03	+1:08	108/288
7/22	J2 0	+0:05	+1:07	108/288
7/22	J3R	-0:01	+0:47	108/288
7/22	J 3B	+0:02	+1:08	108/288
7/22	J3Y	0:00	+1:15	108/288
7/22	J3W	-0:02	+0:38	108/288
7/19	Klw	-1:16	-0:02	108/288
7/19	KIRB	-1:17	+0:04	108/288
7/19	KIR	-1:18	+0:03	108/288
7/25	FlR	+0:14	+0:59	026/206
7/25	FlB	+0:12	+1:02	026/206
7/26	Clr	-0:22	+1:52	108/288
7/26	ClW	+0:06	+1:37	108/288

Before buoys are employed in future projects, they should be redesigned to permit operation under unfavorable wind conditions. The visible part of the buoy should be made more easily identifiable and less dependent on lighting conditions, so increased distance and bad weather will not hamper tracking. The operational maximum was six buoys with a sighting period of approximately six minutes. The optimum was four buoys with a three-minute tracking period. Acoustical tracking by means of sonar might be an alternative.

The use of stationary current meters would eliminate many of the problems of buoy tracking, but would raise new ones. As

-22-

Table 3.8

		TIDE PHASE: P	OST-LOW	
I . DATE	BUOY	TIME	TIME	OBSERVATION
	2001	START	END	BASELINE
7/26	Dlrb	+0:14	+3:05	174/354
7/26	D 10	+0:15	+3:00	174/354
7/26	K2W	+1:13	+3:12	108/288
7/26	K2R	+1:15	+3:15	108/288
7/26	K2WGS	+2:01	+2:28	108/288
7 /25	F20	+1:09	+1:55	026/206
7 /25	F2R	+1:18	+3:14	026/206
7/25	F2B	+1:16	+2:19	026/206
7/25	ElW	+1:10	+2:43	146/326
7/25	E2RB	+2:22	+2:47	146/326
7/25	E2Y	+2:02	+2:45	146/326
7/26	C10	-0:19	+2:43	108/288
7/26	C2W	+1:53	+2:44	108/288
7/25	Ely	+1:13	+1:44	146/326
·				//

it stands now, most current meters provide a current magnitude, but a current direction would also have to be obtained. Another limitation of current meters is the fact that they are difficult to moor and reposition.

An optimum approach might be the use of a combination of buoys and current meters. The buoys, of course, utilize a Lagrangian type of coordinate system, while the current meters use a Eulerian type of system, but with the information from both, an exceptional picture of the hydrodynamics of the Cove could be obtained. 4.0 DETERMINATION OF CURRENT VELOCITIES VERSUS REAL TIME IN THE SOUTHERN AND NORTHWESTERN ENTRANCES OF HOLBROOK COVE

4.1 Objective

The objective of this project is to measure current velocities in the center of the channel at the southern and northwestern entrances of Holbrook Cove over a complete tidal cycle. 4.2 Procedure

The current meters were moored in approximately the center of the southern and northwestern channels at a depth of approximately 10 feet at low tide. A clock-timing device was used to record the current meter pulses on magnetic tape for a period of four minutes at half-hour intervals, on the hour and halfhour. The magnetic recorders were later retrieved. An operator rewound the tape, placed the tape recorder in the "play" mode and counted the number of pulses over a 10-second interval. Current velocities were then determined using the pulses per second to enter the calibration curves.

4.3 <u>Results</u>

Figures 4.1 and 4.2 are plots of current velocities at 30minute intervals. The tidal phase noted at the bottom of the figures relate the time to the tidal phase at Castine. Figures 4.3 and 4.4 compare buoy velocities calculated from observations taken in the vicinity of the current meter positions with the results of the current meters. It should be noted that the buoy observations were not made on the same day that the current meters were implanted and that the buoy positions are in the same general area, but not identical to the positions of the current meter. It should also be noted that the current meters were placed a fixed distance from the bottom of the Cove and their depths therefore vary with the height of the tides. It is estimated that the depth of the current meters varied from approximately 10 feet to approximately 20 feet over the complete tidal cycle.

4.4 <u>Conclusions</u>

In comparing the results of the current meters and the buoys, it appears that there may be a periodic velocity fluctuation that significantly affects the magnitudes of the currents





-24-



Figure 4.2

Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Results in South Entry to Holbrook Cove

ć

-25-





Comparison of Buoy Velocities and Current Meter Results Northwestern Entrance to Holbrook Cove





Comparison of Current Meter and Body Velocity Results in South Entry to Holbrook Cove in the Cove. The results suggest that the period of this oscillation is about 8 to 12 minutes and the velocity variations may be as much as plus or minus 30 percent around some mean value.

Based upon the results of both the current meters and the buoy velocities, it is concluded that the tidal currents in Holbrook Cove are significantly affected by a seiche. In planning the project, this result was not anticipated and the time intervals selected for recording currents was arbitrarily set at 30 minutes. In addition, it appears that there is a significant reduction in the current velocities recorded by the current meter when the depths are greatest, i.e., near high tide. 4.5 Recommendations

While it appears that the current meter and recording system functioned properly, the reduction of data by counting the number of "beeps" over a time interval as a means of establishing velocity is far too time-consuming. It is therefore recommended that a means of recording velocity that will permit a more automated reduction of data be devised.

It is also recommended that any future projects consider the possibilities of a seiche and velocity measurements be made continuously over longer time spans or, if intermittent current velocity measurements are made, the interval between measurements be shortened to a period that is less than half the period of the estimated seiche.

Finally, it is recommended that a vertical array of current meters be deployed to establish the velocity profile as a function of depth. 5.0 TEMPERATURE, SALINITY AND CHLOROPHYLL

5.1 Temperature and Salinity Patterns

5.1.1 Objective

The purpose in studying temperature and salinity in Holbrook Cove is to obtain baseline data usable in density ag This data will be useful in establishing the prevailing sis. conditions in Holbrook Cove, and how these conditions may affe biology and water movement. The design of inexpensive water sampling bottles and their construction was required to achie the primary objective (see Figure 5.1).

5.1.2 Background

Salinity and temperature analysis is a standard practic in physical oceanography. Salinity gives a good idea of the horizontal and vertical extent of dilution in the Holbrook mic estuary. Presumably, fresh water from both the Bagaduce and Penobscot Rivers dilute sea water in the area of the Cove. R water also has a day-to-day effect, although sampling was not extensive enough to draw any conclusions about this effect.

Temperature is of equal value to the oceanographer. any geographical basin, one generally finds more than one wate type. Temperature tends to be the prime indication of a trans tion from one water type to another; and the word thermocline denotes just such a boundary. Temperature is seasonal, and ha a controlling effect on the biological community.

Finally, temperature and salinity, coupled with the depth at which the sample was taken, can be combined to calculate the density of the water sample. Density, also a characteristic of the particular water, determines the physics of that water body to some extent. Statically, more dense water will lie at the bottom of basins. Dynamically, the forces on waters of differ ent density are the cause of water movement. 5.1.3 <u>Results</u>

The results of this investigation are tabulated in Table 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3. The column headed "Chlorophyll 'A'" is dis-



Figure 5.1 Sampling Bottles

TABLE 5.1

TEMPERATURE, SALINITY, DENSITY AND CHUOROPHYLL 'A'

AT DEPTH = C METERS

STATION	TEMPERATURE (DEGREES CENTIGRADE)	SALINITY	SIGMA "T"	CHLOROPHYLL *A* (MICROGRAMS PER LITEP)
1 A	17.5	26.18	19.22	2.071
18	17.5	25.44	13.12	1.526
LC	17.5	25.30	18.02	1.417
2 A	17.0	25.50	18.40	1.417
28	15.0	25.22	13.49	1.417
2 C	17.0	24.34	17.78	1.744
3A	17.C	25.30	12.13	1.417
38	17.0	25.30	18.13	1.090
3 C	18.0	25.02	17.96	0.731
4Δ	17.5	24.05	17.79	1.417
48	17.5	24.38	17.70	1.090
4C	18.0	25.44	18.01	1+417
5 A	17.0	25.37	18.56	1,199
58	14.0	26.20	19.44	0.281
50	17.2	27.13	19.45	1+417
6Δ	17.0	25.66	18.40	1,339
óß	13.0	21.05	16-20	1.744
60	14.0	26.92	19.99	2.130
7 A	17.0	26.13	18.80	3,4391
76	17.5	25.93	18.50	1 972
70	17+0	25.33	13.15	0.931
3,∆	17.5	20+17	13.61) 576
3 B	18.0	76.40	19.74	
9 C			4 1 - T	J = 731

TABLE 5.2

TEMPERATURE, SALINITY, DENSITY AND CHECROPHYLL 'A'

AT DEPTH = 3 METERS

14 15.0 28.72 20.02 1.526	
16 16 26 20 19 03 1. 309	
10 14.0 26.29 19.51 1.635	
7.6 17.0 25.82 18.52 1.744	
29 11.5 26.11 19.92 1.962	
2C 15.0 26.38 19.38 2.239	
24 12 0 27-46 20-78 1-535	
2P 10.0 27.28 20.97 1.526	
3C 10.0 29.07 22.36 1.199	
(A) 10.5 27.39 20.97 1.744	
41 10.0 27.08 21.03 1.353	
45 10.5 26.18 20.03 1.199	
CA 12.5 28.51 21.50 2.071	
5A 12.5 20.51 21.74 1.962	
56 11.0 73.67 22.04 2.398	
(A 1) 0 20 29 21-59 1-744	
CA 11.0 20.27 21.79 2.507	
6C 10-0 23-91 22-23 2-371	
7. 12.0 27.10 20-50 1.635	
7A 12.0 21.10 20.00 1.962 1.962	
ft 12+0 28+04 21+04 1+74	
3A 12-7 26-96 20.39 1-177	
JB 11.5 23.42 21.61 1.526	
δC	

TABLE 5.3

ATURE, SALINITY, DENSITY AND CHECROPHYLL "A"

AT DEPTH = 6 METERS

PERATURE HGREES (IGRADE)	SALINITY	SIGMA "T"	CHECROPHYEL 'A' (MICROGRAMS PER LITER)
3.5	29.54	22.92).763
9.5	29.34	22.64	0.763
10.0	28.50	21.96	2.616
11.0	29.90	22.84	1.199
9.0	29.72	23+02	0.545
11.0	29.32	22.39	0.218
9.0	29.00	23.16	J . 931
8.5	29.90	23.23	0.654
3 6	26 61	22.02	0 4 7 4
0 C	2901 Do 1	23+00	
3 m D	29.01 27.72	22.50	1+321
1. D	29.03	22.81	J • 163
3.3	21.07	24.17	0.218
0.4	29.34	23.20	0.436
3.2	29.30	22+80	0.436
9.5	36.44	23.65	0.+36
9.0	29.65	22.96	0.327
9.5	28.54	22.02	0.436
9.5	25-65	22,89	0.762
9.0	29.95	22.13	0.213
		6 . 	U # 1. LU

5.1.4 <u>Conclusions</u>

There is nothing dramatic revealed by the temperature, salinity, and density data.

The more dense water fills the deeper depths of the Cove. This would be consistent with the existence of a current through the Cove.

There is no indication of an effect by the Callahan Mine outfall on the temperature, salinity or density patterns in Holbrook Cove during the period of this study.

5.1.5 <u>Recommendations</u>

More electronic analyzing equipment is needed. Titrating is an especially long, tedious operation which leads to error.

A greater quantity of data is required to build a better picture of Holbrook Cove temperature, salinity and density patterns. Priority should be given to a number of samplings of the same area at different times of day. Then the variance of the data with respect to time could be related to water motion.

5.1.6 Detailed Procedure

5.1.6.1 Sampling Plan

To facilitate relating the temperature and salinity data to the biological accuracy results, an identical sampling grid was used for both projects (see Figure 5.2).

5.1.6.2 Sampling Technique

The sampling was accomplished using the water sampling bottles built in conjunction with this project. Once at the sampling position, determined by sighting angles on shore landmarks, the depth was determined using the fathometer on R.V. LOBSTER, the boat from which the samples were collected. It was then decided how many bottles spaced at depth intervals of three meters could be lowered.

Once this had been ascertained, the bottles were readied on the rear deck of the boat along with labeled, plastic-capped storage containers. The sampling bottles were attached to the heavy line at intervals of three meters as the line was lowered.

The bottles were triggered at the desired depths. They were then hauled up and the water in each bottle was emptied into a labeled container.



At the same station, the bathythermograph was lowered and retrieved. Its data slide was then removed and stored for later analysis.

5.1.6.3 <u>Sampling Analysis</u>

Once back at the laboratory, the water samples were titrated to determine chlorine content, using the silver nitrate method. The data were then converted to total salinity using the general formula:

The salinity was then tabulated according to station and depth.

The temperature data were drawn from the bathythermograph slides. For each station, the correct slide was read for the water sampling depths. The resulting temperature corresponded to the depths of each sample, and was tabulated next to salinity.

Using this temperature and salinity data, the U.S. Navy Hydrographic Tables were used to compute σ_t . σ_t is a parameter relating the density (ρ) of a water sample to the density of pure water (pure water has a density, ρ , of 1.0000).* The density of the water sample is related to pure water by using the equation

 $\sigma_{+} = (\rho - 1)1000$

If ρ equals 1.02575, then σ_t equals 25.75. It should be noted that the effect of pressure on density was not included because it is minimal for the depths in the Cove.

5.2 Chlorophyll Patterns in Holbrook Cove

5.2.1 Objective

This portion of the ecological survey is designed to quantitatively measure the distribution pattern of chlorophyll in the Holbrook Cove sampling area. A marked increase in chorophyll concentration with increased distance from the Callahan mine

^{*}For a detailed description, see Sverdrup, H. U., M. W. Johnson, and R. H. Fleming, 1942, The Oceans, Prentice-Hall, Inc., N.J.

outfall would suggest that the effluent from the outfall is harmful to the diatom population and therefore has an unbalanch effect on the entire ecosystem, since diatoms are a major source of food for the Cove inhabitants.

-37-

5.2.2 Background

Gentile and Erickson (1971)¹ in their study of the Googe Pond area were able to make a direct correlation between the effluent, rich in heavy metals (notably copper), and the growth inhibition of a particular diatom, Cyclotella nana. The ability of the water to support Cyclotella decreased as the mine outfail was approached. When a chelator was added to the samples, rendering the copper inert, the diatom population increased. Although this was not conclusive evidence, it does suggest that heavy metal pollution from the outfall is upsetting the planktm community.

The method used by this experimenter was to collect sample at various depths from stations upstream and downstream of the outfall, giving a fairly accurate cross section of the entire sampling area. Tests were made for a specific chlorophyll concentration, referred to as Chlorophyll 'A,' which is the major green component of the particular diatom in question. 5.2.3 Results

Using water bottles, 106 samples were taken. 105 were analyzed, one being lost. The results are found in Figures $5.3_{\rm e}$ 5.4 and 5.5 as well as in Tables 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3. The data in the tables are the Chlorophyll 'A' concentrations in micrograms per liter ($\mu g/\ell$) for each sample. The station numbers 1A, 1B, 1C, etc., refer to the stations in Figure 5.2. 5.2.4 Conclusions

One of the major assumptions about which this research project was planned was that the flow from the Callahan mine outfall would be continuous throughout the sampling period. Based upon observations made by the sampling team, it appears that no flow occurred during the entire month of July. circumstance casts doubt upon the hypothesis that the heavy This metal ion concentration would be the greatest near the mouth of the outfall, since the waters of the Cove are either ebbing or







Chlorophyll 'A' (µa/l)

Holbrook Cove

Chlorophyll 'A' Contained in Water Samples

Taken at Stations 1B Through AB





WIND AND THE AND







(Ţ/bn) ,∢, τιλιαοιοτις

-40-

.

flooding most of the time. It seems more logical that, if he metals are concentrated in the area, the effects would be not noticeable in the deep water pockets north and south of the outfall.

In examining Figures 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5, it appears that Chlorophyll 'A' concentrations are greatest at a depth of about three meters and least at depths of six meters or more. Then does not appear to be a significant variation related to distance from the Callahan mine outfall.

It should be noted that the samples were all collected during a flood tide. The samples for stations 1A, 1B, 1C, 2_{i_1} 2B, 2C, 3A, and 3B were collected during the morning of July 3 The samples for stations 3C, 4A, 4B and 4C were collected duri the evening of July 26. The samples for the remainder of the stations were collected during the morning of July 27.

Due to the violation of the basic assumption relating to continuous flow from the Callahan mine outfall, it is impossible to draw any conclusions with respect to the effect of the outh upon the Chlorophyll 'A' patterns in Holbrook Cove. 5.2.5 Recommendations

In future attempts to determine the effects of a source of heavy metal concentrations (as the Callahan mine outfall m be), the water samples should be analyzed for the concentration of heavy metal ions present. This will be difficult since the concentration will be extremely low, but it would appear to be essential if the effect of heavy metals on Chlorophyll 'A' is to be determined with confidence.

Sampling plans should be expanded to permit collection of at least three water samples at three different times at each depth and location. The size of the sampling team should be expanded to permit collection of water samples over the entire grid in a period of not more than six hours (the approximate extent of either a flooding or ebbing tide). This implies that at least three students will be required to analyze the samples 5.2.6 Procedure (see references 2 and 3)

As soon as possible 25 milliliters of each sample were filtered through a one-inch Gelman Glass Fiber filter and from The filters carrying the chlorophyll were then homogenized and extracted with 90% acetone solution and fluorated, giving a reading "f_o." Each sample was then acidified and another reading taken, "f_a." The amount of chlorophyll "a" per sample in micrograms per liter ($\mu g/\ell$) was derived from the equation "chl_a = 0.109(f_o-f_a)."

REFERENCES

- 1. Dow and Hurst, Jr., <u>Rehabilitation Problems of the Cape</u> <u>Rosier Open Pit Mine</u>, Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, <u>Augusta</u>, Maine, Nov. 1971.
- Duxbury and Yentsch, Plankton Pigment Nomographs, J. Marine Res. 15, 1956, pp. 92-101.
- 3. Richards and Thompson, <u>A Spectrophotometric Method for the</u> Estimation of Plankton Pigments, J. Marine Res. <u>11</u>, 1952, pp. 156-172.

6.0 BIOLOGICAL EFFECT OF HEAVY METAL POLLUTANTS

6.1 Objective

At Cape Rosier, Maine, a copper-zinc open pit mine has been discharging effluent rich in heavy metals into Holbrook Cove. Recent studies have shown that this type of metal polltant is harmful to marine organisms, and probably to human health.¹ In planning this study, it was felt that actual measurements of metal ion concentration in water and sediment at various stations might lead to a better understanding of the effects of these pollutants when correlated with benthic faunal population distributions and photosynthetic primary production in the area. The purpose of this facet of the overall study we to gather data concerning the distribution of the heavy metals (Cu, Pb, Zn, and Cd) in the sediments near the outfall, and to correlate these data with the distribution of benthic infauna (in terms of species diversity, abundance of individuals in each species, and biomass) in the sediments.

6.2 Background

In 1968, operations were undertaken by the Callahan Mining Corporation in the area near Goose Pond on Cape Rosier, Maine, to exploit local deposits of copper and zinc ore. The mouth of Goose Pond (Figure 6.1) was dammed, the pond pumped dry, and a large open pit excavation was begun. Sea water is used in the aqueous flotation and ore separation process. This water is pumped from Holbrook Cove from a site adjacent to the outfall (Figure 6.2), and used to the mill processing. then dumped into a settling pond, where theoretically all sus-It is pended matter is removed. The effluent is pumped into Holbrook Cove through a subsurface outfall pipe. Sump pumps which keep the open pit free of ground seepage also empty into Holbrook Cove. During the four years of operation of the mine, fine sed ment suspended in the effluent has entered the Cove and large portions have probably settled there.

It must be noted, however, that the mining operation is not the only source of heavy metal ions. Surface runoff and seasone

-43-



Figure 6.1 Callahan Mine Location



APPENDIX C

AN EXAMPLE OF THE USE OF

FIGURE 7.11

Example:

```
Find Height of Tide at 1125 Hours, July 5, 1972.
 Date: July 5, 1972
 Time: 1125 EDT
                  1025 EST
 Barometer: 30.30"
 From Tide Table (See Appendix B)
 Previous Tide Level = +9.2 ft (High) @ 0605 Hours
 Next Subsequent Tide Level = +0.2 ft (Low) @ 1212 Hours
Hours Between High and Low = (1212 - 0605) = 6^{h}07^{m}
 Feet Diff Between High and Low = (9.2 - 0.3) = 9.5 ft
 Hours After High Tide = (1025 - 0605) = 4^{h}20^{m}
 From Nomogram:
                                       +2.1 ft
      Uncorrected Ht
      Correction for 30.80" = -0.95 ft -0.95 ft
                           = +0.55 ft +1.15 ft
      Corrected Ht
```



drainage fluctuations will alter the erosion of nearby natural ore deposits, and also the resultant metal ion concentrations in the waters of Holbrook Cove. The exact pattern of effluent distributions as driven by currents and tides has not yet been determined, although sampling stations (Figure 5.2) were selected to encompass all possible effluent paths.

Of all the animals in the immediate area, only the benthic infauna have been continually subjected to the heavy metals present in the mine effluent. These animals cannot move appreciably, and thus have had to adapt to the environment of Holbrook Cove. In general, the animals that have evolved to survive in a particular environment (the boreal waters of the Gulf of Maine in this case) have the ability to successfully adapt to the range of environmental variations which occur naturally. However, even these "historical stresses" are occasionally exceeded and individual species succumb. After this stress has passed, the species may either recolonize the area, or another species may nove in and take over the first species ecological niche. The fewer of these overturns there are, the more stable is the biological community. In areas where the "predictability" of the environment is high (few abnormal stresses beyond the tolerance of all the species present), there are many species, each with a small number of individuals, and each adapted to deal with its own narrow range of ideal conditions. Where predictability is relatively low, each species must adapt to a wide range of possible environmental conditions. Since the range of ideal conditions (the niche) of each species cannot overlap with the niche of the species next to it on the spectrum of environmental factors, it is evident that there will be more niches, and thus more species, present in a high predictability environment.

In Holbrook Cove, the influx of heavy metal pollutants can be viewed as an "unpredictable" environmental stress from the point of view of the benthic community. If the community is capable of adapting to this stress, there should be no obvious change in the species composition of this community. This is the "null hypothesis" of this investigation. In order to test this hypothesis, some quantitative measure of the species diver-

-46-

sity must be employed. Several are in use at present. The rarefaction analysis method of Sanders² shows the diversity graphically, although computation and data presentation are cumbersome and tedious. The information function of Shannon³ is simpler. The number of individuals of each species in the community is calculated as a fraction of the total number of individuals in the community. This fraction, p_i , is then iterated over all species, and then the value of $\sum p_i \log_2 p_i$ is calculated for the community. This gives a value which is sample size-independent. The application of this function to biological systems has recently been questioned by Hurlburt,⁴ who proposes several alternate diversity indices. Once all data are assembled in this investigation, both Shannon's and Hurlburt' indices will be employed.

All organisms present in each sample must be identified and counted. For practical purposes, this is impossible. The sediment must be sieved to remove very small sediment (some small animals are obviously lost in the process). Reish⁵ calculated the optimum screen mesh size to maximize animal retention and minimize the extensive labor necessary to sort the samples. In practice, there is also an optimum number of grab samples to be taken at each station to assure that all species is the community are represented in each station sample. This must be determined <u>in situ</u>, after a few samples have been sorted.

In Holbrook Cove, a grid of sampling stations was laid out (Figure 5.2) in the waters near the outfall based on the sediment metal concentrations determined by the Federal Water Quality Administration⁶ in the immediate area. One objective is to duplicate the FWQA study in more detail for a small area. Hopefully, contour charts for the levels of copper, zinc, lead and cadmium, as well as charts of the species diversity indices may be drawn from the data resulting from sampling the stations on the grid. Correlation tests on these data may yield interesting results.

Since species diversity in this case may be influenced by other factors, these must be investigated and their influence on the community assessed, the 1971 Summer Laboratory report

•

(MITSG 72-3) investigated temperature, salinity, nutrients, dissolved oxygen and currents. No abnormalities were evident. Other phases of this investigation (Sections 5.1 and 5.2) duplicated portions of those studies, again revealing no abnormalities. Sediment particle size distribution does play a significant role in determining benthic community structure.⁷ Most samples in the area were composed of 60% silt, 20% clay and 20% fine sand. However, several stations were located on bare rock, or on the shallow sill of glacial sand and gravel that forms the western end of Holbrook Cove. This is a biological community very different from that found in the mud of deeper water, and therefore will not be included in the forthcoming discussion of the biological data with reference to heavy metals.

Cadmium, lead, copper, and zinc were chosen to be sampled because they exist in large enough concentrations to be measured with available Atomic Absorption Spectrophotometry equipment and are thought to be major pollutants in the area.⁸ Chromium talia below AAS detection limits. However, once data has been collected, it is difficult to draw any conclusions as to significant patterns in flow or texicity or even the relation to the mine effluent. Robert Dow, Director of Research, Maine Department of Dea and Shore Fisheries, reports "Since exploratory drilling, stockpiling of ore-bearing rock, de-watering of the old mine shalt, and pumping out of the rain-filled pit behind the newly constructed dam at Goose Falls, heavy metal levels in clams, sediments, and rock weeds cannot be interpreted as background only. This significant and dramatic increase in all three media after ore separation can be wholly attributed to the plant operation and the discharge of effluents into Goose Cove."9 "The Federal Nater Quality Administration, now the Environmental Protection Agency, is more conservative in its correlation between toxic metal concentration and the mine effluent, but recommends that public water supplies in the area be monitored due to high lead concentration at two of their sample stations.⁶ It should be noted here that this report has been criticized by Dow and other Maine state officials.¹⁰ Tidal stage, climate and geological makeup affect concentrations of trace metals, but it is not yet fully understood how and to what degre In addition, agreement as to whether sediments adsorb toxic ime rendering them inert or whether they are a continuing source of contamination has not been reached.

It has been found that heavy metals do not concentrate along trophic levels.¹¹ In that particular survey of the Illinois River, the order of concentration magnitudes of Cu, Ni, Fe, Pb, Cr, Li, Co, Cd was as follows: sediments > worms > cla > fish > water. Zinc was found in greater concentration in cla than in worms. According to a report by Dow on "Estuarine Communities and Pollution,"¹² "Evidence does not support the assumption that heavy metals in estuarine sediments, marine algae, and shellfish are directly related to the level of these metals in the overlying waters." It is important, therefore, to measure metal concentrations in mud and organic samples as well as in the water. The sand worm, second only to the blood worm in economic value per unit weight to the Maine fishing industry, he a reported toxicity threshold of about 0.1 parts per million copper (Raymont and Shields, cited by Dow).⁸

A previous study of the waters around Cape Rosier showed copper concentrations ranging from 0.1 to 0.4 PPM.⁸ Dow beliem that lead is probably the most hazardous metal pollutant at the mine site for both humans and commercial shellfish.¹² A study of the effect of cadmium upon humans is being conducted intermittently by M.I.T. Human intake of toxic metals comes through drinking water sources and consumption of shellfish. In partic lar, bivalves have the ability to concentrate heavy metals to 6.3 <u>Results</u>

The analysis of the 25 Holbrook Cove sediment and water samples for heavy metal concentrations and benthic fauna has ^{ndt} been completed at this writing. Shortages of equipment availability (mostly an inability to gain access to AAS equipment) and difficulties with impurity interference (Section 6.6) have is expected that these difficulties will have been overcome to allow completion of AAS analysis by March 1973.

Benthic faunal sorting and species identification is also proceeding slowly. The 0.25 mm screen mesh size, as determined from Reish's⁵ analysis, used in sieving the grab samples causes the retention of a large volume of materials, which must be picked through under a dissecting microscope. Average sorting times have been in excess of 20 hours for each of the three samples sorted thus far.

A basic difficulty in the faunal analysis concerns species identification. Of the 52 positively identified polychaete worm species taken in Holbrook Cove in the FWQA study,⁶ only 24 are named in Knowlton's¹³ checklist. Knowlton acknowledged that his checklist is not "all-inclusive," even though he, his coworkers and his students have sampled along the whole Maine coast for a number of years. Significantly, the two dominant polychaete species, <u>Aricidea jeffreysii</u> and <u>Nephthys incisa</u>, representing 38% and 17% respectively of all individuals taken in Holbrook Cove, have never been found by TRIGOM researchers and are thus not included in Knowlton's checklist.

The most abundant polychaete species in the samples sorted thus far has not been identified as yet. There is some internal disagreement about whether two species are being considered as one in this case. Until this is resolved, no species diversities can be calculated.

Some trends are apparent, however. Biomass and number of individuals appear to be at a minimum at the station closest to the mine outfall; i.e., there are fewer individuals and the individuals appear to be smaller near the outfall. This could indicate an adverse influence of the effluent on the biota, but it is obviously too early to draw any correlations.

Other data would be valuable in addition to sediment faunal data. An attempt will be made to analyze locally collected bloodworms¹⁴ (<u>Glycera dibranchiata</u>), sand worms¹⁴ (<u>Nereis virens</u>), and clams (<u>Mya arenaria</u>) for heavy metals in their tissues. Several attempts were made to raise <u>Nereis virens</u> in aquariums in the laboratory, with the ultimate intention of studying the effects of various concentrations of heavy metal ions introduced into the sea water. However, each time, high natural worm mortality was observed due to high ambient temperatures, and it was finally concluded that the necessary refrigeration was not available, so the project was abandoned.

6.4 <u>Conclusions</u>

an Shudhan an an Shudhan

As stated before, sample analysis is not yet complete, so no conclusions are possible at present.

6.5 Recommendations

During July 1972, the Callahan Mining Corporation was beginning to raise salmon in a fish trap floating in Holbrook Cove. They planned to monitor the metal concentration in the salmon flesh, with the ultimate intention of marketing the salmor on a large scale. In their proposal, the deep open pit would be filled with sea water and used for fish culture. Considering the remarks made by Dr. Ruth Patrick,¹⁵ this would be highly undesirable.

As of July 1972, the mining operation had apparently been closed down. Weir Ditch, which had poured effluents into Weir Cove on the southern side of Cape Rosier, had been another major source of heavy metal contamination. As of July 28, its seaward end had been filled in. Although monitoring of the site should be continued, it is probably not within the capabilities of the Student Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory to continue the systematic sediment monitoring on a large scale, recognizing the dif ficulties which were encountered attempting to use analytical techniques and equipment and the great amount of time necessary: sort benthic sediment samples. However, monitoring of metals in worms and clams in the Cove is relatively simpler, and should be continued if AAS equipment is available.

6.6 Detailed Procedure

6.6.1 Sampling Plan

A grid pattern consisting of 24 stations was selected on the basis of previous sampling and analysis done by the FWQA.⁶ Basically, a 3 x 8 pattern was laid out in the channel separatine Holbrook Island and Cape Rosier. If time allowed, multiple sediment samples would be taken at each station, assuring adequate sampling of the benthos.
Samples were taken with a modified Petersen grab sampler at most stations. Some stations were coarse gravel or bare rock, preventing adequate grab sampling. The grab was handoperated from the deck of the lobster boat.

All samples were sieved as soon as possible after return (usually within 6 hours) through 0.25 mm sieves, preserved with 10% formalin, and buffered to saturation with sodium borate (preventing calcareous shell decomposition). Subsamples for AAS analysis were placed in acid-rinsed containers and preserved with 2-3 ml concentrated HNO₃.

6.6.3 Sample Analysis

Sorting of benthic samples was accomplished under low magnification microscopy. All animals retained by the sieve were transferred to a methyl alcohol preservative. Identification was accomplished using standard available keys.

Analysis of sediment and water samples will be done by atomic absorption spectrometry using Jarrell Ash instrumentation. The method followed will be the standard methods used by the Environment Protection Agency,¹⁶ with minor alteration by the M.I.T. lab. Although metal ion concentrations of some of the Goose Falls Stations probably fall quite low, previous surveys of the area (FWOA)⁶ have not found it necessary to use special low detection limit methods of analysis, especially since interferences are more common with these methods.

Interferences known as matrix interferences occur when there are high concentrations of acids or dissolved salts, as would be the case with the samples considered here. These are controlled by dilution or by matching the concentrations of major constituents in samples and standards. When there is no way of matching concentrations, the method of additions¹⁷ is used. For analysis of the samples taken from Holbrook Cove, a rinse to remove sodium interference will be adequate. Several runs will be made to determine statistical confidence intervals.

REFERENCES

- Zwick, David and Marcy Benstock, "The Danger. Water Waste land." Bantam Books, Grossman Publ., N.Y., 1971.
- Sanders, Howard T., "Marine Benthic Diversity: A Comparative Study." <u>Amer. Natur.</u>, <u>102</u>: 243, 1968.
- Shannon, Claude E., "A Mathematical Theory of Communication." <u>Bell System Tech. Journal</u>, <u>27</u>, 1948, pp. 379-423, 623-656.
- Hurlburt, Eric, "The Nonconcept of Species Diversity: A Critique and Alternative Parameters." <u>Ecology</u>, <u>52</u> (4), 1970, pp. 577-586.
- Reish, D. J., "A Discussion of the Importance of Screen Size in Washing Quantitative Bottom Samples." <u>Ecology</u>, 40, 1959, pp. 307-309.
- Federal Water Quality Administration, 1970. Effects of Strip-Mine Discharges on the Marine Environment near Cape Rosier, Maine. FWQA, Needham Heights, Mass.
- Sanders, Howard T., "Benthic Studies in Buzzards Bay. Animal-Sediment Relations." Limnol. and Oceanogr., 3, 1958, pp. 245-258.
- 8. Dow, Robert L., <u>Toxic Metals in the Marine Environment</u>, First Maine Environmental Congress. Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1969.
- Dow, Robert L., Influence of Effluents at Cape Rosier, Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1971b. Unpublished report.
- Dow, Robert L. and John W. Hurst, Statement given at the Environmental Improvement Commission Public Hearing, Blue Hill, Maine, concerning waste discharge license application of Kerramerican, Inc. (revised), Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1971a.
- 11. Dow, Robert L., <u>Estuarine Communities and Pollution</u>, Maim Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1971a. Unpublished report.
- 12. Mathis, B. J. and T. F. Cummings, "Distribution of Select" Metals in Bottom Sediments, Water, Clams, Tubificid Annelids, and Fishes of the Middle Illinois River." Research Report #41, Water Resources Center, University of Illinois, Urbana, Illinois, 1971.

- 13. Knowlton, Robert E., "Preliminary Checklist of Maine Marine Invertebrates." Publ. No. 1, The Research Institute of the Gulf of Maine, Portland, Maine, 1971.
- 14. Dow, Robert L. and J. Creaser, "Marine Bait Worms." Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission Leaflet, Tallahassee, Florida.
- 15. Dow, Robert L. and John W. Hurst, "Rehabilitation Problems of the Cape Rosier Open Pit Mine." Maine Dept. of Sea and Shore Fisheries, Augusta, Maine, 1971b. Unpublished report.
- 16. Environmental Protection Agency, "Methods for Chemical Analysis of Water and Wastes." EPA, Cincinnati, Ohio, 1971.
- 17. Perkin Elmer Corp., "Analytical Methods for AAS." Norwalk, Conn., 1971.

-54-

7.0 INSTRUMENTATION

7.1 Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter

7.1.1 Objective

The basic goal of this project is the evolution of a conpact and reliable current velocity measuring device utilizing the regular velocity-dependent oscillation of vortices behind a blunt object in a moving fluid. Several general design criteria were established: (1) The instrument must be capable of being set and monitored without diver assistance; (2) the output of the instrument must be recordable on magnetic tape; (3) data reduction should be convenient.

7.1.2 Background

Work was carried out during the 1971 M.I.T. Sea Grant Summer Laboratory based on similar objectives (see M.I.T. Sea Grant Report Number 72-3). These attempts were unsuccessful. The experience gained at that time allowed the successful redesign of the instrument during the 1972 Summer Lab. operation of the instrument is the velocity-dependent vortex The basis of shedding of a blunt object moving with respect to a fluid. The wake pattern generated by this object is known as a Karman Vorte Trail. This wake pattern is characterized by periodic shedding of vortices from alternate sides of the blunt object. Each shed vortex moves downstream causing lateral movement of the fluid in the wake of the object. The instrument is based on the detection of this movement. Here the magnitude of movement is not important, but rather the frequency of the change in direction of the fluid behind the blunt object is desired and, thus, the frequency of vortex shedding. This frequency is then empirically related to the velocity of fluid flow, through the calibration of the meter. 7.1.3 <u>Results</u>

ţ

The final results, based on a rather short testing period of one day off the dock at Castine and three days at varying locations in Holbrook Cover, were in general successful. The instrument, coupled with a simple oscillator, recorder and times on the surface, provided data at half-hour intervals over most of the test period. The circuit interfacing the instrument with the recorder, however, was unreliable and created a large amount

Π

of unreadable data. Data reduction, while intended to be accomplished electronically, was easily handled aurally, each twentyfour hours worth of collected data requiring approximately fortyfive minutes to put into tabular or graphic form. Graphical results of several periods of monitoring are shown in Figures 4.2 and 7.1. The validity of the data is difficult to determine. At present, there is no other tabulated data concerning current flow in the test areas. The results do show fair correlation with times of high and low tide. For example, in Figure 7.1 no current was evident shortly before high tide at 2324 hours and low tide at 0554 hours, the times being appropriate for dockside at Castine. The irregularity of the current profile presented for Holbrook Cove may well represent the apparent current surges which were noted on several occasions by the observers of the current drogues used in this area, as described in Section 3.0 of this report.

7.1.4 Conclusions

Although the test period was too short to allow conclusive evaluation of the instruments reliability, sensitivity and range in open water, the results would indicate that the meter offers a valid substitute for impeller-type current meters, when measuring low velocity currents. The instrument holds up well under rough treatment and requires no diver assistance in mooring. 7.1.5 Recommendations

The success achieved, though limited, would recommend further work on the development of this instrument as a component of a complete system for current monitoring. Most seriously needed would be the perfection of the interfacing electronics. Completion of the digital recording system which was undertaken during the lab would offer considerable advantages and possibilities in the area of data reduction. Concerning the meter itself, one could use pressure transducers as the means of converting the fluid motion to a modulated electric signal, replacing the present arrangement of fin and photocell.

7.1.6 Detailed Procedure

Preliminary design of the instrument took place in the months after the 1971 Summer Lab, and was based on experience



gained during the lab. An attempt was made to build a current meter using the vortex shedding phenomenon. The attempt involved trying to sense the frequency of vibration of a wire placed in a fluid flow. The presence of the wire caused the development of a Karman Vortex Trail. In simplified terms, the periodic lateral displacement of the fluid caused the wire to vibrate at the frequency of the vortex shedding. The attempt was then made to sense this vibration using electromechanical means. Due to the very small displacements and energy transfers involved, little success was achieved. It was decided to increase the dimensions to afford greater ease in detection of the movement of the fluid. A one-inch cylinder was used to generate the vortex trail. Sensing of the frequency of vortex shedding was done by a fin mounted on needle bearings in the flow behind the cylinder. Electrical pickup was accomplished by placing a magnet on the fin and positioning a reed switch close enough to be activated by the magnet. This version provided linear response from three-tenths of a knot to just below two knots with sensitivity to one-tenth of a knot. The instruments' dimensions were approximately two inches by three and one-half inches by six inches.

The primary shortcoming of the instrument was that its range of operation was too high to be considered for use in tidal current surveys. Several things were done in an attempt to lower the range of response. First, the effective Reynolds number of the instrument was increased by providing a venturi at the intake of the meter, thus increasing the current velocity seen by the instrument over that of the ambient flow. Little improvement was noted. It is believed that the force imparted to the sensing fin by the fluid movement was of the same order as the force exerted by the magnet on the reed switch, so the sensing of the movement of the fin was relegated to a photo cell rather than the proximity switch and magnet. Tests demonstrated an extension in the effective range of instrument down to about three inches per second. It was still apparent that more energy must be imparted to the wake to obtain greater sensitivity. To achieve this end, an ellipse replaced the cylinder. It was oriented with

the major axis perpendicular to the flow. It had been observed that the ellipse generates a wake that is wider than its greates: dimension whereas the wake of a cylinder is roughly the same width as its diameter. The meter now showed a response down to one inch per second (1/20 of a knot) under test tank conditions. 7.1.7 Fabrication

The physical layout of the meter is shown in Figure 7.2. The fin in the wake of the cylinder responds to the movement of the fluid. This lateral movement becomes a rotational movement of the wires used to support the fin. The interposer, rigidly attached to the upper supporting wire moves back and forth between the photocell and light source, which modulates the output of the oscillator. The prototype instrument had dimensions of two inches by six inches by twenty inches. The large length was provided in an attempt to reduce turbulence encountered by the ellipse caused by the leading edges of the duct. All electronics, except the photocell and light source, are designed to be on the surface, thus limiting the amount of waterproofing that must be accomplished. The light source and photocell were cast in plexiglass with their individual leads connected to a four-wire hydrophone cable to the surface. These connections were sealed by simply dipping the soldered joints in fiberglass resin. No trouble was encountered in this method of waterproofing. The original system design called for the meter to be cornected to an analog-to-digital converter which would feed digit data to a recorder. This equipment was not ready for use, however, so a simpler method of providing recordable signals was The photocell, having a change in resistance which was used. dependent on the change in light to which it was exposed, was used as part of an astable multivibrator. As the resistance changed, the output frequency of the multivibrator changed. A frequencies were in the audio range and were easily recorded. As was mentioned earlier, the data was readily reduced aurally. This configuration results in a signal which is frequency-modulated at the rate with which the ellipse sheds vortices.



Figure 7.2 Karman Vortex Trail Meter Layout

7.1.8 Calibration

Calibration was carried out, using the instrument towing carriage of the wave tank in the Hydrodynamics Lab at M.I.T. This was used in preference to the ship model towing tank, due to the very low control speeds which could be achieved. Response of the meter from one inch per second to twelve inches per second was obtained. Calibration data is shown in Figure 7.3 along with a curve showing theoretical response. The theoretical curve is based on the following empirical formula relating frequency of vortex shedding to fluid velocity:

$$n = \frac{SV}{d}$$

where n is frequency, S is the Strouhal number, V is the velocit and d is the characteristic diameter (the major axis of the ellipse, 1-7/16"). The Strouhal number is constant in this regime of Reynolds number (greater than 1000). After the conch sion of operations in Castine, the ship model towing tank was used to determine the angular response of the unit to test the feasibility of using the instrument as a current direction ind cator. It was hoped that the response would be such as to all two of the instruments to be mounted in a fixed position at right angles to each other to give vectoral information as well as data about the magnitude of the current. Tests showed that the response of the instrument intercepting the current flow at angles of greater than thirty degrees was too poor to allow sw a configuration.

7.1.9 Meter Implacement

The mooring of the current meter is designed to be as s ple as possible. To maintain a stationary position a fifty-po weight is used at the bottom. A line runs directly up to the meter at the desired height above the bottom and is fastened rigidly to the housing about eight inches from the leading ed# on the underside of the instrument. Leading upward from the same position on the top of the housing is a line to a submer# float. This float maintains the vertical position of the met A short line is attached on the float line and leads to the w of the instrument to keep it horizontal. The electrical cable





Karman Vortex Trail Current Meter Calibration Curve

(for power and data transmission) is attached at various points to the instrument support cable and is supported at the surface by its own float and a five-quart pressure cooker which provides the watertight housing for the electronics and recorder. A retrieving line is attached to the submerged float and again supported by a surface buoy. No trouble was experienced with this mooring for this instrument. It appeared to allow adequate freedom for the instrument to orient itself with the current flow and showed no sign of drifting off station. 7.2 Impeller-Driver a

7.2 Impeller-Driven Current Meter

7.2.1 Objective

The objective of this project is the development of a compact and reliable current velocity measuring device utilizing an impeller. Several general design criteria were established: (1) The instrument must be capable of being set and monitored without diver assistance; (2) the output of the instrument must be recordable on magnetic tape; and (3) data reduction must be convenient.

7.2.2 Background

An impeller current velocity measuring device was designe for the 1971 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory (see Figure 7.4). This device consisted of a seven-inch-diameter cylindrics housing made of plexiglas tubing, a 24-inch-diameter impeller fashioned from fiberglas, a plexiglas shaft which was driven by the impeller and turned a 5-inch-diameter disc (also fabricated of plexiglas) in which 60 small holes had been drilled at equal intervals on a circumference of four and one-half inches. The disc was used to alternately shadow and expose a photocell to a light source. The unit proved to be cumbersome and unreliable; hence a redesign was undertaken.

The design of the 1972 impeller current velocity meter incorporates many improvements. These include: reduction in size and bulk, an improved impeller, and a better harness (used in securing the meter to the mooring). In the redesign a light source and sensing device (photocell) are sealed in the flanges fore and aft of the impeller hub. The impeller hub has several holes drilled parallel to its axis through which light passes



Figure 7.4 Impeller Current Meter (1971 Version)

Page 64

.

when one of the holes is lined up with the light source and the sensing device. In this way several pulses are received from the meter for each revolution of the impeller, permitting accurate readings at low current velocities. The leads from the light source and the sensing device are led into a hydrophone cable, and through the cable to the surface instrument package. The instrumentation package was placed in a pressure cooker which also served as a float. The pressure cooker contained a motorcycle battery, a small amplifier for the signal from the meter, a clock, and a cassette recorder.

7.2.3 Calibration of the Impeller Current Meters

The current meters were calibrated in the M.I.T. towing tank. The major problem which had to be overcome was that the fluorescent lighting in the towing tank interfered with the photocells in the transparent current meters. This was rectified by shutting off the lights in the towing tank during calibration runs. The current meters were painted black before they were shipped to Castine, Maine, to prevent the ambient light from interfering with the operation of the meters when they were moored at the test sites.

The calibration procedure for the three meters constructed in preparation for the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory consisted of towing the meter at speeds of from 0.2 knots to 1.5 knots and employing a frequency counter to ascertain the pulses per second received from the photocells for each speed. It should be noted that the calibration results from all three meters are identical. The empirical correlation between the pulses per second and the speed is:

speed (knots) = 0.25 + 0.53 (pulses/second)
7.2.4 Mooring

The mooring of the current meter is fairly simple (see Figures 7.5 and 7.6). A 50-pound block is used as an anchor. A line is passed up from the anchor to the meter and then to a float with 25 pounds of buoyancy moored just beneath the surface. Thus there is a 25-pound tension in the line at all times. A slack line attached to the hydrophone cable is led to the instrument package floating on the surface. A buoy is attached to the





subsurface float to mark the meter. This arrangement permits the cassette to be changed without disturbing the current meter. 7.2.5 Conclusions

The meters performed as designed. The problem with ambient light interfering with the photocells was overcome by making the flanges and impeller hub opaque. A problem developed with mooring harness in that the meter was attached at its center of gravity and when it was raised or lowered it tended to try to rotate until its axis lined up with the mooring line. In one such case the impeller of one meter was broken.

7.2.6 Recommendations

The mooring arrangement should be redesigned to correct the deficiency exhibited when the meter is raised or lowered during implantation or retrieval. A device that will measure current direction should be devised to act as a companion instrument so that both current direction and velocity can be measured at any given instant and recorded.

7.3 Current Direction Indicator

7.3.1 Objective

The major inadequacy of the current metering equipment became apparent during the initial weeks of the project. This inadequacy lay in the inability of the meters to distinguish current direction. It was decided that a companion instrument capable of yielding data on current direction was required. Two basic criteria were established: (1) The instrument should not require diver assistance; and (2) the output should be compatible with the digital recorder which was under development for use with the current meters.

7.3.2 Background

During the 1971 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory, construction of a current direction indicator was attempted using a variable capacitor which tuned an oscillator circuit whose output was recorded in analog form (see Sea Grant Report No. MITSG 72-3). The instrument housing and capacitor were moored in a fixed position and a vane (which was allowed to swing with the current) varied the capacitor position. This proved very cumbersome, since it required a three-point moor, a buoying system to maintain the indicator's position vertical, pressurization of the instrument, and considerable diver assistance. The large frictional resistance between the capacitor's shaft and the watertight seals caused problems.

The requirement that the direction indicator be a companion to the current velocity metering devices caused a drastic departure from the concept of the current direction indicator attempted in 1971. The primary changes in design criteria were as follows:

- 1) Since the housings of current velocity meters rotate to maintain their alignment with the current, then the housing of the current direction indicator must also rotate and the sensing device must maintain a constant orientation (as the sensing device in a gyro or magnetic compass). In the 1971 design the housing maintained a constant orientation and the sensing device oriented itself to align with current.
- 2) Since the data transmitted from the current velocity metering devices are in digital format, the data transmitted from the current direction indicator must also be in digital format to permit the use of the same recording and data reduction equipment. In the 1971 design the data were transmitted in an analog format.
- 3) Since the designs of the current velocity meters were based upon a criterion of minimal diver involvement, this criterion must also be invoked in the design of the current direction indicator. As has been previously stated, the 1971 design required extensive diver services.

7.3.3 <u>Results</u>

To meet the design criterion that the housing of the cur rent direction indicator must rotate and the sensing element must maintain a constant orientation, the principle of the magnetic compass card was utilized. It was recognized that four binary bits will permit the transmission of sixteen digital

-69-

information bits. This characteristic can be utilized to identify digitally sixteen 22-1/2° sectors. It is believed that, for this application, further refinement of current direction would not be sufficiently useful to justify the additional complexity of additional binary bits.

A magnetic compass card was fabricated. Four concentric circles were drawn on the card and interrupted slots were cut on the concentric circles such that rotation of the compass card with respect to the housing would alternately interrupt or pass light from one side of the card to one or more of the four photocells located in a radial line on the opposite side of the card and spaced to coincide with the four concentric circles. The sixteen sectors are identified digitally by determining which of the four photocells are exposed to the light source.

The instrument did not reach the test stage due to the late starting date. The housing is a four-inch i.d. plexiglas tube with end caps three-quarters of an inch thick fitted with O-ring seals. The final version of the compass card uses two permanent alnico magnets and is mounted on needle bearings. The sensing unit's functional resistance to rotation was very small, but it was sufficient to affect the reliability of the orientation of the card with respect to the earth's magnetic field. The lightsensing unit was put together and tested in the housing. No problems were found in sensing the card position using this method. However, it was discovered that a small amount of iron in one of the photocells affected the magnets on the card. 7.3.4 Conclusion and Recommendations

The success of the sensing method makes further attempts at development of this instrument attractive. A compass card with stronger magnetic units and less rotational friction is required. If fabrication proves too difficult, a commercial compass card can be adapted. If photocells which do not affect the compass card cannot be obtained, then perhaps light pipes can be used in the proximity of the card. Completion and testing of the digital recorder and the interfacing circuitry is yet to be accomplished.

7.4 Oxygen and pH Meters

7.4.1 Objective

The ambitious sampling project encompassed by the Holbron Cove Survey made the automation of the measurement of the environmental factors extremely attractive. The objective of this project is to provide instrumentation that will make the measure ment of the oxygen content and pH of water samples a simple, accurate procedure.

7.4.2 Background

During the 1971 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory, preliminary measurement of dissolved oxygen concentrations were made using the Winkler iodometric titration method. This prove to be time-consuming and laborious. In planning the biological investigation related to determining the effect of the Callahar mine outfall upon the ecology of Holbrook Cove, it became apparent that it would be necessary to monitor all environmental conditions including the concentrations of dissolved oxygen in and the pH of each water sample. It was therefore decided to obtain a polarographic oxygen electrode and to construct an oxygen meter for use with this electrode. In addition, a simple design for a pH meter was noted in the November 1968 edition of <u>Popular Electronics</u> and it was decided to construct this device for use in the survey.

7.4.3 <u>Results</u>

Both the oxygen and pH meters were constructed. Due to: limitations of time, the oxygen meter was not used. The pH me: was constructed, but the proper microammeter was not available and the project's volt-ohm meter was substituted. This substit tion proved unsatisfactory due to the high impedance of the vol: ohm meter rendering the meter deflections too small to permit determination of the pH of the water samples to the desired limits of accuracy. The meter was tested in buffer solutions whose pH values were 4.0, 7.0 and 10.0 and the readings appears to be correct within the limits of accuracy permitted by the volt-ohm meter.

1

7.4.4 Conclusions

Both meters appear to be operational and require only minor modification (in the case of the pH meter) for increased accuracy, and calibration (in the case of the oxygen meter). They will greatly simplify the measurements of oxygen content and pH.

7.4.5 Detailed Description of the Oxygen Meter and Probe

The polarographic oxygen probe consists of a silver tube whose diameter is one centimeter which acts as an anode and contains a gold cathode at its center. This cathode is maintained at a constant voltage of -0.8 volts with respect to the anode. Both the anode and cathode are coated with either teflon or polyethylene which permits only the gaseous oxygen to diffuse through the coating to the electrodes. This coating prevents the other ions present in sea water from coming in contact with the electrodes. The space between the teflon (or polyethylene) film and the cathode is filled with a fifty percent normal solution of potassium hydroxide.

Conductance between the anode and cathode is produced by the following chemical reaction:

At the gold cathode

```
4 electons + 0<sub>2</sub> -- 4 OH
  (Thus, one mole of oxygen produces the flow
   of four electrons)
```

At the silver anode

4 Ag + 4 OH -- 2 Ag_2O + 2 H_2O + 4 electrons

(Thus, the conductivity between the anode and cathode is proportional to the oxygen concentration)

The purpose of the oxygen meter is to translate the conductance at the oxygen meter probe to a voltage which can then be read on a standard voltmeter. The operation of the oxygen meter is a follows (see Figure 7.7).

 A reference voltage is obtained by adding in series a silicon diode and a germanium diode forming a voltage drop of 1.0 volts, which is nearly independent of current flow.



. .

- 2) The reference voltage (1.0 volts) is maintained at the inverting input of the first stage of the operational amplifier by virtue of its high gain (200,000) and using negative feedback.
- 3) An output voltage is developed when the conductance of the probe permits current to flow through the thermistor. The output voltage is directly proportional to the current flow and hence to the oxygen concentration at the probe.

In order to calibrate the oxygen meter, the following procedure is used:

- 1) Disconnect the oxygen probe from the oxygen meter and check to be sure the voltmeter readout indicates zero voltage. If the voltmeter does not indicate zero voltage, place the oxygen meter switch in the "null" position and adjust the first stage offsetnull variable resistance pot until the voltmeter indicates zero volts.
- 2) Place the oxygen meter switch in the "on" position and adjust the second stage offset-null variable resistance pot until the voltmeter again indicates zero volts.
- 3) Plug the oxygen probe into the oxygen meter. Check to be sure that the oxygen meter switch is in the "on" position. Place the probe in a solution of known oxygen concentration and adjust the calibration variable resistance pot until the voltmeter indicates a voltage that corresponds to the oxygen concentration of the solution being used for calibration.
- 7.5 Automated Data Recorder

7.5.1 Objective

The objective of this project is the design and construction of an automated system to: a) convert analog data to digital format; b) record the converted data on magnetic tape; and c) automatically transcribe the recorded data onto IBM cards for data processing. The system is to have the capability of receiving, converting and recording from several sensors during any given time span. 7.5.2 Background

Plans for the Holbrook Cove Survey called for the deployment of current velocity meters at several locations and to lear these instruments in place to measure current data over considerable time spans. It did not appear practicable to expect an operator to man these instruments and record the data manually. In addition, it was anticipated that a great many observations were to be recorded and the time and effort involved in transcribing this information from analog format into machinereadable digital format seemed prohibitive.

7.5.3 Results

The automated data recorder is designed and various of the elements have been constructed and tested. The concept appears attractive and feasible although there are still technical difficulties to be overcome.

The automated system consists of several units. These inch

- 1) Encoder (one for each sensor)
- Decoder (one for each automated system)
- 3) Recorder (one for each automated system)
- 4) Power Supply (one for each automated system)

The encoder circuit has two major states: analog to digita conversion and data recording. The encoder is designed as a "bus" instrument to allow for general multiplexing of any number of sensors. During the first major state, the time (in seconds) since the initializing pulse which cleared all counters and flip-flops is displayed on the "bus" lines. Each sensor's output has its own counter which keeps a running count of the sensor's impulses until the end of an interval determined by the time signals on the "bus" and a gate. Near the end of MS1 (majc state 1), a tape recorder is turned on to allow the tape to come up to speed. By the beginning of MS2 all analog to digital conversions are complete and the recording on the cassette tape recorder can begin. The method chosen is based on the standard technique involved in low-speed remote computer terminals. data from each sensor's counter is sampled in turn and converted to the serial form: start bit, 8 data bits (msb first), 2 stop bits. The bits are recorded on the tape by the method of

i.

Frequency Shift Keying (FSK) in which one tone indicates a zero, a second tone indicates a one. This transmission is terminated by a data word of 377octal which serves as an end-of-record mark.

The decoder is in two sections. The first is a standard teletype line receiver similar to the one used by Digital Equipment Corporation in their Logic Handbook. The second part converts the eight bits derived from the first part to two hexidecimal characters in Hollerith format. These characters are sent to the relay drivers which cause the relays to simulate a person punching the keys of an IBM 029 keypunch.

No special requirements are imposed on the magnetic tape recorder by the encoder and decoder. The application of the automated data recording system, however, makes it mandatory that it be compact, reliable, and conserve electrical energy. The speed of the capstan drives should be independent of the power supply voltage.

The power supply is any 12-volt dc electrical source. A motorcycle battery was utilized during the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory.

Since the automated system was not completed, a substitute circuit was designed and utilized (see Figure 7.8). This circuit is a standard astable multivibrator, except that one of the timing resistors is replaced by a photoresistor. In addition, a resistor has been added in series with the photoresistor to prevent the resistance in this path from becoming such a small value that oscillation ceases. Astable multivibrators will not commence oscillation if both transistors are saturated. To prevent this condition from occurring, the timing components were selected to insure that they were extremely asymmetrical. The purpose of this circuit is to convert the electrical pulse (generated when the current velocity meter photocell is exposed to its light source) into a voltage which oscillates in the audio range. This oscillating voltage was then used by the magnetic tape recorder to record the pulse as an audible tone on the magnetic tape.



7.5.4 Conclusions

The automated data recorder system is technically feasible. The primary problems encountered are fairly mundane. The power consumption must be decreased if the system is to be operated over the time spans envisioned. The timing and recording components must be reduced in physical size.

The FSK transcriber requires additional design work. Its major problem is that a scheme to generate signals to activate the "skip" and "card release" functions on the IBM 029 keypunch must be worked out.

The substitute astable multivibrator circuit worked, but was not problem-free. The primary problems centered about the photoresistor, which was affected by ambient light conditions. This sometimes caused a frequency change in the audible tone and on other conditions it prevented oscillations.

7.5.5 Recommendations

It is believed that perfection of the automated data recording system will make a significant contribution to the oceanographic data-gathering effort. For this reason, it is recommended that this project be continued.

It is recommended that a redesign substituting MOS logic for the existing TTL logic be undertaken to reduce power consumption. This redesign will also make the recorder less sensitive to the power supply voltage.

A review of the frequency and time length of data samples should be made since both affect the power consumption of the data recorder system.

7.6 Tide Gauge

7.6.1 Objective

The objective of this project is to design and construct an instrument which will accurately measure and record the fluctuations in the water height during the tidal cycle. This instrument is to be capable of continuous operation for at least 24 hours and is to be able to operate in all weather conditions. 7.6.2 <u>Background</u>

In conjunction with the measurements of current flows in Holbrook Cove, it was desirable to obtain a measurement of the water height at both the southern and northwestern entrances to the Cove simultaneously. These measurements, which would require the construction of two instruments, would then be used to determine the relative importance of each entrance during the ebbing and flooding tides. After this was determined, it was planned to move one instrument to various sites within the Cove in an effort to further establish the tidal flood and ebb patterns of the Cove.

7.6.3 Results

Due to time limitations, only one instrument was machined in time for field testing. These tests, which occurred during the final days at Maine Maritime Academy, were disappointing because they yielded no accurate data and demonstrated that the machine, as designed and constructed, did not meet the design criteria.

The data obtained from these tests more closely approximated a step function than the expected sine function. A possible explanation for this behavior is that the internal friction of the machine could not be overcome by the small forces generated by the minute tidal changes. Thus, only when the summation of these forces became greater than some critical value, determined by the frictional forces of the apparatus, would the machine begin to scribe, rapidly dissipating the accumulated tidal force. 7.6.4 Conclusions

While the initial results obtained from this machine were unacceptable, the prototype did indicate many specific areas of the design which, if modified, would allow an instrument capable of performing the desired function to be produced. Fundamental to these changes is the consideration of internal friction and the selection of best methods to minimize this force.

7.6.5 Recommendations

ų,

The design of this apparatus is best considered as comprised of two components: The first component utilizes a Westcl clock mechanism to power a rotating drum upon which a continuous graph may be scribed; and the second component which reduces (scales) the vertical displacement of the tide and uses the tidal energy to drive a scribe which marks upon the rotating drum. To shield this entire component from the weather, it is entirely encased in a plexiglas case. The details of the first component, which are found in Figure 7.9, show the rotating drum mounted on a combination thrust and radial bearing and driven by a pulley/belt arrangement by the clock mechanism. A better design would be to utilize a horizontal drum mounted by radial bearings on both ends of the drum. This double mounting will prevent any radial displacement of the drum when subjected to the pressure of the scribe and the consequent binding which occurs when only one bearing is used. Another improvement which suggests itself is the utilization of microchain and sprockets to rotate the drum. This will overcome the slippage inherent in a pulley/belt arrangement at very small angular velocities. A further time check could be provided by a clock-activated scribe, activated at regular time intervals.

The second component, as shown by Figure 7.9, is comprised of a weight and a float suspended from a large sprocket by a chain. The weight and float are designed to travel vertically with the tide, rotating the sprocket wheel, which subsequently drives a small pinion gear against a movable rack which is displaced vertically one-fifteenth the amount of the displacement caused by the tide. Affixed to this rack is a scribe which stays in contact with the drum continuously. If the vertical rotating drum is replaced by a horizontal rotating drum, the rack and pinion assembly can be replaced by an assembly utilizing a screw-activated scribe, which should be an improvement.

As was previously indicated, the primary obstacle to the machine functioning properly is that insufficient energy is generated by small tidal displacements to cause the machine to scribe continuously. As shown in Figure 7.9, the weight and float are both suspended within tubes for the purpose of damping out any local surface disturbances on the water surface. As shown, a float is placed in a tube open to the sea, while a counterweight is placed in a tube sealed to the sea. This arrangement allows the float to rise and fall with the water admitted to its tube. It is apparent that the top and bottom positions of the float during slack tide define the conditions critical to the proper functioning of the tide gauge. These



critical conditions are summarized in Figure 7.10. The results of the tests during the Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory and careful examination of Figure 7.10 lead to the conclusion that both the float and the weight must be increased in size if the gauge is to function as designed. An obvious method of accomplishing this is to utilize a large doughnut-shaped float circumscribing a large sealed tube in which a counterweight is suspended. This improvement would tend to minimize the nonlinearity of the system indicated by the equations in Figure 7.12. The nonlinearity can also be eliminated by properly calibrating the tide gauge.

7.7 Detailed Bottom Topography of Holbrook Cove

7.7.1 Objective

The objective of this project is to obtain the data required to build a detailed topographical model of the bottom configuration in Holbrook Cove. As a first step it is necessary to define the water height above mean lower low water as a function of time.

7.7.2 Background

It has been noted that some of the prominent bottom features such as rocks and shoals are not indicated on the charts of Holbrook Cove. In order to rectify this deficiency, a careful and systematic program of taking and recording soundings, using a small boat and lead line, is planned.

7.7.3 Results

During the 1972 Summer Ocean Engineering Laboratory there was time to complete only the first step, i.e., prepare a nomogram (see Figure 7.11) that will permit the prediction of water height above mean lower low water as a function of time. During the process of checking this nomogram against observed tide heights at the dock of the Maine Maritime Academy, it was discovered that the scope of the tide was about 12 inches greater than would be predicted using the Coast and Geodetic Survey Tide Tables. An example of the use of Figure 7.11 is in Appendix C. 7.7.4 <u>Conclusions</u>

The tide height observations at the dock at the Maine Maritime Academy agreed with the predictions calculated using





L.

the nomogram. Based upon the observations, it appears that the corrections to tide height for Castine, Maine (as indicated in the Coast and Geodetic Survey Tide Tables), are in error. The correction for High water should read +1.7 vice +0.7.

7.7.5 Recommendations

1

(a) A second s second sec second s second s second se

The first step in the process of building the topographical model of the bottom configuration of Holbrook Cove is completed with the preparation of the nomogram. It is recommended that the nomogram be used to correct soundings taken in the subsequent phases of the project to obtain water heights corresponding to mean lower low water depths.

7.8 Bottom Sample Corer

7.8.1 Objective

The purpose of this project is to design, build, and test a corer to obtain bottom mud samples. The corer should be inexpensive and easy to operate.

7.8.2 Background

There were two reasons for choosing this project. One was to obtain experience in designing and building a piece of oceanographic equipment; the second was to produce a corer that would be available for use in the ocean engineering program at Maine Maritime Academy.

7.8.3 Results

In the actual test in Holbrook Cove, the unit was lowered into the water to check the balance. It was then lowered until the messenger hit bottom, allowing the corer to fall. When the corer was released, it was observed that the line holding the tripping device, corer and messenger became taut and then went slack. When the unit was retrieved, it was discovered that the line attaching the corer to the tripping device had been severed. The boat used for this test had not been moored and the test site was not buoyed. All attempts to locate the corer failed. 7.8.4 Conclusions

Judging from the observations of the line holding the tripping device, corer and messenger, the corer penetrated the bottom and would have permitted the retrieval of a core if it had not been lost. The design of the corer should be modified to provide for a steel wire leader for attachment of the corer to the tripping device.

7.8.5 Recommendations

Future tests of this device should be conducted only after the boat has been moored and the site suitably marked so that, in the case of severed lines, the lost units may be located and retrieved. The basic design appears sound, although it is not possible to state whether or not the samples retrieved using the corer would be sufficiently undisturbed to permit an accurate reconstruction of the boundaries and depths of the sedimentary layers.

7.8.6 Detailed Procedure

N 1

The corer consists of a body composed of an internal pipe and an external pipe. On the ends of these pipes are two fittings called the head and tail. These fittings are threaded to fit on the ends of both pipes. They are designed in such a manner that the outer pipe will take the stress and the internal pipe will retrieve the sample. Once obtained, the sample is removed by pushing the sediment out with a push rod which consists of a wooden tip the same diameter as the internal pipe and a rod longer than the pipe.

On one end of the tripping device is a messenger and on the other side, the corer. The tripping mechanism and arm are all designed so that the whole device, with corer and messenger, will balance in the water. When the device is lowered, the messenger, which has 35 feet of line extended ahead of the corer, touches the bottom and allows the tripping arm to rotate and the corer to fall to the bottom a distance equal to the messenger line length plus four feet (the length of the corer). Once the corer hits the bottom, the whole unit is raised and the sample removed.






-89-

APPENDIX A

DROGUE BODY COMPUTER PROGRAMS

APPENDIX A

The first computer program is modified solely by input data. There is no need for a modification of the source program.

One of the first data cards is a parameter decision card specifying which options the user of the program wishes to utilize. This is stated in the program listing. The flow chart points out the various combinations of options possible. Comment cards are permitted at certain points to keep track of special data.

One possible option is the use of data-smoothing subroutines. The preferred smoothing subroutine is spline fit. Spline fit approximates an idealized drafting spline curve through the data positions. If the number of equations (positions) is too small to permit the use of a spline, a least-squares fit subroutine is used.

Another important option is the IAXIS parameter which rotates the axis such that the X coordinates can be plotted and calculated as a function of the Y coordinates.

The spline and least-squares subroutines compute the Y coordinates as a function of the X coordinates. A reversal in buoy velocity will cause infinite looping in the spline and leastsquares subroutines since they will yield two or more values of Y for one value of X. If a buoy reverses direction, the program will terminate the buoy path and restart it in the opposite In cases of vorticity (in the Holbrook Cove Survey), direction. many restarted paths resulted. In those cases, it was specified on the decision card that no interpolated values were desired and that all broken segments should be connected. Because the spline fit subroutine allows the user to specify the placement of the constraints on the equations, the user sometimes supplied cards listing the position of constraints and/or position of output points desired. If the user wished to place the constraint or position of output points, he specified a positive number of constraints and output points, with the positions given in X coordinates. If the user wished the program to pick the positions, a negative number was specified. If a buoy backtracked, the program itself decided on a number of constraints and output points, and the placement of each.

In order to graphically represent velocities in addition to pathlines, two subroutines placed either a tickmark for times or a line through two or more buoy paths, depending on user specification (e.g., if the distance between ten-minute tickmarks decreased, the buoy was traveling slower. If the distance increased, the buoy was traveling faster).

In the numerical printout part of the program, two types of velocities were computed: a backwards difference velocity and a centered difference velocity. The backwards difference velocity is computed by dividing the distance between the position under consideration and the position at the previous observation by the difference between the time of the observation of the position under consideration and the time of the previous observation. The centered difference velocity is computed by dividing the sum of the distances between the position under consideration and the positions of the previous observation and the next subsequent observation by the sum of the differences between the times of observation of the position under consideration and the times of the previous and next subsequent observations. The subroutine STOREC could be further modified to allow a least-squares or other velocity approximation if the user wished to modify the source.

All sorts, with the exception of TSORT, are interchange sorts, as the number of sorted items cannot exceed 99. The limit on the number of buoys' segments is explained by the fact that the program considers each buoy segment caused by backtracking to be a separate and equal segment (e.g., in the case of vorticity, a buoy input with 99 points may be composed of 20 or more segments, etc.). TSORT takes an already sorted list and puts them in ascending order, in the event that they were originally in descending order.

There are a few limits and constraints that are intrinsic in the source program, and to be changed require the source to be modified. Numerical limits are listed. Other major limits not listed follow. The IWARN array is a controlling factor in the dumping of input constraints and output positions for the interpolation routines and timelines. If a buoy backtracks, IWARN for that particular buoy is activated. This means that all input constraints are dumped and replaced and that timelines are not allowed on any of the segments (tickmarks are).

Spline is used in all cases except where the number of points is too close to the number of equations. Then, and only then, is least squares used.

DROGUE BODY COORDINATE AND VELOCITY CALCULATION COMPUTER PROGRAM

.RT, IFIN, YIN(40,95), ITIME(40,99), NDKA, NDUT, XDK(20), XING(99), 199), XAUT(500), YELT(500), NIN, ITMAPK, ICANET, ISTPLN, IACICH, XINT,	MA1N0003
INCRCT, JUSIN, IMLINE V / ARFAI/ IHFLP	MAIN0004 Main0005
NI / AREAZ/ XMAX, XMIN, YMAX, YMIN	MAIN0006
N ZAPFAINTCHAP, MASTAR 3 CHAR1.CHAR2.CHAP3.CHAR4.CHAR5.TCHAP.CHAR21.CHAR22.CHAR23.	ROCONIAM BOCONIAM
4 • CHAR25	MAIN0009
AL*1 MIWSAR(9),IFLT(9)	MAIN0010
CTER VARIARLES	MAIN00112 MAIN0012
	MA [NU013
NZARFAJZ EMERGENCY ESCAPE CLAUSE Mizariaj mavini k dihenetan sijes	MA N0014 MATMOD15
N/AREA7/ HIGH CF LOW TIDE CHARACTERS AND TIME	MAINOO16
	4AIN0017
UTINES AND FUNCTION LIST	MAINOOL8
S CALGULATES CURVES THAT INTERSENT POSITIONS AT GIVEN TIMES K calchiates tickmarks on the positions for given times	MAIN0019 Main0020
A SPLINE FIT CURVE	MAIN0021
SOLVES EQUATIONS GIVEN TO IT BY DUCK IN A LEAST SQUARES WAY	MA I N 0022
PLACES THE PARITION OF THE CONSTRAINTS FOR CURVES BY DUCK	4A IN0023
EXAMINES THE POSITIONS OF THE CONSTRAINTS WILL VOID THEM	MAIN0024
K WILL PRINT DUT THE POSITIONS OF THE CONSTRAINTS	MAIN0025
P PREPARES EQUATIONS AND SOLVES FOR A LEAST SQUARES FIT	MAIN0026
Z M.I.T. (OMPUTER MATHLIB LEASI SQUARES FIL	
L [34] SAM FUK THE SULUTIONS IN SIMULIANCOUS ENGATIONS Detate of the colation coefficients used in Seline And LEAST	920001 AF
	MAIN0030
F CALCULATES AT REGULAR INTERVALS THE DUTPUT POSITICNS	MAINDOBI
. SPECIAL SORT PLACES INPUT POINTS IN ASCENDING ORDER IF THEY	MAIN0032
NPUTTED IN DESCENDING ORDER	MA [N 00 33
A STANDARD INTEPCHANGE SORT	MA 1N0034
INTERCHANGE SCHEIWITH A LAG-A-LUNG AKKAY Andres and so soints indui doints	MA [N0035

ŧ OUTPUT STOREC CALCULATES CENTERED VELOCITIES AND FUTHER IMPROVEMENTS CUTER PUNCHES OR PRINTS OUTPUT POINTS Degree outputs a degree.Minute number from input degrees

4

1

MAIN0038

MAIN0037

MAIN 0040 9500N I AM MA IN 0043 MAIN0045 MAIN0041 MAIN 3042 441N0044 MA IN0046 MAIN0047 MAIN 0048 MAIN0049 MAIN0050 MAIN0053 MA [NU054 MAIN0051 MA1N0052 MAIN0055 4A IN 00 56 MAIN0058 MA IN0057 ORIGIN IS STATION OF FIRST ANGLES +X IS IN DIRECTION OF NEXT STAT. +CONSTRAINTS INPUT FOR IF JUTPUT DR CONSTRAINTS NEGATIVE PROGRAM CALCULATES ABS () NG. IF TRANSITS USED 0-9C+0 SCALES THEN INPUT 2 DEGREES.MINUTES POSITION OF CUTPUT MUST RE INPUT IF FOUTPUT POINTS INPUTTED POSITIONS MUST BE INPUTTED IN TERMS OF X AND Y COURDINATES MUST BE <= INPUT POINTS -4 ANGLES GREATER THAN SC BUT READING LESS THAN 90 MAX. ND. DUTPUT POINTS 500 POSITIONS OF CONSTRAINTS MUST BE INPUTTED IF HOURHPURMINUTE SECOND SECOND FINAL NO. OF BUOY SECMENTS <= 40 o o DECREES.MINUTES 202 METERS.METER MAX. NJ. INPUT POINTS CONSTRAINTS CN SPLINE MAX. OF CONSTRAINTS LIMITATIONS UNITS ARE:

INITIALIZATION DF VALLES F= .0C01 XMAX=0.0 YMAX=0.0 YMAX=0.0 YMIN=0.0 IHELP=0 KIN=5 K0T=6 KDT=7 IFIRST=1 N3RMAL=2

MA1N0070

MAIN0071 Main0072 2

PAGE

MA I N0069

441N0067 M41N0069

MAIN0059 MAIN0060 MAINJ062 MAIN0063 MAIN0064 MAIND065 MAIND065 MAIND066

MAIN0061

	11. AST1 = 3 124.014=0	MAIN0073
	1.00P=0	7200N1VN
	X51GN1=1.0	
	CC 7777 IME SS=1.40	TTOONIAN MAINOOTO
		MA [N00 78
	IMARN IS 10 SAVE THE REMORY OF WHICH JOBS HAD BROKEN BUNNY PATHS	MAIN0079
	THIS INFUT IS USED FOR DESTROYING CONSTRAINT AND OUTPUT CATA AND	MAIN008C
	THE FAR TO ALLARS LIMELINES ON THE REASON THAT IT WILL BACKTRACK	MAIN0081
	TH FAR THE ALLOW A FUNCTIONIXI TO FXIST PREVENTS A BLOW-UP Throwstreetien	MAIN0082
525		MAINOOB3
-		MA [N0084
	FIRST CARD IS A CHAPACTER COMMENT CARD ANY COMMENT CALLT WILL	ALNOUS MAINORS
	PRINTED AND/CR PUNCHED IN THE DUTPUT	MAINON8
	PEAD (K IN, 1795) CHAR 1, CHAR 2, CHAR 3, CHAR 4, CHAR 5, CHAR 21, CHAR 22, CHAR 23,	MAIN008
	1 CHAF 24, CHAR 25	MAIN0089
		MAIN009(
	PARAMETER INPUT CHILLES	MAIN0091
	PUNET PUNET PUNET PUNET	MA I N0092
		100NIVH
	JUSINET PONOT CALCULATE INTERPOLATION OUTPUT POINTS	MAIN0094
	ICUMETEI CONNECT PROKEN SEGMENTS CAUSED BY BUCY BACKTRACKING	MAIN009
	IAXIS=I X AXIS=-Y AXIS Y AXIS= X AXIS	MAIN0096
	ITMARK=1 CALCULATE TIME TICKMARKS	LOONIAN
	IMLIN™ =I CALGULATE A SMOOTH TIMELINE BY USING SPLINE OR LEAST SOU. Istolmed from the time of the or the or the original from the text	MAIN009
	INTERNAT OF GATENETS THEFT AND OF THE OF EAST CALCULATIONS	MAIN0095
	DEAD (M 14 1404) the main recent recent to show the second	MAINOLO(
	NEW INTERTOOR IN MATURES FOR STORES TO ALS FINARY INCLASSING AND ALS FINARY INCLASSING AND AND AND AND AND AND A	MATNOIO
	WRITE(K")T,1022)	EQ LON T MAT NOT OF
	WRITE(KOT, 1101)	NAINOIO
	WRITE(KOT,1796)CHAR1, CHAR2, CHAR3, CHAR4, CHAR5, CHAR21, CHAR22, CHAR23,	MAINOLOG
	CHAKZ4 PCHARZS	MAINDIO6
	IF (IPUN.NE. UTWAIFE(NFL!, LUL] [F (IPUN.NF. O)WRITF(KPTT.1796)FHAR].FHAR2.FHAR2.FHARE.FHARE	MAINOLOT
		MAINDIO8
		PAGE 3

1

÷

MAINOLO9 MA INOLLO MAINOLLI **MAIN0112** MAIN0113 MAIN0114 MAINO115 MAIN0116 MAINOL17 **MAINO118** 91 IONI AM **MA INO1 20** MAIN0122 MAIN0123 **MAIN0124** MAIN0128 **MAIN0129 MAIN0130 MAIND135** MAIN0140 MA 100143 **MAIN0121 MAIN0125 MAIN0126** MAIN0127 MAINO132 MAIN0133 **MAIN0134 MAIN0136** MAIN0138 MAIN0139 **MAIN0144** MAINOI31 MA I NO1 37 MAINO141 MA I NO1 42 READ (KIN, 1200) DEGTN, BASLN, TCHAR, MMHDUR, MMHIN, MMSEC, MSECA, ANGA, NS EC z IF((XTEMP+YTEMP).GE.3.14159)WRITE(KOT,1301)JOBNJM.ILCOP,ANGA,ANGE DEGREES.MINUTES THAT THE BASELINE FROM DRIGIN IS OFF TRUE WRITE(KOT , 1050) IPUN, INDROT, JUSIN, ICONET, JAXIS, ITMARK, IMLINE, 1 WRITE(KPCT, 1050) IPUN, INDROT, JUSIN, ICONET, LAXIS, ITMARK, IMLINE, Y DIRECTION CONVERSION OF TRUE NORTH DEGREES.MINUTES TO RADIANS YMAX={BASLN+SIN(XTEMP)+SIN(YTEMP))/SIN(XTEMP+YTEMP) F(IAXIS.EQ.1)YMAX=(Y*AX*COS(XTEMP))/SIN(XTEMP) OPTIONAL INPUT OF ANGLES FOR MAX DIMENSION IN OPTIONAL IS NON-CONSTFAINING ON REST OF INPUT XTF MP=(langa+ (anga-I/NGa)*1.666661*.0174533 YTE MP=(I ANGB+ [ANGR-I#NGB]#1.66666)#.0174533 CHECK DN CORRECT INPUT FOR MAX DIMENSIONS INPUT LENGHT OF BASELINE IN METERS.METER IF((XTEMP+YTEMP).6E.3.14159)GOT0 1911 "HIGHTIDE" OR " LOWTIDE" [F((ANGA+ANGB).LT.1.0) GOTD 19]] INPUT TIME OF HIGH OR LOW TIDE [F (N SE CA . EQ . 2) ANG A = 1 8 C. 00-ANG A [F (NSFCB.EQ.2) ANGB=18C.00-ANGB ,CHAR22,CHAR23,CHAR24,CHAR25 NUMBER OF BUOY GROUPS NMI NT= { DEGTN-NDEGTN+E }*1 00. [F(IAXIS.EQ.1)XSIGN!=-1.0 READ(KIN, 1100) NOJOBS NDEGTN=DEGTN+E VA 000= NM [NT / 60 IF (IPUN.NE.0) ANGA=ANGA **ANGR=ANGR 11STRLN 2 I S T R L N P** ANGR INPUT INPUT [NPU] 1911

4

PAGE

00000000000

1

ပပ

C ت

	NOT GITN = NOTGS IA + NADRO	MATNOTAE
	NDE 6TW=NDE6TN-(NDF6TN/360)*360	MAIN0146
		MAIN0147
Ĺ	structure (NUCH INFAMINI/EC.) #.0] [4633	MAIN0148
-•	ARTISKOT, PADIANOSCIA AMENT DISTA TOURNAL TOURNAL TOURNAL TOURNAL	MAIN0149
	MARTING A REPAIR OF A DEPARTICLY ORDER A LEAK, MARTUR, MARIN, 44 SEC, YAAX Multirati arciano interi	MAIN0150
		MAIN0151
2014		MAIN0152
,	WRITSKOT, TERRIGER	MAIN0153
		MAIN0154
Ĺ		MAINOL55
c e	TVPUT NJ. OF SIGHTINGS FOR RUPY AND A MESSAGE	MAINO156
	PTAOLKIM.1300)NIN.0HEEL, CHAR2, CHAR3, CHAR4, CHAR5, CHAR21, CHAR22.	MATNO15R
ı	1CH4k23	MAIN0159
_		MAIN0160
ر	MK11814314154316H441+6H4K2+6H4R3+6H4R3+6H4R4+6H4R5+6H4R21+6H4R22+6H4R23	MAINO161
j		MAIN0162
	MTINETROPECULTITAT MTINETROPENTER	MAIN0163
		MAINO164
	1(HTLF = 0 te ± t et	MAINOL65
00.5		MAINO166
		MAIN0167
		MAINO168
	JUD DGUO ILUUFEIBANINAL TAFICU-A	MAIN0169
		MAI10170
ر		MAINOI 71
	SECTOR FOR TRANGIT AND E ONE	MAIN0172
ې ر	TOANCT ANGE THE ANGER JAR Toanct anger the	MAIN0173
, ر	SEPTOV POD TOARETT ANDIE THO	44 I N 01 74
> ر	TRANCIT ANGE TWO	MAINOL75
: •	TIME OF FIGURED AND FIGURED	MAINO176
د	TIME OF STOHTING MINITES	MAIN0177
: ر	TIME DE SIGHTING SEFENDS	BLIONIVH
: Ļ	SECTOR IS REAMED FLOOR FOR FULL 24A PERFEC	97 ION J AM
2		0810N1VW
		PAGE 5

i.

MAIN0182 MAINOL83 MAIN0184 MAIN0185 MA [NO1 86 MAIN0187 MAINO198 **MAIN0189** MAIN0190 MAINO181 **MAINO194 MAIN0195** MAIN0198 **99 ION I AM MAIN0192** MA I NO1 93 **MAINO196** EAIN0200 **MAIN0191 MAIN0197 MAIN0203** MA [N0205 MA IN0206 MA 110208 MAIN0209 MAIN0214 MA1N0215 **MAIN0216** MAIN0201 MA I N0202 MAIN0204 MAIN0207 MA 1 NO2 10 MAIN0212 MAIN0213 MAIN0211 CALL STOREC(ILAST1, J. ANG1, ANG2, XINT, YINF, THOUR, MINUT, NSEC, MIWSAR, WR I TE (KOT, 16CL) J, ANG 1, ANG2, X ENT, YINT, I HOUR, MINUT, NSEC, (MIWSAR(L), ÷ IF(((ABS(XTEMP+YTEMP)).LT.3.14155).AND.(XTEMP.NE.0.0).ANC.(YTEMP ASUBT=(IHOUP+3600 + MINUT+60 + NSFC) - (MWHOUR+360C + MWMEN+60 READ (KIN+1400) NSEC1 , ANG1 , NSEC2 , ANG2 , [HOUR, MI NUT, NSEC YINT=(BA SLN*SIN(XTEMP)*SIN(YTEMP))/SIN(XTEMP+YTEMP) XTEMP=(IANGI+ (ANGI-I/NGI)*1.66666)*.0174533 YTEMP=(IANG2+ (ANG2-IANG2)*1.66666)*.0174533 lL=1,9),(IELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VELDIRCT CHECK FOR BLANK CARDS ANGLES =0 OR > 190 WRITE(KOT,1301) JOBNLP,ILCOP,ANG1,ANG2 IF (ILPOP . NE . NINAD) WR I IE (KOT , 1201) TCHAR XINT={YINT+COS(XTEMP))/SIN(XTEMP) 1 ILAP, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELCC, DIRCT) IF (NSEC1 * FQ * 2) ANG1 = 1 8C + 00-ANG1 IF (NSEC2.E0.2) ANG 7=1 8C.00-ANG2 [FT TM= THCUR #3600+M INL T*60+N SEC IF(ILCOP.NE.NINAD)GOTC 5679 CALL TIMEPH(NSURT, MINSAR) **CEGREES--> RADIANS** .NE.0.0) GOTC 5500 ILPK I= ILCCP - KOUNT ILOK I= LLOOP - KOUNT CLEAN JUT STORFC CHANGE OF AXIS KOUNT=KOUNT+1 IANG 1= ANG1 IANG2=ANGZ GOTO 5000 1 - d Gu 7 i =f I MWSEC) 5679 500 $\mathbf{\phi}$ ပပ ပမ ပပ \odot

100 A ;

ł

ļ

ŧ

ں

¢

PAGE

	[F(!AX!S.NE.!)GCT0 1512 ST3RAG=YINT YINT=XIMT	MAIN0217 MAIN0218 MAIN0219
с 1912	1F[1LQK1.LE.1]GOT7 55C5	MAIN0221 MAIN0221 MAIN0222
ບບ	CHECK FOR IDENTICAL PCINTS	MAIN0223 Main0224
1	IF(XINT.NE.XIN(JORNUP,(ILOKI-1)))CATA 5505	MAIN0225
	KSUNTEKUUNT + I ILDKT≊TEG0P+KOUNT	MAINUZ27 MAIN0227
	If (ILO)P。NE。NINAD)GOTC 5976 J≢TI SIP-I	MAIN0228 MAIN0229
L .		MAIN0230
<u>ر.</u>	CLEAN JUT STOREC Call Storec (il asti, J. Angi, Angi, Xini, Yini, Ihour, Minui, NSEC, MiwsAR,	MAIN0231 MAIN0232
	ITLAP, ICLT, DIST, VEL, VELC, DIRCT)	MAIN0233
	WRITE(KUT+1601)J+ANG1+ANG2+XINT+YIYI+IHUUK+MINUF+N>EC+EMIMSAKEL+ Di=1.7).fiftij.i=1.4).dist.vet.vet.vet.oc.dipct	MAIN0235
5 G 74	WRITE(KOT+4344) ANGL, ANG2, XINT, YINT, JOBNUM, ILOOP	MA I NO2 36
	IF(ILTOP.NF.NINAD)WPITE(KOT,1201)TCHAR	MAINO237
Ĺ	GUIG 2000	MAIN0239
5505	IF(ILAKI.LT.3)60T0 56C0	MAIN0240
υı		MAIN0241
ب ر	CHECK IN POSSIBLE CHANGE DE DIRECTION BACKWARDS	MAIN0243
، ں	IF TRUE THEN CUT DEF CLD SEGMENT AND BEGIN NEW	MAIN0244
	<pre>If(((XINT.GF.XING([LCK[-1])].AND.(XING([LCK]-1].GE.XING([LCK]+2))))</pre>	MA IN0245
	' "JK"IKINI"LE*AIN"ILLEKITIY.#NU#KAINUALL'NITI'LEATNUKILEATNUKILUKITZ'' Zigité skid	MAIN0247
		MAIN0248
	TLAP=IET[M-IFT[MO	MAIN0249
	D1 S1=SQP1 { (X1w(JUBNUF, (ICUKIT1) + X1W) + + 21+ ((1 1 W(JUDNUF,)) + 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	UCZUNIAM MAINO251
	XNUMER=[YIN(JOBNUM,[ILOKI-I]) - YINT)*(-1.)	MAIN0252
		PAGE 7

.

MAIN0253 MAIN0254 MAIN0255 MAIN0256 MAIN0260 MA [N 02 57 MAIN0258 **MAIN0259 MAI N0261** MAIN0262 MAIN0263 **MAIN0264 MA IN 02 65 MAIN0266 MAIN0267 MAIN0268** MAIN0269 MA I N 02 70 **MA IN 0271** MA [N0273 **MAIN0274** MAIN0275 MAIN0276 MAIN0278 MAIN0279 **MAIN0272** MAIN0280 **MA I NO2 83** MAIN0284 MAIN0285 MA I NO286 MAIN0277 MAIN0281 **MAIN0282** WRITE(KÜT,1601)J,ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,1HOUR,MINUT,NSEC,(MIWSAR(L),L =1.9),(IELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VEL0C,DIRCT WRITE(KUT,1601)J,ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MINUT,NSEC,{MIWSAR(L),L =1,9),(IELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VELOC,DIRCT CALL STOREC (NORMAL, J, ANG1, ANG2, X INT, YINT, HOUR, MINUT, NSEC, MIWSAR, CALL STOREC FILAST1, J.ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MINUT,NSEC,MIWSAR DEGTN1/ .0174533 DEGTN1/ .0174533 AD I S T= SQ R T ((X I N (JOB N L # + LE N (JOB N UM)) - X I N (JOB N U # + L) + + Z) + [F(!AXIS.EQ.0)DIRCT=(-ATAN2(XNUMER, XDENOM) + IF(!AXIS.EQ.1)DIRCT={-ATAN2[XDENCM,XNUMEP] + XDENOM=- (XIN(JUBNUH, (ILOKI-I))-XINT)*XSIGNI IF(ILAP.NE.0)VEL=DIS1/FLOAT(ILAP) *100.0 ., ILAP, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELOC, DIRCT) IILAP, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELCC, DIRCT) POINTS AVERAGE DIRECTION AND VELOUTY IF(JUSIN.EQ.1) WRITE(KCT.1201) WRITE(KOT,1401)JOBNUM, ILOOP TMINN= (DIRCT-NDIRC) #.6 CHECK ON INTERPOLATION CALL TIMEPH(ILAP,IELT) IF(JUS IN.EQ.1) GOTO 5600 CIRCT≈DIRCT + TMJNN CIRCT=DEGREE(DIRCT) LEN(JOBNUM) = ILOKI-I CLEAN OUT STCREC IMARN(JOBNUM)=1 WRITE(KOT,1518) NDIRC=DIRCT DI RCT=NDIRC VE LOC=0.00 VEL=0.00

ပပ

ပပ

 $\circ \circ$

I

. :

ပပ

1 ([YIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBALM])-YIN(JOBNUM,1)) ++2) }

MAIN0288

œ

PAGE

MAIN0287

MAIN0289 MAIN0290 MAIN0291	MAIN0294	MAIN0295 Main0296	MAIN0297 MAIN0298	MAIN0299	MAIN0300 MAIN0301	MAIN0302	MAINO303 MAINDADA	MAIN0305	MAIN0306	MAIN0307	MAIN0303	AD LOUG LO	MAIN0311	AAINO312	MAINUJIS MAINUJIS	MAIN0315	MAIN0316	MAIN0317	SI FONI MA	MAIN0321	MAIN0322	HAIN0323	MAIN0324	PAGE 9
[ATIME=[TIME(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))-ITIME(JCBNUM,1) [F(IATIME.EQ.0)AVEL=C.00 [F(IATIME.NE.0)AVEL=D[IST/FLCAT(IATIME) *100.0 ADIRCT=0.00	<pre>[F(AEIST_NE.C.0)ADIRCT=(-ATAN2((YIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))-YIN(JOBNUM))]+1)].(XIN(JCBNUM,LEN(_CBNUM))-XIN(JOBNUM,1)))+CEGTN)/_0174533 FF(IXIS).00000-3333</pre>	IF (A [I ST . A E	1+111+(YIN(JUBNUM+LEN(LEBNUM))-YIN(JUBNUM+1}))+CEGTN)/+O174533 7372 Call Timeph(Iatime,ie(t)	NOIRCEADIRCT THINNELEDIRCT HOTOCLE	PAINN= (ADIRCI-NUIRCI++0 POIRCT=NDIRC		AUIRCI=DEGREE(AUIRCT) WRITE(KUT,1517)ADIST,(IELT(IZ),12=1,9),AVEL,ADIRCT	NDK={[L_jK]+1]/3	IF (NEK .GT .6)NDK=6		NJU = (1 L UKI + 1) * 3 1 F { 1 C N F T ; FO . 1) L A D 1 C L - 1	IF((IPUN.NE.C).AND.(INCKCT.EQ.0)) CALL PRAPN	<pre>IF([IPUN.E0.c).OR.[INCROT.NE.O))CALL PRINTO</pre>	IF (JUSIN+NE+C) GOTO 5C50	IF(LEN(JCHNUM).GT.1)GCTD 5501		WKITELKUT, I 333) JOBNUP, LEN(JOBNUM)	IFILYUN•NE+UJWKITEIKFLI•1333JJUUNUM,EEN(JCUNUM) Goto forc	SEDI CALL XOUTER	CECISION ON MHICH INTERPOLATION TO USE	IFILEN(JCBNUM).GI.4)G(TO 5502 TABITY-1	LAKTITEL Cali futerolieniinii.taditv.nnhti		

é- ...

GOTO 5503

t

I

Ę

MAIN0325 MAIN0326 MAIN0327 MAIN0328 **MAIN0329** MAINO330 MAI NO332 **JEEONIAH** MAIN0333 **MAIN0334 MA I N0335 MAIN0336** MAIN0337 **MAI N0338 MAIN0339** MAIN0340 **MAIN0344** MA [N0342 MA I N 0346 HAIN0341 MA I N0343 MAIN0345 44IN0347 94EUNIAM MAIN0350 MAIN0356 MAIN0348 MAIN0352 MAIN0353 MAIN0355 MAIN0351 **MAIN0354** MAIN0357 **MAIN0358** HRITE(KOT,1601)J,ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MINUT,NSEC, (MIMSAR(L),L CALL STOREC(IFIRST,J.&NG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MIALT,NSEC,MIMSAR, ESCAPE CLAUSE CAUSED IN CALCULATING THE FOSITIONS CF CONSTRAINTS IF(IFELP.EQ.1)GOTO 9567 CALL DUCK(LEN(JOBNUM]+XINO+YINO,NDK+XDK+NOUT,XCUT,YOUT,IARITY) IF HORE POINTS IN THAS GROUP RESTART BROKEN SEGMENT [F[ICHECK.LT.IABS(NIA))GCTD 7000 11LAP,1ELT,01ST,VEL,VELC,DIRCT] [FIIPUN.NE.OJCALL OUTER PRC1 CALL TIMEPH(ILAP,IELT) WRITE(KOT, 1888)JOBNUF ITIME(JOBNÚM,1)=[ET]# WRITE(KOT, 12C1) TCHAR IF (I PUN. EQ. 0) CALL XINC JOBNUM T J=XINI YIN (JOBNUM, 1)=YINT NINA =NINAD-ILOOP+1 100NUM=JOBNUP+1 NOJOBA=NCJOBA+1 IMARN(JOBNUM)=1 LEN(JOBNUM) = 1 IETIMO=IETIM XINC(I)=XINI 1 NIA = (1) CNIAAUTOD VELDC= 0.00 CIRCT=0.00 CIST=0.00 VEL=0.00 ARI TY=1 ILAP=0 CALL 181=2 1 = 5 502 5503 5050 ں S O

MAIN0360

2

PACE

HALNO359

"=1,9],([ELT(L),L=1,9),DIST,VEL,VELOC,DIRCT

	6010 5423	MATMO241
ى ب	PREVIDUS BLOCK FCR BACKTHACKING BUDYS AND ALL MEASURES FGR	MAIN0362 MAIN0362
J Q Q	REVERTING THE NEXT SEGMENT	MAIN0364 MAIN0364
ں ر	STORAGE CF TIMES FER ISE IN TIMETINES OF THE MANYS	MAI NO366
5 60(ITIME(JOBNUM+ILOKI)=16TIX XINCTICKIS-VINT	MAIN0367 Maino368
	YINC(ILOKI) = YINT	MA I N0369
	XIN(JOHNUM, ILOKI)=XIN]	MAIN0370 MAIN0371
	TINTUORNUMPILEKTJ#YINT TETTOKI.GT.IIGOTO BEEC	MAIN0372
		MAIN0373
	EI ST=0.00	MATA0376 MATA0376
	VEL=0.00	MAIN0376
	VELUCEU.4UU ISTCRF=1	LLEONI W
	clrcr=0.00	MAIN0378
	COTC 5900	MAIN0379
5 600	It=IL0KI-I	MAIN0380
	IL AP= [ET IM-] ET IMO	LBEUNIAM Coconiam
	DI ST#SQRT(ABS({XINT+XIAG({L}))**2+(YINT+YING(L))**2))	20CONTAM MAINO383
	VEL = 0,00	MAIN0384
	IFILLAM●NE●UIVEL≖DISI/FLCAFIILAP)●100●0 PIACT=0.cc	MAIN0385
	IF (DIST.NE.O)DIRCT= (-ATAN2([YINT-VING(TL])). / YINT-VING(TL)). / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /	MAIN0386
	1/.0174533	MAIN0387
	IF(IAXIS.EQ.C)GOTO 83E5	DD CONTAL
	IF(CIST*NE=0)DIRC=(-A1AN2((-XINT+XINC(IL)),(YINT-YINC(IL)))+DEGTA)	PAIN0390
		MAIN0391
8389	NDIRC=DIRCT	MAIN0392
	TMINA= (DIRCT-NDIRC) * • €	MAIN0393
	C 1 R C T = ND I R C	4000364
	CIRCT=DIRCT+TMINN	MAIN0395
		PAGE 11

. ∎

MAIN0399 MAIN0400 MAIN0420 NALNO430 7960NIAM MA [N0398 MAIN0401 **MAIN0402** E040N1AM 4040NIAM MA I N0405 MAIN0406 MA [N0407 MAIN0408 **MA IN0409** MAIN0410 MAIN0413 **MAIN0414** MAIN0415 **MAIN0416** MAIN0417 **MAIN0418** 9140N1AM MA I N0422 MAIN0423 MAIN0424 MA I N 0425 MA I N04 27 **MAIN0428** NA 1 N04 29 FAIN0432 MAIN0412 MA I N0426 **MAIN0411** MA [N0421 MAIN0431 21 PAGE WRITELKOT, 1601) ILUUP, ANG1, ANG2, XINT, YINT, IHOUR, MINUT, NSEC, (MIWSAR(IF(ACIST.NE.Q.O)ADIRC1=(-ATAN2((YIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))-YIN(JOBNUM IF (ACIST.NE..O) ADIRCT=(-ATAN2((-XIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))+XIN(JOBNLM 1#RITE(KOT+16C1)1LUUP,AAG1,AAG2,X{AT,YIAT,IHOUR,MIAUT,ASEC,{MIWSAR(1L),L=1,9),{IELT(L),L=1,9},DIST,VEL,VELOC,DIRCT IF(ILGOP.EQ.NINAD)CALL STOREC(N, ILUUP, ANGI, ANG2, XINT, YINI, IHOUR, CALL STOREC(ISTORE,ILLUP,ANG1,ANG2,XINT,YINT,IHOUR,MINUT,NSEC, [.1])],{YIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JCBNUM)}-YIN(JOBNUM,I))}+DEGTN)/_0174533 AND AVERAGED VELOCITY AND TIME 1,1)),{XIN(JOBNUM,LEN(JOBNUM))-XIN(JOBNUM,1)))+CEGTN)/.0174533 ADIST=SQRT({ (XIN{ JOBNLM, LEN{ JOBNLM) } -XIN (JOBNUP, I))++2)+ MINUT, NS EC, MIWSAR, ILAF, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELC, DIRCT IATIME=ITIME (JOBNUM, LEN (JOBNUM)) -ITIME (JCBNUM, 1) L) , L=1 ,9) , (IELT(L) , L=1,9) , DIST, VEL, VELCC, DIRCT F(IATIME.NE.O)AVEL=ACIST/FLOAT(IATIME) *100.0 I ([YINLJOBAUM,LEN(JOBALP))-YIN(JOBNUM,1))**2)) IMIWSAR, ILAP, IELT, DIST, VEL, VELOC, DIRCT) BY USING FIRST AND LAST PCINTS CALCULATION OF TOTAL CISTANCE IF (IAT IME.EQ.0) AVEL=0.00 9369 CALL TIMEPH(IATIME, IELT) F(IAXIS.EQ.C)G0T0 9365 CALL TIMEPH(ILAP, IELT) CIRCT=DEGREE(DIRCT) IF (I LOOP . EQ. NINAD) LEN(JOBNUM) = ILCKI CLEAN OUT STCREC hRITE(KOT,1518) IF (ILOKI .GT.1) IETIMO=IETIM AD [RCT = 0 . 00 ILUUP=JLCCP CONTINUE ISTCRE=2 ΕΕ< 5000 5500 ပပ S ں ں

ŧ

		MAIN0433
	IMINAFIALIK(F=NCIRCF#_6 #DIRCT=NDIRC	MAIN0434
	#DIRCT=ADIRCT+TMINN	MAIN0435
	ADIPCT=DEGREE(ACIRCT)	MA I N0436
J.	WR[TE(K0],15]7)ADIST,(IELT([2],[2=1,9},AVEL,ACIRCT	ALNU457 MAINO438
5423	JF((IPUN_AE_C)_AND_(IAART,F0.01) CALL DOADW	MAIN0439
	IF([IPUN.EQ.C).OR.(INCRTINE_O))CALL FRAFN	MA I N0440
	IF(JUSIN.NE.C)GOTO 4CCO	MAIN0441
υ		MAIN0442 MAIN0442
5	IF ANY BUOY CROUP HAD TO BE DIVIDED BECALSE CF BACKTRACKING PURVE	
ں ر	THEN THE PRECRAM WILL DESTROY ALL INPUT FOR CONSTRAINTS AND CUTPUT	MAIN0445
ر		MAIND446
	IT (IMAK4 (JUBAUM).EQ.C)6010 5950 KFAD1XIN.1300.Nev	MAIN0447
	NJKA=TAR SINDKI	MA I N0448
	TE (NTKA, FF, ATENT TORNIAL, 2) IN DVA, AF A FAR TORNIAL, AT	MAIN0449
	ND1={NDK+7}/P	MAIN0450
J		MAIN0451
<u>ں</u>	CUMP [NPUT PCINTS	MAIN0452
	IF (NDK . G 7.0) FE AD (K I N . 1700) (DUMP . I= I . ND1)	MAIN0453
	IF((-NDK).GE.(LEN(JCBALM)-3))NDK=-LEN(JOBANUM)/3	4640N16M
	IF((NDK.LE.O).AND.(IAES(NDK).GT.6))NDK=-6	
	IF (NCK A GT 6) NDK A = 5	
	$NDK \mathbf{A} = I A B S (NDK)$	16408184 99308184
	READ (KIN, 130C) NDUT	
	NJUTA=IABS(NCUT)	9240N145
	NOUT1={NCUT+7}/8	MA 1 N0460
L L		MAINU461
J	CUMP INPUT PCINTS	MAINU462
	<pre>If (ACUT* GT* 0)READ(K i N , 1700) (DUMP , [= 1 , NOU T 1)</pre>	
	IF (NCUT.EQ.O)NOUT=+LEP(JCBNUM)*3	MAIN0464 MAIN0445
1		
ں ن	TEALENIA FORMULAR OF A POINT FOR	MAIN0467
		MAINOGH
		PAGE 13
۱		

(

MAIN0469 MAIN0470 MAIN0480 MAIN0485 **MAIN0472** MAIN0473 MAIN0474 MAIN0476 **MAIN0478 MAIN0484** MAIN0486 MA 1N0488 MAIN0489 MAIN0471 44 I N 04 75 7740NIAM MAIN0479 MAIN0481 MA I N0482 **MAIN0483** MAIN0487 0640 NI AM MAIN0491 441N0493 44 I N 0 4 9 6 MA I N 0498 6670NIVH MAIN0500 MA [N0502 MAIN0503 MAIN0504 MAIN0492 MAIN0495 **MAIN0497** NALN0501 MA [N0494 CALL DUCKILENIJOBNUM],XINO,YING,NDKA,XDK,NOUTA,XCUT,YOUT,IARITY) IF(IPUN*NE*0)WRITE(KFCT.1333)JOBNUM,LEN(JCBNUM) IF(NDK.GT.0)READ(KIN,1500)(XDK(I),I=1,NDK) IF((NDK.LE.0).AND.(!AES(NDK).GT.6))NDK=-6 116010 5701 IF({-NDK).LT.(LEN(JOEAUM)-3))G0TC 6969 CALL INTERP(LEN(JOBNUP), JARITY, NCUTA) #RITE(KOT,1333)JOBNUP,LEN(JOBNUM) [f { NCUT . EQ. 0 }NOUT = -L E { (J CBNUM) #3 [F(LEN(JCBNUP).GT.4)6CTD 5602 IF (NDK .EQ.0) NDK=LEN(JCBNUM)/3 [F(LEN(JOBNUP).LT.5)&(TO 5957 F (NCKA. LT. (LEN[JOBNLP]-3 IF(IPUN.NE.O)CALL CUTER IF(IHELP.EQ.1)GOTO 9587 F(IHELP.EQ.1)GOTO 9967 IF(I+ELP.EQ.1)GUT0 9587 PR C 1 FINDK-LT.0)CALL AUTCE IF (NDK . GT . O) CALL DUCKT NDK=+LEN(JOBNUM)/3 NDK= LEN(JOBNUM)/3 READ (KIN, 130C) NOUT IF (IPUN.EQ. 0)CALL READIKIN, 13001 NDK IF { NCK + GT + 6 } NDK=6 NOUTA#IABS(NOUT) NDK #= [AB S (NDK] CALL XOUTER AUTOD CALL AUTOD GOTC 4000 COTO 4000 5603 [ARIJY=1 IARITY=1 NDKA=NDK 6010 CALL 6 6 6 9 9 5602 5 6 0 3 5550 5701 5 60 1 5957

1

PAGE

S

ł

1

ľ

MA IN0505 MA IN0506 MA IN0506 MA IN0506 MA IN0506	MAIN0509 MAIN0500 MAIN0510 MAIN0511 MAIN0513 MAIN0513 MAIN0515	MAIN0516 Main0517 Main0513 Main0519 Main0520 Main0521 Main0522 Main0522	MAIN0524 MAIN0525 MAIN0525 MAIN0528 MAIN0528 MAIN0528	MAIN0530 Main0531 Main0532 Main0534 Main0534	MAIN0536 Main0537 Main0538 Main0539 Main0539 Page 15
<pre>IF(NCUT.LT.0)CALL XCLTER NDUTA=IABS(NCUT) IF(NCUT.GT.0}READ(KIN.ISCO)(XGUT(I).I=1,NGUT) IF(LEW(JENNUM).GT.1)GCTC 5702</pre>	<pre>kriterkot.ls33)JGBNU+,LENtJGBNUM] rf([PUN.NE.0)Write(kpC1,1333)JJBNUM,LEN(JCBNUM) GUTC 4000 GUTC 4000 rf(ncut.gt.o)call siri(xcut.ncut) rf(Lev(JCHNUM).GT.4)GCTO 5703 farity=1</pre>	CALL INTERP(LEN(JGBALM), TARITY,NCUTA) COTO 5704 C3 IARITY=1 CALL DUCK(LEN(JGBAUM),XIN0,YIN0,NDKA,XDK,NDUTA,XCUT,YGUT,IARITY) 04 IF(TPUN.EC.0)CALL PHCT 1F(TPUN.EC.0)CALL PHCT 1F(TPUN.NE.0)CALL PHCT 03 JCBNUM=JCRNUM+1	IF NG. JF BUCY SEGMENTS LESS THAN INPUT EC MCRE IF(JC3NUM.LE.NCJ0BA)ECT9 6000 IF(fimline.ec.o).and.(Itmark.ew.o))GOT0 9998	ISTART MUST RE LESS THAN IFIN. THEREFCRE IF THE EGUYS ARE TIMED FOR A PERIDD OVER 24 FOURS OR IF THEY ARE TIMED THROUGH A NEW DAY IC. START AT 230000 TO 000100 THEN TIME MUST RE ADJUSTED	TIME DE STARTING HOURS TIME DE STARTING MINLIES TIME DE STARTING SECCNDS TIME DE FINISH HQURS
U	ہے۔ بنانی	5 4 00 5 4 00 0		0000000	0000

MAIN0558 MAINU554 MAIN0551 MAIN0552 MA IN0553 MA[NU554 MA I N0555 MA IN0556 MAIN0557 **VAINU560** MAINUS63 MAINU564 MA [N0550 MAINU561 MA[N0562 MA IN0549 MAIN0565 MAIN0566 MAIN0548 MAIN0567 MAIN0545 MA [N0546 MA [NO547 MAIN0568 **MAIN0569** MAIN0543 MAIN0544 MAINU573 MAIN0574 MAIN0574 MAIN0574 MA [NO5 70 MAIN0541 MAIN0542 MA I NO5 71 MAIN0572 L ۱ â ومدينة الألام فالكام والمحافظ كالمحافظ والم 10042 And the second second second READIKIN, IGUCINSHUUR,ASMIN,NSSEC,NFHUUR,AFMIN,AFSEC,IHDT,IMUT,ISCT NEXT CARU RIGHT AFTER PARAMETER Xmin=", flo.3," Ymax#", IF EELALINE .. C.O.L.ANC. (ITMARK .NE.O).AND. (ISTRUN.EQ.C))CALL TIMEMK 1ftttthetter.coj.vnt.thtabs(nojobs).cl.j).ar.tlstrln.he.oj)call YNAX= ', n. 1940 - Arian Sa<mark>natar, Santar</mark>, Ramana Sanatar, Kana<u>n</u>a XMIN=•,F10.3,• 1+ ({ PUV . NE . 0)WR [TF { K F [T , 11 [5] XMA X , XM] N , YMAX , YM [V And a second second second second A JUCKSET (JURAUM-1) + NC (CHS) /I ABS(NCJOBS) IF (IPUN. AE. O WPITE (KECT, 1901 NOJCBS IF(IPU)w.NE.0)WRITE(KFCT, 1784)JOBNUM AR IT [KUT, 1] 12] XMAX, DE [N, YMAX, YM] lFIO.3.' YMIN='.FLC.3//)
ll15 F0PMAT(' REMCVE THIS CARD. PUT THE
l CHECK CARD..'' X'AX*'FIO.3''
ZF10.3'' YMIN='.F1C.3) PWSTAR=MWH9UH+3600+MMP1N+60+MWSEC ISTART=N SHOUR*3600+NSFIN*60+NSSEC 1F IN = 1FHCUR + 3A00+NEM IN+60+NESEC XMAN= +FLO.3. 101 = 1401 + 360C+ IMD1 +6 C +1 501 CUTPUT NUMBER OF SEGRENTS CUTPUT MAXIMUN DIMENSIONS TIME JE EN ISH MINUTES TIME JE FINISH SECONES WP 11 L LKOT , 1 PC1 MOJOR 5 **#RJTE(KOT,1764) JOBNUP** M INUTES CT CF TIME SECONDS CT UF TIMP HCURS L CHECK CARD. 7. 2F10.3.1 MI FOPMAT(LOAB) HIME JE EINISH FSCAPF CLAUSE FORMAT (- - . . FURMAT(10A8) CF TIVE 6666 3100 1.1 **LTIMEL**S A CONSTRUCT OF A CONSTRUCTION 5 T C P Ľ 1 136 9999 1795 5.087 1112 オフレン ပပပပ $\cup \cup$ J 1.000 4 ر ب

												¢	יר		Ë,	(C) c	n د											
						503		1	201							203											802							66
	WRITE(XPCT, 860)(XOUT(L), L=1,)00)	WR ITE(KPDT. 870)	LD TTHEKDOT BLANKADITAIN ALA NANA	WAY TELEDIT READ INTERESTING AND A CAREST AND A CHAR, (MILME(L), L=1, 9), J.MBAK	AD TICKDOT DEDICATION AND A CALL DE CALLE AND AND A CALL AND A	TE (I DHN, EC, D)COTO 202		LARITY=0	TONTINUE	(DK(K)=XDK(K=1)+DYNOB	D) BOI MEDIIACA		THE DECODEL SPEINE					CALE INTERPINUEGX, TARITY, NPTS)				IYPE DE CURVE LEAST (CUARES		IF(INCC.GT.4)GOTO 808	WRITE(KOT,95C)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J_WAAK	HRITE(KOT,888)	CONTINUE		C3 802 M=2,95	XOUT (1) = X ING (1)	NPTS=100	J=100	CXNCR=[DXNCR+1F] DAT/TACD1+1 IV/160	- CXNCR=(XIND(INCC)+VINCCINNYCE) OATTINCOV, A
PAGE																																		
11ML0144 22	TIML0143	TIML 0142	FIML0141	TIML0140	TIML0139	TIML0138	TIMLO137	TIML0136	TIML0135	TIML 01 34	TIML0133	TIML0132	TI ML 0131	TIML0130	TIML0129	TIML0128	T IML 01 27	TIML 0126	TIML0125	TIML 0124	TIML0123	TIML0122	TIML0121			I MLOIIC	TIMLOII6	LINLOITS	FIMLO114	11MLUII3		TIMLOLII	TIMLOIIO	TIML0109

7	9 00 00 m		
77		704	
J=INC3 WRITE(K0T,877) WRITE(K0T,85C)(NTIM) IF(IPUN_EQ.0)GDT0 7 WRITE(KPCT,850)(NTI) WRITE(KPCT,850)(NTI) WRITE(KPCT,850) WRITE(KPCT,850) WRITE(KPCT,850) WRITE(KDT,850)	MBAK=MBAK+1 Call RSORT(XIND,YIN Segmented Timeline IF(((ISTRLN+EQ+0)+C	<pre>wRITE(K01,877) wRITE(K01,377) wRITE(K01,377) wRITE(K01,855) CO 7C4 L=1,4 WRITE(K01,865) YOUT CONTINUE IF(IPUN.EC.0)GCT0 8 WRITE(KPD1,860)(V10 WRITE(KPC1,860)(Y00 wRITE(KPC1,860)(X00 G0TC 800</pre>	VBAX=VBAX + 1
E(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(PTIME(L).L=1.9).J.P 77 ME(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9).J. (YIND(L).L=1.INCE) (YIND(L).L=1.INCE)	D+BNCC) CR NCT R+(IMLINE+EQ+1))+AND+(INCC+GT+2))GUTO	1F(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9},J,) 1(L),XCUT(L) 0C №E(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(PTIME(L),L=1,9),J, №E(L),L=1,J) 1T(L),L=1,J)	
тинсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо тимсоо	666 11ML008 11ML008 11ML008 11ML008 11ML008 11ML008 11ML008 11ML008	WRAX TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO TIMLOO	
ง ๛๛ง ฅ๐ํ๛๏๎๚ํฅํฃ		188888884444444 188888848484 18888848484	

MAIN0577 Main0577 Main0578 Main0578 Main0582	MAIN0583 Main0584 Main0584 Main0585 Main0585 Main0583 Main0588	MAIN0589 MAIN0590 MAIN0591 MAIN0592 MAIN0592 MAIN0594	MAIN0595 Main0596 Main0597 Main0598 Main0598	MAIN0599 Main0600 Main0601 Main0602	MAIN0603 Main0604 Main0605 Main0605 Main0607 Main0607 Main0607	MAIN0609 MAIN0610 MAIN0611 MAIN0611 MAIN0612 PAGE 17
<pre>1633 FUPMAT('1', ***********************************</pre>	<pre>1200 FORMET(2F10.C,A8,2X,312,4X,I1,F9.0,I1,F9.0) 1C01 FORMAT(//* DFGREES TFAT THE BASELINE IS CFF TRUE NCRTH ',I4,' MIN 1UTES',13//* THE LENGFT OF THE BASELINE IS ',F10.2,' METERS'// 2' ',A8,' TIME = ',1),13,':',12,':',12,' HH:MM:SS'//* Y MAXIMUM 1300 FORMAT(110.8AH)</pre>	1598 FURMAT(/EAB/) 1518 FORMAT(// AVERAGES FUR GROUP: TOTAL DISTANCE TOTAL TIME 1 AVEG. VEL. AVERG. DIRCT.'/ 3 METERS HH:NM:SS CM/SEC DEG.MIN!) 1517 FORMAT(23X,FI0.2+6X,5/1,5X,FI0.2+8X,FIG.2) 1500 FORMAT(0F10.C)	1101 FORMAT(* ***********************************	1301 FOR4AT(*-*,* ANGLE > F! CR ≈0.0 JCBNUMBER*,[5,* [LCJP POSITI ICN *,15.* ANGLE 1 IS *,F6.2,* ANGLE 2 IS *,F6.2//) 1601 FURVAT(1X,110,2F10.2,2F10.1,14,*:*,12,*:*,12,5X,9A1,2X,9A1,1F11.2, 12F11.1,F11.2)	1201 FURMAT('-', PUSIT.AC', ANGLE 1', ANGLE 2', X CCORC', 1 Y COCRD', START TM',6X,A8 , TIM ELPT', DI STANCE 2', AACK.VEL.', CENT.VEL', DIRCT(A).'/ 3 IXMISS HH:MM:SS HH:MM:SS METERS WETERS HI', 4., DEG.MIN')	I784 FURMAT(* ***********************************

MA[N0613 Ma[N0614	MAIN0615 MAIN0616 MAIN0617 MAIN0618 MAIN0618 MAIN0619	MAIN0620 Main0621 Main0622 Main0623 Main0623 Main0623
2 IT* 1400 FJRMAT(II,F9.0,II,F9.C,312) 1700 FORMAT(FI0.0)	<pre>101 FURMAT(" '///' ********************* MAIN JUB END ***********************************</pre>	1501 FCRMAT(" REMCVE THIS CARD. PUT THE NEXT CARD RIGHT AFTER X AND Y M 1101 And Max Card '/" TCTAL NUMBER UF JOBS DONE = ",13/" #******* 2#**############# MAIN JCB END ###################################

ł

PAGE 18

TIMELINES SUBRUTIAE AA*##################################	TIMI DOOL
CALCULATES A SMCOTH OR SEGMENTEC TIMELINE Subponitions time is	TIML0002
COMMENT FILES [OMMENT]PIN. POPULM TLADMIZAT FILES:	TIML0003
IISTART. [FIN.YIN(40).IIINE(40).LEN(40).KPO1.KOI.KIN.XIN(40.99).ICT.	T I ML 0004
ZYINJ(99), XUUT500), YEIT4500, MIN. TT4484, YOUT, XOK120), XINU(95),	TIML0005
3 Y INT . INC KOT . JUSIN. IMI INF.	FIML 0006
COMMCN / AREA2/ XMAX, XHIN, YMAX, YMIN	TIML0007
CUMMON / AREA7/ TCHAR . MASTAR	TIML 0008
LCGICAL*1 MIIME(9).MIIME(9).MICTARCOLMIETARON MIETARON MICTARON	TIML0009
KEAL#3 TCHAR	TIML0010
RANGE = (Y MAX - YMIN)/4C .	TIML 0011
XRANGE = RANGE / 4.	TIML0012
MBAK=0	11 PL0013
WRITE(KUI,83E)	TIML 00 14
krite(kut.89C)	TIPLU015
IF [I PUN . NE. 0) WR [TE (K F C T . 890)	TIML0016
CALL TIMEPH(ISTART, MISTAR)	11ML0017
CALL TIMEPH(IFIN,MIFIN)	11ML0018
CALL TIMEPH(IDT,MICT)	TI 4L 00 19
CALL TIMEPH(MWSTAR.WWWSTA)	TIML0020
WRITE(K0T,895)(MISTaP(I),(≤],9),(MTEIN()),(=),C), (b)CTJ), (=) ~.	TIML0021
I, (MMASTA(L), [=1,9]	TIML 00 22
IF (IPUN, NE, O) WRITE (KECT, 895) (MISTARTIN, I - 1, O), (WIE FARTIN, I - 1, C)	TIML0023
1(MTDT(L),L=1,5),(YMWS7A(L),(=1,0))	IIML 0024
NIDTS=(IFIN-ISTART)/ICT +)	TIML 0025
CJ ECO N=1. NIDTS	TIML0026
I = I S T A R T + I D T * (N + 1)	TIML 00 27
CALL TIMEPH(I.NTIME)	T1ML0028
12 = 1 STAK T-M & STAK + ID 1 = (N-1)	TI ML 0029
CALL TIMEPH(IZ,MTIME)	TIML 00 30
NDE G X≠ O	1 ML 0031
INCO=0	TEML 0032
JCHNNN=JCPNUP-I	11ML0033
	11MC0034
CALCULATES PCSITION OF A TIMEMARK BY SEARCHING ALL ARRAYS FOR	11ML0035 T1ML0035
PA	465 10 465 10
ε	70C T.4

ပပ

 $_{\rm O}$ $_{\rm O}$

I

AL TIMES DUES & LINEAR INTERPOLATION IF TIME IN THE MIDDLE CG FID JCB-1.JGGTT AL FF(IMANKUTPP.MRNN FF(IMANKUTPP.MRNN FF(IMANKUTPP.MRNN FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JJGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT RI FF(IENDI-LT.JGGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(IENDI-LT.JGTT) FF(I	71ML0037	TIML0038	TIML0039 TIML0040	T I ML 0041	TIML 0042	1 [ML 0043		TIML 0045	TIMLOOAB	TEML0049	TIML 0.50	TIME 0.051	T1ML0052	TIML0053	11 ML 0054	11 ML 0055	T [ML JU56	TIML0057	TIME 0058	TIML0059	TIML0060	T I ML 0061	TIML0062	TIML0063	T [ML 0064		TIML 0066	TIML0068	TIML0069	TIMC 0072	PAGE 20
	C ALL TIMES DUES A LINEAR INTERPOLATION IF TIME IN THE MIDDLE CF INPUTTED TIMES	CC PIO JC HANNA	<pre>IF([WARN(JCP).NE.0)./ND.([STRLN.NE.]))GCT0 H1C Lenji=LEn(J0E)-1</pre>	IFILENJI.LT.IJGUTA PIC	CO 820 K=1, LENJI	IF (L. E.Q. ITLME(JOR, K))(CTO 830	11 51 5 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	1111Mf(JUA+K)).AND.f1.(1.1TIMFfJUR,K+1)))GOTC 440	E30 INCC=INCC+1	XINC([NCC]=Y[N[JCH.K]		CUTC B10	640 INCU#INCO+I	IDFNCM=ITIME(JCB,K+1)-ITIME(JDB.K)	NUMER=[+]][PE(JGR,K]	RATIC=FLOAT(AUMER)/FL(AT(IDEACM)	XIVC(INCC)=YIN(JOB,K) + (YIN (JOP,K+1)+YIN (JCH VI)+341)	YINC(INCC)=XIN(JOB+K) + (XIN (JOP+K+))-XIN / JOP+K+)			IF (INCU. GT. 1)GOTO 847		CHECK ON WHETHER A TIMEMARK IS TO BE DONE IF INCHERITION DISCUSS	CALCULATIONS BELOW	IF([INCC.LT.1).CR.(ITMARK.NE.1))GOTO BOC	XUUT(I)=XINC(I)-RANGE	TUUI([]=Y NU(]) CO 10 19=2.5		YOUT (19) #YINC(1)		

eçe.

TIML0073 TIML0074 TIML0075 TIML0075 TIML0077 TIML0078 TIML0080 TIML0081 TIML0083 TIML0083 TIML0083	1 ML 0095 1 ML 0098 1 ML 0098 1 ML 0090 1 ML 0092 1 ML 0093 1 ML 0095	TIMLOLOL 00101M11 10101095 111ML0095 11ML0095 11ML0095 11ML0095 11ML0095 11ML0095	TIML0102 TIML0103 TIML0104 TIML0105 TIML0105 TIML0105 TIML0107 TIML0108 PAGE 21
<pre>PBAK=WBAK + 1 WRITE(KUT.850)(NTIMF(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,WBAK WRITE(KUT.855)(NTIMF(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,WBAK WRITE(KUT.865) YOUT(L).XCUT(L) KRITE(KUT.865) YOUT(L).XCUT(L) KRITE(KUT.865) YOUT(L).XCUT(L) KRITE(KDT.865) YOUT(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPUT.850)(NTIME(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPUT.850)(NTIME(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPUT.850)(NTIME(L).L=1.9).TCHAR.(MTIME(L).L=1.9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPUT.850)(NTIME(L).L=1.1.) KRITE(KPUT.870) KRITE(KPUT.87</pre>	E47 MBAK=MHAK+1 Call Rsort(xind,yind,incg) segmented timeline (r nct if(((istrun.eq.d).cr.(imline.eq.1)).and.(incc.et.2))gdtd 666	J=INCO WRITE(KUT,877) WRITE(KUT,85C)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J,MBAK F (IPUN.EQ.0)60T0 777 KRITE(KPOT,350)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPOT,850)(NTIME(L),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J,MBAK WRITE(KPOT,850) WRITE(KPCT,860) (YINJ(L),L=1,INCE)	<pre>bRITE(KPCT,970) WRITE(KPOT,860) (>INU(L),L=1,INCG) WRITE(KOT,855) CO 555 L=1,INCC ARITE(KJT,865) YIN(L),XINO(L) 555 CONTENUE</pre>
		;	

GOTO 800 CXNCR=(XINJ(INCC)-XINC(1))/(FLUAT(INCO)+1.) CXNCR=(DXNCR+(FLOAT(INCO)+1.))/1C0. J=100 NPTS=100 NPTS=100 NPTS=100 XOUT(1)=XINO(1) CO 802 M=2,95 XOUT(1)=XINO(1) CO 802 M=2,95 XOUT(1)=XINO(1) CO 802 M=2,95 KINE CONTINUE KRITE(KOT,888) MRITE(KOT,888) MRITE(KOT,85C)(NTIME(1),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J, F(INCC.GT.4)GOTO 806 RTIE(KOT,85C)(NTIME(1),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J, F(INCC.GT.4)GOTO 806 RTIE(KOT,85C)(NTIME(1),L=1,9),TCHAR,(MTIME(L),L=1,9),J, F(INCC.GT.4)GOTO 806

TIML0149 TIML0150 TIML 01 52 TIML0153 **TIML0154** TIML0155 TIML0156 TIML0158 TIML0159 TIML0160 TIML0163 TIML0164 TIML0146 TIML0147 TIML0148 **TIMLO157** TIML0161 TIML0162 **TIML0165 TIML0166 TIMLO145** TIMLOISI T[ML0167 TIMLOI68 T [ML0169 TIMUDI 70 TIME AFTER ", A8," =',9A1 PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMELI FCRNAT(。 米式学校学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会 TIMEL INES RND 学校学会学会学会学会学会学会学会学会 ΟĮ -FGRMAT(* STARTING TIME= * ,9A1, * FINISHING TIME= * ,9A1/ 1/' GUTPLT PCINTS= ',14,' TIMELINES NC.= ',14) 1941) 950 FORMAT(* TIMELINES NCRMAL TIME= *,941,* WATER UR MOONTIME = FURMAT(* IBM XOUTS', 53, * IBM YCUTS') OF TIMELINES ", 13, " IF(IPUN.NE.0)WRITE(KPLT.885)MBAK kBITE(KJT,865) YOUT(L),XCUT(L) IF(IPUN.NE.O)WRITE(KFCT, 880) FORMAT (F10.3,5X,F10.3) FRITE(KUT, SB5) MBAK ICF TIME= ', SAL,' WRITE(KUT, SED) CO 804 L=1,100 **WRITE(KOT,855)** FCRMAT (8 F10.3) FURMAT(* NO. EBB FCPMATFILI NES START") FORMAT (--) CONT INUE CONTINUE RETURN ENO NO £90 -803 804 500 695 670 089 660 803 80 £ 5 5 885 E77

PAGE 23

TIMK0001 TIMK0002	TIMK0003	101. TIMK0004	XINT, TIMK0006	LIMK0007	11MK0008	(6) TIMKDOID	TI MK 0011	TIMK0012	FIMK0013	LIMK0015 TIMK0015			TIMK0016	TIMK 0020	TI MK0021	T1 MK 00 22	T 1 MK0023	TI MK 00 24	19) TIMK 00 25	TIMK0026		TIMK J029	T I MK 00 30	EN FIMK0031	TI MK 0032	T I MK 00 33	T I MK 0034	TI MK 0035	TIMX 0036	
[MEMARK SUBRJUTINE ************************************	JBROUTINE TIMEMK Mandan trim, coaming transfort from contact of contact	JATIAN - FEMILY - MANAGER - MARINA - M	INC (99) + XOU 1 (500) + YCLT (500) + NIN + ITMARK + 1CONET + ISTRLN + IACICH +	INT # FROKET # UUSIN # IME JAC THEIN / ADDAD/ KEAK, KEIN, VAAK, VIIN	IMPON / AREA7/ TCHAR . PLSTAR	161CAL*1 MTIME(9),NTIME(9),MISTAR(9),MIFIN(5),MIDT(5),MWKSTA	AL*8 TCHAR	JBNNN=JCBNUM-1 LTC=1		NGE={YMAX-YMIN]/40.	ange=range /5.	ITE(KUT,666)	ITE(KOT+89C)	([PUN.NE.0]WR]TE(KFCT,890)	LL IMPORTOLOGY MALANDAR	LL TINGTOTICIANTITY TIMFDWIDT_MIDTI	L TIMEDHEWCTAD.WWLCTAI	TEKAT.AQAN(MATADI) -))) tuttivit i ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ; ;	······································	(1PUN.NE.0)WRTTE(KPTT.895)(MISTAPILL.1=1.0) ////ETURL////////////////////////////////////	IOT(L), L=1,9), (MMWS1A(L), L=1,9)	JTS={IFIN-ISTART}/ICT +I		-VULALIENS UP LIMEMARKS DUES A LINEAR APPRCX. IF INRETWEE Dog N-1 witte	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	LE LAKITIU LALN-L] L TIMEDULI NTIULI	-L / LYEFAA LFAA LFAA LFAC Z	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		

ပပ

ပပ

	CO 810 JCB≢1,JCBNNN Smiltriggi	ΙΙΝΚΟΟ3
	IFII-EQ.ITIME(JOB,K))(QTO 830	TIMK0040
	If(((1.6T.)TIME(JOB,K)), AND.(1.)T.TT.ME()OB V	T I WK 004 I
	<pre>lltime(J3B,K)).AND.[[.61.]Timef_APPL_KAININISATE 200</pre>	TIMK0042
() (2)) CONTINUE	T I MK 0043
	6.)TC 810	TI MK0044
Ē) XINC(IMCU)=YIN(JOB.K)	TI MK 0045
	YIAC (INCC) = XIN[JOB, K]	T I MK 0046
	GUTC 815	TIMK0047
84(<pre>/ IDENC4=ITIME(JOB,K+1)-ITIME(JOB.K)</pre>	FIMK 0048
	NUMER# [- [7] # E[JCB + K]	T [MK 0049
	FATIC=FLCAT(NUMER)/FL[AT([DENCM]	TI MK 0050
	XIND(INCC)=YIN(JO3,K) + [YIN (JO3,K+1)-VIN (JOB V))+	TIWK0051
	YINO(IACC) = X[N(JCH, k)] + (XIN(JCH, k+1) - XIN(JCC)] = X[N(JCH, k)] + (XIN(JCH, k+1) - XIN(JCC)]	TIMK0052
Е1 5	XOUT(1)=XINC(1)-RANGE	T1MK 0053
	YOUT(1)=YINC(1)	T I MK 0054
	D() 816 I 5=2,J	TIMK0055
	XGUT([9)=XGUT([9-1] + XRANGE+[]9+]]	TIMK0056
	YOLT(19) = YINC(1)	TIMK0057
61 6	C JN T IN UE	T I MK 0058
	PEAK#MEAK ← 1	T IMK0059
	WRITE(KOT ₇ 888)	TIMK0060
	WRITE(KDI,85C)(NTIME(L),L=].9).TCHAR.fMTIME(), 1 - 1 ∩1 - 2000	TIMK0061
		T 1 MK 0062
	HKITE(KCT,855)	TI MK0063
	CO 804 L=1,J	TI MK 0064
	WRITE(KCT,865) YOUT(L),XCUT(L)	TI MK0065
F04	CONTINUE	- T MK 0066
	IF(IPUN.EQ.0)GDTU AIC	
	WRITE(KPCT+850)(NTIFE(L), L=1,9), TCHAR, [MTIMF(P], 1=1,0),	I 1 MK 00 6 B
	ARITE(KPCT, PF4)	TIMK0069
	kRITE(KPCT,860)(YOUT(L),L=1,J)	T I MK 0070
	kk[TE(KPCT, 870)	TIMK0071
		TIMK0072
		PAGE 25

TI MK 00 74 T 1 MK 00 75 TI MK0076 TI MK 0078 T1 MK 00 79 T I MK 00 80 T I MK 00 82 TI MKDU83 **TIMK0084** T1MK0085 TI MK 00 86 T I MK 0088 T1 MK 00 89 1 [MK 00 90 **TIMK 0095** T1 MK 0097 FI MK 0073 **TIMK0077 T1 MK 00 87 TIMK 0092** T 1 4K 00 53 11 MK 0094 **T 1 MK 00 58 TIMKOUBL** T1MK0091 T 1MK 0096 FORMAT(* TIMEMARKS NCFMAL TIME= *,9Al,* TIME AFTER *,A8,*=*,9Al 1/* Output Pcints= *,i4,* Timemarks NC.+= *,i4) PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMEMA 5 • 1146, FINI SHING TIME= " (1 46. WATER OR MOONTIME = FORMAT (* IBM XOUTS", 5%, * IBM YGUTS") -FORMAT(' NO. OF TIMENIRKS ', 13,' [F{ IPUN.NE. 0]WRITE(KF(T,885)MBAK FOPMAT(" STARTING TIME= " ,9AL. krITE(KPCT,860)(XOUT(L),L=1.J) IF(IPUN.NE.0)WRITE(KFUT.880) FORMAT(F10.3,5X,F10.3) hRITE(KOT,885) MBAK • 5Al. WRITE(KOT, 860) FORMAT(8F10.3) E88 FORMAT('-') IRKS START') FOPMAT('1') 1CF TIME= FORWAT(/) CONTINUE CONT INUE RETURN END £10 680 890 650 860 573 666 695 870 £65 685 855

C

CUCK0009 DUCK 0010 DUCK 00 13 CUCK 0016 DUCK 0018 DUCK0004 DUCK 0005 DUCK 0007 CUCK 0008 CUCK 00 11 0UC K 00 1 2 CUCK0014 0UCK 0015 CUCK 0019 DUCK0020 DUCX0023 DUCK 00 03 CUCK0006 CUCK0017 DUCK0022 CUCK 00 24 DUCK0025 CUCK 0026 000×0002 DUCK 0021 DUCK0028 DUCK 0029 DUCK0030 DUCK0001 CCK0027 DUCKDO31 **DUCK 0032** CUCK0033 DUCK 0034 DUCK 0035 0UCK0036 27 PAGE CIMENSION XIN(1), YIN(1), XOUT(1), YOUT(1), XDK(1), XN(105), XC(25) ER[XX+SS]=(1.-XX)+{(1.-SS++2}-{1.-XX}++2}/{2.+SS+(1.-SS}+2) SPLINE CLAVE SUBROUTINE SUBROUTINE EUCK(NIN, X1N, YIN, NDK, XDK, NOUT, XOUT, YOUT, I ARITY) CL (XX+ SS)=XX+{ SS+{ S+{ S} - {S} - XX++2} / {S++2+{ } - SS } } CALL GLSQIH, C, EXTRA, NIN, NEQ, BUG, C, 00001, C, 00001 COMMEN / AREAS/ XMAX, MAIN, YMAX, YMIN YOUT(M)=YCUT(M)+C(N)+CL(X0,XC(N)) r0UT(M)=YCUT(M)+C(N)+CR(XQ,XD(N)) FIT 1 +H(105,251,C(27),EXTFA(105) PRINT CUEFFICIENTS OF SPLINE YOUT (M) = C (NDK+1)+C (NC++2) *XQ N XN(V)=(XIV(V)-XIN(I))/CEN XD (N)= (XCK {N)-XIN(1) /0E IF(XN(M).GT.XD(N)) GC TD +NCK, IT JFE) [F(XC.GT.XD(N)) Gn TC 5 XQ= (XOUT (M) - XIN(1))/CEL H(M, N) = 0 L(XN(M), XD(N))H(M,N)=DR(XN(M),XD(N)) CEL = XI N(NIN) - XIN(I)F(N, NDK+3) = YIN(M)F(M,NDK+2)=XA(M) F[M+NDK+1]=1.0 TUCA.1=M 4 CO 3 N≡l,NIN NIN. I=M I CO DO 7 N=1,NDK CO 1 N=1,NDK CALL CCEF(C 30 4 N=1,NDK NEC=NDK+2 CUNTINUE [1]PE=1 60 TC 4 CO TC CUCK 3 m ~ 03 - $\circ \circ$ ŝ

U
4	CONT INUE							DUCK0037	r-α
ں ر	CD DIMENSION SCAN LAFITY CHECKS	ON FROM	WHERE	THE	DIME	VSIONS	CAME	DUCKOD35	> or
ر	TINELINES INVOLVES A FOTATION OF	AXIS						DUCK0040	0
,	rg 17 W#1 NCLT							DUCK0041	-4
	IF(10010)00000000000000000000000000000000							DUCK 0042	N
	IF (XCUT(M), GT, XMAX)XPAX=XOUT(M)							DUCK0043	ē.
	TE(XCUT(E)_L1_XMIN)XFIN=XOUT(M)							DUCK 0044	÷
	TELYCUTEM, GT YMAX)YMAX=YOUT(M)							CUCK0045	ıΩ.
	TE (YCUT(M), IT, YMIN)YMIN=YOUT(M)							DUCK0046	Ś
	6012 17							DUCK 0047	~
Ĩ	0 TF(YCUT(M).GT.XMAX)XWAX=YUUT(M)							DUCK0048	œ
1	IF(YCUT(M).LT.XMIN)XFIN=YOUT(M)							DUCK0049	đ۰,
٦	7 CONTINUÉ							CUCK 00 50	0
	RETURN							CUCKGO51	
	END							DUCK 00 52	2

,

1

(i) is a second manufacture for the second manufacture for the second manufacture for the second second

ļ

....

1 --

ţ

•

COMPANY IN ANY ANY ANY

i

I

GL 500018 GE S 90003 GL SQ0005 GLSQ0006 GL SQ0007 GL 540008 GL SQ0009 GL 590010 GL 500012 GL 540013 GLSQ0014 GL 590015 GL \$Q0016 GL 59 00 02 GL 500004 GLSQ0011 GL 540017 GLSQ0019 GL 540020 GL 500021 GL SQ00 22 GL \$00023 GL SQ0024 GL 500025 GL 500026 GL 500028 GL 500029 GL SC0001 GL 5 0 0 0 2 7 61.540030 GL 5Q0032 GL 500033 GL SQ 0034 GL 540031 GLS40035 GL 540036 \$ PAGE AUGMENTED MAIRIX TC SCLVE SIMULTANEDUS EQUATIONS SUBRCUTIAE GLSU(A, X, IL,N,M,ALPHA,E1,E2) CIMENSIUN A(105,25),X11),1L(1) TI=SG4T({A(J,K)]**2+{F[J]**2} ∧(J+L)=-S*A(I,L)+C*A(_,L) IF(ARS(A(J,K))-E1)4,4,6 IF(AHS(A(1,K))+E2)3,3,8 T2=(*A(1,L)+S*A(J,L) IF(IL([I])30,30,31 CJ FC J=1,MK CO 32 K=LL, MN SU P K=1, MM Cr 4 J≡ll,N CC 5 L=K • MM S=4(J,K)/T1 $C = \Delta (I + K) / I$ C.3 30 J=1 M M.1=1 36 0 - 1 - = (~ ~) X ^(1, L) = T2 0°0=(1)x $I \vdash () = 0$ CUNTINUE CUNTINUE [=] [{ []] [+]=[[+] I = (X) = I [+] =]] T+N=MN L+1 [+1] S=0.0 [=]] = **] +]** V = 1 I **]**=] 22 с С un m ц т ŝ u٦ οo 3 đC, ۴

100

S=S+&(I,K)*X(K) X(II)=-S/A(I,II) 11=11-1 IF(IL(MM))50,51,50 32

.

1

I.

ŧ

- 30
- 5
 - ALPHA= 0. C CU TC 52

GL SQ0037 GL SQ0038 GL SQ0039 GL SQ0039 GL SQ0039 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0043 GL SQ0046 GL SQ0046

- С С
- - 25
- I=IL(MM) Alpha=a(I,MM) Feturn End

.

AUDK0008 AU DK 0009 AUDK0010 AUDK0012 AUDK0013 A UDK 0014 AUDK0015 AUDK0016 AUDK 0017 AUDK 0018 AUDK 0002 AUDK 0003 AUDK0005 AUDK0006 AU 0 K 0 0 0 7 AUDK 0011 AUDK 0020 AUDX0004 AUDK 0019 AUUK 0022 4U DK 0001 AUDK 0025 AU 0K 00 28 AUDK0021 AUDK0023 AUDK0024 AUDK 0026 AUUK 0027 AUDK0029 AUDK 00 30 **4 UDK 0032** A UDK 0035 4UDK 0033 AUDK0034 AUDK0036 41/DK0031 E PAGE 2 YI NC (99) , X0UT(500), YCLT(500), NIN, ITMARK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IAEICH, XINT, IE 2ND DERIVAT CCMMEN IPUN, JCBNUM, IMJRN(40),LEN(40),KPGT,KJT,KIN,XIN(40,99),IDT, ACURS(I)=(((YIN (JEBNUM,I)-YIN (JOBNUM,I+I)) / (XIN (JOBNUM,I)-2(JCHNJM, I+I)-XIN (JRBNUM, [+2)))} / ([XIN (JJBNUM, I)-XIN (JUBNUM, 1 ISTART, IF IN, YIN (40, 95), ITIME (40, 59), NDKA, NOUT, XDK (20), XI NC (95), IXIN (JUPNUM.I+I))) -((YIN (JCBNUM.I+I)-YIN (JCBNUM.I+2)) / (XIN -CONSTRAINTS PLACES CUNSTRAINTS AT AREAS OF GREATEST CURVATURE SUBROUTINE TO PLACE FOSITIONS OF CONSTRAINTS IF AllTCC SUBFUENE 本分分与其分子分子的有分子的有分子的有效的有效的非常非常非常有多的。 1)GCT0 298 XNDK=ABS([ABS[ACUKS[K]]+TEMP] / CURPD] DERIVATIVE EIF=(XNDK-FLCAT(NNDK))+.002 IF [NXNDK .GE . (LEN(JURALM)-3 SUMAC = SUMAC + ABS(ACLR S(1)) 2YINT+INGROT+JUSIN, IMLINE CURPC=SUMAC/FLCAT (NXNEK) CALCULATION OF SECOND CCMMCN / AREAL/ IHELP IF(NNDK.LT.1)60T0 220 CO 210 K=INDEX1,NIN2 CIMENSION ACURS(97) NIN2=LEN(JCBNUM)-2 SUPACUTINE ALTOC NXNDK= IABS (NCKA) C7 200 I=1, NIN2 ESCAPE CLAUSE NNDK = XNDK + • 5C1 31+2))/ 2.)) INPLITED. SUMAC=C. CONTINUE INDEX1=1 TEMP=0. NGLD=0 JKL=K 200 225 $\circ \circ \circ \circ$ υQ $\sim \phi$

AUDK 0037 AU DK 00 36 AUDK0039 AUDK 0040 AUDK0042 AUDK 0043 A UDK 0045 AUDK0041 AU DK 0046 AUDK0044 AUDK0047 AUDK 0048 AUDK0049 AUDK0050 AUDK 00 51 AUDK0052 AUDK 00 53 AUDK 0054 **AUDK0055** AUDK 0056 AUDK 00 58 AUDK 0059 AUDK0060 **AUDK0057** AUDK0064 AU 0K 0062 AUDK0063 AUDK0065 AUDK0066 AU DK 0067 AUDK0068 AUDK 0061 +XDX (PNP) -XIN (JOBNUM,K))/(XNDK+1.) XDK (WNW) = [X I N[JOBNUM + (LEN(JOBNUM))] - XCK (PNM)] /3.0 [F(AES[XCK[MAK]-XDK[MAM]].GE.[XNCR*.66]]GDT0 238 [Ff { JKL+1).L 1.NIN2) I NEEX 1= JKL+1 XDK(NOLD)=XIA (JOBNUP,K)+TXINC CALLING A TEST OF ITS VALUES IF((JKL+1).GE.NIN2)IACEX1=1 [F(NCLD.GT.NXNDK)GOTC 240 IF (NCLD. GE.NXNDK)GOTC 240 XNCR={XIN (JCBNUM,K+2) IF(MNK.EQ.MNM)GUTO 236 TEMP=TEMP+DIF+CURPD CO 235 MNK=1 NNNDK CO 238 MNM=1 NXNDK TX INC= TX INC + XNCR CO 230 [=1,NNDK CURPD=CURPD/2.0 remp=DIF +CURFD NOLD=NCLD+1 CALL DUCKT X ONN= X ONX CONT INUE GOTC 210 IXINC=0.CONT INUE COTO 225 GUTC 240 GUTC 299 CONTINUE CONT INUE IHELP=1 RETURN 220 210 230 240 235 235 298 299

ပပ

I

3

DUKT0003 **DUKT0004 DUK T0005** DUKT0008 DUKT0010 **DUKT0002 DUKT 0006** 0UKT 0009 DUK T0014 DUKT0007 DUK T 00 1 1 DUKT0012 **DUKT0013** DUKT0015 DUKT0016 DUKT0018 DUKT0019 DUKTOGOI DUKT0017 DUKT0020 0 UKT 0023 DUK T0024 DUKT 0021 **DUKT 00 22** 0UK 7 00 25 **UUKT0026** DUKT 0028 DUKT0027 DUK T0029 CUK T 00 30 DUK T0032 DUKT0031 **DUKT0033** DUKT0034 0UKT 0035 DUK 10036 ZYIND(99), XDUT(500), YCUT(500), NIN, ITMAKK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IACICH, XINT, CJMMCN [PUN, JCBNUM, [h/KN(40),LEN(40),KPGT,KJT,KIN,XIN(40,99),IDT, 1 ISTART,IFIN, YIN(40,95),LTIME(40,59),NDKA,NOUT,XDK(20),XINC(99), HAS NOW '.13, PRESENT VALUE ",FIC.3,* SUB= (XINQ(NINA)-XINC(NINA+I))/Z+ +XINQ(NINA-I) CHECKS Ch. POSITIONS OF CONSTRAINTS WILL VOID THEM IF POSITIONED TO CLOSE TO END IF({XLUW.GT.3.}.0P.(FIGH.LT.3.))GDT0 990 ADD={XINC(2)-XIND(1))/2. +XING(1) TEST TO PREVENT INFINITE LOOP XDK [] = [X [NE {N INA } - X [AE (]) } 2. TEST TO PREVENT INFINITE LOOP WRITE(KUJT, 991)I, XOK(I), ACD WRITE(KUT,981)1,XDK(1),SUB SYINT, INDRET, JUSIN, IMLINE IF(XLJW.GT.3.)GUTU 551 FIGH=XINC(NINA)-XDK(I) FORMET('-', LUCK NUMBER CALL STRT (XCK, NCKA) XL CW=XDK (I) - XINO(1) [F(J1.6T.2)6CTC 95 IF(J1.GT.2)GCT0 95 SUBPJUTINE CLCKT A INA=LEN (JUBAUM) CD 990 I=I, ACKA CALL PRITCK $XD \times (1) = A C C$ xDK([]=SLB J1=J1 + 1 COTC 989 COTC 989 CUNTINUE RE TURN **J1** = 0 СР5 59 **1** 590 с С 185 000ပပ ပ ပ

ŝ



T

AND A REAL PROPERTY.

:

ŧ

lbgen substitled with the value ',flo.3///}
end

0UKT 0037 0UKT 0038

PR0K0001 PR0K0002	PRDK0003 PRDK0004	PRDK0005	PRDK0006 PPDK0003	PKDK0008	PRDK0009	PRDK0010	PRDK0011	PRDK0012	PRDKJUI3	PRDK0014	PRDK0015	PRDK0016	PR0K0017
PRITCK SUHROLTINE ************************************	CCMMCN IPUN, JCBNUM, IM KRN (40), LEN (40), KPJT, KJT, KIN, XIN (40,95), IDT, PRD IISTART, IFIN, YIN (40,95), ITIMF140, 991, ADVA, ADVA, ADV, 200, 200, 101, PRO	2YINU(99), XOUT(500), YC(T(500), NIN, TYNARK, ICONFT.ISTRIA, TAFTER, YINT, 23, PRO	MRITE(KUT.256) NDKALIZLANE DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN DEN D	NXNDK=IAES(NEKA)	CU 245 1=1, NXNDK PRO	PRD: WRITE(KUT, 2 oc) XDK(1)	245 CONTINUE PRD	PRDI	200 FUPMAT (* -*, 14, * 15 TFE NUMBER OF DUCKS USED FOR TE TURDED	1// XDK CEORCINATES) CONCINATES (14/ PRO)	260 FJRMAT(FIC.3) PRDI	PRD/	PROM
00													

「「「ないない」

[NTP 0001 INTP0002 INTPOD03 N FP 0004 NTP0005 INTP0006 INTP0008 IN TP 0009 INTP0007 INTP0010 INTPO012 NTP0013 NTP0014 **INTPOOL5 INTPOO16** [NTP0011 NTP0018 NTP0019 INTP 00 20 NTP 00 17 NTP0022 INTP0024 INTP0025 INTP0029 NTP0021 **INTP0023** INTP0026 NTP 00 28 NTP 0030 NTP0032 NTP 00 33 **UTP0035** INTP 0036 INTP0027 NTP0034 NTP0031 2YIND(99), XDUT(500), YCLT(500), NIN, ITMARK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IAEICH, XINT, TIMELINES RCT.AXS COMMEN IPUN, JOBNUM, IMARN(40), LEN(40), KPOT, KOT, KIN, XIN(40,99), IDT, LISTART, IFIN, YIN(40,95), ITIME(40,99), NCKA, NOUT, XDK(20), XINO(95), ALSC OUTPUTS PCINTS LEING GLSQX2*S COEFFICIENTS SUBROUTINE INTERPINDEGX, IARITY, NFTS) ON FROM WHERE VALUES CAME FROM SUBRCUTINE THAT PREPARES ARGUEMENTS FOR GLSQXZ YOUT (K)= YOUT (K) + PARAM(])*XOUT (K) + *NPOMER WRITE CUEFFICIENTS FCF LEAST SQUARES FIT COMMEN / ARE A2/ XMAX, XMIN, YMAX, YMIN [F (XCUT (K) . LT.XMIN)XM]N=XOUT (K) [F(XOUT(K).GT.XMAX)X##X=XOUT(K) IF (YCUT(K).61.YMAX)YP/X=YBUT(K) [F(YOUT(K).LT.YMIN)YP]A=YOUT(K) IF { YOUT(K) . G1. XMAX) XMAX=YOUT [K] IF(YCUT(K).LT.XMIN)XPIA=YOUT(K) CALL GLSQXZ(NDCX,PARAP,NDEGX) CALL CCEF(PARAM,NCCX, ITTPE) 3YINT, INDRCT, JUSIN, IMLINE F(IARITY.EQ.0)GOTO 100 IF (NCEGX.GE.3)NCDX=3 IFINCEGX.EQ.2)NDDX=2 CIMENSION PARAM(4) CIMENSION CHECK CO 111 I=1,NCDX CO 99 K=1,NP15 WRITE(KOT,25C) 0*0=(X)10CA NPOWER=1-1 CONTINUE CONTINUE GOTC 99 11 I PE=0 RE TURN 111 100 66 ပပပ ပပ O

36

► m		
μ μ		
88		
<u>d</u> d		
55		2
4		
		99
		4
		G
~		
\ \		
IJ		
Ŧ		
F Ⅲ		
2		
Ś		
ů.		
а Т		
3		
0		
E .		
50 5		
บ		
_		
ul.		
0		
SA		
5		
Ω.		
H		
Ĩ		
<u>н</u>		
ш Ш		
0		
0		
<u>u</u>		
(1		
0		
z		
F		
5		
•		
~		
-		
4		
Σ.		
S S		
u u		
9		
5(
5N		

<pre>BRDUTINE ************************************</pre>	GLX2000 GLX2000	GLXZ000	CCX200	4 EU GL XZ 0001 61 X 7 0002	6LX2000	[N(+0+99), IDT, GLX2000	0002X1V0(95) + CT 0002	N+IACICH+XINT, GLX20010	GLXZ0011	6L XZ 3012	21 22 20 13	61 X2 UD14	GL X 2 00 16	GLX20017	CL X2 0018	GLX20019	GL XZ 0020	GL XZ 0021	GLX20022	GLX20023	GLX20024	GLX20025	GL XZ 0026	7K GLX20027	GLX20028	GL XZ 0029	GLX20030	CLX20031	GLX20032	ENT MATRIX GLX20033	GL X2 00 34	GLX20035	GI X7 0036	
C CLEAST SQUE SUBROUTIN C LEAST SQUE SUBROUTIN PARAM IS C PARAM IS C COMMON IP IISTART, IF ISTART, IF 271N01099, 30 ZERC ARRAYS IISTART, IF 271N01099, 30 ZERC ARRAYS IISTART, IF 20 PARAM IS C MPUTE SUMS C SO K = 1 XK = XIN0(K) VK = YIN0(K) VK = YIN0(K) D C 40 I IF C 50 K = 1 XK = XIN0(K) VK = YIN0(K) D C 40 I IF C 50 K = 1 XK = XIN0(K) C 1 F	C GLSGXZ SLERDUTINE ************************************	DODROOTINE GEORAGESTATATATATATATATATATATATA	C NDARAM IS THE NUMBER OF FOREEFLFIENTS VEH HANT ATTUS	C PARAM IS A VECTOR CONTAINING THE COEFFICIENTS		CUMMEN I PUN, JUBNUM, I MARN (40), LEN (40), KPCT, KOT, KIN, X	I [START,] FIN, YIN(40,95], ITIME (40,59), NDKA, NDUT, XDK [2	ZINUL994 #AUU (SUU) #YLLI (SUU) #NIN FIMARK #ICONET STR Zytni thopit - Pictn - Pithe	EIMENSTON AUTORIATING INC.	TERE ARRAYS REFERES SUMMIAS	LO EO 20 I = 1, NPARAM	20 PARAM(1) = 0.0E0		IXPMBX=2 + (NPARAH-1)	UU JU I = 14 IXPMAX 30 VDUGEDIII - A ARA		THANDITE SUMPORE DE AMPA A LA SACARA DE ALIGNES.	· VARTONE SOMA UN PUNERS LE A ANU UN PUMERS UN X TIMES Y. En som a l'inder		XX - 140 CC XX=XINN/K1			IF (] _IF_ NDARAWIDA AART) - DADARTI - YA -		XPCWER(I) = XPCNER(I) + XP	40 CCNTINUE	50 CDNTINUE		CONDUTE CDEELFTENTS OF NORTH POINTS 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200 - 200	MACA PANDED CIGHTO UN PURMAL EQUATIONS. THE COEFFICE	ATT A BRADED VITUCIUKT. Aft 1 - Aldre		IT UNTARAM . EQ. [] GC [0 90	

.

ŧ.

GL X 20040 GL X 20041 6LX20048 6LX20049 GLX20038 GL XZ 0039 GLX20037 GLX20042 GLX20043 GL XZ 0044 GL XZ 0045 GLX20046 GL X20047 GL X 2 00 50 GL X2 0052 GLX20051 GL X 200 53 GL X2 0054 GL XZ 00 55 GLX20056 GLX20057 GL X 2 00 5 8 GLX20059 GL XZ 0060 NCRMAL EQUATIONS ARE SINGULAR.) ð ч ХР SPLVE ACRWAL EGLATIONS. 90 Call SIMEG(A,PARAM,NFIRAM,IERK) 15 (IFRR .NE. 0) WRITE (6, 1002) п ц Ч - () $\overline{\sim}$ A(I + (NPARAM - 1) * K) ł к) = хр Ŷ ---= XPCWFR(NPARA# + A(K + NPARAM * (I A(APAKAM + I - K, DC 70 K = I, NPARAA = XPJWER(I = 1) = 2 + NPARAM A(K, I + I -1002 FORMAT(39F LSFIT: $60 \text{ K} \approx 1, 1$ CCNTINUE **CONTINUE** -**30 CUNTINUE** α× ο α С С Å 0 L END 6 6 7.0 с, $\odot \odot$ Q ں ں ی ن Q

J IN North -

and the design of the second s

しいとう ストリート しょうしん デモ・アライ しりくしいてき かくてんちょう あまま 美国学校学校学校学校

SIM00002 SI NGOODS 51 MQ 0004 SI MQ0001 S I MQ 0005 SIM00006 SIM0007 50000W1S S I MQ0008 SIMQOOLO SING0012 SIMQOOIS SI NOODI I SIMQ0013 SIM00014 S 1 MQ 00 16 SI MQ 0017 SIMQ0018 S I M00019 SIM00020 SIM00023 SIM40022 SIMQ0024 SI M00025 S I M000 26 SIM00027 S1MQ0028 S IM00029 SI N00033 S 1 NG0034 S INQ0021 SIMQ0030 S 1 MQ 00 32 SIM00031 THE SIZE CF MATRIX A IS N - NUPBER DF EQUATIONS AND VARIABLES. N MUST BE .GT. CNE. THE SE ARE SSP SUBROUTINE TO SOLVE SIMULTANEOUS EQUATIONS FOR LSFIT VECTCR OF CFIGINAL CONSTANTS (LENGTH N). THESE ARE REPLACED BY FINAL SOLUTION VALUES, VECTOR X. - MATRIX OF CEEFFICIENTS STORED COLUMNWISE. I FOR A SINGULAR SET CF EQUATIONS SEARCH FUR MAXIMUP COEFFICIENT IN COLLMN DESTRCYED IN THE COMPUTATION. O FOR A NCFFAL SOLUTION IF(AES(BIGA)-AES(A(IJ)) 20,30,30 DESCRIPTION OF PARAMETERS SUBROUTINE SIMEO(A, B, A, KS) CLTPUT DIGIT FCRWARD SCLUTION CIMENSION A(1), B(1) N BY N. t DO 65 J=1,N U0 30 I≃1,N ł TOL = C. 00 1 81 GA=A(1J) ¥S < 1 + 4 + 7 7 = 7 7 8 17=JJ-J []=[]+[EI GA=0 1+1=71 NB **√**-=[) I=XAMI KS=0 20 •••••••••••• S Q

 $\mathbf{O} \mathbf{O} \mathbf{O}$

SI MQ0035 SI MQ 0036

CONTINUE

30

ပပပ

40

PAGE

51 MQ 0049 51 MQ 0050 SI MQ0051 SI MQ0052 SI MQ 0056 SI MQ 0057 SI MQ 0058 SI MQ 0058 SI MQ 0054 SI MQ 0055 SIMQOOBE SIM00039 SIM40043 SIM0045 SIMQ0060 SIMQ0061 S140037 51M00040 SIMQ0042 51MQ0044 S1 MQ 0046 5 I MQ 0047 SIM40048 SIM40041 SIMQUOSE SIM40062 S 1 M00063 SI M00064 **SIMQ0065** S I MQ0066 51 MQ0067 SIMQOULE S1 MQ0069 SIMQ 00 70 SIMG0071 SIMQ0072 4 PAGE TEST FCR FIVOT LESS THAN TOLEPANCE (SINGULAR MATRIX) DIVIDE EQLATION BY LEADING CREFFICIENT INTERCHAMGE ROWS IF NECESSARY ([X [] X]= A [[X] X] - [A [] M] * A [] X] X 35,25,40 ELIMINATE NEXT VAFIABLE P(IX)=B(IX)-(B(J)*A(I)) IF (A BS (H I GA) - TOL) A(11)=A(11) / EIGA IF(J-N) 55,7C,55 X]+([-XC)+N=XCX] E([MAX)=E(J) E(J)=SAVE/B1GA CO 65 IX=JY,N CO 6C JX=JY,N 11 = J + N + (J - 2)SAVE=B(IMAX) CO 50 K=J,N A([])=A([2) T1+XLXI=XLL (1-f)*V=SpI $SAV[=\Delta (I])$ A(12)=SAVE IX1 + ShI = CXI IT = IMX - J[2=]]+[T II = II + NI T = J - I XRETURN K S = 1 ۍ ۳ ---С У 6 S С С 6 0 ပပပ ပပပ ပပပ ں ں

ФŦ

-



्रि

.

50	CDEF SURREUTINE ************************************	CUEF0001 CUEF0002
U	ELMENSTON ZIN(1)	COEF 0003
പ	THIS INSTALLATION ACTION ACTIO	COEF0004
ç	THE ANALYSING RELIRES LOGICAL UNIT & AS THE PRINTED	COEF0005
		COEF0006
U.		COEF0007
ا ب		CJEF0008
)	TEATTOR SO AND -	CDEF0009
		CJEFOOIO
ł		CUEFNOIL
יר)) EG 766 1=1.NFK	
		CCELUGI2
71.12		C UEF 0013
		COEF0014
		COEF0015
5.00		CUEF0016
	ELEMENT // LISTING (F COEFFICIENTS HSFF IN SHEDOHTING SHELL	CJEF0017
2 C C B	FURPHICE [3, 3]	CCEFJ018
		COEF0019
		CJEF0020
		CJEF0021

.

ŝ

くりつきとかたてもない

į.

1.1

こうしょう たいしょう しょうしょう しょうないかい たいかんしかい 大学 たんしん かんかん かんたい なんない たいしょう

X0UT0003 X0UT0004 X0UT0005 X0UT0006 X0UT0008 X0UT0009 X0UT0001 X0UT 0002 7000TUCX XPUT 0010 X0UT0015 X0UT0011 X0UT0012 X0UT0013 X0010014 X3UT0316 XOUT0018 XCUT0019 XJUT0017 1 [START, [F IN, YIN(40, 55), ITIME(40, 59), NDKA, NUUT, XDK(20), XI ND(95), 2 YINC(59), XOUT(500), YELT(500), NIN, ITMARK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IAEICH, XINT, CCMMCN [PUN, JOBNUM, [M/PA (40) .LEN (40) .KPC1,KO1.KIN,XIN(40,99),ID1, XNCR=[XIA [JCBNUP,LEA(JCBNUM]) -XIN (JCBNUM, 1)]/FLCAT(NOUTA) KOUTINE TO PLACE OUTFUT POINTS IF NOUT INPUTTED AS <=0 XOUTER SUBRULTINE ******************* XCUT(NOUTA)=XIN (JCENLM,LEN(JCBNLM)) PLACES THEM AT REGULAR INTERVAL BY INT, INDRET, JUSIN, IPLINE x2UT(I)=XCUT(I+1) +XNCR (['WUNGOC] NIX=(])INCX SUBRCUTINE XOUTER CO 3CO I=2,NCUTAI NOUTA= IABS (NCUT) NOUTA1=NCLTA-1 CONTINUE RETURN END 005

ပပ

ပပ

OUTRU001 0UTR 0002 CUTR0003 **9UTR 0004 OUTROOOS** JUTR J006 **JUTR 0007** 0UTR0008 000H100 **JUTR 00 10** OUTRO012 OUTRO013 CUTR0014 0UTR0016 CUTR0011 **UUTR 0015** JUTR CO18 **DUTROOL7 UTR0019** 0UTR 0020 **JUTR0021** 0UTR 0022 UUTR 0023 0UTR0024 0UTR0025 **JUTR 0026 CUTR0027** GUTA0028 0UTR 0029 0UTR0030 OUTR CO31 **OUTR0032** 0UTR 0033 0UTR 0034 OUTR0035 **JUTR 0036** ი 4 PAGE 2YIN0(99), X0011500), YCUT(500), NIN, ITMARK, ICONET, ISTRLN, IACICH, XINT, If((IaUIC+.Eq.1).and.(Ians.ne.1))write(kfet,460)(xcut(1).i=1.hduta COMMEN IPUN, JCHNUM, IMKRN (40), LEN (40), KPOT, KUT, KIN, XIN (40,99), [DT, I ISTART, IFIN, YIN (40, 35), I TIME (40, 54), NDKA, NOUT, XDK (20), XING (95), IF([IaDICH_FG.1).AND.(IANS.EG.1)]WRITE(KFCT.460)XINT.{XOLT(I).I=1. IF(([Arich.fc.1].arg.fiars.ne.1])WR[TF(KPCT.460)(YCUT(1),[=1.NOUTA IF((1ADICH. & G.1).AND.(1ANS.EQ.1))WRITE(KPCT.46C)VINT.(YOLT(1).I=1. CUTER SUERDUTINE WITH CPTIUNAL FNTRY PRGT ########### FUNCHEU AND/CR PRINTEE CLIPUT PCINTS SUBRGUTINE CLTER ERGISION ON FOSTILUN OF ICONET POINT ₩AITE(KPCT,460)(XJUT(]);I#1,NGUTA) 1 MR ITÉ(KPCT,460) (YPUT (1),1=1,NDUTA) JCRAUM ICUNET ACCITICNAL PCINTS ICONET ADDITIONAL PCIAT WRITE(KOT,45C)LX,JCHNLM WRITELKPCT, 4501LX fx=NCUT + 1AflcH AUUTA= IABS(NCUT) COMMON/GNE/ I ANS WRITE(KPCT, 455) IF(IADIC+.VE.1) LX=NCUT + 1ACICH [[[AJICH.NE.]] WRITE(KPC1,47C) PRINTED CNLY ENTRY PLOT 1), XINT INDUTA) I.J. YINT (ATUCA) $\odot \phi$ υü $\circ \circ$

 $c \circ c \circ c$

.

17

ちょういい ちょうよう シー・シー・シー

1

0UTR0038 CUTR0039 GUTR C040 0UTR 0044 0UTK 0046 0UTR0037 GUTR0042 UUTK 0043 GUTR0045 0UTR 0047 CUTR0048 0UTR 0049 0UTP 0050 **JUTR C041 OUTR 00 52** CUTR0053 UUTR 0051 QUTR 0054 0UTP 0055 F①R411(。 XGUTS FGLLCK 采米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米米 IF(([ADICH.EC.1).AND.(IANS.NE.1))WRITE(KCT.465)XINT.YINT krite(x97,480)JC8NUP IF((IADICH*EC*1).AND.(IANS*EC.1))WRITE(KCT,465)XINT,YINT 12) **JUTPUT PLINTS FCP JCB NUMBEP** YOUTS COCRD') wRITE(K0T,465) XOUT(I),YCUT(I) FURMAT(3X,F1C.3,5X,F1C.3) FORMAT(*-*, * XOUTS CCCRD CO 400 1=1.NCUTA NJUT #= IABS (NCUT) **WRITE(KCT,475)** FORMAT (8 F10.3) WRITE(KUT,49C) FORMAT(14,1 FUPPAT('I') CONTINUE RETUAN EZ D 400 490 450 460 653 470 430 465

ł

PRAP 0016 PRAP0018 PRAP0019 PRAP0013 PRAP0014 PRAPOU15 PRAP0020 PR AP 00 22 PRAP0023 PRAPCU24 PRAP0005 PRAP COOB PRAP0009 PRAP0010 PRAP0011 PRAPJO12 PRAP0017 PRAP0021 PR AP 0025 PRAPJ026 PRAP 0027 PRAP0028 PRAP0029 PRAP0003 PR AP0304 PR AP 0006 PRAP0007 PRAP 00.30 PRAP0002 PRAP0031 PRAP 0032 PRAP0033 PRAPODOL 2YIN7(99), X001(500), YC(1(500), N(N,1TMAPK,ICCNET,ISTALN,IACICH,XINT, [F({IADICH.FC.I).AND.(IANS.NE.1))WRITE(KPCT.IAC)(XIN(JOBNUM,I).I=I If([latich-fc.l).and.(lans-fq.l))write(kPCT, icc)xint.(xin(jdenum, i lwRite(kPct,160)(YIN_{.CBNUM,f),I=L,LENT) IF((IACIC+.EC.1).AND.(IANS.NE.1))WRITE(KPCT,160)(YIN(JGBAUM,I),I=L 1,LENT),YINT IF((IADICH-EC.1).AND. (IAMS.EQ.1))WRITE(KPCT,16C)YINT, (YIN(JUBNUM,I CCMMEN IPUN, JCBNUM, IMIRW[40],LEN[40],KP31,KJ1,KIN,XIN[40,95],IDT, I [START+I FIN, YIN(40,35]+ITIME(4J,59), NDKA, NUUT, XDK(20), XINJ(95), A TSCRT HAS BEEN DONE SUBRGUTINE WITH CPTICNAL ENTRY PRINTC +++++++++ lwrite(KPCT,160)(XIN (.CENUM,1),1=L.LENT) WHERE CONFECTION POINT GOES FOR ICONET POSITION IF FUNCHEE AND/CR PRINTEL INPUT POINTS COMPON /AREAZ/ XMAK, XHIN, YMAX, YMIN SORT INPUT PCINTS IN SPECIAL SORT WRITE(KPOT, 150) LX, JCENUM 3YINT, INUROF, JUSIN, IMLINE LX=LEN(JCBNUP) + IACI(F ICONET ACCITIONAL POINT SUBRCUTINE PRAPN LENT=LEN(JCPNJM) COMMON/ONE/INNS IF (LAC ICH .NE .I) WRITE(KPCT, 155) WRITE(KPCT, 17C) TFUIDICH.NE.I) CECISION OF COMMON/CNE/ L.LENT, XINT 1), I=1, LENT) 1), I=1, LE N T) TSURT PK APN CALL ပပ $\circ \circ \circ \circ$ C $\circ \circ$

O

ENTRY PRINTC

PRAP0035

PRAP0036 47

PAGË

PRAP0034

7

PRAP0039 PRAP0038 PRAP0040 PRAP0037 PRAP 0042 PRAP0043 PRAP0044 PRAP0045 PRAPJ041 PRAP0046 PRAP 0048 PRAPOU49 PKAP0050 PRAP0353 PRAP0047 PHAP0052 PRAPCO55 PRAPC058 PRAP0054 PRAPJ056 PRAP 0059 PRAP3062 PRAP0051 PKAPC057 PRAPUDED PRAP0061 PRAP0063 PR AP U064 FURMATI" XIN POINTS FELLOW \$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$\$ IF((IADICH+EC+1)+AND+(IANS+EC+1))HRITE(KCT+165)XINT+YINT IF! [IADICH.EQ.1).AND. [IANS.NE.1})WRITE[KCT,165)XINT,YINT krite(kOT,165)XIN (JCENUM,E),YIN (JUBNUM,I) IF (YMAX.LT.YIN(JOBNUP,I))YMAX=YIN(JOBNUM,I) [F(XMAX.LT.XIN(JUBAUP,[))XMAX=XIN(JUBNUM,[) IF (XMIN.GT.XIN(JOBAUP,I))XMIN=XIN(JOBAUM,I) IF { YMIN. GT. YIN (JOANUP , I)) YMIN=YIN (JCBNUP , I) YINS COORC .) ff([PUN.NE.1].0R.(]NCR0T.EQ.1))CALL TSOFT FORMAT(13, FCIATS IN FCR JOB NUMBER ',12) LENLJOBNUM) [F(LEN(JCBNUP).EQ.I)G(TO 600 IF(LENLJCRNUM).EQ.1)CUTC 700 FORMAT('+', XINS COCED ', C_3,5X,F1C.3,5X,F1C.3) IF(LEN(JCBNUP).EQ.1)LX= WRITE(KUT.15C)LX,JOBALM LX=LEN(JCBNUP) + IACICH WAX CIMEASION CHECK LENT=LEN(JOBNUM) CC 100 I=1,LENT **ARITE(KOT, 175)** FGRWAT (8F10.2) PRINTED CNLY CONT INUE **FETURN** END 600 100 150 160 700 155 165 170 175 O οu

	TSC/NT_SUBRUNTTENE_ ###################################	TSRTJOOL
	SPECIAL SCRT PUTS THE LEAST MEMBER FIRST IN CASE PCINTS	T SR T 0002
	INVESTIGATION AND A CONTRACTION AND A CONTRACT	T 5RT 0003
	SUBFUCTINE TSORT	TSRT004
	CUMMCN IPLN, JCBNUM, [WIRN(40), LEN(40), KPDI, KDI, KIN, XIN(40, 99), 1DI.	T SR TOODS
	115TART, 1FIN, YIN(40,55), 1TIME(40,59), ACKA, NOUT, XDK(201, XIACI39).	
	ZYING(99) + XOUT(5001 + YCUT(500) + NIN + ITMAEK + ICONFT + ISTRIN - LAEICH - XINT -	TCOTOTOT
	PYINT, INURCT, JUSIN, IMEINE	
	CCMMCN/UNE/1 MIS	
	I AN S=0	
	IF(XIN (JEBMEM.1). F.>IN (JABNIM. FAN JEAN MENNIMINICATE 220	ISKIU010
		TSRT0011
	MEND=FEN (JCHNIN) /2	TSRT0012
		TSRTCO13
		TSRTJOI4
	TEREATOR AUGNUTy1) Tempy-vir augusta	TSRTU015
		TSRT0016
		FSRT0017
		TSRTOULE
	XIN (JOBNUM,I)=XIN (JCBALM,NUM)	TSRT0019
	YIN (JCBNUM+[)=YIN (JCBNUM,NUM]	TSRT0020
	IIIME(JEBNUM,I) = ITIME(JCBNUM,NUM)	TSRT0021
	XIN (JUBAUM NUM) = TEMP)	TSRT 3022
		TSRT0023
0	I I I ME(JCHAUM, NUM) = I TEAP	T5RT0024
		TSRT 0025
5		TSRT0026
		TSRT0027

400

March Color

49 PAGÉ SUBROUTINE SCRT(ARKAN, NUM) INTERCHANGE SURT

ပပ

S0RT 0002

SORTOOOL

SURT 0003 S0R10004

SORT0005

SORT JOO6

SOR T 0007 SORT 0008

S0RT0009 SOR T 00 10 SGRT0012 SORT 0013 SCRT 0014 SOR 7 00 1 5

SORT 0011

SORT0019

SURT0016 SORTOUL7

a an ann an Araban an Ar

I

1.1.1

I

I

IF (HCLD.GT.AFRAY(J)) CTC 710 ARRAY (IHCLD) = ARRAY (NL P2) CIMENSICN APRAY(1) C3 710 J=1, NLM2 CO 7CO I±1,NLM NUM2=NUM-I + 1 HOL C=AKRAY(J) HOLD=-2. **32 1HOLD=-2**32 (HCLC=J

ARRAY (NUM2) = FOLD CUNTINUE

510

CONTINUE 700

RETURN END

ue	RSURT SUBROUTINE ++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	
	SUBRGUTINE REDRICTER STRUCTURE ARRAY	RSRI0002
	CIMENSION XISO(1), YISC(1)	KSRT U003
	CG 9CO I=1,IAC	RSH10004
		K SR T 0005
		RSRT0006
	NUP Z = INC - I + I	KSRT0007
	L. 510 J=1, ALM2	R SR T 0008
	IF(FCLU.6T.XISC(J))6C1C 910	R5R10009
		RSRT0010
		RSRT0011
	r:)LD=YISC(J)	RSRT0012
7 1 0		RSRT0013
	XISC([HDLC) = XISC(NUM 2]	RSRT0014
	YISC(IHOLD) = YISC(NUM2)	RSRTOOIS
	X 15 C (NI)M2) = FCL C	ƙ SR TOU 16
1	YISC (NUM2) = YELD	RSRT0017
005		K SR TOOLB
	RETURN	R5RT0019
	END	R5RT0020
		R 5 R T 00 2 1

ſ		林林会长来这些小学校会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会会	STOR DOD 1
ں ر		CALCULATES VALUES FOR CENTERED VELOCITY AND FOR FUTHER IMPROVEMENT	STCR0002
1		SUBRCUTINE STORECTICT(, ICOUNT, ANGL, ANG2, XCORC, YCORC, IHOUR, MINUT,	STOR 0003
		INSEC.HIWSAR, ILAP,IELT,DIST,VEL,VELOC.DIRCT)	STUR0004
		LOGICAL*1 IIELT(9),ICELT(9),IELT(9),NI#SAR(9),MIWSAR(9),KIWSAR(9)	ST0R0005
		GJ TC (900,100,200), ICEC	S T OR 0 0 06
	100	0 CXEMP=FLCAT(ILAP) + FLCAT(IJLAP)	ST0R0007
	•	CVELCC=DVEL+FLCAT(IOL/P)/DXEMP + VEL*FLJAT(ILAP)/DXEMP	5T3R0308
		IF (ICUUNT.EQ.2) CVELCC=C.00	STUR0009
		COTO 800	STCR0010
ں ا			ST0k0011
J		TRANSFER STATION	ST0R0012
	200		STCP0013
	600	D IXCCUN=ICCOUN	ST0R0014
		XANG I=CANGI	STGR0015
		XANG2= CANG2	STUROU16
			ST0R0017
		XY C C R() = () Y C J R C	5TJR0018
		IXHCLA=I HOUP	STURDU19
		IXMIA=14 INUT	STUROU20
		IXNSFC=INSFC	STCR0021
		IXLAF=I0LAP	ST0R0022
		CO 305 JB=1,5	STUR0025
		II ELT(JB)=[CELT(JB)	51 JR 0024
č	ç05	NIWSAR(JR)=KIWSAR(J9)	ST <u>0</u> R0025
		X015T= 001ST	STCR0026
		XVEL=JVEL	510R0J27
			STUR0028
		XIJIRCT=DCIRCT	ST040029
.	200	F3CCLN≠FCCUNT	STUR0330
		CANG I = ANG I	STURDOB1
		CANG2=ANG2	STJR0032
		$C X C \subseteq F D = X C C R D$	ST/JR 00 33
		CYC C RD=Y COR C	ST0R0034
		II HCLR=I FCUR	STCR0035
		IM I NLT=M I RUT	STUR0036
			PAGE 52

ပပ

ı.

STOROO37

KIWSAR(JB)=MIWSAR(JB) NSEC=IXNSEC DT 520 JB=1,5 MIWSAR(JB)=NIWSAR(JB) IF (ICEC.EQ. 1)RETURN IUELT(JB)=IELT(JB) IFLT(JB)=IIELT(JB) []LAP=ILAP CJ 910 JA=1,5 ICCUNT = I XCOUN CVEL=VEL CVEL=VELDC COIRCT=DIRCT XCCRC=XXCCRC YCCRC=XYCCRU IHCUR= IXHOUR VELCC=XVELCC DIRCT=XDIRCT VIVII=IXVIN INSEC=NSEC COIST=OISTANG 2=XANG2 IL AP = I XL AP ANG 1=XANG1 CI 57=X01 ST VEL = XVEL 015 520

RE TURN END

ں

ı

1 対応できる

2

(1) A second state of the second state of t

1

DEGR 0002 DE GR 0003 DEGR0004 **DEGR0005** DEGR0006 **DEGROUO7** DEGR0008 UEGR0001 FUNCTION TO CHANGE DECREES TO POSITIVE DEGREES.MINUTES FOR OUTPUT MANGLE=IFIX(ANGLEZ-FLC/F(NANGLE)) NANGLE = NANGLE - (NANGLE / 360) +360 FUNCTION DEGREE(ANGLE2) WANGLE=MANGLE-MAC*60 NANGLE = I F I X (ANGLE 2) NANGLE=NANGLE+MAD VAD=MANGLE/6C

ں

C NEGATIVE ANGLE FIX IF(NANGLE-GE-0)GDTC IC ISUB=0 IF(MANGLE-NE-0)ISUB=-1 IF(MANGLE-NE-0)MANGLE=6C + M

DEGR0010

DEGROO11

DEGR0009

DEGR 0013

DEGR0014 DEGR0015 DEGR0016 DEGR 0018

0EGR JU 19

DEGP0017

DEGRU012

IF (MANGLE-NE-0) MANGLE=60 + MANGLE NANGLE=360 + ISUB +NANGLE Necoes-eleatinances) asecatinances

U

100 CEGREF=FLCAT(NANGLE) +FLCAT(MANGLE)/10C
RETURN
END

4

TIME0019 TIME0020 TI ME 0003 **TIME0002 TIME0004 TI ME 0005 TIME U006 TIME 0008** TIME0009 TIME 0010 TIMEJO14 **TIME0007** TIMEOOIL TIME0012 **TIME 0013 TIME0015 TIME0016** TIMEDOOL TIME0017 **TIME 0018 TIME0022 TIME0021** TI#E0023 TIME 0024 TIME0025 T1 ME 0026 **TIME 0027** T 1 ME 0028 CATA DIGITS/*0*,'1,'2','2','3','4','5',''6','7','E','5',''-',''','' CUTPUTS & HH: WM:SS CFERACTER(ARRAV) FPGM INPUT TIME IN SECONDS LOGICAL*I FIELD(1),DICITS(13) = IA 8 5(IMINUT - (IMINUT/10) +10) COMPARISON OF BYTES JF (NSECS.LT.C)FIELD(1)=DIGITS(11) JF (NSECS.GE.C)FIELD(1)=DIGITS(13) = IABS(IHOUR-(IHCUR/10)*10) [SEC=NSECS+1+00K*3600+1MUT #60 =14BS(1SEC-(1SEC/10)*10) SUBPOUTINE TIMEPHONSECS, FIELD) IMINUT={NSECS-IH0UR*34C0}/60 = IAB SELHOUR / ICI =IAHS(ISEC/IC) FIFLC(2)=CIGITS(I+1) FIELD(3)=01GITS(1+1) FIELC(5)=DIGITS(1+1) FIELC(6)=CIGITS(I+1) FIELC(8)=CICITS(I+1) fletu(a) = 01611S(1+1) FIELD(4)=01611S(12) FIELE(7)=DIGITS(12) I=IABS{INUT/10} THC UR=NSECS/3600 RE TURN ENC

Ċ

ပပ

ŝ PAGE

Ċ

SAMPLE OUTPUT FOR DROGUE BODY COORDINATE AND VELOCITY CALCULATION COMPUTER PROGRAM

-

ALA ALLER TO ALL TATATA AND A AND JA SIARI ALLATATATA SUA ALLATION 7725772 AANADGGK WING GD PAARAS IPULADIN 9014-0JUSIN-DIGONTAJIAXISHIITMARKALIMLINE-DISTRLN=0

÷

LEGREES THAT THE BASELING IS BEF TRUE NORTH -71 MINUTES-39

THE LENGHT OF THE BASELINE IS 365.20 METERS

LUWTICE IIMS = 5:54: 0 HH:MM:SS

Y HAXIMUM INPUTTED AS 0.0 METERS

.

٠

*****	· JOPAUXBES	1 21 S1	【五代】 米市においお	医生产的机能在一场							·
CIB LUNTIC	ΣΕ						·				·
	ANGLE 1 DEG.#IN 53.50 52.00 51.30 51.00	ANGLO Z DSGC MTW 99,45 90,60 90,15 91,15	X 0-0.80 M-TERS 	Y RTCCR 966640 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 9466400 946640000000000	51487 31 FH:P2:55 51362 5143160 5143160 514210 51142 51162	LCWT1 DE HH: MM: SS -00:110:20 -00:10:20 -00:10:20 -00:05:20	11 ELPT 11	DISTANCE Meters 0 0 29,51 6.17 9.37	BACK « VEL CM/SFC CM/SFC CM/SFC 2.4 2.4 2.4	CENT. VEL. C*/SEC 0.C 2.3 2.3	018CT(N). 016.#TN 0.0 14.00 14.00
***** BACKT	RACKING BU	Γ αλφον ÅΩ	1. BUILLE R	VÜLLISJa 1	4						
WekaGés Fuk	GRCUP:	TOTAL DI:	STANCE STANCE STANCE	MIT JATUT MIT JATUT MM: MM: V	A VEG.	AVEL. VEL. AVE	RG. DIRCT.				
4 PUINTS IN	FCª JOB NI	1 45040	35+52	1:21:00))		11.00				
X1NS CUUAU -500.707 -520.707 -471.274 -471.274 -465.442	11NS C 365. 368. 373. 373.	6400 6400 6400 6400 6400 6400 6400 6400									
ISTING UF CC	THE LOIGNES	s te Least	SOUARES MA	1 P/D							
1462,440 134490 134490 104											
lu cutPUT P	POINTS FOR	ловица вог									
0715 LULK0 -200.707	YCUIS C	(111) (111)									
801 -05+-	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1										
п4со.432 1165.033 1401.114	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9										
-413.277	ር ሆነ ፍርጉ የነዋኑ፣	• 152									
517"29+-	μ. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	642									

【书册》字:"你小部堂女皇帝是此 ASTATIONAL CAD JE JURANY PE

.

-

		ANGLT 2 Dig Min	CIRCENT X		START TM	1011NJ	TIP FLPT	DISTANCE	BACK .VEL .	CENT.VEL.	DIRCTIN).
-	00 1			370 6				SHILLSW		CM/ SEC	DEG.MIN
	47.30	51.00	9.90.4 - 20.4	175.1	1				0 °	0.0	C*0
. 1	4ċ.30	91.15		370.0	b:1-:0	04:22:40			0 4 * P	N • •	21.00
٠	45+00	91°04	-355.8	375 . 8	6:22:20	00:28:20	00:02:02	28.21	- -	 	
ſ	44.15	90.00	-359.7	366.2	6:24:20	00:30:20	00:02:00	11 25		0.01	96.30
3	54451	17.45	-236.5	356.5	6:33:45	57:06:00	00:00:25	E 2 . E 3	11.2	2 - 1 - 1 1	20.20
~	14.15	97 . CO	-278.7	353.6	6:34:46	00:×1:55	00:02:10	18.03	0.1		
33	34,15	13.00	-231.4	339.8	0:17:9	00:41:00	00:05:05	9 F D 7	16.2	15.7	
.	30,00	50° 61	-192.5	373.4	6:40:45	00:50:45	00:03:45	30.10	17.5	1 7 1	
IJ	27.15	78.15	-171.3	332.6	6:44:55	00:52:55	CC:02:10	21 21	1 4.2	15.0	
11	20.00	73,00	-120,5	531.3	6:52:45	00:10:45	C2:02:20	50.71	1 4 1 4 1 4	16.0	
77	12.00	51°22	- 74, 2	321.4	6:57:1C	01:03:10	00:01:25	1 1 1 7	6-11	0	
41	2.30	14,00	-14.0	319.5	7: 3:25	91:30:25	CC:04:15	10 27	, , ,	· · ·	
1	-6.45	CF.4E-	37.2	314.1	7: 9: 0	01:15:00	00:05:35	51.47			
3	-13.30	-49.00	73.1	304.6	7:13:50	05:01:10	00:04:50	51 LE			
10	-17.30	-54.45	6 , 50	301.1	7:14:55	01:22:55	30.00.00				
17	-22.05	-58,00	119.2		7 : 20 : 20	00.00.00		5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5		2.21	
10	-26.15	~60.15	141.7	287.2	7:24:10						00.00
÷1	-27.15	- 40. 00	146.7	1 C A C	7.73.16			5 T 7 T 7 T 7 T			00*#9
	I I								1•0	1.6	00.44
AVERAGES FUR	GROUP:	1014F D1	STANCS VETERS	TOTAL TIN HH:MM:S	ь А Ч9 G. 5	WISEC AVI	E4G, DIRCT. CCG.MIN				
		~	£20 . 70	01:34:1	ın.	10.98	27.00				
is Puints In		C 853-40				1 • •	5 5 - -				
XINS CUINU	VINS C	6600									
-447.279	379.	355									
-405.622	570	. 3 4 9									
-351.132	376.	2.51									
218.502-	349	- 312									
1 330.004	36.96	.159									
504.312-	3.5	. 546									
- < / a . / + >	ά. Έ	155.									
746.165-	339.	.793									
+ 192+405	223,	.353									
-171-205	332.	5 72									
-120-34	321.	0.0									
- 74 . 147	321.	502.									
561-	310.	.544									
37.4.75	314.	.104									
71.11+	304.	.628									
540.040	301.	104									
141.071 141.171	- 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69 - 69	PC9									

 $\{ ^{n}$

IS THE NUMBER OF CUCKS USED FOR JOB NUMBER

N

XLK CJURDINATES -385.717 -203.448

- 18.510 306.725

No. A construction

i

LISTING UP CTERFICIENTS USED IN SUBPOUTINE DUCK

-150.3429 -150.341 -26.712 +101.205

~ -20 ULTPUT POINTS FOR JCG NUMBER

YCUTS CCCRD 379+201	375.950 375.950	356+ 133 356+ 1393 359+ 1393	351+525 345-303 3765-565		323+110 323+110 323+573 123-557	316,469 304,569 303,553 295,393 293
XUUTS CULAD -407-275	-436-407 -405-440	107.076 994.2496 914.212-	-283.244 -222.571 -221.445	-111.22+ -121.22+ -124.001	903-921 103-1035 103-1035 103-1035 103-1035	171 171 171 170 170 170 170 170 170 170

.

1. 李明林书书名称 2. 李子子子子子

.

DE UF UF TIAL OUTOWNAND STAND STAND

fimeMarks NORMAL TIME# CRIMESEC TIME AFTER LOWTIDE*+00:09:00 Cutfut Puints= 5 timeMarks NO.= 1

IPW YTUTS 359,341	351+232	367.016	370.592	378.260
1nM XuUTS -405.140	-+05-24-	-+0	-405,540	717 7011

TIM_MARKS_NURMAL_TIME= 05:55:00 TIME_AFTER_LOWTIDE= 00:01:00 uulful Puints= -5 timesarks_ND.** -2

TPW YCUTS	369.732	370.674	374 .458	380,133	397 . 7 C1
Iom Xutis	-464.384	-464.364	-404.384		-404.3t r

TIMEMAANS NUPWAL TIME= 05105100 TIME AFTER LOWTIDE= 00:11:00 CUTPUI PUINTS= 5 TINGMARKS NO.= 3

I P* Y JUTS	367.252	741 - 040	372,926	378,5C°	296.172	
LUM X-LIG	ינניייניי		-43:44	-435.430	Ci2+=35++	

TIMEMAAKS NURMAL TIME= 0.:15:00 TIME AFTER LENTIDF= 00:21:00 uufput Puints= 5 timemarks NU.= 4

いたしい きょうしん ひょうよう ひょう	358.376 372.162 377.837	385.4C5
10M XULTS -464.701	-464.701 -404.701 -464.701	-404.701

TIMEMARKS ...URMAL TIME= 04:25:00 TIME AFTER LOWIDE= 00:31:00

UUTPUT PUINTS* 5 TINEMARKS NO.= 5

.

IEV YOUTS	357.914	359 . 8C6	363+55C	369.266	376, 533
IBM XULTS	-354.284	*354.28*	-324.284	-354.264	-354,284

TIMEMARKS NURMAL TIME= 05:35:00 TIME AFTER LEWTIDE= 00:41:00 uutfut Puints= 5 timemarks n°.= 6

18× YCUTS	345.322	347.274	391,058	356.734	364.302
IBM XULTS	-28c.275	-280.275	-286.275	-246.275	-28¢.275

TIMLMARKS NJRMAL TIME= 06:45:00 TIME AFTER LOWTIDE= 00:51:00 UUTFUT PJINTS= 5 TIMEMARKS NO+= 7

STUCY MBI	323.335	225 73C	329.514	335,19C	342 . 75 <u>e</u>
ILA XOUTS	-150.035	-19C 053	-194.632	-150.039	-190.033

IBM YOUTS	315.903	319,455	5144255	322-155	335+723	
LEN XULTS	-50,554	- 40 - 10 U	- 56.354	nc4.*05-	- 56. 35d	

TIMEMARKS NURMAL TIME= 07:05:00 TIME AFTER LCWTIDE* 01:11:00 cutput puints= 5 timemarks No.= 9

SINGY YOURS	308,542	110.424	314.218	234*226
XLUTS	6. 515	0.040	0-544	5 4 5 4 5
H A I			:	

,

812-416 012-0 0.743

.

327.452

CT:15:CO TI4E AFTER LCWTIDE= 01:21:00 TI4EWARKS NF.= 10 ILM.MARKU NUEMAL TIME= UUTEUE PUINTS= 5

188 YOUTS 293 803 293 775 299 505 205 105 312 752 11.4 X.UTS 21.544 21.544 21.344 21.544 21.544 21.544

•

07:25:00 TIME AFTER LCWTIDE= 01:31:00 TIM=MAPKS MA.= 11 TAMEMARKS NURME TINGS UNIFUT PUINTSS 5

1P* YOUTS 278+003 ofe-041 L40-sTo

0.0 =NINY 378,395 × μ.ά χ= XM1N= -500,707 146.171 XMAX=

N TOTAL NUMBER OF JURS SQUALS

.
uutput Puints= 5 IIHEMARKS NJ.=

ŧ٩

-

IEV YOUTS	357.914	359 . 806	363.550	349 . 266	376, 533
IBM AULTS	-354.284	-354,284	-354.284	-354.284	-354.284

TINEMAHKS NURWAL TIME= 04:33:00 TIME AFTER LEWTIDE= 00:41:00 UUTFUT PUINTS= 5 TIMEMARKS NO.= 6

IBM YIUTS	345-342	347.274	351,05E	356.734	344.302
IBM XÜLTS	-28c.275	-280.275	-266.275	-246.275	-286.275

TIMLMARKS NJRMAL TIMG= 06:45:00 TIME AFTER LEWTIDE= 00:51:00 JUTFUT PJINTS= 5 TIMEMARKS MO.** 7

STUCY MAI	323,335	355,736	329.514	335,14C	342.750
ILN XCUTS	-150.059	-196.059	-190.637	-140,039	-140.633

TIMEMARKS NURWAL TIME= 05:55:00 TIME AFTER LOWITCE= 01:01:00 Lutpui puints= e timemarks nig= r

21014 VHI	315,902	319 . 40F	722.479	222.155	335.723	
IBN XULTS	- 4c.5d	カスションプー	- >6.354	164 - 96-	- 56. 150	

TIMEMAMKS NURMAL TIME= 07:00:00 TIME AFTER LCWTIDE= 01:11:00 CUTPUT PUINTS= 5 TIMEMARKS NO.= 9

SINUY WAI	30% , 542	310.424	314.218	
IBM XGUTS	C. 543	05000	0.543	

327 462

0.543

нымыжы мығмын тіме= с7±15:СС тіме Артея LCWTIDE= 01:21:00 uutfur Puints= 5 тімемаякS N°I+= 10

SEV YOUTS	293.633	295.725	240.505	305.1.5	212.752
LIN XUUTS	,364	81.JK+	41.104	81. 384	1 1 - Ja+

.

Т.М.МАНКА МОРМАL TIME= 07:25:00 ТІМЕ АЕТЕЯ LCWTIDE= 01:31:00 00fbut Puints= 5 тічерарку №1= 11

Inm XUUIS IPM YOUTS 140.070 279.855 140.070 279.855 140.070 233.675 140.070 289.355 140.070 26.923 No. 0.1 FINUMARKS 11 PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMEMARKS START No. 0.1 FINUMARKS 11 PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMEMARKS START No. 0.1 FINUMARKS 11 PUT THIS CARD JUST AFTER TIMEMARKS START

0.0 0 ×N¦M≻ 378,395 =X 4 × Y 500.707 =N i MX 146.171 HAXE

TOTAL NUMBER DE JERS EQUALS 2

.

如此的是是是是是是是是是是是的。""你们,你们是我们,你们是我们的。""你?""你们是我们是我

DROGUE BUOY PLOTTING

COMPUTER PROGRAM LISTING

- abstraay: farie fivel pata projence defk and then digts if.	PL 310001 PL 310002
THE DATA OF CREATER APPENDED TO THE TASTRUCTIONS . ANTHING NORMALLY	PLNT 333
r Her TT HE CHANGED BY THE PUNCEAM USEP .	PL 01 0004
	PL0T0905
PIWEDS N. X (I.). , Y (I.). , X S C [(+) , X L A B (2)), T E M P I (2)	PL010006
	PL010307
- X - Υ ΓΟΡΑΡΙΝΤΕς ΔΕ ΡΙΝΤς.	PL01038
C XSCI SCALING FOR MAX AND MIN PUINTS	PL0T0009
T XLAR MESSAGE FOR INFUTIETEATION OF POINTS.	
r tewel velating storage for information (alpha form) on input .	PLOTOIO 11001010
	PL01013
C IV INGION DEVICE NUMBERS, PRINTER=5, PLOTTER=7, CARD=8	PLOT0014
CDNSCH E DUT=1, CONSTE IN=6.	PL JT 0015
	PL019)16
KEY TELE	PL 010017
kf Y] = 6	PL 01018
	PL0T0019
C PAUSE FOR TURNING PATA SWITCHES AND HAPD COPY ON SCOPE.	PLAT0020
DAHTS IA	PLOT3321
	PI 01022
Compared Starter Compared Starter Starte	PI 010023
L'IL SVASE	PL0T0324
	PLUT0025
C TE CATA SWITCH O DOWE PLUTS ON SCOPE PNLY.	PL 01 0026
CALL DATSU("+MODE)	PLUT0027
TETPOTE.EQ. 21CALE 1 DOK	PL01028
C TE MATA SWITCH IS UP MUTPUT COMES OUT ON PRINTER. ELSE ON CONSOL	PLOT0030
CALE 9ATSW (15,KPT)	pL010031
$k_{0}L = k_{0}L - \{\{K_{0}L\}, S\}$	PL0T0032
Kut = [kut.d] + [PL 01 0033
T STADIVIN ENGINEACT	PL 7F0035
	PL 01036
	PAGE 1

t

1

1

•

ر ر	PAPANETERS ER MERNAMA. PEAN (KTN.32))[DUK, ENTR], JUS [N, [CJME, [AX [S,] EMAR , [ME IN,] STPL	PL 01037 PL 010038 PL 010039 PL 010039
Ļ	JETE(K)T,525)[900, INCRO.JUGIN, JUGIN, LONE, JAXIS, JIMAR, IMLIN, I STRL	PL0T0042
ز ر ا	xчах, xч[Ч, Y™AX, YЧIN ofAn(<in, 53d)xscl(2),yscl(1),xscl(4),xscl(3)<="" td=""><td>PL01045 PL01045 PL01045 PL010045</td></in,>	PL01045 PL01045 PL01045 PL010045
() 6 . 6 .	tjras=Nukafs re jyps in this callup of PROGRAM. Sean(siv,squ)(trasi(k),k−1,7),tyürs	PLDT0047 PLDT0048 PLDT0048 PLDT0048
L.	ылтте(кот,7-0) ротте(кдт,540)(темп](к),К=1,7),Т.ДЛВS	PL010051
	ANTIALIZATION AN SCOPE AND PLOTICE SCALES AND COORDINATES. Sympty S phi at (0,0) (XMIC,0) (XMAX,0) (0,YMIN) (0,YMAX)	PL01053 PL01055 PL010055
	CALL SCALF(11).'.'.'.') CALL EPLOT (1,12.)11.0) CALL EPLOT (1,0.0,-11.0)	ы ЛТ 3756 рц ЛТ 3757 рц ЛТ 3358
<i>د د</i>	rait readers.52.5) .urssue is to scale metres to "Di inches im a lita.22 chart.	PL JT 0059 PL JT 3060 PL JT 0061
L	ral, fraut(-2,",',',')) ral fraut(-2,",',',')	PL0162 PL010063 PL010064
	「ALT POTPUT(-5) 「ALT POTPUT(-2, つ・0・XSC1(3)) 「ALT POTPUT(-5) CALT POTPUT(-5)	PLAT 9965 PLAT 9065 PLAT 9067
	CALL FORMET(-1) CALL FORMET(-2, 0.0, XSCL(4)) CALL FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) CALL FORMET(-1) FORMET(-2) FORMET(-	PLOT0069 PLOT0069 PLOT0071 PLOT0071 PLOT0072 PLOT0072

.

<pre>prover Form or N. 1151. prover Form or N. 1151. prover Form 1200. prover Form 120</pre>			PLAI 30 75
<pre>PLIT0075 PLIT0075 PLIT007</pre>	_		PL 010074
<pre>party fully fully fully fully provide the point of t</pre>			PL0175
<pre>Introduct in the interview of the introduct interview of the interview of the introduct interview of the interv</pre>		I TITL DAP A PARA	PL0T0076
<pre>PICTODE P</pre>	ι		PL010)77
<pre>PLOTOOP P</pre>			PL 01 70 78
<pre>Norseluption of miles. wind ((), (), (), (), (), (), (), (), (), ()</pre>	J		PL 01 0079
<pre>PUTDDDE PUT</pre>	ſ		PL 0T 0080
<pre>PLOTODE P</pre>	Ĺ	NDTS=[.]V4(* ``*`*``````)```.	PL010381
<pre> Plustrons Plustr</pre>			PL0T0382
<pre>Purpose Purpose</pre>	L		PL DT 0083
<pre> For not Switch 15 the Unitput Cowes Duit on Paintes. ELSE DM CONSOL For not Switch 15 the Unitput Cowes Duit on Paintes. ELSE DM CONSOL Call naitswills.vit vor = (Kort4) + 1 voirt(Kort5c)).v2 voirt(Kort5c).v2 voirt(Kort5c)).v2 voirt(Kort5c).v2 voirt(Kort5c).v2 voirt(Kort5c)).v2 voirt(Kort5c).v2 voirt(Voirt5c).v2 voirt(Voirt5c).v2 voirt(Voirt5c).v2 voirt(Voirt5c).v2 voirt(Voirt5c).v2 voirt(Voirt5c).v2 voirt(Voirt5</pre>			PL nT 0084
<pre>PL01008 C11 mATSR (15,817) C11 mATSR (15,817) C11 mATSR (15,817) C11 mATSR (16,817) C11 mATSR (16,817) C11 mode C11 matSr (16,77) *2) C11 mode C11 mode</pre>	Ĺ	LE CONTRACT LE LID HITPHE COMES DUT DN PREMIER. ELSE DM CONSUL	PL913385
<pre>cdl marks f(rev1/2) *2) corr = k(r) = ((kr/2) *2) corr = k(r) = ((r) = (r) = (r)</pre>	ı		PL910086
<pre>PL01008 PL01008 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL01009 PL010009 PL010009 PL010009 PL010009 PL010009 PL0101009 PL0101009 PL0101009 PL0101009 PL0101009 PL0101009 PL0101009 PL0101009 PL0101009 PL01010009 PL01010009 PL0101000000000000000000000000000000000</pre>			PL010787
<pre> PL07038 PL07038 PL07039 PL0703 PL0703</pre>			PL010088
<pre>PL01009 Pron(KTV, 500) AASTS, (Trwel(K), K=1,0) Pron(KTV, 500) AASTS Pron(KTV, 500) AASTS Pron(KTV, 500) AAST Pron(KTV, 500) AAST Pron(KTV, 500) AAST Pron(POST Pron09 Pron09 Pron09 Pron09 Pron09 Pron09 Pron09 Pron09 Pron00 Pron0</pre>			PL0T0389
PL01009 Production	ŗ_	(0,1=1,	99(()TCJ9
<pre>PLOT009 FEAN(K(K,FT))(K(K),K=1,40TC) FEAN(K(K,ST))(K(K),K=1,40TC) FEAN(K(K,ST))(K(K),K=1,40TC) FEAN(K(K,ST))(K(K),K=1,415) PLOT009 PLOT009 PLOT009 PLOT009 PLOT009 PLOT009 PLOT009 PLOT01009 PLOT01000 PLOT0100 PLOT0100 PLOT0100 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT01000 PLOT010000 PLOT010000 PLOT010000 PLOT010000 PLOT01000000 PLOT0100000000000000000000000000000000000</pre>			PL010091
PL07099 PL07099 PL07099 PL0709 PL07099 PL0709 PL0709 PL0709 PL0709 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>00101a</td></t<>			00101a
Final State			26(01)Ja
 			PL:11 0094
<pre> If not setted town sets thent enth(s.</pre>			60010Jd
⁽¹⁾ (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	Ĺ		PL NT 0096
F[13,F0,2)(ATT 123) PL07005 F[13,F0,2)(ATT 123) F(07005 F[14,F0,2)(ATT 123) F(07015 F[14,F0,2)(ATT 123) PL07015 P[17016 PL07016 PL07016 PL07016	Ĺ		PL0T 0097
 			PL01009(
<pre></pre>			PL010094
<pre></pre>	د.	<pre>C 0 1 1 C C AF (X • Y • Y 0 T S • + L • − 1)</pre>	PL0T010
<pre> Justin function renumber 11st Justin function renumber 11st Justin function renumber 11c Serr(kin, 590); prs, (rewp1(k), k=1, 0) Actr(kin, 590); prs, (rewp1(k), k=1, 0)</pre>			PL01010
<pre></pre>	ι.	the restrict star shared is the second start of the second start o	
<pre>PLOTOIC PLOTOIC P</pre>	ι		PL01319
<pre> f</pre>			PLOTO
>FAF(KTTTTO) PLOTOIC AFTTC(KTTTTO) PLOTOIC	<u>`</u> _		PL01010
APTTE(KLT, 5PD)APTS, (TEMP1(K), K=1,3) VPTTE(KTT, 5PD)APTS, (TEMP1(K), K=1,3) PLOTO1 PLOTO1 PAGE 3			PL JT010
Tr (dors, to, a) Gorn 1100 PAGE 3 PAGE 3		ACTTC(KI 1, 1) tervit.ssnlvdts,(temp1(K),k=1,3)	PLOT019
			protoio
			PACE 3

	NOT CELAR S (NOT S)	
	DEAD/WTM , GAOTE ACTE	
	96AN(KI ^N ,573)(X(K),K=1,NPTS)	010101010101
	PEAQ(KTN + 500)WASTF	PLUT0112
. `		PLOT0113
Ļ	NDTS=MMMTED OF ONLITS.	PL0T0114
	0{ AD (K[N,570] [Y[K],K=],NPTS]	PL0T0115
٤,		PI 01016
÷		6101013
Ĺ	TE PATA SUITE 2. DOUN SKEPS OUTDUT PUINTS.	PLUT0118
	tyl nyfsyla.17)	PL 01 01 19
	IF(17_FC_7)CPT0_1100	PL0T0120
ι.		PL9T0121
	CALL TGPAF(X,Y,NPTS,+L,+L)	PL910122
11 33		PL0T J123
Ĺ		PL 010124
۴	CHECK IT SUITE A TIME DECCEMM MAY HAVE REFA USED.	PL0T0125
	TE((['4.] N. PO.)),A'43.([TNAR,FQ.)).AND.([STPL.EQ.))6JF7 9999	PL0T0126
Ļ		PLNT0127
	o (20 (≤ 1 m + 20) 0) M 42 £0	PL010128
Ļ		PL/0129
Ĺ	TERPARTORIES OF TIME MARKS SYN LIGES FOR EATCH.	PL nT 01 30
	a¤As(K1',590)[Tr≫p](K),K≤1,4),TTNUM	PL77131
Ļ		PL010132
	٥٢ الم	PL910133
	₩₽!TF(⊀^TT+5<1)(TF401(K)+K=1,4},1+T43M	PL 0134
	if [i [veb • c5•0] C i L) وعدة	σ [σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ] σ
	WP [] F[KOT, 74.0]	PLTT136
	0190(x1x*2]0)(118mu)(X)*X=1*30)	PL910137
	1511tt[Kul*2[6]([t+xn][K]*K=1*30]	9 6 1010198
	PEAR(X1, 451))(TEMP1(K1,K±1,20)	91010 July 29
	Asiii(koli'sio)(leasi(k)'k≐1'50)	01010140
	Photo 2000 Tellinea	PL7T7141
	WEIT(KOT, Z10)	P1+1T0142
	95Ar{{ Y ₊ 5 n}(Trwal(K),K=1,20)	PL110143
	<pre>>>TTTT(KCT,S10) (TEYP1(K),K=1,20)</pre>	PL9T0144
		PACE 4

06/16/2002 110/2016 110/	υξυ √Ε ΠΠΡΝΤζ. ΙΝ.5Ο5Ι(ΓΕΥΡΙ(Κ).Κ=Ι.4).ΝΡΤ.ΤΕΜΡΙ(5).ΤΕΜΡΙ(δ).ΤΕΜΡΙ(7).	Pt.017146
PEAD (() 215401(14) 215401(14) 215401(14) 215401(14) 215401(14)	<pre>iw.bobl(fewpl(k).k=1.4).NPT.tEMPl(5).fEmpl(6).tEMpl(7).</pre>	
115001(9) 215001(14 0 115001(14 115001(14 115001(14 15001(14) 115001(14) 115001(14) 115001(14) 115001(14)		PL010147
215401(14 WP[T5(K: 176401(3) 215401(3)),TEPP[0],TEMP[(1)],TEVD[(11),TEMP[(12],TEMP[(13],	PL010148
с Мр Гтб (Ко 2 тбер ((д) 2 тбер ((д)	<pre>t),Trimit[[5],TFMP[[15],TEMP][17],TEMP][18]</pre>	PL010149
WP [TE (K) TEMP [[4 2 TEMP [[4		PL 71 01 50
115451(3) 215401(14	1T.\$5^\$} [TÇ⊻P1(K].k=1,4].VPT.TÉMP1[5].TEMP1(6].TEMP1(7).	PL010151
51Ero1(14),Trwp](q),TfWp]([d),TfWp]([]),TEMp]([2),TFMP[[]3),	PL910152
	6),T[#P](]5),TFMP][[6),TEMP[[]7],TEMP[[]8]	PL'170153
	V + 5) >] & A 7 F F	PLOT0154
AT >} oA 19	¢,57∩){X{K},k=1,NPT }	PL 7T 01 55
	V, 500)WASTE	oL710156
н (к (к).		
		PL010158
	VALUET A TOUR AN TOUR IN THE LAND AND THE APPROX SA	9101014
	2 2 6 1 4 1 0 1 2 3 1 6 1 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	
		PL J J D L 62
	[A]] ECEAE(X,Y,VOT ,+1,-1)	PLOTO163
SOUT CONTRACT		PLOT 0164
∿ໄ≯)ແຂະບດີ ຮຽວທີ	1, 510}WAST©	PL0T0165
41>]JV14 6660	r ₅sontweste	PLNT0166
Ļ		PL0T0157
uovuou× u	SPTTING PAGE.	PL0T0168
אנינייקרים (ה	VING AN MESSAGE TO APPEAR ON CHART.	PL0T3169
XF v P = X S C	L.(8-{1})	PL010170
لا د ۱۰ ت ≍ ۲ ک ز	7[[]]-[53.)	PL:010171
	с VГ(ЕСНАР(ХЕЧР,ҮЕМР ,.1),.1),.))))	PL0T3172
L		PL0T0173
	₩₽ТТЕ(",\$99)(XLAR[],[=1,20)	52 T01014
ί		PL 01 01 75
J		PL NT 0176
CvFf ⊆Xi		PLOT 77
į		PL0T0178
Ļ		PL JT 01 79
ι		PL 010180
		PAGE 5

PLOT0185 PLOT0186 PLOTOIAL PL:010182 PLOT0183 PLUTJ184 PL nT 0188 PLOT0193 PLOT0193 PL0T0187 PLOT0189 PLOTO190 PLOTO191 PL 1T 01 92 FOPWAT (12%, 11, 7%, 11, 6%, 11, 7%, 11, 6%, 11, 7%, 11, 7%, 11, 7%, 11, 7%, 11, 7%, 11) FOPWAT (12%, 11, 7%, 11, 6%, 11, 7%, 11, 6%, 11, 7%, 11, 7%, 11) FOFWAT (10%, FLO, 0, 10%, FLO, 0, 10%, FLO, 0, 10%, FLO, 0) FORMAT (414, 3X, 15, 1444) ([]*X(******]]]]/Wduj FURMAT (14,974,39X,11) Friquat (744, 3X, 12) FUPMAT(4A4,2X,[3) Enowal(RELT.O) Fripwat (2444) FLOWAT (10/4) FrewAT (101) Frpuidt (A4) C Li 51.5 525 500 540 540 563 570 59.0 590 002 500

Ŧ

t

1

Ś

APPENDIX B

TIDES AT CASTINE, MAINE

JULY 4, 1972 THROUGH JULY 28, 1972

NOTE ; Castine 24' N 48' W L.44 68 H.W. -4 Min on Portland -1 Min on Portland L.W. H.W. +0.7 FT L.W. +0.0 FT Ranges MEAN 9.7 FT SPRING 11.1 FT

٦

-1-

.

MEAN TIDE LEVEL 4.8 FT

ALL HOURS FASTERN DAYLIGHT SAVINGS TIME

	TI	DES
	TIME	HT
July 4, 1972	0503 1115 1732 2356	9.4 0.1 10.2 0.1
July 5	0605 1212 1834	9.2 0.3 10.4
July 6	0103 0710 1314 1932	-0.1 9.1 0.4 10.6
July 7	0210 0820 1417 2035	-0.4 9.1 0.4 10.9
July 8	0312 0922 1518 2137	-0.7 9.3 0.2 11.2
July 9	0413 1019 1616 2232	1.0 9.5 0.1 11.4

TIDES

	TIME	НT
July 10	0510 1116 1714 2328	-1.3 9.0 -0.1 10.8
July 11	0601 1209 1808	1.4 9.8 -0.2
July 12	0019 0651 1258 1759	11.4 -1.3 9.9 -0.1
July 13	0110 0738 1346 1950	11.1 -1.1 9.9 0.0
July 14	0159 0823 1434 2039	10.7 -0.7 9.8 0.2
July 15	0247 0910 1520 2130	10.1 -0.2 9.3 0.5
July 16	0335 0953 1606 2223	9.5 0.3 9.4 0.8
July 17	0427 1041 1655 2315	8.3 0.8 9.2 1.0
July 18	0520 1130 1746	8.4 1.2 9.1
July 19	0013 0619 1221 1839	1.2 8.1 1.6 9.0

TIDES

	TIME	HT
July 20	0109 0718 1316 1935	1.2 7.9 1.7 9.0
July 21	0210 0814 1411 2027	1.1 7.8 1.8 9.1
July 22	0305 0909 1502 2118	0.9 8.0 1.7 9.3
July 23	0354 0958 1550 2204	0.7 8.2 1.5 9.3
July 24	0437 1041 1635 2245	0.4 8.4 1.2 9.9
July 25	0517 1122 1716 2324	0.1 8.7 0.9 10.7
July 26	0554 1158 1752	-0.2 9.0 0.6
July 27	0003 0630 1236 1835	10.4 ~0.4 9.4 0.3
July 28	0041 0707 1313 1916	10.5 ~0.6 9.7 0.0

ţ?